Public Document Pack

Traffic Management
Advisory Committee
Agenda

To: Councillor Muhammad Ali (Chair)
Councillor Patsy Cummings (Vice-Chair)
Councillors Karen Jewitt, David Wood, Luke Clancy and lan Parker

Reserve Members: Jade Appleton, Robert Canning, Clive Fraser,
Jamie Audsley, Louis Carserides and Oni Oviri

A meeting of the Traffic Management Advisory Committee which you are hereby
summoned to attend, will be held on Thursday, 11 November 2021 at 6.30 pm.
This meeting will be held remotely.

Katherine Kerswell Anoushka Clayton-Walshe

Chief Executive 020 8726 6000 x62537

London Borough of Croydon anoushka.clayton-walshe@croydon.gov.uk
Bernard Weatherill House www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings

8 Mint Walk, Croydon CRO 1EA Wednesday, 3 November 2021

Members of the public are welcome to view the webcast both live and after the
meeting has completed at: http://webcasting.croydon.gov.uk.

The agenda papers for all Council meetings are available on the Council website at:
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings.

If you require any assistance, please contact Anoushka Clayton-Walshe as detailed
above.


http://webcasting.croydon.gov.uk/
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings

AGENDA - PART A

Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the
Committee.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2021 as an
accurate record.

Disclosure of Interests

Members and co-opted Members of the Council are reminded that, in
accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct and the statutory
provisions of the Localism Act, they are required to consider in advance
of each meeting whether they have a disclosable pecuniary interest
(DPI), an other registrable interest (ORI) or a non-registrable interest
(NRI) in relation to any matter on the agenda. If advice is needed,
Members should contact the Monitoring Officer in good time before the
meeting.

If any Member or co-opted Member of the Council identifies a DPI or
ORI which they have not already registered on the Council’s register of
interests or which requires updating, they should complete the
disclosure form which can be obtained from Democratic Services at any
time, copies of which will be available at the meeting for return to the
Monitoring Officer.

Members and co-opted Members are required to disclose any DPIs and

ORIs at the meeting.

- Where the matter relates to a DPI they may not participate in any
discussion or vote on the matter and must not stay in the meeting
unless granted a dispensation.

- Where the matter relates to an ORI they may not vote on the matter
unless granted a dispensation.

- Where a Member or co-opted Member has an NRI which directly
relates to their financial interest or wellbeing, or that of a relative or
close associate, they must disclose the interest at the meeting, may
not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not
stay in the meeting unless granted a dispensation. Where a matter
affects the NRI of a Member or co-opted Member, section 9 of
Appendix B of the Code of Conduct sets out the test which must be
applied by the Member to decide whether disclosure is required.

The Chair will invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the
commencement of Agenda item 3, to be recorded in the minutes.



Urgent Business (if any)

To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the
opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered
as a matter of urgency.

Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods (Pages 11 - 430)

The report makes recommendations regarding the future seven
Temporary Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs) that were implemented
in response to the Covid-19 Pandemic, the Statutory Guidance issued
by the Secretary of State for Transport and calls to address the speed
and volume of traffic in certain local access streets/unclassified roads.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed
to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting:

“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.”

PART B



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

Traffic Management Advisory Committee
Meeting held on Wednesday, 7 July 2021 at 6.30 pm.
This meeting was held remotely; to view the meeting, please click here.
MINUTES

Present: Councillor Muhammad Ali (Chair);
Councillor Patsy Cummings (Vice-Chair);

Councillors Jade Appleton, Karen Jewitt, David Wood and Luke Clancy

Also David Wakeling (Parking Design Manager)
Present: Cliona May (Democratic Services)
PART A

12/20 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 February 2021 were agreed as an
accurate record.

13/20 Disclosure of Interests
There were none.
14/20 Urgent Business (if any)
There were no items of urgent business.

15/20 Objections to Proposed Introduction of Electric Charge Point Parking
Bays - EImgrove Road, Sundridge Road, Northborough Road and
Kemble Road

David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager, introduced the Report which
considered the objections received to the proposals to install Electric Vehicle
(EV) Charging Bays in EImgrove Road and Sundridge Road, Addiscombe
East, Northborough Road, Norbury & Pollards Hill and Kemble Road,
Waddon. Four sites had received objections out of the 19 sites in total. These
were predominantly related to the loss of parking, noise pollution, visual
intrusion and concerns that residents who do not live in the local area would
use the bays. The council’s response following consideration of the objections
was to continue to recommend the proposals. David Wakeling went onto say
that that demand for EV Charging Bays was set to exponentially increase in
the coming years, which reflected the UK government policy to ban new petrol
and diesel cars by 2030. The EV Charging Bay location proposals were

Page 5


https://webcasting.croydon.gov.uk/croydon/meetings/12688
https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/documents/s31053/5.%20Objections%20to%20Electric%20Vehicle%20Charging%20Point%20Bays%20-%20Various%20Locations.pdf

designed carefully to be positioned on flank boundaries to minimise the visual
intrusion.

The Chair thanked the officer for his introduction and then invited the
members of the public who registered to speak to make their representations.
Two objections were received in relation to the proposals for EImgrove Road
and Northborough Road.

Max Mulvany spoke in objection to the EImgrove Road EV Charging Bays
proposal highlighted the following:

He described the current parking situation as awful and that reducing the
parking supply in that area would be even more detrimental.

This area was surrounded by busy services and amenities, such as
schools and the high street, and there was no protection from the overspill
vehicles looking to park.

He explained the stress of driving home from work and being unable to
find a space within a half mile radius of his home in the current situation,
and that losing four parking spaces on Elm Grove Road would have a
knock-on effect and displace cars further.

The claim that the objections were based on visual intrusion were not
accurate and the concerns rested with reducing carers access for elderly
residents and residents with young children who need to park close to their
house.

He stated that there were alternative locations suggested by residents.

He suggested that officers should considerer reducing and spreading the
number of proposed bays; he was not opposed to the principle of the bays,
however he was to this particular area at this given time.

The Chair thanked Max Mulvaney for his representation, ahead of inviting the
next member of the public to speak.

Gulhan Kaynar spoke in objection to the Northborough Road EV Charging
Bays proposal and highlighted the following:

She outlined that the proposed EV Charging Bay was situated outside her
front door, which was the only entrance affected.

She said that there were many alternative locations on Northborough
Road which were potentially suitable and would not affect residents.

She described the feeling of insecurity of having a bay placed outside of
her house, as a single occupancy, and passing drivers who were not
residents of the area regularly using this space.

She detailed that there was limited scientific evidence to support the safety
of the EV Charging Bays and the effect on people’s health.

Councillor David Wood joined the meeting at 6.41pm.

The Chair thanked the residents for their representations to the Committee.
He invited David Wakeling to respond and provide any relevant clarifications.

Page 6



David Wakeling made the following clarifications:

e Many alterative positons of the EV Charging Bays which seemed visibly
suitable were in fact not because they did not have the required electricity
supply in the road.

e The proposed bays were to provide electric charging facilities for the local
residents and were not intended, or generally suitable, for passing users
due to the slower charging power rate.

e There was, and increasingly will be, a requirement and demand for the EV
Charging Bays across the borough.

e The bays might feel like a loss of space initially, however once these bays
were installed residents would be enabled to purchase electric cars.

e There was no scientific evidence of health risks caused by EV Charging
Bays.

Committee Member Questions and Debate

In response to Councillor Ali asking how the installation of EV Charging Bays
would affect areas that already experienced parking pressures, David
Wakeling stated that the parking demand in Addiscombe was notable,
however they had consulted with residents in the past for proposals to
introduce Controlled Parking Zones, which brought a negative response and
was not taken forward. He also clarified that the EV Charging Bays were
intended for the use of local residents and the spaces would only take a small
percentage of the total parking space in the area, therefore existing parking
pressures should not be negatively impacted.

The Chair asked for more details about the local interest from residents to
introduce EV Charging Bays. David Wakeling replied that all of the proposed
sites were requested by residents, with varying interest.

In response to Councillor Appleton asking how the allocation and provision of
EV Charging Bays in Croydon compared to other boroughs, David Wakeling
stated that they were behind inner London boroughs. In comparison to
neighbouring boroughs, he explained that it was difficult to compare to
Bromley due the the amount of off-street parking and that Croydon was
behind Merton and Wandsworth. He stated that Croydon had a target to install
400 EV Charging Bays by 2022 and it was projected that 1000 would be
needed by 2030 to satisfy demand.

Members across the committee expressed their sympathy with residents who
may be negatively affected by the EV Charging Bays, however the consensus
was that the proposals should be implemented for the reasons detailed by the
officer and set out in the report. Members voted unanimously to support the
recommendations as set out in the report to the Cabinet Member for
Sustainability.

Page 7



16/20

17/20

Objections to Proposed Introduction of Waiting & Loading Restrictions

David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager, introduced the Report which
considered the objections received to introduce waiting and loading
restrictions in various locations across the borough. The report sought to
amend the original proposals, which was outlined in the appendices. All of the
sites proposed to introduce restrictions were in response to complaints about
safety and accessibility.

Committee Member Questions and Debate

Councillor Luke Clancy raised concerns over emergency vehicle access on
congested roads, explaining that those issues were exacerbated by the
School Streets in the Grove Wood Hill area. He described a recent incident
whereby a refuse lorry round and a school pickup time coincided and caused
major traffic problems, where the lorry became stuck half way up the road. He
said that Councillor Creatura had now raised this incident and made
suggestion to the council to ensure that refuse rounds would not occur during
peak school pick up hours. Councillor Clancy said this incident highlighted the
risks of major congestion of serious accessibility concerns.

David Wakeling stated there were proposals to implement school time traffic
restrictions in the Grove Hill Road area, following consultation with concerned
local residents. He understood the Councillor’s valid concerns regarding
emergency vehicle access. School Streets did have an effect on the area in
relation to congestion and he reassured that the council was in the process of
mitigating those problems.

The Chair told the Committee that the aim of the School Streets scheme was
to encourage healthy behaviour shifts and enable people to engage in active
lifestyles.

Councillor Jewitt stated that she was pleased to see the proposal to adjust
restrictions to the junctions in Thornton Heath because of the areas current
parking issues.

Committee Members unanimously agreed to support the recommendations as
set out in the report to the Cabinet Member for Sustainability.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

This item was not required.

Page 8


https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/documents/s31058/6.%20Objections%20to%20Proposed%20waiting%20loading%20restrictions.pdf

The meeting ended at 7.03 pm

Signed:

Date:

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

REPORT TO: Traffic Management Advisory Committee
11 November 2021

SUBJECT: Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Hayward — Interim Corporate Director

Sustainable Communities, Regeneration & Economic
Recovery

Steve lles - Director of Sustainable Communities

CABINET MEMBER: Councillor Muhammad Ali
Cabinet Member for Sustainable Croydon

WARDS: Addiscombe West & East, Broad Green, South
Norwood and Woodside

COUNCIL PRIORITIES 2020-2024

e We will live within our means, balance the books and provide value for
money for our residents.

Central government is clear that the only transport investment funding
currently available to London local authorities is that with which to:

e adjust Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (and other schemes to aid
walking and cycling implemented in response to the COVID19
pandemic) where it is necessary to take account of real-world
feedback, the aim and funding being to retain schemes and adjust,
not remove them, unless there is substantial evidence to support
this.

e implement more Low Traffic Neighbourhood type schemes and other
schemes intended to help people choose to walk and cycle.

It is equally clear that central government considers the premature removal
of schemes to have implications for public money, and those local
authorities that remove schemes prematurely should expect to receive
reduced transport funding in the future.

e We will focus on tackling ingrained inequality and poverty in the borough.
We will follow the evidence to tackle the underlying causes of inequality and
hardship, like structural racism, environmental injustice and economic
injustice.

The proposals are part of a wider programme agreed by Cabinet at its 26
July 2021 meeting. The proposals in this report, and the wider programme,
are intended to speed delivery of the Mayor of London’s Healthy Streets
and Vision Zero objectives. They seek to help all to travel actively and
sustainably, to walk and cycle and use public transport, bringing benefits in
terms of healthy weight, improved air quality, free/low cost travel, benefits
expected to accrue more strongly to the most deprived communities. They
seek to tackle environmental injustice addressing the traffic impacts arising
in access streets in some of the parts of the borough with the highest levels

Page 11



of deprivation and some of the lowest levels of car ownership. They seek to
make the streets available to children again, returning children’s’
independent mobility and communal play.

¢ We will focus on providing the best quality core service we can afford. First
and foremost, providing social care services that keep our most vulnerable
residents safe and healthy. And to keep our streets clean and safe. To
ensure we get full benefit from every pound we spend, other services in
these areas will only be provided where they can be shown to have a direct
benefit in keeping people safe and reducing demand.

The proposals and wider programme are focussed on providing safer street
space in which people can choose to walk or cycle, helping all become
more active and in turn healthy, ultimately accruing savings for the NHS and
Council care services.

Council’s priorities

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The majority of the cost of implementing the recommended schemes will be met
from Active Travel Funding (ATF) provided to London by central government and
administered by Transport for London (TfL). The ATF is not meeting the full cost
of cameras to enforce the ‘No Motor Vehicle’ restrictions that would implement the
recommended experimental schemes. Cameras would be provided by deploying
a number already acquired as part of the recently let contract to provide such
CCTV equipment, and by redeploying a limited number from existing locations.
Any remaining unmet cost would be met from the Parking Account.

At the end of July, the Minister for Transport wrote to Leaders of all combined,
transport and highway authorities in England to advise on the funding implications
associated with the removal of LTNs and other similar Active Travel Funded
projects. The letter advises:

‘if these schemes are not given that time to make a difference, then
taxpayers’ monies have been wasted. Schemes need time to be allowed to
bed in; must be tested against more normal traffic conditions; and must be
in place long enough for their benefits and disbenefits to be properly
evaluated and understood. ...Schemes must not be removed prematurely,
or without proper evidence and too soon to collect proper evidence about
their effects........

Premature removal of schemes carries implications for the management of
the public money used in these schemes and for the government's future
funding relationship with the authorities responsible. The department will
continue to assess authorities’ performance in delivering schemes and,
following the precedent we have already set, those which have prematurely
removed or weakened such schemes should expect to receive a reduced
level of funding.’

(Letter at Appendix 1)

Page 12



https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/documents/s26109/Appendix%20D%20-%20Administration%20Priorities%20for%20the%20Croydon%20Renewal%20Plan.pdf

KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.: 5121SC, 5721SC and 5821SC
The notice of the decision will specify that the decision may not be implemented until
after 13.00 hours on the 6th working day following the day on which the decision
was taken unless referred to the Scrutiny and Overview Committee.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend to the Cabinet
Member for Sustainable Croydon that they agree:

1.1 (subject to Spending Control Panel approval) to replace Temporary Low
Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs) with Experimental Croydon Healthy
Neighbourhoods (CHNSs) at:

(i) the ‘Dalmally Road area’
(i) the ‘Elmers Road area’

(i) the ‘Parsons Mead area’
(iv) the ‘Sutherland Road area’
(v) the Holmesdale Road area
(vi) the ‘Albert Road area’

(vii) the ‘Kemerton Road area’

by the making of Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders (ETROS) to
operate for up to 18 months as detailed at Paragraph 2.7 and Appendix 4
of this report, with exemptions as described at Paragraph 2.7.

1.2  to delegate to the Director of Sustainable Communities the authority to
vary the provisions of the ETROs including the exemptions to the
restrictions and the lessening of restrictions as deemed appropriate as
part of the experimental trials.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The report makes recommendations regarding the future seven Temporary
LTNs implemented in response to
o the COVID19 Pandemic;

. Statutory Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Transport;
and
. calls to address the speed and volume of traffic in certain local access

streets/unclassified roads.

It reports the results of recent online questionnaire based ‘listening’ conducted
ateach LTN area. It recommends making each LTN a time limited Experimental
CHN. The recommendations are made in the light of the:

o updated Statutory Guidance,;

o Traffic Management Duty and the achievement of the expeditious flow

of traffic;
o policy including government’s Cycling and Walking plan for England;
. Council Priorities, in particularly ‘providing value for money’;
o Croydon Climate Change Crisis;

Page 13



2.1

2.2

2.3

J findings of and limited reach of the questionnaire based ‘ listening’;
o Equality Analysis; and
o road classification/hierarchy

The report explains that the recommended Experimental CHNs would allow
the gathering of robust evidence on which to base decisions as to the long term
future of each the LTNsS/CHNSs.

THE RECOMMENDED HEALTHY NEIGHBOURHOODS

Background

From May 2020, Temporary LTN measures were quickly implemented in
Croydon, (as elsewhere in London and nationally) in response to:
e the COVID19 Pandemic;
e calls to address the speed and volume of traffic in local access streets /
unclassified roads; and
e Statutory Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Transport

funded through TfL’s COVID19 related Streetspace Plan for London
programme, with implementation further guided by evidence from TfL to support
the Streetspace Plan, in particular TfL’s:
o Strategic Neighbourhood Analysis! identifying areas to be considered
for LTN implementation; and
. Temporary Strategic Cycling Analysis? identifying priority cycling
corridors along which cycling is to be accommodated.

(summary information at Appendix 2).

First published in May 2020, The Secretary of State for Transport’s statutory
guidance ‘Traffic Management Act 2004: Network Management to Support
Recovery from COVID-19’ called on local authorities to take swift action to
create space for social distancing, walking and cycling, with the measures
including using planters to close streets to create LTNs. The Guidance has
been updated over the intervening period. The most recent iteration® published
30 July 2021 reminds local authorities that (following the publication of ‘Gear
Change’ the government’s Cycling and Walking plan for England), central
government continues to expect local authorities to take measures to reallocate
road space to people walking and cycling explaining that: ‘The focus should
now be on devising further schemes and assessing COVID-19 schemes with a
view to making them permanent. The assumption should be that they will be
retained unless there is substantial evidence to the contrary.’

In March 2021, TfL issued ‘Interim Guidance for Delivery Using Temporary and
Experimental Schemes’ (replaced by ‘Guidance for delivery of experimental

1 https://content.tfl.gov.uk/Isp-app-six-b-strateqgic-neighbourhoods-analysis-v1.pdf

2 https://content.tfl.gov.uk/Isp-app-four-analysis-temp-sca-vil.pdf

3 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reallocating-road-space-in-response-to-covid-19-
statutory-quidance-for-local-authorities/traffic-management-act-2004-network-management-in-
response-to-covid-19

Page 14


https://content.tfl.gov.uk/lsp-app-six-b-strategic-neighbourhoods-analysis-v1.pdf
https://content.tfl.gov.uk/lsp-app-four-analysis-temp-sca-v1.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reallocating-road-space-in-response-to-covid-19-statutory-guidance-for-local-authorities/traffic-management-act-2004-network-management-in-response-to-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reallocating-road-space-in-response-to-covid-19-statutory-guidance-for-local-authorities/traffic-management-act-2004-network-management-in-response-to-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reallocating-road-space-in-response-to-covid-19-statutory-guidance-for-local-authorities/traffic-management-act-2004-network-management-in-response-to-covid-19

Healthy Streets Schemes’ October 20214) advising on the future of temporary
schemes implemented in response to the COVID19 Pandemic under
Temporary Traffic Regulation Order (TTRO) or Experimental Traffic Regulation
Order (ETRO). The Interim Guidance explained that with an Experimental
Traffic Order TRO, the main statutory public consultation is undertaken when
the experimental scheme is in place. The Interim Guidance however suggested
that local authorities should undertake a period of ‘active listening’ with
residents, businesses etc. before the statutory public consultation period
suggesting that while the ‘active listening’ is not formally required, it may
generate feedback indicating reasonable adjustments to a proposed
experimental scheme.

The Temporary LTNS

2.4  The Temporary LTNs were largely implemented by placing wooden planters to
close streets to through motor traffic in Addiscombe West & East, Broad Green,
South Norwood and Woodside wards as detailed at Appendix 3. The Parsons
Mead area Temporary LTN in Broad Green is different to the others in a number
of respects:

a) itwas already identified as an area for intervention as part of the
‘Reconnecting Old Town Liveable Neighbourhood’ programme,
following (and a part of) the successful Liveable Neighbourhood
funding bid to TfL. The Liveable Neighbourhood proposals included
engaging with residents on a proposed LTN, before beginning to
design and consult on measures to address traffic cutting through
this northern part of the Liveable Neighbourhood area (activities
planned but not implemented prior to the COVID19 Pandemic).

b) TfL’s Temporary Strategic Cycling Analysis, identifies London Road
as one of London’s Priority Cycle Corridors, but also suggests that
much of London Road is too narrow for segregated cycle lanes.
Cycle lanes were implemented on Croydon Council’s section of
London Road last year (in response to the COVID19 Pandemic)
extending southwards as far as Handcroft Road. The Temporary
LTN continues the Priority Cycle Corridor into the Town Centre at
West Croydon via Handcroft Road and Parsons Mead, then
connecting through North End (and the COVID19 related cycle
measures in the High Street), to Brighton Road where further cycling
improvement measures are proposed®.

c) It was the last to be implemented in Croydon in the summer of 2020
under the London Streetspace Plan programme. Its design was
shaped through feedback from the Emergency Services (and their
need for free movement through LTNSs); and residents living in
Temporary LTNs owning cars, not wanting to be inconvenienced
when driving in and out of LTNs to and from their homes.

4 guidance-for-delivery-of-experimental-healthy-streets-schemes-oct21.pdf (tfl.gov.uk)

5 Cabinet Report ‘'2021/22 (Part) Local Implementation Plan Funding, Bus Priority Funding and Active
Travel Funding Programme’ 26 July 2020, Key Decision ref 3621CAB

Page 15


https://content.tfl.gov.uk/guidance-for-delivery-of-experimental-healthy-streets-schemes-oct21.pdf

2.5

2.6

2.7

The Holmesdale Road area Temporary LTN sits on another of the TfL identified
Priority Cycling Corridors, namely that from the Crystal Palace Triangle to the
Croydon Town Centre. The first part of that Corridor would be accommodated
/ implemented by the implementation of the Crystal Palace and South Norwood
Experimental LTN/CHN agreed following Traffic Management Advisory
Committee in February and confirmed by Cabinet in June (Key Decision ref:
6520SC, Minute ref:91/21). The Corridor is then picked up by the
recommended Holmesdale Road area Temporary LTN/CHN as it leaves
Southern Avenue and joins Holmesdale Road. Infrastructure to accommodate
the southern end of the Priority Cycle Corridor was implemented last summer
within the Town Centre at Dingwall Road and Sydenham Road, using
Emergency Active Travel Funding provided by central government. The LTNs
/ proposed CHNs form part of a coordinated programme of measures focussed
on the Town Centre principally through the north of the Borough to provide
strategic active travel routes through the part of the Borough with the greatest
potential for cycling and walking, in the London borough with the greatest
potential for cycling and walking. The potential programme (subject to funding
and other matters) was agreed by Cabinet in July (Key Decision ref 3621CAB).
The map appended to the Cabinet report, indicating the location and
relationship between projects forming the programme, is at Appendix 6 to this
report.

The Recommended Experimental Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

The term ‘Low Traffic Neighbourhood’ does not convey the ultimate objective of
removing extraneous traffic from local access streets. That objective is to
provide quieter streetspace in which people can choose to travel actively on foot
or on bike, and to help reclaim the streets’ traditional role of shared movement
and community space. Hence the move from the term ‘LTNs’, to ‘Croydon
Healthy Neighbourhoods’.

The Temporary Traffic Orders implementing the LTNS are nearing the end of
their 18 month life. It is recommended to continue to pursue the objectives of
the LTNs whilst gathering robust data on which to base decisions as to their
future, by replacing each with time limited Experimental CHNs. The CHNs
would be implemented by largely replacing the temporary planter closures, with
ANPR camera enforced ‘No Motor Vehicles’' restrictions and signs. The
exceptions are the Kemerton Road Temporary LTN, parts of the Albert Road
area temporary LTN and a section of Holmedale Road. Kemerton Road would
remain closed at its junction with Jesmond Road, but with an exemption for
emergency services’ vehicles. Apsley Road and Belfast Road (in the Albert
Road area LTN) would similarly remain ‘closed’, as would a section of
Holmesdale Road. The recommended Experimental CHNs would be
implemented by the following restrictions:
1. at the ‘Dalmally Road area’ prohibit access and egress by motor
vehicles (other than certain exempt vehicles) at its junction with
Blackhorse Lane.

2. at the ‘Elmers Road area” prohibit access and egress by motor vehicles
(other than certain exempt vehicles) at its junction with Blackhorse
Lane.

Page 16



3. at the ‘Parson’'s Mead area’:

a) prohibit access and egress by motor vehicles (other than certain
exempt vehicles) at the following locations:

(i)

(ii)

on Parsons Mead at a point between its junctions with
Gardners Road and Montague Road.

on Derby Road at a point east of its junction with Parsons
Mead and Clarendon Road.

b) on Handcroft Road permit cycling in a direction counter to the one-
way working between Sumner Road and London Road.

4. at the ‘Sutherland Road area’ prohibit access and egress by motor

vehicles (other than certain exempt vehicles) on Sutherland Road at its
junction with Canterbury Road.

5. at the ‘Holmesdale Road area”.

a) prohibit access and egress by motor vehicles (other than certain
exempt vehicles) at the following locations:

(i)
(ii)

(i)

on Elm Park Road at its junction with South Norwood Hill.
on Holmesdale Road at its junction with the north side of
Park Road.

on Holmesdale Road at a point between its junction with
Holmesdale Close and its junction with Oliver Grove.

b) close Holmesdale Road at its junction with the south side of Park
Road to all motor vehicles except emergency services’ vehicles.

6. at the ‘Albert Road area’.
a) prohibit access and egress by motor vehicles (other than certain

b)

(i)

(ii)

close:
0]
(if)

at the junction with Albert Road to all motor vehicles except

exempt vehicles) at the following locations:

on Albert Road at its junction with the south eastern side of
Eldon Park Road.

on Albert Road at its junction with the south eastern side of
Harrington Road.

Apsley Road.
Belfast Road.

emergency services’ vehicles.

7. at the ‘Kemerton Road area’ close Kemerton Road at its junction with
Jesmond Road to all motor vehicles except emergency services’

vehicles.

Page 17



2.8

2.9

The ‘No Motor Vehicles’ restrictions and signs implementing the Experimental
CHNSs, would not apply to:

a) a vehicle being used for fire brigade, ambulance or police purposes;

b) anything done with the permission of a police constable in uniform or
a civil enforcement officer;

c) a vehicle being used for the purposes of a statutory undertaker in an
emergency, such as the loss of supplies of gas, electricity or water to
premises in the area, which necessitates the bringing of vehicles into
a section of road to which the order applies;

d) buses;

e) licensed taxis

f) Dial-a-Ride vehicles;

g) vehicles to which a valid exemption permit has been provided.

The vehicles to which an exemption permit would be provided are:

a) up to three vehicles belonging to a resident within the Experimental
CHN areas (see maps within leaflets at Appendix 4.) registered to
the resident’s address within the Experimental CHN. This will also
apply to all residents that have off-street residential parking access
from within the area of the Experimental CHN.

b) up to two vehicles nominated by a blue badge holder.
c) vehicles belonging to staff of schools within the Experimental CHNSs.
d) vehicles used by district nurses in the course of their duties.

e) Vehicles used by care givers of sick and/or disabled residents within
the area of the CHNSs.

Yellow line ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions would be implemented adjacent
to the ‘No Motor Vehicle’ restrictions/signs, where required to provide vehicle
turning space.

Reasons for recommending ‘No Motor Vehicles’ restrictions and signs to
implement experimental CHNSs, (rather than physically closing the street to
through motor traffic), include:
e ease of access for emergency services vehicles,
e ease of access for motor vehicles belonging to residents within a CHN;
and
e findings of the Equality Analysis, (ie the use of physical closures can
unnecessarily impact the movement of members of certain groups with
protected characteristics).

Cabinet (26 July 2021), agreed the 2021/22 programme of Active Travel
measures. The Experimental CHNs are a key part of that programme and are
expected to have a combined effect greater than the sum of their parts.
Individually, the Parsons Mead area and Holmesdale Road area Experimental
CHN s potentially contribute the most to achieving central government, Mayoral
and Council objectives, due to:
e The Parsons Mead area Experimental CHN'’s strategic role as part of the
Priority Cycle Corridor focused on the London Road, into the Town Centre,

Page 18



2.10

and down the Brighton Road to Purley, whilst also addressing
‘environmental injustice’, removing high volumes of through traffic from an
area of local access streets with low car ownerships and high levels of
deprivation.

e The Holmesdale Road area Experimental CHN'’s strategic role as part of
the Priority Cycle Corridor from the Crystal Palace Triangle to the Croydon
Town Centre, whilst also addressing longstanding concerns about vehicle
speed and numbers in Holmesdale Road.

Monitoring of the Experimental CHNs

The Temporary LTNs were implemented as a matter of urgency during a period
of constrained travel / very different travel patterns. There was not the
opportunity to undertake meaningful traffic surveying. As the COVID19
Pandemic subsides, the Experimental CHNs would be monitored and tested
against more normal traffic conditions as part of the rigorous assessment of
benefits and disbenefits expected by the Secretary of State. Monitoring and
evaluation strategies will be put in place for each of the recommended
Experimental CHNs, each informed by TfL’s ‘Borough Monitoring Guidance for
Healthy Streets Schemes’® and the Secretary of State’s statutory Guidance.
The starting point for factors to be monitored and assessed are those indicated
in the TfL Guidance.

Table 1. TfL suggested monitoring at LTNs and other schemes

v Cordon
All-vehicle traffic counts v Link counts v Cordon counts Bt v x
unts

Pedestrian and cycle
counts

v Link counts ¥ Cordon counts v e v x

Pedestrian comfort

v v v v x

evaluation
v Pupil,
Individual surveys v User ¥ Resident parent/carer v v
and/or resident

Business surveys v v . v x
Traffic speeds v v v v x
Parking counts [car -~ - v v -
and cycle)
Bus speeds / journey
times v v x A x
Safety data v v v v %
Penalty Charge Notices
issued x v v x x
Air Quality v v v v -
Review of ongoing public v v 7, 7
feedback =
Ongoing liaison with

v v v v x

emergency services

6 https://content.tfl.gov.uk/monitoring-guidance-for-healthy-streets-schemes-boroughs-oct21.pdf

Page 19


https://content.tfl.gov.uk/monitoring-guidance-for-healthy-streets-schemes-boroughs-oct21.pdf

Engagement and Consultation during the Experiments

2.11 The statutory objection period during the operation of an ETRO is six months.

standards for

Guidance, including the use of
objective methods, such as
professional polling, ‘to provide a
genuine picture of local opinion,
rather than listening only to the
loudest voices.’

TfL’s reiterating the Public Sector
Equality Duty and requiring local
authorities to understand the
effect of schemes on all groups
and the views of all groups ,
including those with protected
characteristics

When determining whether to make an Experimental CHN permanent at the
end of the experimental period, any objection received following the notice of
making the ETRO, is treated as an objection to a Permanent CHN. The
Experimental CHNs would be accompanied by a process of focussed
stakeholder engagement including with members of groups with protected
characteristics that could not be effectively engaged with during the Covid19
Pandemic. This .can extend beyond
the six month objection period. It will
follow the new
consultation set by:

o the Secretary of State’s Statutory

Figure 1. Listening, Objection and
Engagement / Consultation

Decision whether
to make ETRO
permanent

Decision whether
to make an ETRO

)

Objection
Period

¥

Listening

—
—)

Consultation and

Engagement

The engagement strategies and process will be guided by TfL's recent
guidance’.

Matters to Consider when Deciding to Remove a Temporary LTN and/or

Implement an Experimental CHN

2.12 The recommended ETROs would be made under Section 9 of the Road Traffic

Regulation Act 1984.

In exercising its powers under the Act, the Council is

required (by virtue of Section 122 of the Act) to secure the expeditious,
convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including
pedestrians) and the provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and
off street, whilst at the same time having regard to the following considerations:

the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises;
the effect on the amenities of any locality affected

air quality;
facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and securing the safety
and convenience of persons using them; and

any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant.

7 https://content.tfl.gov.uk/quidance-for-delivery-of-experimental-healthy-streets-schemes-oct21.pdf

Page 20


https://content.tfl.gov.uk/guidance-for-delivery-of-experimental-healthy-streets-schemes-oct21.pdf

The recommended CHNs are intended to secure the expeditious and
convenient movement of traffic by allowing people to choose more space
efficient forms of transport (walking, cycling and public transport) / to use the
car less. The move to camera enforced ‘No Motor Vehicles’ restrictions with
wide exemptions, is intended to secure reasonable access to premises. The
CHNs are intended to improve safety for the most vulnerable road users. They
are also intended to improve the amenity of the areas they cover, by creating
quieter street space, in turn facilitating walking, cycling, play and community
development. Providing space in which people can chose to walk or cycle is a
major part of central government’s and the Mayor’s approach to improving air
guality. The recommended CHNs are intended to help people choose public
transport including passenger service vehicles (buses) over the car, by
providing quieter streets in which to walk or cycle to / from public transport.
Monitoring (with TfL) of bus journey times and reliability on routes near the
Experimental CHNs, would inform recommendations for the future of the
Experimental CHNs. Other matters relevant to the decision to make the ETROs
(and the removal of LTNSs) include Statutory Guidance, plans and advice from
central government, namely:

o the Secretary of State’s (amended) Statutory Guidance on The Traffic
Management Duty and the COVID19 Pandemic, states that LTNs must be
given time to settle in; that robust evidence must be gathered on which to
base decisions about their future; and that engagement, especially on
schemes where there is public controversy, should use objective methods,
such as professional polling, to establish a truly representative picture,
explaining that consultations are not referendums and polling results
should be just one part of a suite of robust, empirical evidence on which
decisions are made.

e central government’s ‘Gear Change: A Bold Vision for Cycling and
Walking’® sets a vision of a future where over half of journeys in towns and
cities are walked or cycled and there is much less ‘rat running’ and far
more LTNS.

e ‘Gear Change: One Year On™ (published as the Secretary of State last
updated his Statutory Guidance), provides further advice and information
on matters addressed in the Statutory Guidance. In his Forward the Prime
Minister sets out the government’s view/strategy:

‘I know many people think that cycling and walking schemes simply
increase car traffic on other roads. But there is now increasing evidence
that they do not. We sometimes think of traffic as like water: if you block
a stream in one place, it will find the next easiest way. Of course some
journeys by car are essential, but traffic is not a force of nature. It is a
product of people’s choices. If you make it easier and safer to walk and

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/904

146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf
9

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/100

7815/gear-change-one-year-on.pdf

Page 21


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1007815/gear-change-one-year-on.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1007815/gear-change-one-year-on.pdf

cycle, more people choose to walk and cycle instead of driving, and the
traffic falls overall.

| support councils, of all parties, which are trying to promote cycling and
bus use. And if you are going to oppose these schemes, you must tell
us what your alternative is, because trying to squeeze more cars and
delivery vans on the same roads and hoping for the best is not going to
work. And as the benefits of schemes increase over time, what
opposition there is falls further. That is why schemes must be in place
long enough for their benefits and disbenefits to be properly evidenced.’

The document includes the statements:

e England’s urban roads are filling up. Between 2010 and 2019, traffic in
urban areas grew by a quarter — and on side streets, often unsuitable for
volume traffic, it grew by a third. Ride-hailing services, more delivery
traffic, and apps which direct people down rat-runs have all played their
part.

e LTNs have been perhaps the most contested element of the government’s
recent cycling and walking programme — though the concept, under
various names, has been widespread for decades. Many of the LTNs in
England existed before 2020, in some cases since the 1970s. It is
estimated that more than 25,000 road closures of the type used in LTNs
existed before the pandemic.

e Emerging monitoring data from recent LTNs and that from longer-
established schemes shows significant reductions in traffic, and significant
increases in cycling and walking.

e LTNs work because the people living in them, several thousand in each
area, change their travel behaviour — taking fewer short local journeys by
car and walking or cycling more. This takes local traffic away from the
surrounding roads too. On those roads, the reduction in these local car
journeys appears, in most though not in all cases, to outweigh any
increase caused by the diversion of longer-distance car journeys by
people passing through. But changes in travel behaviour don’t happen
overnight. The longer a scheme is in place, the greater its effect, on both
the LTN and the surrounding roads. This is why schemes must be given
enough time to prove — or disprove — themselves.

e Cycling and walking schemes can create passionate opposition, but there
is now clear evidence that neither the opposition — nor the passion —
reflects public views. Multiple independent professional polls over the last
year, and the government’'s own polling and surveys, show consistent
public support for the measures on cycling and walking councils have
taken, more than two to one on average among those who express a
preference. Support for individual schemes, such as LTNs, by people
living in the areas concerned is at similar levels, whenever polled or
surveyed professionally. Contrary to claims of a ‘culture war,” most people
do not feel strongly about these schemes. The majority of both support
and opposition is “tend to support” or “tend to oppose.” There are often
significant numbers of people who, when asked, neither support nor
oppose schemes. What opposition there is to cycling and walking
schemes also appears to diminish in time. It is therefore important that

Page 22



consultation captures a genuinely representative picture of local views.
That means listening to all, including the quieter and less vocal, not simply
the most passionate. It is intended to inform decisions that members and
officers make on these schemes, not to substitute for that decision making;
and the consultation materials must include proper evidence and
information about the effects of the proposals. No scheme (or indeed
almost any meaningful policy of any kind) will ever have unanimous
support. Some councils appear to be searching for a formula which can
make meaningful cycling and walking schemes acceptable to everyone,
but this does not exist. Government is clear that councils must not expect
or require universal support and must avoid allowing any group to exercise
a veto. Public views on contested schemes must be captured accurately,
through professional polling.

It reiterates the warning:

‘We will reduce funding to councils which do not take active travel
seriously, particularly in urban areas. This includes councils which remove
schemes prematurely or without proper evidence, and councils which
never installed them in the first place. As Gear Change said, an authority’s
performance on active travel will help determine the wider funding
allocations it receives, not just on active travel.’

2.13 Further matters relevant to the decision to make the ETROs include

e Public feedback so far.

e The Public Sector Equality Duty and the findings of the Equality
Analysis.

e Central Government’s ‘Decarbonising Transport A Better, Greener
Britain’, the plan for net zero carbon transport, which sets a series of
priorities, the first of which is ‘Accelerating modal shift to public and
active transport’ including through many more Low Traffic
Neighbourhoods.

e The Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy which uses the ‘Healthy
Streets Approach’ to prioritise human health in planning the city and
aiming for streets and street networks that encourage walking, cycling
and public transport use to reduce car dependency and the health
problems it creates.

e S144 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 requiring London local
authorities to have regard to the Mayor's Transport Strategy when
exercising any function (including removing Temporary LTNs and / or
implementing Experimental CHNS).

e Croydon Council’s statutory ‘Local Implementation Plan’ (its plan to
implement the Transport Strategy within Croydon) and the objectives
and targets within it.

e The system of Road Classification, the roads / streets within the
LTNs/CHNs being unclassified and hence intended only for low
volume, low speed local traffic.

Matters relevant to the decision are set out in more detail at Appendix 7 and
other appendices, and addressed in the following sections of this report.

Page 23



3.2

3.3

3.4

CONSULTATION

The Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods webpage'® provided information about
the proposed next steps for each of the Temporary LTNs. It included links to:
e questionnaires seeking views on each of the Temporary LTNs, their
proposed replacement Experimental CHN, and information about the
responder’s travel behaviours etc; and
e the leaflets giving information about the proposed changes to each the
Temporary LTNs (Appendix 5).

The leaflet for the Kemerton Road Area Temporary LTN, proposed transition to
a Permanent CHN. Each of the leaflets relating to the other six Temporary
LTNs explained the:

e proposed transition to Experimental CHNs and their implementation
using ANPR camera enforced ‘No Motor Vehicles’ restrictions and signs;
and

e exemptions that would apply, including exemption permits for vehicles
owned by residents within the area of each of the Experimental CHNSs.

Maps showing the areas in which residents would be eligible for exemption
permits for their vehicles were included. The leaflets were delivered to
properties within those areas. The leaflets gave the link to the area specific
online questionnaire. The leaflet relating to the Parsons Mead area LTN
included two options for Derby Road, namely converting the temporary closures
to an experimental camera enforced ‘No Motor Vehicles’ restriction / signs; or
to experimental one-way working, with the questionnaire seeking views on both.

Notices were placed on lamp columns in each of the Temporary LTN / proposed
CHN areas, advising of the engagement and online survey. They included QR
codes linking to the relevant questionnaire.

The responses received to all seven of the questionnaire based listening
exercises, followed a pattern that was both similar to and different from the
pattern of responses to the engagement conducted towards the latter part of
last year regarding the Crystal Palace and South Norwood Temporary LTN.
They were different in terms of:

e Quantity in that the number of responses to the surveys at each of the
seven Temporary LTNs were in the hundreds or less, rather than the
thousands received in response to the Crystal Palace and South
Norwood Temporary LTN engagement.

e Geographical Spread, in that the areas from which the response were
received were relatively local to each of the Temporary LTNs, compared
with the wide area of South London and beyond, from which responses
to the Crystal Palace and South Norwood engagement were received.

10 www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Page 24


http://www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

3.5

3.6

3.7

They were similar in that the self-selected sample populations do not reflect the
population within and around the Temporary LTNs. They differ from the
population in around the Temporary LTNs in a number of important ways,
principally in terms of:

e age The responding samples/populations were generally older (
responses from people in or approaching middle age predominated, the
guestionnaire exercise failing to reach or illicit responses from younger
people and in some instances also generating fewer responses from the
over 65's)

e racel/ethnicity Those identifying as White British were generally more
strongly represented amongst the self-selected sample populations (the
exception being the Parsons Mead area responses), than amongst the
population local to each of the Temporary LTNSs.

e income Amongst those responding to the survey and choosing to
indicate their household income, it appears high relative to the levels of
deprivation and average income in the areas the Temporary LTNs were
focussed on.

e car availability The responding samples/populations were much more
likely to own a car or van / have a car or van available than the general
population locally. (Some of those who do not own a car/van, may
have felt that they do not have a voice on the matter of LTNS).

The questionnaire survey results highlight the level of what the Secretary of
State’s Guidance calls ‘public controversy’ associated with LTNs. Hence the
Guidance should be followed and objective methods such as professional
polling be used, ‘to establish a truly representative picture of local views* and
‘Polling results should be one part of the suite of robust, empirical evidence on
which decisions are made.’

They survey results reveal the reasons why the respondents do not walk or
cycle more. The reasons most frequently given generally being ‘Concerns
about Road Safety/Road Danger’, ‘Traffic Speed’, ‘“Traffic Volume’, ‘Unpleasant
Street Environment’, all of which LTNs / the recommended CHNs aim to
address. Atthe Parsons Mead area the reasons for not cycling or walking more
include Concerns about Personal Safety, a matter LTNs also help address (see
Crime and Disorder Reduction Impact Section of this report).

Summaries of each of the sample populations and views of those populations
are at Appendix 8a, comparing responses from within each LTN /proposed
CHNs with responses from beyond the LTN/ proposed CHN. Full analysis
reports are at Appendix 8b. The survey results are suggesting that as well as
scientific polling, there is a need to engage in some depth with the residents in
each area during the Experiments, including through a process of ‘co-design’
(as called for in some of the additional submissions regarding the Albert Road
and Holmesdale Road areas). This will allow concerns to be explored and
informed by data emerging from local monitoring and from LTNs elsewhere in
London and nationally. Concerns frequently expressed via the questionnaire
surveys include concerns about CHNs displacing traffic onto neighbouring
roads / surrounding main roads, and a preference for planters closing streets
as they felt to avoid people being find and make the street look better. The
design of the areas where experimental restrictions are implemented, should

Page 25



3.8

3.9

be a key focus of the ‘co-design’. Whether a physical closure or ‘closure’ by
‘No Motor Vehicle’ restrictions, the area at those locations can be designed such
that it is a positive improvement to the streetscape. The design can further
emphasise the ‘No Motor Vehicles’ restrictions.

Additional submissions have been received (Appendix 8c). A submission from
Croydon Living Streets relaying the views of children regarding the Albert Road
area LTN, is addressed in the Equalities Impact section of this report and at
Appendix 9. A submission made by the Holmesdale Community Action Group,
Croydon Living Streets, Croydon Climate Action, Croydon Cycling Campaign
and Shape Better Streets, is strongly supportive of the proposal to move to
Experimental CHNs but asks that the:

e planters be retained in place of the proposed camera enforced ‘No Motor

Vehicles’ signs; and
e Council engages locally to achieve the optimum, design for the CHNSs.

It sets out arguments for continuing with LTNs / CHNs at these locations
including as part of a wider strategy to support active travel. It addresses the
five claims made in the Open our Roads leaflet distributed locally to the LTNSs,
indicating why the claims are false or incorrect. An email from the Holmesdale
Community Action Group emphasises:

e |t is often the case when introducing change, it is negative voices that
tend to dominate the debate to the detriment of all others. We fear this
is what has happened in South Norwood.

e The many beneficial effects the LTNs have had on our local community
have been overshadowed.

e The positive experiences resulting from the LTNs in South Norwood.

A further paper ‘Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods. Paper by Shape Better
Streets, Croydon Cycling Campaign, Croydon Living Streets, Cypress School
Cycling Club’ states that:

e Healthy neighbourhoods schemes work: indeed they are the only

demonstrably practical and successful way of promoting active travel

e Decisions following consultation should not be a numbers game

e There is no credible Plan B

e A further phase of public engagement is the right approach

The covering email expresses strong support for the Council’s ambitions on
climate and healthy neighbourhoods. It urges retaining the LTNs currently in
place, proceeding with the revised scheme in Crystal Palace/South Norwood,
and embarking on a strong programme of engagement to ensure there is an
informed debate with the participation of all elements in the community. It
suggest that the demographic which tends to dominate responses to surveys
conducted at the LTN areas over the summer, is not representative of the
community as a whole, and that there are numerous examples of opposition
campaigners ‘gaming and cheating them’.

The ‘listening’ has shown, (as found elsewhere in Croydon, London and the
UK), that the swiftly implemented LTNs have generated a lot of what the
Secretary of State has referred to as “noise” and “passion”, generally from those
opposed to their principle or at least wishing to continue driving through local

Page 26



4.2

4.2

access streets. The recommended Experimental CHNs provide the opportunity
to undertake the more focused research and engagement (including public
opinion surveying), required by the Secretary of States Statutory Guidance, and
following TfL’s newly issued Guidance, in order to inform the decisions on the
future of the time limited LTNsS/CHNSs.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Having considered the ‘listening’ feedback, the nature of the sample
population(s) from which feedback was received, the most recent iteration of
the Secretary of State’s Statutory Guidance, and the various other matters
within this report and appendices, it is recommended to move cautiously from
the Temporary LTNs to time limited trials in the form of Experimental CHNs.
This is to allow what the Secretary is State requires, namely:
e schemes to be given time to settle in;
e robust evidence to be gathered on which to base decisions about their
future;
o fuller engagement, including professional polling, to establish a truly
representative picture.

At Parsons Mead area, the recommendation includes beginning the Experiment
with ANPR camera enforced ‘No Motor Vehicles'’ restriction and signs, ‘closing’
Derby Road to motor vehicles (except exempt vehicles), rather than the option
of one-way working, an option explored during the ‘listening’. A move to the
lesser restriction of one-way working can be considered during the period of the
ETRO in the light of the results to be obtained from professional polling and
other evaluation of the experiment (restrictions can be lessened during an
ETRO, they cannot be increased). At Kemerton Road, a proposal to move from
Temporary LTN / TTRO to Permanent CHN / permanent closure of Kemerton
Road, was the subject of the ‘listening’. The numbers of residents originally
calling for the closure of Kemerton Road, leading to the implementation of the
Temporary LTN, were high. For this reason, it was initially proposed to move
from Temporary LTN and to Permanent CHN. However, in the light of the
feedback during ‘listening’, the recommendation is to only move to a time limited
Experimental CHN, to allow consultation and engagement, including via
professional polling, to clearly understand views across the local population.

The recommended Experimental CHNs address many of the concerns and
criticisms levelled at the Temporary LTNs. By exempting vehicles belonging to
residents within the areas of the Experimental CHNs, the inconvenience to
those living within the Temporary LTNs and owning cars (due to the increased
distance to drive to and from their homes in the LTNs) is removed. The
recommended CHNs respond to concerns regarding emergency service
vehicles, the ‘No Motor Vehicles’ restrictions allowing ease of access for
emergency service vehicles. They also responds to concerns regarding ease
of access for health care workers by including exemption permits for vehicles
used by district nurses and other carers. They facilitate access by Schools’
SEN Transport Service buses, Dial-a-Ride vehicles, Community Transport
minibuses, licenced taxis and Blue Badge holders. However, the move to

Page 27



4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

camera enforced ‘No Motor Vehicles’ signs to implement Experimental CHNs
appeared no more popular/less popular (amongst those responding to the
‘listening’ surveys), than the current Temporary LTNs. Moving to trial
Experimental CHNs rather than Permanent CHNs, with more thorough
community engagement and professional polling will allow these views and the
reasons for them to be better understood, and potentially a different balance
between physical closures and the use of ‘No Motor vehicles’ restrictions struck
at some CHNs

An ETRO allows monitoring of the effects of the Experimental CHNs, including
during the period after the Covid19 Pandemic subsides, as called for by the
Secretary of State for Transport. Engagement during the Experiments will
include the use of objective methods, such as professional polling, ‘to provide
a genuine picture of local opinion, rather than listening only to the loudest
voices.’ It will provide an understanding of why those choosing to respond to
the recent round of engagement, responded in the way they did. It will allow
the views of a representative sample of the local community to be heard.

It is proposed that the Equality Analysis continue (informed by consultation and
monitoring) during the operation of the Experimental CHNs, and that this inform
the decision on the future of the experimental schemes. It is envisaged that the
experiments will run for 12 months to fully assess their effects, at the end of
which a recommendation would be brought to the Traffic Management Advisory
Committee regarding the future of the experimental schemes.

Amongst those responding to the online questionnaires, there was clear and
strong opposition to LTNs and proposed replacement CHNs. This however has
been balanced against the matters at paras 2.12 and 2.13, and at appendix 7
of this report.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

Removal of some or all of the Temporary LTNs is a potential option. However,
the reasons why residents were calling for action to address high speed/high
volume traffic, have not gone away. The pace at which local authorities were
being asked to implement such measures has caused issues. Having called on
local authorities to act swiftly to put these measures in, the now updated
Statutory Guidance is warning local authorities against acting swiftly to remove
them. The guidance is saying that the measures should kept in, be fully
monitored and evaluated, and professional polling undertaken in order to gather
a truly representative sample of local views. Government and TfL are going
further, warning of likely funding consequences for those local authorities that
remove or substantially water down these measures without having gathered
strong evidence to justify doing so. So far this evidence has not been gathered,
and the pre-consultation ‘listening’ did not illicit responses from representative
sample populations. Whilst each of the Temporary LTNs was hurriedly
implemented (largely in response to calls from residents), they are areas where
TfL’s Strategic Neighbourhood Analysis indicates such measures should be

Page 28



6.1

considered, (in part because they are in some of the most deprived parts of the
borough and parts where car availability / ownership is at its lowest). Whilst the
process of delivery leaves much to be desired, the Temporary LTNs are
beginning to provide large areas of quieter street space in which people can
choose to walk and cycle, some of the areas directly picking up /
accommodating major sections of the Priority Cycle Corridors identified by TfL.
Hence removal at this stage is not considered an option, or at least not an easy
option. Conversely, recommending implementing the CHNs on a permanent
basis is not considered an option, in the light of the feedback received so far via
the recent ‘listening’ process. Proceeding with the amended LTNs / the CHNSs,
but only for a further temporary/experimental period, allows the research to be
undertaken to better understand local opinion including that amongst what the
Secretary of State has called the ‘silent majority’. For these reasons removal of
the schemes was rejected as a recommendation, as was making the exiting
LTNs permanent, or implementing the proposed CHNs on a permanent basis.

FINANCIAL AND RISK ASSESSMENT CONSIDERATIONS

Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations

The estimated expenditure to deliver, monitor and consult on the recommended
seven Experimental CHNs is £980k in 2021/22. This will be predominately (see
below and 6.3 ‘Risks’ below) funded from Active Travel Funding (ATF) provided
by central government via TfL and administered by TfL, of which £780k is
allocated to the delivery of the seven Experimental CHNs. The ATF expenditure
needs to be committed by 11 December 2021. A TfL funding deal beyond this
point, has not yet been agreed with central government.

The cost of enforcement cameras is not being fully met by the ATF. Cameras
not funded from ATF would be provided by deploying a number already
acquired as part of the recently let contract to provide such CCTV equipment,
and by redeploying a limited number from existing locations. If any further
financial contribution is required, this would be provided via the Parking
Account, which although is underperforming compared to the 2021/22 budget,
is yielding revenues greater than previous financial years. Whilst the aim of
enforcing any traffic restriction is to achieve 100% compliance, it is unlikely to
be achieved. Revenue is expected to be derived as a by-product of issuing
Penalty Charge Notices to enforce the ‘No Motor Vehicles’ restrictions and signs
implementing the Experimental CHNSs.

Monitoring and consultation costs would be incurred beyond 11 December
including in 2022/23. If it is decided to make some or all of the Experimental
CHNSs permanent, the cost of doing so is expected to fall completely or partially
within 2022/23 (with the remaining cost in the following year). Thus far there is
no funding from/via TfL agreed beyond 11 December 2021.

Page 29



6.2

6.3

The effect of the decision

If agreed, the recommendations will result in seven Experimental CHNs all but
one implemented with ANPR camera enforced ‘No Motor Vehicle’ restrictions
and signs. The enforcement is likely to result in a revenue stream, but one
which will decline as compliance improves.

Current year Medium Term Financial Strategy — 3 year
forecast
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue Budget
available
Expenditure
Income
Effect of decision
from report
Expenditure
Income Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown
Remaining budget
Capital Budget 780 Funding

available via TfL not

Expenditure

Effect of decision

from report

Expenditure 980 50

Remaining budget

Risks

The purpose of the recommended Experimental CHNs is to amend the
operation of current Temporary LTNs and to keep the LTNs / replacement
CHNs operating in order to gather data and to consult before bringing back
recommendations on the future of the Experimental CHNs. Complete removal
/ or significant watering down of the current LTNs is likely to not only risk funding
from central government via TfL in the current year, but to risk reduced or zero
transport investment funding via/from TfL in future years. The Minister for
Transport wrote to Leaders of all combined, transport and highway authorities
in England regarding the funding implications associated with the removal of
LTNs and other similar ATF projects advising that ‘premature removal of
schemes carries implications for the management of the public money used in
these schemes and for the government's future funding relationship with the
authorities responsible.’

Whilst London is not amongst the combined transport authorities, the principles
in the letter are being applied in London and similar warnings have been made
in documents published by central government applicable to London. Several
London local authorities had their July ATF funding allocation stopped by TfL,

Page 30



6.4

6.5

6.6

7.1

7.2

pending discussions between the local authority and TfL regarding the removal
of measures such as LTNs recently implement in response to the COVID 19
Pandemic.

Options

The options considered include not proceeding with the recommended
experimental schemes. However, not to proceed would impact on the ability to
deliver on each of the Council’s Priorities addressed at the start of the report,
and the ability to act on key recommendations of the Croydon Climate Crisis
Commission. It would also risk Transport investment funding from central
government via TfL.

Future savings/efficiencies

The CHNs and wider Active Travel programme is aimed at providing safer street
space in which people can choose to walk or cycle. This is in large part to help
all become more active and in turn healthy, ultimately accruing savings for the
NHS and Council care services. Additionally, investment made now in
successfully limiting Climate Change, reduces the future investment required to
mitigate or adapt to the effects of Climate Change.

Whilst intended to ensure full compliance with the ‘No Motor Vehicle’ restrictions
implementing the Experimental CHNs, ANPR camera enforcement will result in
an income arising from Penalty Charge Notices. Any surplus (after meeting the
operational costs of the trials), is ring-fenced for investment in Transport in
Croydon, contributing towards the cost of the Older and Disabled Persons’
Freedom Passes and highway maintenance etc in Croydon.

Approved by: Michael R Jarrett, Place Head of Finance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

The Head of Corporate Law and Litigation comments on behalf of the Director
of Law and Governance that, subject to compliance with statutory processes
and broader public law principles, Croydon Council is able to make an
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (‘TRO’) under Section 9 of the Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (‘1984 Act’), by virtue of the Experimental Order
being for the purpose of ‘prescribing streets which are not to be used for traffic
by vehicles, or by vehicles of any specified class or classes, either generally or
at specified times' under Paragraph 2 of Schedule 1 and Section 6 of the 1984
Act. The Experimental TRO must extend for no longer than 18 months.

The Order may be made subject to compliance with the procedure set out in the
Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations
1996 (‘1996 Regulations’). Whilst statutory consultees are listed at Regulation
6 of the 1996 Regulations, there is no statutory requirement for public
consultation. For the purposes of an experimental order, the Council is not
required to publish a notice of intention or consider objections prior to making
the ETRO. Croydon Council will be obliged to consider any such objections at

Page 31



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

the point of a determination as to whether the Experimental CHN becomes
permanent.

Croydon Council must publish a notice on making in relation to the Experimental
TRO not less than seven days prior to it coming into force. The notice must
include the following statements at Schedule 5 of the 1996 Regulations: 1) that
Croydon Council will be considering in due course whether the provisions of the
experimental order should be continued in force indefinitely 2) that within a
period of six months — a) beginning with the day on which the experimental
order came into force or b) if that order is varied by another order or modified
pursuant to section 10(2) of the 1984 Act, beginning with the day on which the
variation or modification or the latest variation or modification came into force,
any person may object to the making of an order for the purpose of such
indefinite continuation 3) that any objection must a) be in writing b) state the
grounds on which it is made; and c) be sent to an address specified for the
purpose in the notice making.

In addition to the statutory requirements, broader administrative law and duties
ought to be considered. These have been substantively addressed within this
report and appendices.

Under S121B of the 1984 Act, Croydon Council may not implement a TRO if it
will, or is likely to affect a GLA Road, Strategic Road or a road in another
borough unless it has notified TfL and the London Borough (as relevant) and
the proposal has either (a) been approved; (b) received no objection within one
month; (c) any objection has been withdrawn; or (d) GLA has given its consent
after consideration of the objection.

Members are aware that the Council’s Members Code of Conduct has recently
been updated. All members should ensure that the Register of Interests is up
to date.

Members of TMAC and the decision taker should have an open mind when
considering this matter. Prior indications of a view on a matter do not amount to
predetermination provided the decision maker has an open mind when
considering the matter. This means that they take account of all information,
including new information and reach their own conclusion, based on the
evidence. It should be noted that Section 25(2) of the Localism Act 2011 states
that a decision-maker is not to have had, or to have appeared to have had, a
closed mind when making the decision just because—

(a) the decision-maker had previously done anything that directly or indirectly
indicated what view the decision-maker took, or would or might take, in
relation to a matter, and

(b) the matter was relevant to the decision.

Approved by: Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate Law on behalf
of the Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer.

Page 32



8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT

There are no immediate HR impact issues in this report. If any should arise
these will be managed under the Council’s Policies and Procedures.
Implementation of the recommendations should ensure continued transport
investment funding to the Council from TfL/central government.

Approved by: Jennifer Sankar, Head of HR Place & Housing on behalf of the
Human Resources Department.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

In preparing the recommendations, due regard has been given to:

e exercising functions in a way that is designed to reduce the inequalities
of outcome which result from socio-economic disadvantage (in
accordance with the duty under section 1 of the Equality Act 2010). (The
Temporary LTNs are focussed in parts of the Borough where deprivation
is higher.)

¢ the public sector equality duty in s149 of the Equality Act 2010.

The Equality Analysis (Appendix 10) begins by explaining that the proposed
changes are a response to:
o historic decisions and current trends.
o the Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy (in particular the Healthy
Streets objective)
. the continuing Covidl9 Pandemic and to Secretary of State’s
statements and Statutory Guidance relating to it.

It explains that historic decisions and current trends continue to have equality
implications, children and young people being amongst the groups most
impacted by the giving over of streets to increasing levels of motor traffic. It
highlights the growth in vehicle miles on London’s streets, and that growth being
entirely on the minor unclassified roads / streets. It explains that whilst the
above changes were not subject to any formal equality assessment, the
Equality Analysis relates to proposed Experimental CHNs that aim to address
some of the effects arising from past decisions and more recent trends.

The Equality Analysis concludes that the potential effects of the proposed
change are greatest in terms of effects on members of a group with the ‘Age’
related protected characteristic. A quarter of the Borough population is under
age 18, and consequently cannot drive. Young adults nationally are much less
likely to hold a driving licence. Children are the group whose independent
mobility has been most curtailed by past decisions, changes and trends.
Through reduced freedom to travel actively and to play in the street, they are at
risk of long term health issues. They are also the ones who will experience the
greatest impacts of Climate Change, if CO2 emissions (including those from
road transport) are not addressed. At the other end of the age spectrum, the
percentage of journeys made by older people in the UK, is very much lower than
in many other northern European countries. Children and young people are
amongst those considered most likely to benefit from the proposed scheme, but

Page 33



9.4

9.5

9.6

it can help older people consider returning to cycling or to start cycling, including
using E-bikes. The recent processes of ‘listening’ failed to illicit views from
children and young people. Whilst 43% of the Borough population is 30 or
under, the ‘listening’ only achieved a very small number of responses from
members of this age group. Croydon Living Streets emailed in a collection of
responses from some of the children who regularly travel along Albert Road
(Appendix 9). Croydon Living Streets state in their email:

‘As I'm sure you're aware, children were not invited to respond to the
consultation and their views are too often lost in the debate around how our
streets should be made to work for all residents. The children who took the
time over the last few days to share their views have described how much
they have loved the way the planters have greened the streets, how the
traffic island has offered space to play, but most of all how much they value
quiet street’

There is clear evidence that members of members of BAME groups feel at
greater risk of road danger and are at greater risk. TfL reports that BAME
Londoners are more at risk of being killed or seriously injured on London’s
roads, with children in this group being on average 1.5 times more likely to be
affected than non-BAME children. BAME Londoners are less likely than white
Londoners to say that they feel safe from accidents when walking around
London during the day (22 per cent BAME feel ‘very safe’ compared with 30 per
cent white)’ 11

The Equality Analysis has shaped the recommended Experimental CHNs. In
particular the use of camera enforced restrictions on motor vehicles in place of
physical road closures. These:

e Allow taxis and buses to pass through the proposed camera enforced ‘No
Motor Vehicle’ restrictions to facilitate access by Dial-a-Ride, taxis, SEN
Transport buses and Community Transport minibuses.

e Widen exemption eligibility to:

* holders of Blue Badge permits, enabling them to register up to two
vehicles.

* residents who require home care, given by professionals or family
members, living within the area of the Experimental HNs, enabling
them to nominate carers’ vehicles to be provided with an exemption
permit.

The Equality Analysis concludes that further Equality Analysis should be
undertaken for the reasons:

e The Analysis should be further informed by research conducted during
the recommended trials, research focused on the experiences of those
of groups with protected characteristics predicted to be affected by the
trial.

e The recent ‘listening’ processes failed to achieve representative samples
of the local communities. The Experiments should be undertaken along
with consultation to include professional polling and other techniques to

11 https://content.tfl.gov.uk/travel-in-london-understanding-our-diverse-communities-2019.pdf page 29

Page 34


https://content.tfl.gov.uk/travel-in-london-understanding-our-diverse-communities-2019.pdf

9.7

10

10.1

10.2

achieve representative samples of the local populations (including the
views of children and young people).

e The Croydon Mobility Forum has been unable to meet during the
Pandemic. The Forum should be engaged with during the operation of
the trials, its views informing the Analysis, the operation of the trials and
the design and operation of any scheme that might follow the trials.

e The Equality Analysis should be concluded before any decision is made
on the outcome of and the future for the trials and should be published
as part of the documents used in making the recommendation.

Approved by: Denise McCausland, Equality Programme Manager.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Central government’s ‘Decarbonising Transport A Better, Greener Britain’
commitments to ‘Increasing cycling and walking’ with the aim that half of all
journeys in towns and cities will be cycled or walked by 2030. It explains that
implementing the Plan will deliver significant benefits in other areas as well as
cutting COzemmissions, including:

e improved air quality;

e Dbetter places to live in;

¢ reduced congestion and noise; and

e increased reliability and affordability of transport/access — ‘delivering

better transport for everyone’.

It explains the importance of creating LTNs ie they ‘can provide clear, direct
routes for cyclists and pedestrians that promote cycling and walking,
significantly reducing accidents, noise, and air pollution for local residents.’

The recommended Experimental CHNs support delivery of central
government’s and the Mayor's CO:z reduction objectives, and the Croydon
Climate Crisis Commission recommendations, namely:

e ‘1. Getting the groundwork right: Rebuild trust with residents,
community groups, trade unions and businesses.” The extreme
speed at which the LTN programme had to be delivered, and the very
short term nature of the central government funding with which to
deliver, all worked against this recommendation. The communications
and engagement strategies for each of the Experimental CHNs need to
fully take account of this key recommendation/objective and to support
it.

e ‘2. Driving a green economic recovery’

e '3. Greening our Neighbourhoods: Promote public transport and
active travel to become the natural first choice - including pilot
approaches to Low Traffic Neighbourhoods’

e ‘5. Achieving the scale of change’

Page 35



10.3 The approach of central government and the Mayor to reducing emissions both
CO:2 and locally important air pollutants, is to:
o reduce reliance on the private car and other motorised transport
including through the encouragement of active travel
. reduce harmful emissions from the remaining vehicles.

The Mayor’s report ‘Air Quality in London 2016-2020'*?, reports on the
improvement made in terms greatly reducing the number of Londoners living in
areas exceeding the legal limit for NO2. However, the situation is very different
regarding very fine particulate matter. Nearly the whole of London exceeds the
World Health Organisation (WHO) guideline limit for PM2.s, with 99 per cent of
Londoners living in areas exceeding the WHO PMzs limit. Fine particular matter
is no respecter of boundaries or ethnicity. With the exception of the very
southern part of the Borough, all living within Croydon (whether in LTNs or on
major road corridors) are experiencing PM2.s concentrations above the WHO
limit value. LTNs/CHNS are a part of the suite of measures to help people
choose to travel by non-polluting walking and cycling, and less polluting public
transport.

10.4 Whilst advances in vehicle propulsion technology are reducing harmful
emissions from each motor vehicle on Croydon and London’s streets, there are
important trends working against this positive effect. Vehicle miles driven on
London’s roads and streets decreased between 2000 and 2009'3. Between
2009 and 2019, it rose to its highest ever at 22.6 billion vehicle miles. The same
pattern is observed in Croydon'4, with traffic levels rising to their highest ever at
0.94 billion vehicle miles in 2019. The traffic on London’s A Roads and B Roads
has been stable / declined slightly since around 2006 / 2007. The increase in
vehicle miles has been entirely on London’s unclassified roads / minor streets.
Traffic on the unclassified roads /minor streets almost doubled from 5.4 billion
vehicle miles in 2009, to 9.3 billion miles in 2019, reaching the point where
London’s minor streets are carrying almost as much traffic as its A Road
network. In 2018, vehicles on Croydon’s A Roads emitted 132,000 Tonnes of
COg2, whilst 129,000 Tonnes of CO2 were emitted from vehicles on minor
roads'®. As with locally important pollutants, there are two opposing trends,
namely improving vehicle efficiency counteracted by increasing vehicle miles.
Assessment of air quality effects will be part of the monitoring strategy for the
recommended Experimental CHN’s.

12 hitps://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/air _quality in london 2016-2020 october2020final.pdf
13 https://roadtraffic.dft.gov.uk/regions/6

14 https://roadtraffic.dft.gov.uk/local-authorities/134

15 https://naei.beis.gov.uk/laco2app/

Page 36


https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/air_quality_in_london_2016-2020_october2020final.pdf
https://roadtraffic.dft.gov.uk/regions/6
https://roadtraffic.dft.gov.uk/local-authorities/134
https://naei.beis.gov.uk/laco2app/

11 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT

11.1 Speeding and dangerous driving are possibly the crimes that directly kill or
seriously injure more people in the UK than any other. In 2018/19 there were
579 police recorded ‘causing death or serious injury by dangerous driving'
offences in England and Wales*®, compared with a total of 671 victims of
murder, manslaughter and infanticide in the same year?’.

11.2 The recommended Experimental CHNs are intended to provide safer street
space in which people can choose to walk or cycle, the ‘safer space’ reducing
the likelihood of people being the victims of crimes such as:

Causing death by dangerous driving

Causing serious injury by driving dangerously

Causing death by careless driving

Causing death by careless driving when under the influence of drink or

drugs.

Crimes such as:

e Dangerous driving (under section 2 of the Road Traffic Act 1988)

e Driving without due care and attention ((careless driving) under section
3 of the Road Traffic Act 1988 (including failing to give a cyclist sufficient
room when overtaking them)

e Driving under the influence of drink or drugs

e Exceeding the speed limit for a vehicle of the class that is being driven
(Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984)

are potentially having a much larger indirect effect on health and mortality in the

longer term, as these are the behaviours/crimes deterring/preventing people

from choosing to travel actively.

11.3 Central government (‘Gear Change: One Year On’) reports that LTNs reduce
street crime, increasing safety by putting more pedestrians and cyclists on the
streets, citing research conducted at LTNs introduced in Waltham Forest'®. The
research concludes that overall, the introduction of a LTN was associated with
a 10% decrease in total street crime, and this effect increased with a longer
duration since implementation (18% decrease after 3 years). An even larger
reduction was observed for violence and sexual offences, the most serious
subcategory of crime. The only subcategory of crime that increased significantly
was bicycle theft, plausibly largely reflecting increased cycling levels. There was
no indication of displacement of any crime subcategory into adjacent areas.

16 https://www.statista.com/statistics/303473/death-by-dangerous-driving-in-england-and-wales-uk-y-

on-y/
17

https://lwww.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/homicideinenglandan
dwales/yea rendingmarch2019

18 https://findingspress.org/article/19414-the-impact-of-introducing-a-low-traffic-neighbourhood-on-
street-crime-in-waltham-forest-london

Page 37


https://www.statista.com/statistics/303473/death-by-dangerous-driving-in-england-and-wales-uk-y-on-y/
https://www.statista.com/statistics/303473/death-by-dangerous-driving-in-england-and-wales-uk-y-on-y/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/homicideinenglandandwales/yea%20rendingmarch2019
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/homicideinenglandandwales/yea%20rendingmarch2019
https://findingspress.org/article/19414-the-impact-of-introducing-a-low-traffic-neighbourhood-on-street-crime-in-waltham-forest-london
https://findingspress.org/article/19414-the-impact-of-introducing-a-low-traffic-neighbourhood-on-street-crime-in-waltham-forest-london

12.

12.1

12.2

13

13.1

13.2

HEALTH IMPACT

The Local Implementation Plan explains that:

e Croydon is facing a public health crisis related to inactivity.

e Inactivity is a major contributory factor to the levels of obesity in Croydon.

e One in five children in the school reception year is overweight or obese
and this rate more than doubles between reception and year 6.

e Early childhood is a critical time to tackle childhood obesity as children are
developing and learning healthy or unhealthy behaviours from a young
age.

e By year 6 (age 10 to 11 years) a greater proportion of children in Croydon
carry excess weight than in London or nationally. Two in five children aged
10 to 11 years in Croydon are overweight or obese and this proportion is
increasing over time.

For adults the situation is more serious. Two in three adults (62%) of the
population are overweight or obese and one in thirty working age people in
Croydon have diabetes, a figure which is predicted to increase by 10% by
2025. Amongst older adults (over 65) one in eight are predicted to have
diabetes and one in four are obese. Children in Croydon are growing up in a
borough where it is normal to be overweight, emphasising why Croydon needs
the infrastructure and cultural changes to enable everybody to incorporate
exercise into their daily travel routine.

The Mayor’s Transport Strategy ‘Outcome 1: London’s streets will be healthy
and more Londoners will travel actively’ is expressed as Londoners doing at
least the 20 minutes of active travel they need to stay healthy each day. This
is translated into a target in the Croydon LIP. The target is based on the
proportion of Croydon residents doing at least 2x10 minutes of active travel a
day (or a single block of 20 minutes or more). The Croydon baseline was
26% of residents achieving this level of activity. The LIP target is 70% by
2041. The recommended Experimental CHNSs, particularly when working in
combination with the wider Active Travel programme measures are intended
to help people be more active as they travel, helping address the obesity crisis
facing Croydon.

DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

WILL THE SUBJECT OF THE REPORT INVOLVE THE PROCESSING OF
‘PERSONAL DATA?

YES

The collection and analysis of the responses to the listening exercise involved
the processing of personal data for which Data Protection Impact Assessments
were undertaken. Further consultation analysis, surveying and monitoring
during the Experimental CHNSs is likely to involve the processing of personal
data. Further DPIAs will be undertaken as the engagement strategies are being
prepared.

Page 38



HAS A DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT (DPIA) BEEN
COMPLETED?

NO

13.3 As above, the further DPIAs will be undertaken as the engagement strategies
are being prepared.

13.4 Approved by: lan Plowright Head, of Strategic Transport on behalf of the
Director of Sustainable Communities.

CONTACT OFFICER: lan Plowright, Head of Strategic Transport.
APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT:

Appendix 1: Letter from Minister of Transport

Appendix 2: TfL’s Temporary Strategic Cycling Analysis and Strategic
Neighbourhood Analysis

Appendix 3: Location and Date of Measures Creating the Temporary LTNs

Appendix 4: Scheme Drawings for Each Proposed Experimental CHN

Appendix 5: PDF Leaflets of Each Temporary LTN/proposed Experimental CHN

Appendix 6: Appendix to the 26 July 2021 Cabinet Report Showing the Location /
Context of the Potential Active Travel Programme / Location of
Proposals

Appendix 7: Additional Duties and Considerations When Taking a Decision to
Implement an Experimental Healthy Neighbourhood or to Remove One
/an LTN

Appendix 8a: Summary Findings from the ‘Listening’ at Each of the Temporary
LTN/Proposed Experimental CHN Areas

Appendix 8b: Reports on the Findings from the ‘Listening’ at Each of the Temporary
LTN/Proposed Experimental CHN areas

Appendix 8c: Additional Email Submissions

Appendix 9: Submission by Croydon Living Streets: A collection of responses from
some of the children who travel along Albert Road regularly.

Appendix 10: Equality Analysis

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None.

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1. Letter from Minister of Transport to Leaders of Combined, Transport and
Highway Authorities in England

To: Leaders of all combined, transport and highway authorities in England

Active travel schemes supported by Government funding

Over the last year, cycling has risen by 46%. In 2020, we saw the highest level of cycling on the
public highway since the 1960s, and the greatest year-on-year increase in post-war history. Many
people have started cycling for shorter journeys, saving appreciable amounts of pollution, noise,
CO02 and traffic danger. In some cities the delivery bike has become as normal a sight as the
delivery van. Even after these remarkable rises, according to one leading retailer, a further 37%
of the population now wants to buy a bike.

These things have been made possible, in part, by hundreds of school streets, pop-up cycle
lanes, and Low Traffic Neighbourhoods implemented under the government's Emergency Active
Travel Fund (EATF) and under statutory Network Management Duty guidance. For all the
controversy these schemes can sometimes cause, there is strong and growing evidence that
they command public support.

| do know that a few councils have removed, or are proposing to remove, cycle schemes installed
under the fund, or to water them down. Of course | understand not every scheme is perfect and a
minority will not stand the test of time, but if these schemes are not given that time to make a
difference, then taxpayers’ monies have been wasted. Schemes need time to be allowed to bed
in; must be tested against more normal traffic conditions; and must be in place long enough for
their benefits and disbenefits to be properly evaluated and understood. We have no interest in
requiring councils to keep schemes which are proven not to work, but that proof must be
presented. Schemes must not be removed prematurely, or without proper evidence and too soon
to collect proper evidence about their effects.

As the Secretary of State stated in a letter to all local authorities in November 2020, since the
peak of the emergency had passed, we now expected local authorities to consult more
thoroughly. We revised our Network Management Duty (NMD) guidance to state that measures
should be "taken as swiftly as possible, but not at the expense of consulting local communities"
and that "local residents and businesses should... be given an opportunity to comment on
proposed changes" to schemes. Please note these requirements also apply as much to the
removal or modification of existing schemes as to the installation of new ones. In many cases
where schemes have been removed or maodified, there appears to have been little or no
consultation.

The Secretary of State also stated in his November letter that consultation should include
objective tests of public opinion, such as professional polling, to gather a truly representative
picture of local views. Obviously the views of the local Member of Parliament should be taken into
account.

Premature removal of schemes carries implications for the management of the public money
used in these schemes and for the government's future funding relationship with the authorities
responsible. The department will continue to assess authorities’ performance in delivering
schemes and, following the precedent we have already set, those which have prematurely
removed or weakened such schemes should expect to receive a reduced level of funding.

We are also publishing updated Network Management Duty guidance on this subject, describing
in more detail the obligations of authorities to allow adequate time to evaluate schemes and to
engage with local people and protected groups using professional opinion surveys, including on
any proposed removal. Authorities which are proposing to remove or weaken schemes should
not proceed with their plans unless they are satisfied that they have had regard to the guidance.

Chris Heaton-Harris, Minister of state for transport

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2: TfL’s Temporary Strateqgic Cycling Analysis and Strateqgic
Neighbourhood Analysis

The ‘Temporary Strategic Cycle Network’ appendix builds on TfL’s earlier Strategic
Cycling Analysis'® identifying the locations (such as Croydon) with the highest
potential for cycling, and the corridors along which much of that potential exists,
identifying priority corridors for intervention.

Figure 1 Image from TfL’s Temporary Strategic Cycling Analysis Priority
Corridors

0 TLRN

= Existing cycle route
— In-flight cycle route (pre-COVID)

Temporary Strategic Cycling
Analysis

== Top priority
== High priority
== Medium priority

The Strategic Neighbourhood Analysis?° identified the potential for low traffic
neighbourhoods across London, and where the greatest need may be. The
Analysis allocates ‘neighbourhoods’ two scores, a traffic filtering score and a
general score. These are combined in Figure 2 below. The traffic filtering
score is based on:

» modelled through traffic

« recorded walking and cycling casualties

+ the modelled potential cycling flows
The general score is based on factors including:

* number of schools

* levels of deprivation

» total population and low car ownership

Figure 2 Outcome of TfL Strategic Neighbourhood Analysis

»® 4
iy

B
13

Traffic filtering
score

Top High Medium
| .. Top
e=a
=

High

General
score

Medium

19 https://content.tfl.gov.uk/strategic-cycling-analysis.pdf
20 hitp://content.tfl.gov.uk/Isp-app-six-b-strategic-neighbourhoods-analysis-v 1.pdf

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3: Location and Date of Measures Creating the Temporary LTNs

The Temporary LTNs were largely implemented by placing wooden planters to close
streets to through motor traffic in Addiscombe West & East, Broad Green, South
Norwood and Woodside wards at:

(i)
(i)
(iii)

‘Dalmally Road area’-Temporary LTN implemented on 22 May 2020
by closing Dalmally Road at .its junction with Blackhorse Lane.

Elmers Road area -Temporary LTN implemented on 22 May 2020 by
closing Elmers Road at its junction with Blackhorse Lane.

‘Kemerton Road'-Temporary LTN implemented on 29 May 2020 by
closing Kemerton Road at its junction with Jesmond Road.

‘Sutherland Road area’-Temporary LTN implemented on 29 May 2020
by closing Sutherland Road at its junction with Canterbury Road.

‘Holmesdale Road area’-Temporary LTN implemented on 26 June
2020 by closing both east and west Holmesdale Road at its junction
with Park Road and Holmesdale Road at its junction with Oliver Grove.

‘Albert Road area’-Temporary LTN implemented by closing Albert
Road at:

* junction with Eldon Park on 29 May 2020
* junction with Harrington Road on 29 May 2020

* junction with Apsley Road on 23 October 2020 except for
emergency service vehicles and cyclists

* junction with Belfast Road on 23 October 2020 except for
emergency service vehicles and cyclists

The exception is the ‘Parsons Mead area’ Temporary LTN implemented on 2 October

2020 by:
a)

b)

c)

closing Derby Road (just east of its junction with Parsons Mead and
Clarendon Road) to through motor vehicle traffic except for
emergency service vehicles & cyclists.

‘No Motor Vehicles’ restrictions / signs north of its junction with
Gardens Road enforced by ANPR cameras.

The reversal of the one-way working in Mead Place.

The Temporary LTN and the TTRO implementing it, also permit cycling against the
one way working in Handcroft Road, between its junctions with London Road and

Sumner Road.

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



) abed

Appendix 4 - Scheme Drawings for Each Proposed Experimental CHN

GENERAL NOTES
1)  All signage shown is proposed unless labelled otherwise. Appropriate sign posts to be installed where
suitable lamp columns do not exist. Signs to be illuminated using external lighting.
2) Advanced warning signs from Blackhorse Lane and Coniston Road is shown in separate drawing/s.
3) Extension/upgrading or new Waiting/Loading restrictions are necessary as shown to cater for vehicles

that may need to turn around to avoid violation of prohibited movement. =
4) Full scheme to be implemented using Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders. %
Except buses

KEY:

EXISTING 'AT ANY TIME' WAITING
RESTRICTIONS

PROPOSED EXTENSION LENGTH OF 'AT
ANY TIME' WAITING RESTRICTION.

PROPOSED LENGTH OF 'AT ANY TIME'
LOADING / UNLOADING RESTRICTION.

PROPOSED RED CARRIAGEWAY
SURFACING IN VICINITY OF RESTRICTED o

o

POINT TO HIGHLIGHT THE PROHIBITION. OVX) %
PROPOSED RELOCATED PLANTER \,\jl
POSITION. \y\V\ Except buses
taxis & permit
OR holders [T
THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT. INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO OR CML LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 2016

prawy sic | oate |cuko| sic |oate | ape | sic | pate | soB nave

Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

DRAWING TITLE

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION
DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

DRAWING NO

HWY/HN/DR/001

REVISION

STATUS

TMAC

Dalmally Road junction with Blackhorse Lane

DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT M DATE

WA TH NTS 22/09/21

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Deliveri
for Cmvégdum



AutoCAD SHX Text
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
SCALE AT A4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
WA

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
22/09/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
HWY/HN/DR/001

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Dalmally Road junction with Blackhorse Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
KEY:


[verview of proposed Advanced Warning
Signs and approximate positions

\ Y

Ashburtg
Park

- PROPOSED CAMERA ENFORCED
RESTRICTION POINT

)
A RER
No motor No motor
vehicles vehicles
50yds 120 yds ahead
Except Except ¥ < %
authorised authorised
vehicles vehicles Except
Except autt;I?r{sed
E“) B“) authorised venices
vehicles S I G N D

SIGN A SIGN B SIGN C

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2014

Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods PLACE DEPARTMENT HWY/HN/DR 002
DRAWING TITLE Dalmally Road Areo STREETS DIVISION p——
Proposed Advanced Warning Signs DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES TMAC
DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT A4 DATE CROYDON De“v!,viv\
WA TH NTS 22/09/2021 HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS www.croydon.gov.uk | for Cvot_?dom

Page 48


AutoCAD SHX Text_19
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
KINGSCOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
ELMGROVE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
BROCKENHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
WYDHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
PAGEHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
PARKVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
FERNHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
SHERWOOD 

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
WOODSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
HERMITAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
HERMITAGE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
ACKHORSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
TEEVAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
BARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
TEEVAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
 ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
CAMBORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
ADDISCOMBE

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
EVERTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
CONISTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
ALDERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
ASCHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
MORLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
HIGHBARROW RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
SUNDRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
CAPRI

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
DALMALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
JESM

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
OND

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
KEMERTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
WINDEMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
BURNHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
MEADVALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
TENTERDEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
SISSINGHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
ELMERS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
TENTERDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
SALISBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
GOWLLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
SIGN B

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
SIGN A

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
SIGN C

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
SIGN D

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
HWY/HN/DR 002

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
PLACE DEPARTMENT STREETS DIVISION DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
Dalmally Road Area 

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
22/09/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
WA

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
TMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
SIGN A

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
SIGN B

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
SIGN C

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
Overview of proposed Advanced Warning Signs and approximate positions

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
KEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
Proposed Advanced Warning Signs

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
SIGN D


New sign and post to be installed.
Current sign in situ to be added to
the new post on site.

£

New signs to be
installed on new E

illuminated post

Except buses,

taxis & permit

New sign to be
installed on new
illuminated sign post

) New signs to be
installed on new
% illuminated post

Proposed double
yellow lines

Proposed removal
of existing planters

of

Crown it. Unauthorised
) .B!IM

the permission of Ordnance Sus

This map Is reproduced fom Ordnance Su aterial with
g reproduction nfrnges Grown copyrioht and 'may ead to prosecuion o c proceedings. London

behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office
oy Condon. Borough of Cropacn. Livente Na. 100017680,

DRAWING NO

PLACE DEPARTMENT

CRY-LTI-HS-ElmersRd-003.1

REVISION

NOTES

Existing planters to be removed

Proposed red carriageway surfacing

to highlight junction and restriction to

drivers. This is not raised table. DESIONER
SA

J0B NAME

LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES

STREETS DIVISION
DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

sTATUS

For Construction

HEALTHY STREETS
ELMERS ROAD j/w BLACKHORSE LANE

DATE

22/09/2020

DRAWING TITLE

VERIFIED SCALE AT A3

TH 1:250 @ A3

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

CROYDON

[www.croydon.gov.uk

Delivering

For Croydov

Page 49


AutoCAD SHX Text_114
Christian Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
Woodside Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
250

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
ELMERS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised   Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


0G abed

>

New sign to be

g\

bt

A

0

&
20
222
fon
CA
Proposed sign
on (LC 004)
5
=
New sign to be NEW
installed on the existing | |Lz{eJ-\sN¥:\{ell)}
lamp column no 001 AHEAD

installed on the existing
lamp column no 007

Remove existing sign on
(LC 008) and replace with
sign as shown below.

x1 + 1 spare kept

x1 + 1 spare kept
in FMC storage

in FMC storage

x1+ 1 spare kept
in FMC storage

o x1+ 1 spare kept
E in FMC storage
@

x1+ 1 spare kept
in FMC storage

PLACE DEPARTMENT

® x1 + 1 spare kept

in FMC storage

x4 + 2 spare kept
in FMC storage

DRAWING NO REVISION

CRY-LTI-HS-ElmersRd-003.2

LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES

STREETS DIVISION
DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

pranmeTe HEALTHY STREETS
ELMERS ROAD j/w BLACKHORSE LANE

STATUS

For Construction

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

VERIFIED SCALE AT A3

TH

DESIGNER

SA

oATE
NTS @ A3 | 22/09/2021

CROYDON EWE%M

www.croydon.gov.uk



AutoCAD SHX Text_123
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
ELMERS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
16e

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
SALISBURY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
91a

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
The Villas

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
Footbridge


Overview of proposed Advanced Warning Signs and approximate positions

Ashburton

Park

NEW
N eidl SIGN G
AHEAD

SIGN B

sss

sssssss

LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION
DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

DRAWING NO
CRY-LTI-HS-ElmersRd-003.3

ssssss
For Construction

wwwwwwww

prameTInE HEALTHY STREETS
ELMERS ROAD jiw BLACKHORSE LANE
SA | TH | 1:250 @ A3 | 22/09/2020

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

ICROYDON Delivevimg

www.croydon.gov.uk for Cvadmn

Page 51


AutoCAD SHX Text_168
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
LINCOLN

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
CLEAVERHOLME

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
GDNS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
CLOISTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
WOODSIDE  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
BROCKENHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
WYDHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
PAGEHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
STROUD

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
WOODSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
NSON'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
DICK

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
ANTHONY

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
HERMITAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
MALCOLM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
SONNING

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
DAVIES

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
ADAMS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
HERMITAGE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
GOODH

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
ACKHORSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
TEEVAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
 ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
CAMBORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
ADDISCOMBE

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
CONISTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
MORLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
WOODSIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
TENTERDEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
SISSINGHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
ELMERS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
TENTERDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
SALISBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
ENSON'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
GOWLLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
LANE


Proposed Layout Plan for Derby Road
Replace existing planters with '"ANPR' Camera & Associated Signage

P N

N

~

N

~N
N,

r

*~ CREATING A GATEWAY EFFECT
bl
4 \
Ay

PROPOSED SURFACE DRESSING

PROPOSED DOUBLE LINES.

LOSS OF 1 NO. PARKING SPACE
ON EACH SIDE OF THE ROAD.

DESIGNER

SA

VERIFIED

TH

SCALE AT A4

NTS

DATE

01/10/21

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

www.croydon.gov.uk

0 0 ——
(?DJ ° 13:9m
[ 0
n =
N A =
PROPOSED ANPR
N SIGNAGE AND PLANTERS.
% (Subject to Detailed Design)
ﬁ h Except buses,
. taxis & permit
ﬁz:::gtsp holders
poumestvani st ol
scheme design
e sufacs drosang crating o “™ CROYDON HEALTHY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLACE DEPARTMENT CRY-LTN-DerbyRoad ANPR_002|
gateway effect on the carriageway STREETS DIVISION STATUS -
[ Existing plant N . DRAWING TITLE ANPR DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES For Construction
xisting planters to be remove . .
° Existing bollard to be removed PARSONS MEAD / DERBY ROAD CROYDON De’lwefv‘ng

for Croydow



AutoCAD SHX Text_232
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
DERBY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
The Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
Day

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
Seventh

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
of God

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
Hounds

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
13 to 19

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
181a

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
MP 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
DERBY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
Fox and

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
CLARENDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
PARSONS MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
TH46.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
TH46.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
G


€G abed

New sign to be
installed on the new
iluminated sign post

New sign to be
installed on the new
illuminated sign post

Except
authorised
vehicles

Ro
=

Except buses
taxis & permit

holders m

B

Except buses
taxis & permit

holders m

B

New sign to be
installed on the new
illuminated sign post

New sign to be
installed on the new
illuminated sign post

R
=

Except buses
taxis & permit

holders m

o

Except
authorised
vehicles

New illuminated sign to be
installed on the existing
lamp column no.008

Except buses

taxis & permit

holders m

B

New illuminated sign to be
installed on the existing

lamp column no

001

THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 2016

\

REVISION

IPRAWN| SIG | DATE | CHKD | SIG | DATE | APP

SIG

DATE

JOB NAME

LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES

DRAWING TITLE

HEALTHY STREETS

SUTHERLAND ROAD j/w CANTENBURY ROAD

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION
DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

DRAWING NO

CRY-LTI-HS-SutherlandRd-001.1

STATUS

For Construction

REVISION

D VERIFIED

MW TH

SCALE AT A3

NTS @ A3

DATE

12/05/2020

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

CROYDON

www.,croydon.gov.uk

Delivering
for Croydow



AutoCAD SHX Text_281
71e

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
47b

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Apartments

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
66a

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
Canterbury Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
71d

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
Reesha

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
43a

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
YORK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
47a

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
CANTERBURY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
MIDHURST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
SUTHERLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
CANTERBURY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


MU TEDR

140400NVH

=
<<
T
%2
=
(N
M

[

FRANCIS

ROAD

CONSTANCE

39007

o

No motor

No motor
vehicles vehicles
70vyds 200vyds
Except Except
authorised authorised
vehicles vehicles
Except Except
BI_'F BIJF authorised authorised
vehicles vehicles
SIGN A SIGN B SIGN C SIGND

No motor
vehicles
300 yds ahead

Except
authorised
vehicles

SIGN E

No motor
vehicles
460yds

Except
authorised
vehicles

SIGN F

vehicles
460 yds

Except
authorised

SIGN G

No motor

| vehicles

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised

reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2014
DRAWING NO REVISION

PLACE DEPARTMENT CRY-LTI-HS-SutherlandRd-003

STREETS DIVISION sTATUS
DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

JOB NAME

LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES

CROYDON HEALTHY STREETS
SUTHERLAND ROAD ANPR

SCALE AT A4 DATE

For Consultation

CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

DRAWING TITLE

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

DESIGNER VERIFIED

MW TH NTS

22.09.2021

Page 54


AutoCAD SHX Text_334
CAMPBELL  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
DENNETT        ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
MILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
BRIGHTWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
LAMBETH RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
CROYDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
LONGLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
BISHOPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
HATTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
ADDINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
PEMDEVON   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
FAIRHOLME  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
GREENSIDE  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
MIDHURST  AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
EASTNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
OAKWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
STANLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
PRIORY  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
TERBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
ONSLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
WENTWORTH   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
WORTLEY  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
CHAPMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
EFFINGHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
FAIRMEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
ALLEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
ONSLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
CAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
KINGSLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
THO

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
EUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
TON

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
DRAKE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
NEWMAN RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
LANCING  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
DONALD    ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
SUTHERLAND   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
YORK

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
FRANCIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
LODGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
KIDDERMINSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
NOVA  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
KELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
BENSHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
LONDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
CAVENDISH

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
CHATFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
WELLINGTON 

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
HATHAWAY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
ELMWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
CONSTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
MONTAGUE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
BROADGREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
HANDCROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
PA

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
T H O R N T O N

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
M I T 

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
P U R L E Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
S T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
C H A M

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
SUMNER

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
ROAD


GENERAL NOTES

1)

All signage shown is proposed unless labelled otherwise. Appropriate sign posts to be
installed where suitable lamp columns do not exist. Signs to be illuminated using external
lighting.

Existing 20/30mph signs to be relocated but not shown in drawing so as to maintain
clarity within drawing.

Road markings in S. Norwood Hill not shown in full. where not shown, the road markings
are unaffected and therefore not to be changed.

Tree at junction to be trimmed back to ensure that new signage is not obstructed.
Extension/upgrading or new Waiting/Loading restrictions are necessary as shown to cater

for vehicles that may need to turn around to avoid violation of prohibited movement.
6) Full scheme to be implemented using Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders.

oo
=

Except buses,
taxis & permit

holders D

T

Except
authorised
vehicles

B

Except
authorised
vehicles

B

DURING MATCH DAYS ONLY. NOW TO BE
UPGRADED TO 'AT ANY TIME' OVER THE
LENGTH AS SHOWN BY YELLOW
COLOURED LINE

PROPOSED UPGRADED LENGTH OF ‘AT
ANY TIME' WAITING RESTRICTION.

RESTRICTIONS WHERE SHOWN

4
PROPOSED DISABLED o
BAY POSITION A%ﬁ
7 EXISTING DISABLED BAY TO
BE MOVED TO NEW PROPOSED
POSITION AS SHOWN
KEY:

EXISTING TIMED WAITING RESTRICTIONS -

PROPOSED LENGTH OF 'AT ANY
TIME' LOADING / UNLOADING
RESTRICTION.

PROPOSED RED CARRIAGEWAY

INCORPORATES EXISTING TIMED WAITING

SURFACING TO HIGHLIGHT
JUNCTION AND RESTRICTION TO

DRIVERS. NOT A RAISED TABLE.

oo
=

Except buses,
taxis & permit

holders FIE)

5o

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2014

JOB NAME

DRAWING NO

Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods PLACE DEPARTMENT HWY /HN/HR /001
DRAWING TITLE General Arrangement STREETS DIVISION STATUS

Elm Park Ro jct. with S.Norwood Hill DIRECTOR = STEVE ILES TMAC
DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT A4 DATE C ROYDO N De,liveviv\

WA TH NTS 22/09/21 HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS www.croydon.gov.uk for CV'OI?dDV!

Page 55



AutoCAD SHX Text_418
ELM PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
SOUTH NORWOOD HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
DISABLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
DISABLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
General Arrangement

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
22/09/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
HWY/HN/HR/001

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
PLACE DEPARTMENT STREETS DIVISION DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
WA

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
Elm Park Rd jct. with S.Norwood Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
PROPOSED DISABLED BAY POSITION

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
EXISTING DISABLED BAY TO BE MOVED TO NEW PROPOSED POSITION AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
KEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
TMAC


GENERAL NOTES

1) All signage shown is proposed unless labelled otherwise. Appropriate sign posts to be
installed where suitable lamp columns do not exist. Signs to be illuminated using external
lighting. The signage will be placed back to back on each of the 2 posts shown as the
restriction applies from both directions.

2) Advanced warning signs from approach roads such as S. Norwood Hill, Oliver Grove &
Dixon Road is shown in seperate drawing/s.

3) Extension/upgrading or new Waiting/Loading restrictions are necessary as shown to cater
for vehicles that may need to turn around to avoid violation of prohibited movement.

4) Full scheme to be implemented using Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders.

Except buses,

taxis & permit

holders GIE)

\\ EXISTING PARKING
METER POSITION

EXISTING PHYSICAL RESTRICTION
ON HOLMESDALE ROAD NEAR MINI
ROUNDABOUT TO BE REMOVED

ol

BACK TO BACK SIGNS TO
BE INSTALLED AT EACH OF
THE TWO LOCATIONS SHOWN

KEY:

EXISTING TIMED WAITING RESTRICTIONS.
NOW TO BE UPGRADED TO 'AT ANY TIME'

] PROPOSED RED CARRIAGEWAY
1 SURFACING IN VICINITY OF RESTRICTED

OVER THE LENGTH AS SHOWN BY YELLOW,
COLOURED LINE

PROPOSED UPGRADED LENGTH OF ‘AT
ANY TIME' WAITING RESTRICTION.
INCORPORATES EXISTING TIMED WAITING
RESTRICTIONS WHERE SHOWN

PROPOSED LENGTH OF 'AT ANY TIME'
LOADING / UNLOADING RESTRICTION.

POINT TO HIGHLIGHT THE PROHIBITION.
NOT RAISED TABLE.

EXISTING VEHICULAR CROSSOVER

EXISTING ON-STREET PARKING BAYS
UNAFFECTED BY PROPOSAL

EXISTING ON-STREET PARKING BAYS

TO BE REMOVED AND RELOCATED
ELSEWHERE ON HOLMESDALE ROAD

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2014

JOB NAME DRAWING NO
Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods PLACE DEPARTMENT HWY /HN/HR /002
ReTE  Goreral Arrongenent STREETS DIVISION
Holmesdale Road east of Oliver Grove DIRFCTOR = STEVEILES TMAC
DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT A4 DATE C ROYDO N De,liv?,viv\
WA TH NTS 22/09/21 HlGHWAY |MPROVEMENTS www.croydon.gov.uk for CV'OIdngW

Page 56



AutoCAD SHX Text_439
381

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
HOLMESDALE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
371

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
296

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
BACK TO BACK SIGNS TO BE INSTALLED AT EACH OF THE TWO LOCATIONS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
General Arrangement

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
22/09/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
HWY/HN/HR/002

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
PLACE DEPARTMENT STREETS DIVISION DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
WA

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
Holmesdale Road east of Oliver Grove 

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
KEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
EXISTING PARKING METER POSITION

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
EXISTING PHYSICAL RESTRICTION ON HOLMESDALE ROAD NEAR MINI ROUNDABOUT TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
TMAC


GENERAL NOTES

shown in seperate drawing/s.

1) All signage shown is proposed unless labelled otherwise. Appropriate sign posts to be installed where
suitable lamp columns do not exist. Signs to be illuminated using external lighting. The signage will be
placed back to back on each of the 2 posts shown as the restriction applies from both directions.

2) Advanced warning signs from approach roads such as S. Norwood Hill, Oliver Grove & Dixon Road is

3) Extension/upgrading or new Waiting/Loading restrictions are necessary as shown to cater for vehicles
that may need to turn around to avoid violation of prohibited movement.
4) Full scheme to be implemented using Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders.

/S abed

EXISTING CENTRAL PLANTER TO BE

REPLACED WITH TwO LOCKABLE FOLDABLE

BOLLARDS FOR EMERGENCY VEHICULAR
ACCESS AS SHOWN. OTHER PLANTERS TO

REMAIN AS SHOWN. PROPOSED 'KEEP CLEAR'

CARRIAGEWAY MARKINGS TO BE MARKED
AS SHOWN

A

2

NS

S
4

Except buses,
taxis & permit

holders GED

—_——

e

Except buses,
taxis & permit

holders D

PROPOSED SIGN ON BACK
OF 'GIVE WAY' SIGN J

0

Except
thoﬁud
vehicles

KEY:

EXISTING TIMED WAITING RESTRICTIONS
PROPOSED LENGTH OF 'AT ANY TIME'
WAITING RESTRICTION.

PROPOSED LENGTH OF 'AT ANY TIME'
LOADING / UNLOADING RESTRICTION.

PROPOSED RED CARRIAGEWAY
SURFACING IN VICINITY OF RESTRICTED

@ EXISTING ON-STREET PARKING BAYS

POINT TO HIGHLIGHT THE PROHIBITION.
NOT RAISED TABLE.

EXISTING VEHICULAR CROSSOVER

EXISTING ON-STREET PARKING BAYS
UNAFFECTED BY PROPOSAL

TO BE REMOVED AND RELOCATED
ELSEWHERE ON HOLMESDALE ROAD

HE—

PROPOSED NEW ON-STREET PARKING BAY
WITH YELLOW LINE REMOVED IN ORDER

TO MINIMISE LOSS OF PARKING FROM BAYS
SHOWN TO BE REMOVED

THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE ® CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROGEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 2016‘

OB NAME.

Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NO REVISION

PLACE DEPARTMENT HWY /HN/HR /003

Homesdale Road junctions with Park Road

DESIGNER

WA

VERIFIED

TH

SCALE AT A4

NTS

DATE

22/09/21

STREETS DIVISION STATUS )
DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES TMAC
CROYDON | Delivering
HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS ~ Wwwiroydon.govauk | for Croydon



AutoCAD SHX Text_459
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
UPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
233

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
247

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
HOLMESDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
HOLMESDALE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
KEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
KEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
SCALE AT A4

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
WA

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
22/09/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
HWY/HN/HR/003

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
Homesdale Road junctions with Park Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
KEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
EXISTING CENTRAL PLANTER TO BE REPLACED WITH TWO LOCKABLE FOLDABLE BOLLARDS FOR EMERGENCY VEHICULAR ACCESS AS SHOWN. OTHER PLANTERS TO REMAIN AS SHOWN. PROPOSED 'KEEP CLEAR' CARRIAGEWAY MARKINGS TO BE MARKED AS SHOWN


[verview of proposed Advanced Warning
Signs and approximate positions

PROPOSED CAMERA ENFORCED
RESTRICTION POINT

== PROPOSED PHYSICAL RESTRICTION POINT

Selhurst Park
Football Ground

[SIGN |<| /]SIGN D

. S
&@

%%
2
5

%
$\5
\%\Q

Except Except
authorised authorised
vehicles vehicles
o[ o[
SIGN A SIGN B

No motor
vehicles
120 yds ahead

Except
authorised
vehicles

vehicles
40 yds ahead

Except

authorised
vehicles

No motor
vehicles
70 yds ahead

Except
authorised

vehicles

No motor
vehicles
160 yds ahead

Except
authorised
vehicles

SIGN C

No motor
vehicles
30yds

Except
authorised
_ vehicles

No motor
vehicles
90yds

Except
authorised
_ vehicles

SIGN D

SIGN E

No motor

SIGN H

vehicles
70vyds

Except
authorised
vehicles

No motor
vehicles
50 yds

Except
authorised

vehicles

No motor
vehicles
50vyds

Except
authorised
vehicles

SIGN F

SIGN G

SIGN I

SIGN J

SIGN K

No motor
vehicles
190 yds

-

‘

Except
authorised
vehicles

No motor
vehicles
190 yds

=

‘

Except
authorised
vehicles

SIGN L

SIGN M

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised

reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2014

JOB NAME

Croydon Healthy Nelghbourhoods

DRAWING TITLE

Holmesdale Road Area
Proposed Advanced Warning Signs

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION
DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

DRAWING NO

HWY/HN/HR 004

STATUS

DESIGNER

WA

VERIFIED

TH

SCALE AT A4 DATE

NTS

22/09/2021

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

TMAC

Delivering

for Croydow

Page 58


AutoCAD SHX Text_487
OLIVER GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
WARMINSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
FFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
DOYLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
NORTHYRST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
SUNDIAL  AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
 ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
CHALFONT

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
SUFFOLK

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
STATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
SOUTHERN

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
BROSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
HAMBLEDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
HOLMESDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
LAWR

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
ENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
ST DUNSTAN'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
NUGENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
CUTHBERT GDNS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
OLIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
ELM   PARK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
DIXON  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
HOLMESDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
UPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
GRO

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
HOLMEWOOD RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
SANGLEY    ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
CLARET GDNS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
CL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
ERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
WHITWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
CANHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
PARRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
EDGERTON RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
ROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
CLIFTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
LADBROOK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
MICHAEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
WRIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
ST MARYS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
BURGOYNE  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
CARGREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
ROTHESAY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
PEMBROKE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
BUNGALOW  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
CLI

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
MERC-

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
HANTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
LAWS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
BROX-

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
HOLME

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
HIGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
H I L L

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
O R S E

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
GOAT HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
MANOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
HUNTLY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
SIGN B

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
SIGN A

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
SIGN A

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
SIGN B

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
SIGN C

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
SIGN E

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
SIGN F

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
SIGN G

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
SIGN H

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
SIGN I

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
SIGN J

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
SIGN K

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
SIGN L

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
SIGN M

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
SIGN D

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
HWY/HN/HR 004

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
PLACE DEPARTMENT STREETS DIVISION DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
Holmesdale Road Area 

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
22/09/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
WA

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
TMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
SIGN A

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
SIGN B

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
SIGN C

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
SIGN D

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
SIGN E

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
SIGN H

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
SIGN F

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
SIGN G

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
SIGN I

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Overview of proposed Advanced Warning Signs and approximate positions

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
KEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
SIGN J

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
SIGN K

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
SIGN L

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
SIGN M

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
Proposed Advanced Warning Signs


6S obed

New illuminated sign to be
installed on the existing
lamp column no 013

New sign to be
installed on the new
illuminated sign post

Except buses,
taxis & permit

New signs to be
installed on the new

NEW
ROAD LAYOUT
AHEAD

New sign to be
installed on the existing

holders

illuminated sign post /

Albert Road junction with Eldon
Park proposed camera enforced
closure, except permit holders.
Road priority to be changed with
Albert Road becoming side road.

New signs to be
installed on the new
illuminated sign post

Except buses,
taxis & permit

holders

T

o

New sign to be
installed on the new
illuminated sign post

NEW
ROAD LAYOUT

AHEAD

New sign to be
installed on the existing
lamp column no 016

lamp column no 003

THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 201B|

DRAWING NO

REVISION

- - Existing planters and islands to be removed

JOB NAME

LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES

PRANGTIE CROYDON HEALTHY STREETS
ALBERT ROAD / ELDON PARK ANPR

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION
DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

CRYTLTI-AIberth_ANPR-002.1

STATUS

For Constructions

DESIGNER VERIFIED

MW TH

SCALE AT A3 DATE

1:250 25/08/2021

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Delivering

for C,vogdow



AutoCAD SHX Text_621
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
70 to 72

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
Eldon Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
ELDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
1 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
Mansions

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
54a

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
Chandos

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
ELDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


09 abed

—_
—_
—_—

New sign to be

installed on the existing

lamp column no 011

/

NEW
ROAD LAYOUT
—_— AHEAD

Ot 4 03 o

THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 2016/'/

) N\ N T <= <

JOB NAME

LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES

DRAWING TITLE

CROYDON HEALTHY STREETS
ALBERT ROAD / ELDON PARK ANPR

DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT A3 DATE

MW TH 1:250 25/08/2021

PLACE DEPARTMENT  [CRY-LTi-AlbertRd_ANPR-0022
STREETS DIVISION
DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES For Constructions
CROYDON Delivgiwg
HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS www.croydon.gov.uk | for Croydon



AutoCAD SHX Text_659
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
44b

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
44a

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
44f

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
44c

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
St Mark's

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
ST MARKS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


T9 abed

1 new sign to be installed on new
illuminated sign post and another
at the existing illuminated sign post

& Empt
a authorised
vehicles
Except buses,
taxis & permit
holders

New illuminated sign to be
installed on the existing
lamp column no.11

New sign to be
installed on new
illuminated sign post

Proposed 8 timber
bollards to be installed
on the grass verge

authorlsed

vehicles

(
B b

New double yellow line on
- | both sides of the street

R

Existing wooden ﬁ é h
planters and kerbed Except buses,
i taxis & permit
islands to be removed. holders

ol

New signs to be
installed on new
illuminated sign post

THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 2016

Y
e PLACE DEPARTMENT CRY-LTI-AlbertRd_ANPR-002.3 " "
LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES o DI
DRAWING TITLE DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES For Constructions
Existing planters and islands to be removed CROYDON HEALTHY STREETS i
@ 9P ALBERT ROAD / HARRINGTON ROAD ANPR ICROYDON | Delivering
DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT AS OATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS www.croydon.gov.uk ‘FDV‘ CYDIJC{DVI
MW TH 1:250 25/08/2021



AutoCAD SHX Text_686
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
Tavern

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
Clarity

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
Albert

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
HARRINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


29 abed

No motor
vehicles
110 yds

No motor
Except vehicles
2
authorised 120 yds ahead

vehicles ’/\ N

New sign to be installed %
on the new post

Except
authorised
vehicles

3 =/

New sign to be installed
on the new sign post

THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 2016

e PLACE DEPARTMENT CRY-LTI-AlbertRd_ANPR-002.4 " "
LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES CE DEPARTM
AT CROYDON HEALTHY STREETS DIRFCTOR-STEVETES For Constructions
ALBERT ROAD / ARCHER ROAD ICROYDON | Delivering
DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT AS OATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS www.croydon.gov.uk ‘FDV‘ CYDIJC{DVI
MW TH 1:250 25/08/2021



AutoCAD SHX Text_727
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
Moorbeck

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
ARCHER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


\
\
\ P -
\ Se—— - |
\ |
\ |
o)
New illuminated sign to be “Newisignitolbe
installed on the existing llnstallled on t_he new ROAD LAYOUT
lamp column no 013 illuminated sign post ™ AHEAD
| p . New sign to be
20> =) New signs to be ~ installed on the existing
1 Exceptbuses) | installed on the new / /// lamp column no 003
99 10 rvcors gmp) | iluminated sign post e -
5 —
®) _ 8
) / %
\O)
— o
— O
” A
TR N
" \ ~ Newsign to be
Albert Road junction with Eldon \ .'l'I‘Sta‘."ed o elncy
L Park proposed camera enforced N\ \ lermine e Sitgim (e
closure, except permit holders. [ \
Road priority to be changed with
oG ¥S 4 Albert Road becoming side road. \\ ,><
9¢ 8 | o ¢
hL R~ N .
= o
New signs to be \
installed on the new [ [acets veress
illuminated sign post | {roiders G \
7
B\lh ///
7 7 \ \
4 \
// N
Z \
< N
77 72 ROAD LAYOUT AN
85 % / AHEAD N
79 87 ol / New sign to be
// / installed on the existing \
PR e {<} lamp column no 016
// - S - // \
/ i \
/ (o)) // \\
1 o R \\
N AN
AN AN
\\\ \\\
N \ O Moorbeck
\ \
N N AN Court
\ s
L . p
AN //
N . No motor
% /// N g vehicles
o N o, 110yds
\
,bq e N 7 -
7 \ P
< \\ 4 7 ( @% \
AN \ // — N
AN N s = J
\ \ // /|
\\ S o /// Except 12(;’ egldehse d
s S anea
AN P authorised ¥
N s s vehicles 2
: 7 // N;w sign to be instarled (e
s -
N // /// on the new post E
/ P Except
s < L
N N authorised Desborough
~N7 N @ .
\ x5 vehicles C t
N ol \ our
\ New sign to be installed
\\ on the new sign post
AN
\
\
\
AN
N ()
\\
\\ N 1 new sign to be installed on new
\ illuminated sign post and another
N N at the existing illuminated sign post
AN
\\
N }(_% larit
O U S Excep; buses,) /
taxis & permit| 7
holders
4 8 N /// / /// New illuminated sign to be
i installed on the existing
VDYD 7 / ///(\\ lamp column no.11
/\/ New sign to be 7 //
N\ installed on new ) -+ :
7 L . N _* ~| Proposed 8 timber
A\ 7 illiminatedisignipost ) -+ bollards to be installed
7 W \ on the grass verge
\ -7
AN AN
No motor NEW 3 N NN
vehicles ROAD LAYOUT X N ’ ‘
1i0yds \ [ New double yellow line on
X1 + 1 Spare ke pt AHEAD \\ OjD @ / <|_both sides of the street
\ /
in FMC storage No motor S ‘e
— vehicles pd
s 120 yds ahead Existing wooden
Except :
planters and kerbed xcept buses,
a:i?:(:li,:gd X1 + 1 Spare ke pt islands to be removed. E*‘;::,’:i:a"“'
in FMC storage
Excepted New signs to be
au h<_>ris installed on new
vehicles illuminated sign post
Q
o
b2 p
- X2 + 2 spare kept No motor
cept . vehicles
authorised | in FMC storage 180yds ahead No motor
i x1 + 1 spare kept U
p p 50yds ahead
& = in FMC storage
Except y
authorised Q é
vehicles Except
authorised
vehicles
No motor \ — . )
X3 + 2 Spare ke pt vehicles N New sign to be installed on
50 YdS ahead \ the existing sign post.
Except . \ Existing sign to be redundant.
wthorlsed [ in FMC storage . x1 + 1 spare kept N
B in FMC storage
Except
authorised
vehicles
Except buses, X8 + 4 Spare kept X1 + 1 Spare kept
taxis & permit H H
rocers g@) 1N FMC storage in FMC storage
| Except
|J authorised
vehicles
20
5 — X
& 7NN ZANE\V NN N 3
/<~, / / [ THiS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERWL WITH THE OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT. INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO OR CML LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 2016 |
- A A 7 X AV N\
NOTES REV | REVISION praw siG | DATE |cHkD | siG | DATE | APp | sic | DATE | JOB NAME PLACE DEPARTMENT CDRRM¢I1<|3:“FI_AIbean_ANPR_0025 REVISION
_ LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES PUBLIC REALM — .
ORAWING TITLE DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES For Consultation
Existing planters and islands to be removed D HARRINGTON
ALBERT ROAD / HARRINGTON ROAD ANPR
[ v wroromms | CROYDON
MW TH NTS 25.08.21 www.croydon.gov.uk

Page 63


AutoCAD SHX Text_747
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
58a

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
1d

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
Desborough

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
Tavern

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
Clarity

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
Albert

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
ARCHER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
Moorbeck

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
70 to 72

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
BRIERLEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
LONSDALE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
Boro Const & Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
Eldon Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
ELDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
BRIERLEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
25a

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
18A

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
18B

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
20A

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
54a

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
CRESSWELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
19A

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
123 to 127

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
BRIERLEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
1 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
Mansions

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
54a

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
Chandos

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
HARRINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
APSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
ELDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
ARCHER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


7
o

s
1 new sign to be installed on new s
illuminated sign post and another s
N at the existing illuminated sign post

C§
New illuminated sign to be
installed on the existing
lamp column no.11
1
New sign to be
installed on new
illuminated sign post

Proposed 8 timber
bollards to be installed
on the grass verge

Existing wooden
planters and kerbed
islands to be removed.

New signs to be
installed on new
illuminated sign post

% \’/’r//
) e ’
C> ‘5:} ’
No motor
vehicles Apsley Road junction with
50 yds ahead

Albert Road ‘//
full closure to remain
R & \ 5 .
N
Q = @ 3K
Except ¢ )

N\ o
authorised

\\‘ / 7 | s
vehicles QS Y s>
N ign to be i lled

. T e\
NN Existing sign to be redundant. \k% Q)

\\

Kentone Court

‘ﬁ ‘

%Co

<
\
AN
N
//
7
_41/// p
i ///
7
e e
X
e e
/// -~ -
/// ///
Moreton House /‘A\// 7
- - /
- -~
vehicles 2 e
/
180 yds ahead 9, e I
, X /
R et /i
P // |
é Belfast Road junction with / //
Albert Road // /
Except full closure to remain ;!
i1 /
authorised ) TCB // ;
vehicles PN ®L——___ i
Z \ ‘ \ rF——— T T TT———_ / /
New sign to be installed on the &\ / L/
existing lamp column no 026 AN N N N N W B ~
________________ N
~ N

No motor
vehicles
TI0yds

ROAD LAYOUT |¢]
AHEAD
x1+ 1 spare kept

’f;fj in FMC storage

No motor
vehicles

Except
authorised

120 yds ahead
vehicles .X'| + 1 spare kept
in FMC storage
Except

authorised
vehicles

Swe” X2 + 2 spare kept No motor

Except : vehicles
suthorlsed | 1) FMC storage

180 yds ahead 1 1 k t
R X1+ 1 spare kep
B

in FMC storage
Except
authorised
@ vehicles
Except
authorised
vehicles

x3 + 2 spare kept vermeies.

vehicles
. 50 yds ahead
in FMC storage

£ x1+ 1 spare kept
in FMC storage

e
v
A
- /
/
/
//
Except |
authorised ‘l
vehicles |
|
|
& No motor |
= 360 yde shead \
360 yds ahead yds ahea ‘1
——=— X8+ 4 spare kept = x1 + 1 spare kept = \
taxis & it : : : |
rocers g@) 1N FMC storage in FMC storage |
Except |
I Except authorised \
I authorised vehicles !
vehicles )
New s\ign to be inst;IIed on\the
(%) existing lamp column no 031
T > %9 \
IR == = AN VAL AN m
\ |THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT. INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO OR CML LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 2010[
\ \\ <\ NN NN NN N D N N N e N \ \
NNNNN REV | REVISION PRAWN SIG | DATE | CHKD | sIG | DATE | APP siG | DATE | JOB NAME PLACE DEPARTMENT DRAWIIlGNO- o L g | REVISION
_ LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES SUBLIG REALM 231”' AlbertRd_ANPR0026|
. . . HEALTHY STREETS DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES For Consultation
@ Existing planters and islands to be removed ALBERT ROAD / HARRINGTON ROAD ANPR CROYDON
ssssss VERIFIED SCALE AT A1 DATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS
MW TH NTS 25.08.21 www.croydon.gov.uk
Page 64



AutoCAD SHX Text_956
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
152a

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
152b

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
SEYMOUR PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
APSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
Kentone Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
NOTSON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
AYLETT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
BELFAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
181

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
NAPIER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
INGATESTONE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
Moreton House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
58a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
186

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
BROCKLESBY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
Tavern

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
135 to 151

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
Albert

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
Watcombe Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
HARRINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
APSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
BELFAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
ALBERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


South |
Counf

Except
authorised
vehicles

Except
authorised

vehicles

No motor
vehicles
50yds ahead

R

=

Except
authorised
vehicles

SIGN E

No motor

No motor
vehicles
180 yds ahead

)
=

Except
authorised
vehicles

SIGN F

vehicles
110 yds

Except
authorised
vehicles

SIGNC

No moto
vehicles

120 yds ahead

o
=

Except

authorised

vehicles

r

SIGND

vehicles

oo
=

Except

vehicles

No motor

360yds ahead

authorised

SIGN G

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2014

JOB NAME

LOWER TRAFFIC INITIATIVES

DRAWING TITLE

CROYDON HEALTHY STREETS

ALBERT ROAD / ELDON PARK ANPR

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION

DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

DRAWING NO

CRY-LTI-HS-AlbertRd_ANPR-003

STATUS

For Consultation

REVISION

DESIGNER VERIFIED

MW TH

SCALE AT A4 DATE

NTS 22.09.2021

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Page 65


AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
GRV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
BROOKLYN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
LONSDALE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
LOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
CROFTSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
BROOKLYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
ALBERT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
BROOKLYN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
WAVERLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
MALDEN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
ARCHER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
ELDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
CHARTHAM  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
SUNNY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
ALBERT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
MARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
ADDISON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
JOHN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
COVENTRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
ADDISON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
FARLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
FFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
DOYLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
SUNNYCROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
SUNNY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
CRESSWELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
NOTSON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
BELFAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
AYLETT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
SANDOWN   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
INGATESTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
APSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
NAPIER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
BRIERLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
DENMARK       ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
SEYMOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
WATCOMBE    ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
BROCKLESBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
ALFRED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
HOLLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
SHINNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
STANG

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
CL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
WERNDEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
CROWTHER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
CROWTHER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
CLIFFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
BIRCHANGER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
GRESHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
CROWTHER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
BALFOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
CLI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
HARRINGTON     

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
WESTGATE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
PEMBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
MERC-

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
HANTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
LES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
TOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
TIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
LEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
P O R T L A N D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
R O A 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
MANOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
NORWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
JUNCTION


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5 - PDF Leaflets of Each Temporary LTN/proposed Experimental CHN

June 2021 PUBLIC SURVEY

This is your opportunity to give us your views by 14 Jul
Delivering TRANSPORT

CROYDON for Croydon e FOR LONDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood

PROPOSALS FOR DALMALLY ROAD

In May 2020, the council created the Addiscombe Healthy
Neighbourhood by closing Dalmally Road at its junction with
Blackhorse Lane through planters.

The Temporary Scheme was installed in response to
guidance and emergency powers given to local authorities by
central government last year to create more space on local
streets to accommodate safe, sustainable, socially-distanced
travel during the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Temporary Scheme is part of wider set of Croydon Streetspace temporary measures
introduced across the borough, funded by the Department for Transport (DfT) and Transport
for London (TfL).

Aims of Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods (CHN):

A CHN makes local streets more attractive for local people in the following ways:

v Streets that are safer, cleaner, and quieter — addressing long-standing concerns from local
residents around congestion and road safety

v Streets that support more sustainable methods of travel like cycling or walking — addressing
concerns around air pollution and the climate crisis

v’ Streets that encourage and enable increased physical activity — addressing concerns about
poor physical health and obesity.

Feedback so far

Feedback has been received from local residents throughout the implementation of the
temporary scheme. That feedback has helped to identify ways in which the Temporary

Scheme could be improved, including calls for the council to improve vehicle access for
residents within the neighbourhood and emergency services.

As a result of this feedback, the council is now considering how best to proceed with the
CHN. It is considering the implementation of an improved scheme under an Experimental
Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO) for a period of 18 months. An ETRO enables the
implementation of a longer term scheme whilst simultaneously learning from and consulting
on its impacts. Further information on ETROs can be found on our website at
www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Prior to any decision on an ETRO, the council is writing to seek your feedback on the proposed
Experimental Scheme. If agreed, the changes will be implemented using external funds
secured through TfL and the DfT as part of their Streetspace, Healthy Streets and Active
Travel programmes. The proposals for those improvements are set out overleaf.

Page 67



Proposed Improvements
v Access: the planters on Dalmally Road will be removed and replaced
& with a camera-enforced partial closure with exemptions.
% Benefits of camera enforced restriction replacing the planter closure:
Ex 1) Full two — way access for those with permits or exemptions into the
cept buses X
t:::: :rgeéﬂgt neighbourhood
2) Full two — way access unobstructed for emergency services

BHJ 3) The aims of the healthy neighbourhood are maintained, while providing
greater access.

For an illustration of this proposal please see plan included in this leaflet.

Monitoring and tracking the Healthy Neighbourhood
The council will measure the impacts of all Healthy Neighbourhood schemes by capturing
and analysing following data to be sure that the scheme is meeting its goals:

Traffic speeds Air quality modelling (diffusion tubes & portable sensors)
Traffic volumes Levels of walking, cycling & public transport usage
Traffic collisions Feedback from statutory groups

Emergency services response times Feedback from local residents, schools & businesses

Permits and Exemptions

Motorists with a valid permit (see plan included for permit zone) or those that meet the
exemption criteria, will be able to drive through the partial closures. For further information
on permits and exempt vehicles please visit our website.

Next steps

The council is writing to all residents within the neighbourhood, as well as local businesses,
schools, councillors and other key groups to collect views on the proposal to implement an
ETRO to create the Experimental Scheme. Feedback from this survey will be analysed and
considered as part of the decision to be taken by the council on the ETRO. If approved, the
agreed option will be implemented on Dalmally Road and monitoring will begin. A 6-month
statutory consultation period will follow, where the public will be able to submit written
objections. An approximate timeline and details on how to respond to this survey have been
provided overleaf.

Page 68




Give us your views

May 2020 .
Temporary CHN We are seeking your feedback on our

implemented improved proposals by completing an online
survey that can be accessed at
croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods or by
scanning the QR code with your phone or
tablet.

June 2021
Engagement survey
on improved scheme

August 2021
Survey results
analysed & decision

The survey will be live from Thursday 16
June and close at 23:59 Wednesday 14 July

Consultation & Engagement

Autumn 2021 2021.
Improved scheme
implemented under If you require the survey as a physical copy and/or another
ETRO for 18 months format including braille and larger font size, please contact the
_______ council using the following channels:
6 month statutory 1. By Phone: contact the council on 020 8726 6000.

consultation begins

2. Lines are open between 09:00-16:00 Monday to Friday.
Spring 2022 3. B_y Post: please send all correspondence to:
Consultation & Highway Improvements Team
monitoring results 6th Floor, Zone C,
analysed Bernard Weatherill House,
8 Mint Walk,
_ Summer 2022 CRO 1EA
Final decision made at .
the end of ETRO 4. Email: dalmally.hn@croydon.gov.uk

period.

For further information:
Please visit our Healthy Neighbourhood website for updates and
information on how the CHN will operate and the ETRO process.

www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Page 69



0/ abed

popD) | — W ~ 5 )

Addiscombe & Woodside Healthy Neighbourhood A B
Dalmally Road (Permit Zone DR) é
L,
Ny Except buses Series of supplementary
taxis & permit | pum signs will be installed
holders [3]3} BV@\ warning motorists of the [
Z new restriction - locations
S aﬂj 1 5 are subject to final design
v
CAMERA ENFORCED |
@Cg ACCESS POINT &
@\i@/\®$ \QEN\
.. 4

ZONE ELIGIBLE FOR
EXEMPTION PERMITS

NN

oo
=

Except buses
taxis & permit

holders DI}

T

Except buses
taxis & permit

holders Y3}

PAVEMENT
L

PROPOSED RED CARRIAGEWAY SURFACING

PROPOSED NEW PLANTAR POSITION

-

THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CML PROCEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 2016



AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
PEABODY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
WOODSIDE  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
STROUD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
SHIRLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
GLENTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
CHAUCER    GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
STROUD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
CRAIGEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
KINGSCOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
ELMGROVE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
BROCKENHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
WYDHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
PAGEHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
PARKVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
FERNHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
SHERWOOD 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
ASHBURTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
COMPTON      ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
SEFTON     ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
CRAVEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
STROUD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
WOODSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
HERMITAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
SONNING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
LINDFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
NORTHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
HERMITAGE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
ACKHORSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
TEEVAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
BARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
CLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
TEEVAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
ASHLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
 ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
CAMBORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
ADDISCOMBE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
EVERTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
CONISTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
BINGHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
COLWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
ALDERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
ASCHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
MORLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
HIGHBARROW RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
INGLIS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
SUNDRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
CAPRI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
DALMALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
JESM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
OND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
BREDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
KEMERTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
AMBERLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
BURNHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
CRABTREE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
SUNDRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
ACADEMY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
FISHER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
GRANT PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
NICHOLSON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
GRANT  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
MEADVALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
BRAMPTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
DARTNELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
FULLERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
HASTINGS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
DOMINION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
LAURIER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
TENTERDEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
SISSINGHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
ELMERS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
TENTERDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
SALISBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
EMONT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
TIVERTON 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
INDIA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
GOWLLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
S H I R L E Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
A D D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
WINDEMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
STORRINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
BRAMPTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
BRAMPTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


June 2021

PUBLIC SURVEY

This is your opportunity to give us your views by 14 July 2021
CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood

Delivering TRANSPORT

for Croydon e FOR LONDON

PROPOSALS FOR ELMERS ROAD

In May 2020, the council created the Addiscombe Healthy
Neighbourhood by closing Elmers Road at its junction with
Blackhorse Lane through planters.

The Temporary Scheme was installed in response to guidance
and emergency powers given to local authorities by central
government last year to create more space on local streets to
accommodate safe, sustainable, socially-distanced travel
during the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Temporary Scheme is part of wider set of Croydon Streetspace temporary measures
introduced across the borough, funded by the Department for Transport (DfT) and Transport
for London (TfL).

Aims of Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods (CHN):

A CHN makes local streets more attractive for local people in the following ways:

v’ Streets that are safer, cleaner, and quieter — addressing long-standing concerns
from local residents around congestion and road safety

v Streets that support more sustainable methods of travel like cycling or walking —
addressing concerns around air pollution and the climate crisis

v’ Streets that encourage and enable increased physical activity — addressing concerns
about poor physical health and obesity.

Feedback so far

Feedback has been received from local residents throughout the implementation of the
temporary scheme. That feedback has helped to identify ways in which the Temporary

Scheme could be improved, including calls for the council to improve vehicle access for
residents within the neighbourhood and emergency services.

As a result of this feedback, the council is now considering how best to proceed with the
CHN. It is considering the implementation of an improved scheme under an Experimental
Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO) for a period of 18 months. An ETRO enables the
implementation of a longer term scheme whilst simultaneously learning from and consulting
on its impacts. Further information on ETROs can be found on our website at
www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Prior to any decision on an ETRO, the council is writing to seek your feedback on the proposed
Experimental Scheme. If agreed, the changes will be implemented using external funds
secured through TfL and the DfT as part of their Streetspace, Healthy Streets and Active
Travel programmes. The proposals for those improvements are set out overleaf.

Page 71



Proposed Improvements
v Access: the planters on Elmers Road will be removed and replaced with
& a camera-enforced partial closure with exemptions.
% Benefits of camera enforced restriction replacing the planter closure:
1) Full two — way access for those with permits or exemptions into the
taxis & permit neighbourhood
2) Full two — way access unobstructed for emergency services
SHJ 3) The aims of the healthy neighbourhood are maintained while providing

greater access.
For an illustration of this proposal please see plan included in this leaflet.

Monitoring and tracking the Healthy Neighbourhood
The council will measure the impacts of all Healthy Neighbourhood schemes by capturing
and analysing following data to be sure that the scheme is meeting its goals:

Traffic speeds Air quality modelling (diffusion tubes & portable sensors)
Traffic volumes Levels of walking, cycling & public transport usage
Traffic collisions Feedback from statutory groups

Emergency services response times Feedback from local residents, schools & businesses

Permits and Exemptions

Motorists with a valid permit (see plan included for permit zone) or those that meet the
exemption criteria, will be able to drive through the partial closures. For further information
on permits and exempt vehicles please visit our website.

Next steps

The council is writing to all residents within the neighbourhood, as well as local businesses,
schools, councillors and other key groups to collect views on the proposal to implement an
ETRO to create the Experimental Scheme. Feedback from this survey will be analysed and
considered as part of the decision to be taken by the council on the ETRO. If approved, the
agreed option will be implemented on Elmers Road and monitoring will begin. A 6-month
statutory consultation period will follow, where the public will be able to submit written
objections. An approximate timeline and details on how to respond to this survey have been
provided overleaf.

Page 72




Consultation & Engagement

May 2020
Temporary CHN

implemented

June 2021
Engagement survey
on improved scheme

Give us your views

August 2021
Survey results
analysed & decision

We are seeking your feedback on our
improved proposals by completing an online
survey that can be accessed at
croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods or by
scanning the QR code with your phone or
tablet.

Autumn 2021
Improved scheme
implemented under
ETRO for 18 months

6 month statutory
consultation begins

Spring 2022
Consultation &
monitoring results
analysed

Summer 2022
Final decision made at
the end of ETRO

The survey will be live from Thursday 16
June and close at 23:59 Wednesday 14 July
2021.

If you require the survey as a physical copy and/or another
format including braille and larger font size, please contact the
council using the following channels:

1. By Phone: contact the council on 020 8726 6000.
2. Lines are open between 09:00-16:00 Monday to Friday.
3. By Post: please send all correspondence to:

Highway Improvements Team
6th Floor, Zone C,
Bernard Weatherill House,
8 Mint Walk,
CRO 1EA
4, Email: elmers.hn@croydon.gov.uk

For further information:
Please visit our Healthy Neighbourhood website for updates and
information on how the CHN will operate and the ETRO process.

www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Page 73




) abed

Addiscombe & Woodside Healthy Neighbourhood
Elmers Road (Permit Zone ER)

CAMERA ENFORCED
ACCESS POINT

Series of supplementary signs will
be installed warning motorists of
the new restriction - locations are
subject to final design

ZONE ELIGIBLE FOR EXEMPTION PERMITS

| RED CARRIAGEWAY SURFACING

ANPR Signage )
(Subject to consultation & detailed
design) Camera position to be

~ determined at detailed design stage

\ L | P



AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
BACKLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
LINCOLN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
LONG

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
HURST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
WOODSIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
CLEAVERHOLME

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
WOODSIDE  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
ESTCOURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
RITCHIE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
PAGEHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
STROUD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
WOODSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
NSON'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
DICK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
DICK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
ANTHONY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
HERMITAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
MALCOLM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
SONNING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
COE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
HERMITAGE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
ACKHORSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
WOODSIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
TENTERDEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
ELMERS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
SALISBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
ENSON'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
SPRING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
LANE


June 2021

PUBLIC SURVEY

This is your opportunity to give us your views by 14 July 2021
CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Delivering TRANSPORT

for Croydon e FOR LONDON

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood

In September 2020, the council created the Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood by making
temporary changes to the following streets in the area:

» Derby Road: partial road closure (except cyclists) through placement of planters

» Parsons Mead: allowing for only permit holders to drive motorised vehicles through the
street, enforced through cameras

* Handcroft Road: one-way traffic for motor vehicles, with a cycle lane running the
opposite direction to traffic

* Mead Place: reverse the direction of the one-way working allowing traffic to flow away
from London Road

The Temporary Scheme was installed in response to guidance and emergency powers given
to local authorities by central government last year to create more space on local streets to
accommodate safe, sustainable, socially-distanced travel during the Covid-19 pandemic. The
Temporary Scheme is part of wider set of Croydon Streetspace temporary measures
introduced across the borough, funded by the Department for Transport (DfT) and Transport
for London (TfL).

Aims of Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods (CHN):

The aim of a CHN is to make streets more attractive for people in the following ways:

v’ Streets that are safer, cleaner, and quieter — addressing long-standing concerns from local
residents around congestion and road safety

v’ Streets that support more sustainable methods of travel like cycling or walking — addressing
concerns around air pollution and the climate crisis

v’ Streets that encourage and enable increased physical activity — addressing concerns about
poor physical health and obesity.

Feedback so far

Feedback has been received from local residents throughout the implementation of the

temporary scheme. That feedback has helped to identify ways in which the Temporary

Scheme could be improved, including calls for the council to:

» Improve vehicle access for residents within the neighbourhood, and emergency services;
and

» Increase visibility of signage at the camera-enforced restrictions.

As a result of this feedback, the council is now considering how best to proceed with the
CHN. It is considering the implementation of an improved scheme under an Experimental
Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO) for a period of 18 months. An ETRO enables the
implementation of a longer term scheme whilst simultaneously learning from and consulting
on its impacts. Further information on ETROs can be found on our website at
www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Prior to any decision on an ETRO, the council is writing to seek your feedback on the proposed
Experimental Scheme, which would maintain the existing temporary changes, subject to
improvements. If agreed, the changes will be implemented using external funds secured
through TfL and the DfT as part of their Streetspace, Healthy Streets and Active Travel
programmes. The proposals for those improvements are set out overleaf.

Page 75



Proposed Improvements — Option 1 (camera enforced restriction)

v Access: the planters on Derby Road will be removed and
replaced with a camera-enforced restriction that will include
permit exemptions.

v’ Signage: upgrading existing signs; installing additional signs
where applicable; adding planters, and coloured surface paint to

An impression of the camera highlight the restriction points.
restriction in Derby Road

Benefits of camera enforced restriction replacing the planter closure:
1) Full two —way access for those with permits or exemptions into the neighbourhood
2) Full two — way access unobstructed for emergency services
3) The aims of the healthy neighbourhood is maintained whilst providing greater access.
For an illustration of this proposal please see proposal plan included in this leaflet.

Proposed Improvements — Option 2 (one way traffic)

v Access: the planters on Derby Road will be removed and
replaced with one-way working arrangement, where traffic will be
able to exit left onto London Road only from Derby Road (existing
right turn ban in place).

LONDON RoAD

An impression one way
working in Derby Road

Benefits of one — way working replacing the planter closure:

1) Provides greater access to motorists by allowing traffic to exit the neighbourhood via
Derby Road left only onto London Road (existing right turn ban in place).

2) Provides greater access to emergency services by allowing them to use Derby Road
to access the neighbourhood.

3) Provides an opportunity to restrict through traffic from one direction, retaining some
aims of healthy neighbourhoods.

For an illustration of this proposal please see proposal plan included in this leaflet.

Under either of the two options set out above, all other existing measures on Handcroft Road,
Parsons Mead and Mead Place will remain in place with improvements to signs and road
markings.

Monitoring and tracking the Healthy Neighbourhood
The council will measure the impacts of all Healthy Neighbourhood schemes by capturing
and analysing following data to be sure that the scheme is meeting its goals:

Traffic speeds Air quality modelling (diffusion tubes & portable sensors)
Traffic volumes Levels of walking, cycling & public transport usage
Traffic collisions Feedback from statutory groups

Emergency services response times Feedback from local residents, schools & businesses

Page 76




Permits and Exemptions

Motorists with a valid permit (see plan included for permit zone) or those that meet the
exemption criteria, will be able to drive through the camera enforced restrictions. For further
information on permits and exempt vehicles please visit our website.

Next steps

The council is writing to all residents within the neighbourhood, as well as local businesses,
schools, councillors and other key groups to collect views on the proposal to implement an
ETRO to create the Experimental Scheme. Feedback from this survey will be analysed and
considered as part of the decision to be taken by the council on the ETRO. If approved, the
agreed option will be implemented on Derby Road and monitoring will begin. A 6-month
statutory consultation period will follow, where the public will be able to submit written
objections. An approximate timeline and details on how to respond to this survey have been
provided overleaf.

Give us your views

September 2020
Temporary CHN We are seeking your feedback on our

implemented improved proposals by completing an online
survey that can be accessed at

June 2021

- Enganal Srienrey croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods or by
5 on improved scheme scanning the QR code with your phone or
;F-, tablet.
g August 2021
=l Survey results The survey will be live from Thursday 16
w analysed & decision June and close at 23:59 Wednesday 14 July
°g Autumn 2021 2021.
o Experimental Scheme . .
= implemented under If you require the survey as a physical copy and/or another
= ETRO for 18 months format including braille and larger font size, please contact the
el m————— council using the following channels:
3 cir"';‘:l'l‘tt;iit:'t;’:°irxs 1. By Phone: contact the council on 020 8726 6000.
g 2. Lines are open between 09:00-16:00 Monday to Friday.
Spring 2022 3. B_y Post: please send all correspondence to:
Consultation & Highway Improvements Team
monitoring results 6th Floor, Zone C,
analysed Bernard Weatherill House,
8 Mint Walk,
Fina?:j‘rerz:rirs‘:)rnzrﬂz?je at CRO .1 EA
the end of ETRO 4. Email: broadgreen.hn@croydon.gov.uk

For further information:
Please visit our Healthy Neighbourhood website for updates and
information on how the CHN will operate and the ETRO process.

www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Page 77



g/ abed

/ o0 1O
Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood Parsons

Mead & Derby Road (Permit Zone BG)

> ~
5 AD

=
= s
D

WY O
Handcroft Road - existing one way
northbound with mandatory contraflow
cycle lane under TTRO to remain in place
in its current format but under an ETRO

CAMERA ENFORCE
\ ACCESS POINT <C

Parsons Mead - existing no
motorised vehicle restriction
_| (ANPR) except permit holders
under TTRO to be replaced
with except permit holders and
licensed taxis under ETRO

l

Option 2
As described in leaflet
Proposed no entry
from London Road.

Mead Place - existing south bound
one way working under TTRO to
remain in place in its current
format but under an ETRO

S0

As described in leaflet
~CAMERA ENFORCED
ACCESS POINT D PROPOSED ILLUSTRATIONS OF WHAT THE
. o N SCHEMES @ , Q &GCOULD LOOK LIKE
Series of supplementary signs will Derby Road - existing planters
be installed warning motorists of to be replaced with no O -
the new restriction - locations are motorised vehicle rgstriction ” |
subject to final design (ANPR) except permit holders J ZONE ELIGIBLE FOR EXEMPTION PERMITS
2 and licensed taxis under ETRO.
. oNid N \ - — T — i 11 =



AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
RUSKIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
WEST-

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
TURNER'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
ADDISCOMBE   GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
WELLESLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
WELLESLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
KEELEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
DRAYTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
CORNWALL RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
GEORGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
DINGWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
TAMWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
DRUMMOND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
TAMW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
CUTHBERT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
FRITH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
END

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
SUMNER ROAD SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
DENNETT        ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
BRIGHTWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
LAMBETH RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
CROYDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
LONGLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
BISHOPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
HATTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
ADDINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
PEMDEVON   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
FAIRHOLME  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
GREENSIDE  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
MIDHURST  AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
EASTNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
LEIGHTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
SUMNER GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
GRAFTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
BUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
FACTORY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
PRIORY  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
ONSLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
WENTWORTH   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
CRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
EUSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
KINGSLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
SUTHERLAND   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
RTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
GA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
HO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
SPENCER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
NEVILLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
GLOUCESTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
MILTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
FREEMASONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
SWAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
BLAKE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
LESLIE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
JACKSONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
LAMBERTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
CROSS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
JOHNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
OVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
ORCHARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
CEDAR       ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
COLSON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
ORCHARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
ALPHA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
SYDENHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
CLARENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
GRENABY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
SQ.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
BERNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
STRATHMORE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
CROMWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
JOHNSON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
CHARTWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
TAVISTOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
TORR-

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
GRENABY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
INGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
LANSDOWNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
BEDFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
DING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
TAVISTOCK  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
LANSDOWNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
WALPOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
UNION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
WILLIS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
NEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
CRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
THORNHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
JAMES'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
WINDMILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
STANTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
FARQUH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
ARSON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
WOBURN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
DENHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
TION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
OAKFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
STA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
POPLAR WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
MICHAELS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
BEDFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
HARTLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
LENNARD  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
KIDDERMINSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
NOVA  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
KELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
LONDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
CAVENDISH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
CHATFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
WELLINGTON 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
HATHAWAY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
ELMWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
HOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
AINSWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
NELSON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
RODNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
MONTAGUE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
PARSON'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
DE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
DEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
GAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
VANGUARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
DERBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
PITLAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
RENOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
CLARENDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
BROADGREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
ALBION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
HANDCROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
THEOBALD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
MILTON   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
GLADSTONE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
EDWIN PL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
CT.RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
LESLIE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
SY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
ORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
PA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
TON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
BILLINTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
M I T 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
L O W E R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
W E L L E 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
W H I T H O R S E 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
J A M E S ' S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
S T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
O M A N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
C H A M

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
SUMNER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
CROYDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
CROYDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
PLACE


June 2021

PUBLIC SURVEY

This is your opportunity to give us your views by 14 July 2021
CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Delivering TRANSPORT

for Croydon e FOR LONDON

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood

PROPOSALS FOR SUTHERLAND ROAD

In May 2020, the council created the Broad Green Healthy
Neighbourhood by closing Sutherland Road at its junction
with Canterbury Road through planters.

The Temporary Scheme was installed in response to
guidance and emergency powers given to local authorities
by central government last year to create more space on
local streets to accommodate safe, sustainable, socially-
distanced travel during the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Temporary Scheme is part of a wider set of Croydon
Streetspace temporary measures introduced across the
borough, funded by the Department for Transport (DfT) and
Transport for London (TfL).

Aims of Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods (CHN):

A CHN makes local streets more attractive for local people in the following ways:

v’ Streets that are safer, cleaner, and quieter —addressing long-standing concerns from local
residents around congestion and road safety

v Streets that support more sustainable methods of travel like cycling or walking — addressing
concerns around air pollution and the climate crisis

v’ Streets that encourage and enable increased physical activity — addressing concerns about
poor physical health and obesity.

Feedback so far

Feedback has been received from local residents throughout the implementation of the
Temporary Scheme. That feedback has helped to identify ways in which feedback the
Temporary Scheme could be improved, including calls for the council to improve vehicle
access for residents within the neighbourhood and emergency services.

As a result of this feedback, the council is now considering how best to proceed with the
CHN. It is considering the implementation of an improved scheme under an Experimental
Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO) for a period of 18 months. An ETRO enables the
implementation of a longer term scheme whilst simultaneously learning from and consulting
on its impacts. Further information on ETRO’s can be found on our website at
www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Prior to any decision on an ETRO, the council is writing to seek your feedback on the
proposed improved Experimental Scheme. If agreed, the changes will be implemented using
external funds secured through TfL and the DfT as part of their Streetspace, Healthy Streets
and Active Travel programmes. The proposals for those improvements are set out overleaf.

Page 79



Proposed Improvements

v' Access: the planters on Sutherland Road will be removed and
@% replaced with a camera-enforced restriction with permit exemptions.
% Benefits of camera enforced restriction replacing the planter

closure:

oot buses | | 1) Full two-way access for those with permits or exemptions into the

holders 3 neighbourhood

2) Full two-way access unobstructed for emergency services

8'-" 3) The aims of the healthy neighbourhood are maintained whilst providing
greater access.

For an illustration of this proposal please see plan included in this leaflet.

Monitoring and tracking the Healthy Neighbourhood
The council will measure the impacts of all Healthy Neighbourhood schemes by capturing
and analysing following data to be sure that the scheme is meeting its goals:

Traffic speeds Air quality modelling (diffusion tubes & portable sensors)
Traffic volumes Levels of walking, cycling & public transport usage
Traffic collisions Feedback from statutory groups

Emergency services response times Feedback from local residents, schools & businesses

Permits and Exemptions

Motorists with a valid permit (see plan included for permit zone) or those that meet the
exemption criteria, will be able to drive through the camera enforced restriction. For further
information on permits and exempt vehicles please visit our website.

Next steps

The council is writing to all residents within the neighbourhood, as well as local businesses,
schools, councillors and other key groups to collect views on our proposal to implement an
ETRO to create the Experimental Scheme. Feedback from this survey will be analysed and
considered as part of the decision to be taken by the council on the ETRO. If approved, the
scheme will be implemented and monitoring will begin. A 6 month statutory consultation period
will follow, where the public will be able to submit written objections. An approximate timeline
and details on how to respond to the survey have been provided on the next page.

Page 80




Give us your views

May 2020
Temporary CHN

implemented Complete our online survey by visiting
our website:
croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods
or scan the QR code with your phone or
tablet.

June 2021
Engagement survey
on improved scheme

III
August 2021 - ---- ALy
Survey results . '“ .! .! J!.I_"
analysed & decision The survey will be live from Thursday 16
June and close at 23:59 Wednesday 14 July g
Autumn 2021 2021 .

Improved scheme
implemented under
ETRO for 18 months

If you require the survey as a physical copy and/or another
format including braille and larger font size, please contact the

Consultation & Engagement

6 month statutory council using the following channels:
consultation begins 1. By Phone: contact the council on 020 8726 6000.
2. Lines are open between 09:00-16:00 Monday to Friday.
Spring 2022 3. By Post: please send all correspondence to:
Consultation & Highway Improvements Team
monitoring results 6th Floor, Zone C,
analysed .
Bernard Weatherill House,
Summer 2022 8 Mint Walk,
Final decision made at CRO 1EA
the end QdeTRO 4. Email: sutherland.hn@croydon.gov.uk
period.

For further information:
Please visit our Healthy Neighbourhood website for updates and
information on how the CHN will operate and the ETRO process.

www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Page 81



28 abed

NS 9 N o 2O L v
Q% - [ Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood ) %O@ﬁ@
0 LS - Sutherland Road (Permit Zone SR) I QO UNYANRS
. N W @
/ Y /O . e %,
S =J ° 0P 5

Except )
taxis & permit CAMERA ENFORCED
ACCESS POINT

PROPOSED ILLUSTRATION OF WHAT THE ANPR
SCHEME COULD LOOK LIKE
ZONE ELIGIBLE FOR EXEMPTION PERMITS £
RED CARRIAGEWAY SURFACING
. == P—
2 e
O S N
% Q P e o ob
O s & Q
A s
W =3 A
< %
< m$% &

INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO OR CML LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON. LICENCE NO. 100017680. 2018 |\



AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
MAYDAY  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
CAMPBELL  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
DENNETT        ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
LAMBETH RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
CROSSLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
FIVEACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
LONGLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
BISHOPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
ADDINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
PEMDEVON   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
FAIRHOLME  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
GREENSIDE  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
MIDHURST  AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
OAKWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
OAKWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
SOUTHWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
LYNTON  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
STANLEY GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
FURTHERFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
STANLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
PRIORY  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
TERBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
ONSLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
WENTWORTH   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
SUTHERLAND   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
YORK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
KEMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
ENGLE-

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
FIELD CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
TON CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
WINDMILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
FARQUH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
SINGLE-

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
SAVIOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
FRANCIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
CAMERON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
HARTLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
LODGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
KIDDERMINSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
NOVA  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
KELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
BENSHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
LONDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
CAVENDISH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
HATHAWAY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
ELMWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
CONSTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
BROADGREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
HANDCROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
GREENWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
DG

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
M I T 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
J A M E S ' S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
S T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
C H A M

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
SUMNER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


July 2021

PUBLIC SURVEY

This is your opportunity to give us your views by 24 August 2021

CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Delivering TRANSPORT
for Croydon FOR LONDON

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhood

PROPOSALS FOR HOLMESDALE ROAD AREA

In May 2020, the council created
the South Norwood — Holmesdale
Road Healthy Neighbourhood by
physically closing Holmesdale
Road by using planters at three
points along the street. Two of the
closures were to either side of its
junction with Park Road whilst the
third was at its junction with Oliver
Grove.

The temporary scheme was
installed in response to guidance and emergency powers given to local authorities by central
government to create more space on local streets to accommodate safe, sustainable, socially-
distanced travel during the Covid-19 pandemic.

The temporary scheme is part of a wider set of Croydon Streetspace measures introduced
across the borough, funded by the Department for Transport (DfT) and Transport for London
(TfL).

Aims of Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods (CHN):

A CHN makes local streets more attractive for local people in the following ways:

v’ Streets that are safer, cleaner, and quieter — addressing long-standing concerns from local
residents around congestion and road safety

v’ Streets that support more sustainable methods of travel like cycling or walking — addressing
concerns around air pollution and the climate crisis

v’ Streets that encourage and enable increased physical activity — addressing concerns about
poor physical health and obesity.

Feedback so far

Feedback has been received from local residents throughout the implementation of the
temporary scheme. That feedback has helped to identify ways in which the temporary scheme
could be improved, including calls for the council to improve vehicle access for residents
within the neighbourhood and emergency services.

As a result of this feedback, the council is now considering how best to proceed with the CHN.
It is considering the implementation of an improved scheme under an Experimental Traffic
Regulation Order (ETRO) for a period of 18 months. An ETRO enables the implementation of
a longer term scheme whilst simultaneously learning from and consulting on its impacts.
Further information on ETRO’s can be found on our website at
www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Page 83



Prior to any decision on an ETRO, the council is writing to seek your feedback on the
proposed improved Experimental Scheme. If agreed, the changes will be implemented using
external funds secured through TfL and the DfT as part of their Streetspace, Healthy Streets
and Active Travel programmes. The proposals for those improvements are set out overleaf.

Proposed Improvements

v' Access:
@% 1) The planters/physical islands on Holmesdale Road at two locations will
% be removed and replaced with a camera-enforced restriction with permit
exemptions.
Except buses | | 2) The planters/physical islands at the third location (outside Selhurst Park)

t::'l::r:’ will remain largely unchanged but there will be an addition of foldable
- lockable bollard to cater for emergency service vehicle access.
||J 3) A new restriction will be introduced on ElIm Park Road at its junction with

South Norwood Hill. This (as with the other restrictions described
above) will also be enforced through the use of a camera with an
exemption for those with permits or exemptions.

Benefits of camera-enforced restriction replacing the planter closures:

1) Full two-way access for those with permits or exemptions into the neighbourhood

2) Full two-way access, unobstructed for emergency services

3) The aims of the healthy neighbourhood are maintained whilst providing greater access

(For an illustration of this proposal please see plan included in this leaflet)
Monitoring and tracking the Healthy Neighbourhood

The council will measure the impacts of all Healthy Neighbourhood schemes by capturing and
analysing following data to be sure that the scheme is meeting its goals:

Traffic speeds Air quality modelling (diffusion tubes & portable sensors)
Traffic volumes Levels of walking, cycling & public transport usage
Traffic collisions Feedback from statutory groups

Emergency services response times Feedback from local residents, schools & businesses

Permits and Exemptions

Motorists with a valid permit (see plan included for permit zone) or those that meet the
exemption criteria, will be able to drive through the camera enforced restriction. For further
information on permits and exempt vehicles please visit our website at
Croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Next steps

The council is writing to all residents within the neighbourhood, as well as local businesses,
schools, councillors and other key groups to collect views on our proposal to implement an
ETRO to create an experimental scheme. Feedback from this survey will be analysed and
considered as part of the decision to be taken by the council on the ETRO. If approved, the
scheme will be implemented and monitoring will begin. A 6 month statutory consultation period
will follow, where the public will be able to submit written objections. An approximate timeline
and details on how to respond to the survey have been provided on the next page.

Page 84




Consultation & Engagement

May 2020
Temporary CHN

implemented

July 2021
Engagement survey
on improved scheme

September 2021
Survey results
analysed & decision

Give us your views

Complete our online survey by visiting
our website:
croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods
or scan the QR code with your phone or
tablet.

Late Autumn 2021
Improved scheme
implemented under
ETRO for 18 months
6 month statutory
consultation begins

Spring 2022
Consultation &
monitoring results
analysed

Summer 2022
Final decision made at
the end of ETRO

period.

I (11T

II IIII I.I

Il II ll II.I III

I me II
PRiva

Vacy, rwwconE

The survey will be live from Wednesday 28
July and close at 23:59 on Tuesday 24
August 2021.

If you require the survey as a physical copy and/or another
format including braille and larger font size, please contact the
council using the following channels:

1. By Phone: contact the council on 020 8726 6000.
2. Lines are open between 09:00-16:00 Monday to Friday.
3. By Post: please send all correspondence to:

Highway Improvements Team
6th Floor, Zone C,
Bernard Weatherill House,
8 Mint Walk,
CRO 1EA
4. Email: holmesdale.hn@croydon.gov.uk

For further information:

Please visit our Healthy Neighbourhood website for updates and
information on: ETRO process, how the trial scheme will be monitored,
scheme-specific benefits, permits and exemptions.

www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Page 85




NMOND (G3SIYOHLNVYNN "LHONAJOD NMOYOD © 30140

SWALSIVN ¥3H JO MITIONINGD 3HL JO JIVHIE NO AININS

40 NOISSINY3d JHL HUM TVRIIVW AIANNS NOY¥3 a30Nac En—iﬂx._._

_e—nﬂ 08910001 "ON 3ON30M "NOGAOND 40 HONOWNOE NOANOT

o~ \ T A

1NIOd SS3O0V d30404N3
Vd3INVI d3S0d0dd

.

LLINAR
€I s:orr0y
dgoMd0o a_E!...._.S
sesnq ydeoxa

d3INOW3Y 39 Ol LNIOd
SIHL 1V 34NS0O10

4 & T
S3ATOIHAA
JOING3S ADNIDHINT
d04 ¥31VvO OL adv11049
J19vMO0T1 3719vA104 3ANTONI
Ol d3ldiIdoOn LNg 30V1d NI
NIVINTH O1 3HNSO1D TVIISAHd

punolsg) ||eqjoo4
sMed 1siny|es

o
Ny Q3IAOW3Y 39 OL INIOd| ©
< SIHL 1V 34nso10| 0
N TVOISAHd ONILSIX3 | | ©
S
INIOd SS300V A30H0ANT @®©
VH3INYO d3S0dodd o o
33 S
I A
SLINY3d NOILdN3X3
m_u.___u.-on.us._“._s | "ao04 @913 anoz
sesnq jdeoxg
o Jubisap jeuly 0y Joalgns ase
SuOIl}ed0| - uoljollsal mau Nv @ VONV
N 9y} JO sisliojow @C_C._N\S ©
N pajeisul aq |im subis Q.u JNled
Aejuawalddns jo sauag = COO>>®@C®._mu
3/ /5
= — z
@)
P (YH du07Z liwiad) ealy peoy s|epsaw|oH —
QA
<
. pooyinoqybiaN AyjyesH poomioN yinos P
// // \ W\ o \xm < N\ . Q oY O¢/W o



AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
PEACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
PRIORY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
DAGMAR RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
CROFTSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
OLIVER GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
CAMBRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
LINCOLN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
CAMILLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
BEVILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
ADAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
ARCHER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
ELDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
CROMER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
SELBY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
WARMINSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
PITVILLE GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
WARMINSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
REGINA 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
SUNNY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
BRADSHAWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
KING'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
ALBERT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
MARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
ADDISON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
JOHN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
COVENTRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
ADDISON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
FARLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
FFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
DOYLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
NOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
SUNNYCROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
WARMINSTER      

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
LANCASTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
WOODVALE      AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
NORTHYRST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
SUNDIAL  AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
COURT   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
 ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
CHALFONT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
BELGRAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
GROSVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
SUFFOLK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
STATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
SOUTHERN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
BROSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
HAMBLEDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
   CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
HOLMESDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
LAWR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
ENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
ST DUNSTAN'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
CUMBERLOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
ALBION PL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
HOWDEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
NUGENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
ARDENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
CUTHBERT GDNS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
CRANLEIGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
OLIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
ELM PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
DIXON  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
HOLMESDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
UPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
HOLMEWOOD RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
SANGLEY  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
CLARET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
ON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
HUNTLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
WHITWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
ROSS    ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
CANHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
WHARNCLIFFE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
PARRY       ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
EDGERTON RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
ROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
CLIFTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
LADBROOK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
MICHAEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
WRIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
ST MARYS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
FALKLAND PARK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
BURGOYNE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
SUNNY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
CRESSWELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
INGATESTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
APSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
NAPIER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
BRIERLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
ALFRED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
HOLLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
SHINNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
STANG

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
CL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
WERNDEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
CROWTHER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
CLIFFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
BIRCHANGER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
CROWTHER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
BALFOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
CARGREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
CARMICHAEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
TENNISON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
DALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
WYNTON 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
ALVERSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
WALTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
DINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
CHARNWOOD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
FARN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
WATERFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
ROTHESAY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
HOLMESDALE       ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
PEMBROKE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
WOODERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
BUNGALOW  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
CLI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
HARRINGTON     

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
PEMBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
THIRSK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
TALBOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
WHARNCLIFFE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
ARMISTICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
MERC-

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
HANTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
LAWS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
LES

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
TOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
TIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
LEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
BROX-

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
HOLME

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
P O R T L A N D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
HIGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
H I L L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
L A N E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
O R S E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
S E L H U 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
R O A 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
PENGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
GOAT HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
MANOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
NORWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
JUNCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


July 2021

PUBLIC SURVEY

This is your opportunity to give us your views by 24 August 2021
CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Delivering TRANSPORT

for Croujdon 'e' FOR LONDON
Woodside Ward South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhood

PROPOSALS FOR ALBERT ROAD AREA

In May 2020, the council created the Healthy
Neighbourhood by introducing road closures at two
locations — Eldon Park junction with Albert Road &
Harrington Road junction with Albert Road. To
complete the healthy neighbourhood, a further two
closures were introduced in October 2020 on Belfast
Road and Apsley Road.

The temporary scheme was installed in response to
guidance and emergency powers given to local
authorities by central government last year to create
more space on local streets to accommodate safe,
sustainable, socially-distanced travel during the

Covid-19 pandemic.

The temporary scheme is part of a wider set of Croydon Streetspace measures introduced
across the borough, and funded by the Department for Transport (DfT) and Transport for
London (TfL).

Aims of Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods (CHN):

A CHN makes local streets more attractive for local people in the following ways:

v’ Streets that are safer, cleaner, and quieter — addressing long-standing concerns from local
residents around congestion and road safety

v’ Streets that support more sustainable methods of travel like cycling or walking — addressing
concerns around air pollution and the climate crisis

v’ Streets that encourage and enable increased physical activity — addressing concerns about
poor physical health and obesity.

Feedback so far

Feedback has been received from local residents throughout the implementation of the
temporary scheme. That feedback has helped to identify ways in which the temporary
scheme could be improved, including calls for the council to expand vehicle access for
residents within the neighbourhood and emergency services.

As a result of this feedback, the council is now considering how best to proceed with the
CHN. It is considering the implementation of an improved scheme under an Experimental
Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO) for a period of 18 months. An ETRO enables the
implementation of a longer term scheme whilst simultaneously learning from and consulting
on its impacts. Further information on ETROs can be found on our website at
www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Prior to any decision on an ETRO, the council is writing to seek your feedback on the proposed
experimental scheme. If agreed, the changes will be implemented using external funds
secured through TfL and the DfT as part of their Streetspace, Healthy Streets and Active Travel
programmes. The proposals for those improvements are set out overleaf.

Page 87



Proposed Improvements

R v' Access:
ﬁ 1) The planters/physical islands on Albert Road at the two locations will be

removed and replaced with a camera-enforced restriction with permit
tﬁ";'::l;t bum exemptions

how" 2) The planters on Apsley and Belfast Roads will replaced with bollards.
The middle bollard will be a lockable foldable type to allow emergency

a_lp vehicles access. (See illustration provided for details).

Benefits of camera enforced restriction replacing the closure:

1) Full two — way vehicle access for those with permits or exemptions into the neighbourhood
2) Full two — way access unobstructed for emergency services

3) The aims of the healthy neighbourhood are maintained

For an illustration of this proposal please see plan included in this leaflet.
Monitoring and tracking the Healthy Neighbourhood

The council will measure the impacts of all Healthy Neighbourhood schemes by capturing
and analysing following data to be sure that the scheme is meeting its goals:

Traffic speeds Air quality modelling (diffusion tubes & portable sensors)
Traffic volumes Levels of walking, cycling & public transport usage
Traffic collisions Feedback from statutory groups

Emergency services response times Feedback from local residents, schools & businesses

Permits and Exemptions

Motorists with a valid permit (see plan included for permit zone) or those that meet the
exemption criteria, will be able to drive through the partial closures. For further information on
permits and exempt vehicles please visit our website at
croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Next steps

The council is writing to all residents within the neighbourhood, as well as local businesses,
schools, councillors and other key groups to collect views on the proposal to implement an
ETRO to create the experimental scheme. Feedback from this survey will be analysed and
considered as part of the decision to be taken by the council on the ETRO. If approved, the
agreed option will be implemented and monitoring will begin. A 6-month statutory consultation
period will follow, where the public will be able to submit written objections. An approximate
timeline and details on how to respond to this survey have been provided overleaf.

Page 88




Give us your views

May 2020 .
Temporary CHN We are seeking your feedback on our

implemented improved proposals by completing an online
survey that can be accessed at
croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods or by
scanning the QR code with your phone or
tablet.

July 2021
Engagement survey
on improved scheme

September 2021
Survey results

analysed & decision The survey will be live from Wednesday 28

July and close at 23:59 on Tuesday 24

Autumn 2021 August 2021.
Improved scheme . .
implemented under If you require the survey as a physical copy and/or another
ETRO for 18 months format including braille and larger font size, please contact the

council using the following channels:

6 month statutory 1. By Phone: contact the council on 020 8726 6000.
consultation begins

Consultation & Engagement

2. Lines are open between 09:00-16:00 Monday to Friday.
Spring 2022 3. B_y Post: please send all correspondence to:
Consultation & Highway Improvements Team
monitoring results 6th Floor, Zone C,
analysed Bernard Weatherill House,
8 Mint Walk,
_ Summer 2022 CRO 1EA
Final decision made at .
the end of ETRO 4. Email: albert.nn@croydon.gov.uk

period.

For further information:

Please visit our Healthy Neighbourhood website for updates and
information on: ETRO process, how the trial scheme will be monitored,
scheme-specific benefits, permits and exemptions.

www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Page 89



¢A < /&Of//[ {
not z uBisep awayos
S1INY3d NOILdW3aX3 J04 3149191173 ANOZ 3 D 4 3 ; ,U 4
<0 277 o 5 |eul} 0} 108lgns ‘paalbe aq
w&ioo &Y o} subis Buiuiem pesueapy

oY o

311 %001 a1n0o(@) @) ) D sanaros s _a\Z v
&40 © \o o ¢
3HL LVYHM 40 SNOILYH1SN T d3S0dO¥d B \D o €3 s:epioy
74
>
Sy

nwiad ydeox3g

ssa00e Aouabiawa 1oy

9|gexd0] UMOp p|o} 8q 0} $s920e Aouabiawa 1oy Q d
pJe|joq B|ppIN "saull mojjak 9]qe)00| UMOP p|o} 8q 0} O&
9|qnop pue spJejjoq ym pJe|joq 8|ppIN “Saull Mmo||aA @\

ainso|o julod pasodoid 2|qnop pue Spiejog Yim

2.nso|o juiod pasodoid /Q i

‘Oy13 J8pun

SIXe)} pasuad|| pue
sJapjoy jwuad jdaoxa
(4dNV) uonolsal
9[0IYdA pasliolow

ou yum paoejdal aq
0} sainso|d [evisAyd
Bupsixe - peoy Heqy

1NIOd SS300V
d30404N3 VHINWVO

(YV 8uoz nwiad)
pooysnoqubieN AuiesH peoy uUeqly

Page 90


AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
FORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
MIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
GDNS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
GREENMEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
GRV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
BROOKLYN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
LONSDALE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
LOVE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
LOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
CROFTSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
BROOKLYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
ALBERT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
BROOKLYN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
WAVERLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
MALDEN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
LINCOLN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
CAMILLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
BEVILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
ADAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
ARCHER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
ELDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
CHARTHAM  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
HAMBROOK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
CROMER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
WARMINSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
REGINA 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
SUNNY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
BRADSHAWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
KING'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
ALBERT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
MARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
ADDISON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
JOHN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
COVENTRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
ADDISON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
FARLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
DOYLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
SUNNYCROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
SUNNY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
CRESSWELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
NOTSON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
BELFAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
AYLETT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
SANDOWN   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
INGATESTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
APSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
NAPIER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
BRIERLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
DENMARK       ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
SEYMOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
WATCOMBE    ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
BROCKLESBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
ALFRED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
HOLLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
SHINNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
STANG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
CL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
WERNDEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
CROWTHER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
CROWTHER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
CLIFFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
BIRCHANGER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
GRESHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
CROWTHER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
BALFOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
ELBOROUGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
ENMORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
HARRINGTON     

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
WESTGATE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
PEMBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
ARMISTICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
MERC-

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
HANTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
LES

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
TOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
TIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
LEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
P O R T L A N D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
R O A 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
PENGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
GOAT HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
MANOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
NORWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
JUNCTION


June 2021

PUBLIC SURVEY

This is your opportunity to give us your views by 14 July 2021
CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood

Delivering TRANSPORT

for Croydon e FOR LONDON

PROPOSALS FOR KEMERTON ROAD

In May 2020, the council created the Addiscombe Healthy
Neighbourhood by closing Kemerton Road at its junction with
Jesmond Road through planters.

The Temporary Scheme was installed in response to guidance and
emergency powers given to local authorities by central government
last year to create more space on local streets to accommodate safe,
sustainable, socially-distanced travel during the Covid-19 pandemic.
The Temporary Scheme is part of wider set of Croydon Streetspace
temporary measures introduced across the borough, funded by the Department for Transport
(DfT) and Transport for London (TfL).

Aims of Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods (CHN):

A CHN makes local streets more attractive for local people in the following ways:

v’ Streets that are safer, cleaner, and quieter —addressing long-standing concerns from local
residents around congestion and road safety

v Streets that support more sustainable methods of travel like cycling or walking — addressing
concerns around air pollution and the climate crisis

v’ Streets that encourage and enable increased physical activity — addressing concerns about
poor physical health and obesity.

Feedback so far

Feedback has been received from local residents throughout the implementation of the
temporary scheme. That feedback has helped to identify ways in which the Temporary
Scheme could be improved, including calls for the council to retain the road closure, but
provide improved access for emergency service vehicles.

As a result of this feedback, the council is now considering how best to proceed with the CHN.
It is considering the implementation of the road closure permanently. Prior to any decision on
the permanent scheme, the council is writing to seek your feedback on the proposed scheme,
which would maintain the existing closure, subject to improvements. If agreed, the changes
will be implemented using external funds secured through TfL and the DfT as part of their
Streetspace, Healthy Streets and Active Travel programmes. The proposals for those
improvements are set out below and shown on the plan included with this leaflet.

Proposed Improvements

v Improved infrastructure: the council is proposing to
replace the planters with reflective bollards that require
none to very minimal long-term maintenance.

v Emergency Access: the council is proposing to install a
! fold-down lockable central bollard that provides improved

| emergency service access.

An impression of the improved
scheme in Kemerton Road

Page 91



Monitoring and tracking the Healthy Neighbourhood
The council will measure the impacts of all Healthy Neighbourhood schemes by capturing
and analysing following data to be sure that the scheme is meeting its goals:

Traffic speeds Air quality modelling (diffusion tubes & portable sensors)
Traffic volumes Levels of walking, cycling & public transport usage
Traffic collisions Feedback from statutory groups

Emergency services response times Feedback from local residents, schools & businesses

Next steps

The council is writing to all residents within the neighbourhood, as well as local businesses,
schools, councillors and other key groups to collect views on the proposal to implement an
improved permanent road closure except for emergency access and cyclists. Feedback from
this survey will be analysed and considered as part of the decision to be taken by the council
on the scheme.

May 2020 Give us your views
Temporary CHN

implemented i isiti - . nl
Complete_ ogr online survey by visiting I_ L |' 'I 'I | I_
our website: ¥
June 2021 croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods a I s -| il
Consultation on y 9 y g '- ' ull :;: i !.“_ !II' -.I i
improved scheme or scan the QR code with your phone ||| i e '||I| |'
or tablet. e |: -I--'-'I || i 'I .| ! |-||.. Il
| ] L1l I.

August 2021
Survey results
analysed & decision

vacy, FLowconf. "‘

The survey will be live from Thursday 16

Autumn 2021 June and close at 23:59 Wednesday 14 July
Improved scheme 2021.
implemented
permanently If you require the survey as a physical copy and/or another

format including braille and larger font size, please contact the
council using the following channels:

1. By Phone: contact the council on 020 8726 6000.
2. Lines are open between 09:00-16:00 Monday to Friday.
3. By Post: please send all correspondence to:

Highway Improvements Team
6th Floor, Zone C,
Bernard Weatherill House,
8 Mint Walk,
CRO 1EA
4. Email: kemerton.hn@croydon.gov.uk

For further information:
Please visit our Healthy Neighbourhood website for further information
and updates.

www.croydon.gov.uk/healthyneighbourhoods

Page 92



6 abed

N

Addiscombe & Woodside Healthy Neighbourhood
Kemerton Road

CONSULTATION AREA

N

7\/{

5 L

Existing temporary road closure (except
cyclist) to be replaced with a permanent road
closure (except cyclist & emergency access)

JESMOND ROAD

Proposed fold down lockable

bollard for emergence access

) i
\ ol
0 NN _
AR\ &
<(\ ((\ PROPOSED ILLUSTRATION OF WHAT THE —
//\ PERMANENT CLOSURE SCHEME COULD LOOK LIKE
mwsmmmﬂmmmmzmNwomwuslmoumwmzmwmwmﬂmmm&qn:umm.um |mmmrn;§mm DHWL\ L)mummwmmﬂ.ueﬂnzm.tmnmmu



AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
TEEVAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
CAMBORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
ADDISCOMBE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
CONISTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
ALDERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
ASCHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
MORLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
HIGHBARROW RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
SUNDRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
DALMALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
JESM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
OND

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
BREDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
KEMERTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
AMBERLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
BURNHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
MEADVALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
DARTNELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
FULLERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
DOMINION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
LAURIER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
TIVERTON 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
GOWLLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016  Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6: Appendix to the 26 July 2021 Cabinet Report Showing the Location /
Context of the Potential Active Travel Programme / Location of Proposals

Koy

] cocteroutes o cute roats an i s

E Segregated Cycle e

[ st wesicurhocd

[@7] modsirmer

[#7] crctecontration

] s rocny

E Regonal Datritor Road (TURN and SRN)
Borough Drstnbor Rload
Nesghtrourhood Destrbutor Road

[] unctassted moads

R Healthy Neighbourhoods Bus Schamaes: Corridors, Walking and Cycling Schemes:
1. Broad Green 1 1. Road 1 Mitcham
2. Broad Green 2 2. South Norwood Hil 2 AmpereWay
3. Selhurst 1 3, Brgstock Road 3 TramPaths
4. Sethurst 2 4. Puriey Way 4 Mitcham Road / Old Town
S 5. Crystal Palace 1 5, Trafaigar Way 5. OldTown /High Street
6. South Norwood 1 6. Purey Cross 6 Fairfeld
7. South Norwood 2 7. CaneHill 7. Dingwall Road
8. South Norwood 3 8.  Sandersiead 8 Brighton Road
9. Addiscombe 1 9. Wickham Road 9. LondonRoad
10. Addiscombe 2 10.  Brighton Road 10 Northcote Road
11, Addiscombe 3 11, Central Croydon 1. Blackhorse Lane
12. East Croydon 12 South Norwood hill
School Streets 13, West 13 Goat House Bridge
the 14.  Whitshorse and Wellesely Rd 14.  Coombe Road
15. Davidson Road 15.  Addiscombe

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 7: Additional Duties and Considerations When Taking a Decision to
Implement an Experimental Healthy Neighbourhood or to Remove One / an LTN

Section 121B of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984

Section 121B of the Road Traffic Regulation Act states that no London borough council
shall exercise any power under the Act in a way which will affect, or be likely to affect
a:

* GLA (TfL) road,
« Strategic Road or
* road in another London borough,

unless the council has given notice of the proposal to exercise the power to TfL; and
in a case where the road concerned is in another London borough, to the council for
that borough and the proposal has been approved. The London Road A235 and the
Roman Way/Mitcham Road A236 are both Strategic Roads. TfL has been engaged
with informally and formally via its Road Space Review Panel regarding the Parsons
Mead area Temporary LTN and recommended Experimental CHN. The other
recommended Experimental CHNs are not predicted to affect traffic on the GLA/TfL
Road Network, the Strategic Road Network, or roads in another borough. TflL'’s
principal interest is the London Road and the bus routes running along it. Bus journey
time and reliability will be key parts of the monitoring strategies. TfL is supportive of
the experiment and has provided the funding with which to implement it.

The Traffic Management Duty, Section 16 of the Traffic Management Act 2004
Section 16 of the Traffic Management Act 2004 imposes ‘The Network Management
Duty’, namely it is the duty of a local traffic authority to manage their road network with
a view to achieving, so far as may be reasonably practicable having regard to their
other obligations, policies and objectives, the following objectives:

(a) securing the expeditious movement of traffic on the authority's road network;
and

(b) facilitating the expeditious movement of traffic on road networks for which
another authority is the traffic authority.

The action which the authority may take in performing that duty includes, in particular,
any action which they consider will contribute to securing:

(a) the more efficient use of their road network; or
(b) the avoidance, elimination or reduction of road congestion or other disruption

to the movement of traffic on their road network or a road network for which
another authority is the traffic authority.

Page 97



Section 31 of the Act defines ‘traffic’ as including pedestrians. The Traffic
Management Act 2004, Network Management Duty Guidance?' explains that the
Network Management Duty requires the local traffic authority to consider the
movement of all road users, pedestrians and cyclists, as well as motorised vehicles.
It also explains that the overall aim of the “expeditious movement of traffic” implies a
network that is working efficiently without unnecessary delay to those travelling on it.
But the duty is also qualified in terms of practicability and other responsibilities of the
authority. This means that the Duty is placed alongside all the other things that an
authority has to consider, and it does not take precedence.

It is the junctions that generally dictate the capacity of the network. The junctions only
operate efficiently (and hence the network efficiently) when they are not saturated.
One of the main reasons the Mayor and Croydon Council have set a road traffic
reduction target (see LIP indicators and targets further below within this Appendix) is
with the aim of ensuring that those with an essential need to use a private car or other
motor vehicle can do so on a network that is operating more efficiently. Cycling and
walking are amongst the most space efficient means of moving through the street
network.

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 and National Health Service Act 2006

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 sets a duty for the improvement of public health
by amending the National Health Service Act 2006 so as to require each local authority
to take such steps as it considers appropriate for improving the health of the people in
its area.

The Education Act 1996

The Education Act 1996 (as amended) places various duties on local authorities
including the promotion of sustainable travel and transport modes for the journey to,
from, and between schools and other institutions, explaining that “Sustainable modes
of travel” are modes of travel which the authority consider may improve either or both
of the following:

(a) the physical well-being of those who use them;
(b) the environmental well-being of the whole or a part of their area.

The ‘Home to School Travel and Transport Guidance: Statutory guidance for local
authorities’ explains that the sustainable school travel duty should have a broad
impact, including providing health benefits for children, and their families, through
active journeys, such as walking and cycling. It can also bring significant
environmental improvements, through reduced levels of congestion and improvements
in air quality to which children are particularly vulnerable.

21

https://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/ukgwa/+/http:/www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/roads/tpm/tmaportal/tmaf
eatures/tmapart2/tmafeaturespart2.pdf

Page 98



The Crime and Disorder Act 1998

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a duty on the local authority to consider crime
and disorder implications of exercising its various functions. It is the duty of each
authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of those functions, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent
crime and disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour adversely
affecting the local environment).

The Equality Act 2010

The Equality Act 2010 places a duty on local authorities to comply with the provisions
set out in the Act. The two provisions are:

» The duty under section 1 of the Equality Act 2010, to have due regard to the
desirability of exercising the Council’s functions in a way that is designed to
reduce the inequalities of outcome which result from socio-economic
disadvantage;

» The public sector equality duty in s 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires the
Council to have due regard to the need to:

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

The Human Rights Act 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 states that it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a
way which is incompatible with a right or freedom under the European Convention on
Human Rights. Hence regard should be had to the provisions of the Human Rights
Act. In particular, the provisions of Article 1, of the First Protocol protection of property
and Article 8, right to respect for private and family life. In relation to Article 1 some
residents have been unable to use the most direct access route when driving to their
home, following the implementation of the measures creating the Temporary LTNs.
However, alternative access for motor vehicles has been maintained. Access for those
choosing to walk or cycle or has been aided by the temporary restrictions and direct
motor vehicle access would be returned to residents with cars living within the
proposed Experimental CHNs. The proposed CHNs are part of a wider network /
programme agreed by Cabinet on 26 July, intended to further assist waking and cycling
to directly access places or to access public transport. Further, the right under Article
1 is qualified rather than absolute as it permits the deprivation of an individual’s
possessions or rights where it is in the wider public interest. The public interest
benefits of the temporary schemes and recommended experimental schemes and
permanent scheme are outlined within the report. A move to the recommended

Page 99



experimental schemes would see ease of access to their homes by car return to the
pre-temporary scheme level for most residents.

In relation to Article 8, the right to respect for private and family life has a broad
interpretation and extends to being in a public place if there is a reasonable expectation
of privacy there. This right can be interfered with where lawful, e.g. where it is
necessary and proportionate to protect a number of other concerns including public
safety and health. It is not considered that the implementation of the temporary
restrictions impeded on the right to individuals’ right to respect for private and family
life, either in public or on private land, nor would the making of the recommended
ETROs. Further, the schemes are proposed to contribute to the more general
reduction in vehicle mileage, which will enhance public safety and health. Traditionally
‘family life’ extended out into the street where siblings would play and children walk
together to school. The CHN would facilitate this returning.

The Greater London Authority Act 1999 (Including the Duties to Make and
Implement a Local Implementation Plan)

The Greater London Authority Act 1999 places a duty on each London local authority
to have regard to the Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy when exercising any
function. This therefore includes the exercise of its Traffic Management Duty and
when deciding whether to implement a CHN and remove a LTN.

The Act requires each London local authority to make a plan (a Local Implementation
Plan (LIP)) to implement the Strategy within its area. The Mayor has to approve each
local authority’s LIP. To do so they must be satisfied that:

a) The LIP is consistent with the Transport Strategy,

b) The proposals contained in the LIP are adequate to implement his Strategy,
and

c) The timetable for implementing those proposals, and the date by which those
proposals are to be implemented, are adequate for those purposes.

The Act ‘presumes’ the local authority will implement its LIP. If the Mayor considers a
local authority to be failing or likely to fail to implement proposals in the LIP, the Act
enables the Mayor to exercise the powers of the local authority to implement the LIP,
and charge the local authority for doing so.

Streetspace Plan for London

When launching his (and TfL’s) Streetspace Plan for London in May 2020, the Mayor
of London explained that by fast-tracking the transformation of streets across the
Capital, many Londoners rediscovered ‘the joys of walking and cycling’ during
lockdown and, by quickly creating temporary cycle lanes and closing roads to through
traffic ‘we will enable millions more people to change the way they get around our city’.

Page 100



Gear Change: A Bold Vision for Cycling and Walking’??

The cycling and walking plan for England (DfT, July 2020) describes the vision to make
England a great walking and cycling nation:

‘Places will be truly walkable. A travel revolution in our streets, towns and
communities will have made cycling a mass form of transit. Cycling and walking
will be the natural first choice for many journeys with half of all journeys in towns
and cities being cycled or walked by 2030.’

It sets out the actions required at all levels of government to make this a reality,
grouped under four themes:

e better streets for cycling and people

¢ cycling and walking at the heart of decision-making

e empowering and encouraging local authorities

e enabling people to cycle and protecting them when they do

It explains that the government wants — and needs — to see a step-change in cycling
and walking in the coming years. It explains that the challenge is huge, but the
ambition is clear and that there is now a unique opportunity to transform the role cycling
and walking can play in the country’s transport system, and get England moving
differently. It explains the health, congestion, air quality, economic and climate change
costs arising from motorised transport use and the benefits and savings from walking
and cycling. Itincludes:

‘In particular, there are many shorter journeys that could be shifted from
cars, to walking, or cycling. We want to see a future where half of all journeys
in towns and cities are cycled or walked. 58% of car journeys in 2018 were
under 5 miles. And in urban areas, more than 40% of journeys were under 2
miles in 2017-1817. For many people, these journeys are perfectly suited to
cycling and walking.’

‘Actions, not just words To make England an active travel nation, we need
to take action to tackle the main barriers. We need to attract people to active
travel by building better quality infrastructure, making streets better for
everyone, and we need to make sure people feel safe and confident cycling. To
deliver this, we need to ensure active travel is embedded in wider policy making,
and want to encourage and empower local authorities to take bold decisions.’

‘There will be less rat-running and many more low-traffic neighbourhoods
Residential side streets across the country can be blighted by rat-running. Low-
traffic neighbourhoods will be created in many more groups of residential streets
by installing point closures — for example, bollards or planters — on some of the
roads. It would still be possible to access any road in the area, but motor traffic
would not be able to use the roads as through routes. Streets within low traffic
neighbourhoods will provide clear, direct routes for cyclists and pedestrians
promoting walking and cycling. Accidents, pollution and noise will be
dramatically reduced for residents.’

22 hitps://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-plan-for-england

Page 101



Statutory Guidance ‘Traffic Management Act 2004: Network Management to
Support Recovery from COVID-19’

The Secretary of State for Transport uses the Forward to the Guidance to send the
following message to local authorities:

‘The COVID-19 pandemic has had a terrible impact on the lives and health of
many UK citizens. But it has also resulted in cleaner air, quieter streets — and
an extraordinary rise in walking and cycling.

Cycling increased by 46% last year, the biggest rise in postwar history. Many
more people have discovered the joys of cycling. In many places, the delivery
bike has now become as common a sight as the delivery van.

An important part in the rise has been played by the hundreds of schemes to
promote cycling and walking installed under this network management duty
(NMD) guidance since the beginning of the pandemic. We want to secure those
schemes, and the gains they have helped achieve, and to go further.

As we emerge from the pandemic, local authorities should continue to make
significant changes to their road layouts to give more space to cyclists and
pedestrians and to maintain the changes they have already made.

Remarkable work has been done by many authorities, achieving significant
change in a short period. A few, however, have removed or watered down
schemes, sometimes within a few weeks or days, or without notice, or both. Of
course, not every scheme is perfect, and a minority will not stand the test of
time. But we are clear that schemes must be given that time. They must be
allowed to bed in, must be tested against more normal traffic conditions and
must be in place long enough for their benefits and disbenefits to be properly
evaluated and understood.

We have no interest in requiring councils to keep schemes which are proven
not to work. But that proof must be presented. Schemes must not be removed
prematurely or without proper evidence. And any decisions on whether to
remove or modify them must be publicly consulted on with the same rigour as
we require for decisions to install them. This guidance lays out new standards
for consultation, including the use of objective methods, such as professional
polling, to provide a genuine picture of local opinion, rather than listening only
to the loudest voices.

In this way, we will do what is necessary to ensure that transport networks
support recovery from the emergency and provide a lasting legacy of greener,
safer travel.’

Grant Shapps
Secretary of State for Transport

Page 102



The Guidance includes:

‘As set out in ‘Gear change’, we continue to expect local authorities to take
measures to reallocate road space to people walking and cycling. The focus
should now be on devising further schemes and assessing COVID-19 schemes
with a view to making them permanent. The assumption should be that they will
be retained unless there is substantial evidence to the contrary. Authorities
should also be considering how to infroduce further active travel schemes,
building on those already delivered.

Measures should be taken as swiftly as possible, but not at the expense of
consulting local communities..................

None of these measures are new — they are interventions that are a standard
part of the traffic management toolkit and a step-change in their roll-out
continues to be needed to maintain a green recovery. They include:

e modalfilters (also known as filtered permeability); closing roads to motor
traffic, for example by using planters or large barriers. Often used in
residential areas, when designed and delivered well, this can create low-
traffic or traffic-free neighbourhoods, which have been shown to lead to
a more pleasant environment that encourages people to walk and cycle,
and improved safety

And

‘Trial or experimental schemes should be left in place for the full duration of
the temporary traffic regulation order (TTRQO) or experimental traffic requlation
order (ETRO), where appropriate, or where no traffic regulation order (TRO)
is required, until at least 12 months’ traffic data is available and has been
published. This will allow them to settle in and for changes in travel patterns
and behaviours to become apparent so that an informed decision can be
made. Adjustments may be necessary to take account of real-world feedback
but the aim should be to retain schemes and adjust, not remove them, unless
there is substantial evidence to support this.

In assessing how and in what form to make schemes permanent, authorities
should collect appropriate data to build a robust evidence base on which to
make decisions. This should include traffic counts, pedestrian and cyclist
counts, traffic speed, air quality data, public opinion surveys and consultation
responses.

Consultation and community engagement should always be undertaken
whenever authorities propose to remove, modify or reduce existing schemes
and whenever they propose to introduce new ones. Engagement, especially
on schemes where there is public controversy, should use objective methods,
such as professional polling to British Polling Council standards, to establish
a truly representative picture of local views and to ensure that minority views

Page 103



do not dominate the discourse. Consultations are not referendums, however.
Polling results should be one part of the suite of robust, empirical evidence on
which decisions are made.’

Decarbonising Transport A Better, Greener Britain

The plan published in July, sets out central government’s commitments and the actions
needed to decarbonise the transport system in the UK. It explains:

o the pathway to net zero transport in the UK
o the wider benefits net zero transport can deliver

o the principles that underpin central government’s approach to delivering net
zero transport

« central government’s commitments, the first of which is increasing cycling
and walking, specifically with the aim that half of all journeys in towns and
cities will be cycled or walked by 2030 and a world class cycling and walking
network will be delivered in England by 2040

o that 67.7% of UK domestic transport emissions are from cars (and taxis)
dwarfing emissions from other transport modes, and that as more short
journeys (43 per cent of all urban and town journeys are under 2 miles) are
cycled or walked, so the carbon, air quality, noise and congestion benefits
will be complemented by significant improvements in public health and
wellbeing

setting a series of priorities, the first of which is ‘Accelerating modal shift to public and
active transport’, specifically public transport and active travel will be the natural first
choice for daily activities. The Plan explains:

‘Increasing the share of journeys taken by cycling and walking does not rely on
any technological breakthrough, delivers a host of co-benefits and is
fundamental to any good local transport plan. With better quality infrastructure
through high quality road design, dedicated routes, and networks, and enabling
people to access cycles, people will feel safer and more confident walking and
cycling for more and more short journeys.’

‘Cycling and walking can help us tackle some of the most challenging issues
we face as a society, not just climate change, but improving air quality, health
and wellbeing, addressing inequalities, and tackling congestion and noise
pollution on our roads. Increased levels of active travel can improve everyday
life for us all.’

and the benefits LTNs bring:

Low Traffic 99 sovlere ﬁ
Neighbourhoods é é
. , . ll

can provide clear, direct routes for cyclists

and pedestrians that promote cycling and 2
walking, significantly reducing accidents,

noise, and air pollution for local residents.

Sp—

Page 104



The Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy

Published in 2018, the Mayor’s Transport Strategy uses the ‘Healthy Streets
Approach’ to prioritise human health in planning the city. The Mayor wishes to
change London’s transport mix so the city works better for everyone. Three key
themes are at the heart of the Strategy, the first being:

Healthy Streets and Healthy People

* creating streets and street networks that encourage walking, cycling and
public transport use to reduce car dependency and the health problems it
creates.

The Strategy Vision is expressed as:

‘Changing the transport mix

The success of London’s future transport system relies upon reducing
Londoners’ dependency on cars in favour of increased walking, cycling and
public transport use. This simple aim of a shift away from the car will help
address many of London’s health problems, by reducing inactivity and
cleaning up the air. It will help to eliminate the blight of road danger. It will limit
the city’s contribution to climate change and help to develop attractive local
environments. It will reconnect communities by creating places where people
are prioritised over cars.....’

Policy 1 of the Strategy states:
‘The Mayor, through TfL and the boroughs, and working with stakeholders, will
reduce Londoners’ dependency on cars in favour of active, efficient and
sustainable modes of travel, with the central aim for 80 per cent of all trips in
London to be made on foot, by cycle or using public transport by 2041.’

Page 105



siapunes Lon :aunos

VORI UBLLINY PUE BARL) SI9ANS N0 Apes puossad g 01 SIeR
annoe abi 12 R w0 Busad o aou st aU) oLy asuapadxa 10 iBuRp Peo) Woge
19305 JO FTURQUUIE 3] Aaouduy [PUR DRI 00 O LoD pUg p 93 10U PRoys Mdoay S e
"R WRUSG K109ED B RN SNIoA 3] 2INPaI A p uaddey Auo 1 S1330]5 N0 U0 AFS LR SOFLIORUD
o o sisedus asou aug) Bunnpay B SIUL U0 200U 31940 DU M 0] 99 PINOUs KIRFRLILOD H0UM (L

ajdoad suow saqeus pur sabizincoua

wasAs pOdsuR NJSSa00TS v

“podsuen agnd vo skawnof Lbuo)

JO Liod S8 0 Sy SouM J0) IS

"BAR T 0] SARM HGELIRISTS [S0W pue
snaEay 2w 2 Busako pue Buniem wag) o) 196 oy
D 0 pasu jou op Aau
SIPANS N0 U0 05 SAOURTSP LIOUS UILEM
oI DR 133U K0 W am pau Ao SS0NEs pue
Swn puads Ysia 0] Bugpm SOouS Sy i 5199 uo uepuadap
IO B i 3doad s8¢ B53| g [pw A3 L 18NS 1
"SassaESNq [£90| Buspniouy Bursn 2 adoad 10 AKuMm
okians SiPUSq 159) pue pue L= ans pue Bugued
doys 01 seoed ae sy &%ﬁisﬂnﬂanv’
Buunsug sydoad jo sdnoib s
U9 0] AUpQOuW s ueD FEE USUM 5130115 N0
saoeyd Bunsau jo o ¥ asn o] Agng) 0w 38 apdoad

/ - MV \

H

FAUIOIM ] IBASIEYM inehﬂi.o
"SI9aNS 1IN0 35N 0} ¥ ALID PAPMOIIIBND
Apoghiana SHQRUS UNS 10U e syed apdo
199D pus e AABay pue siuswaaed JI puR Dyen
‘spu ubiy woyy BiEys pasuojow Aq paleuILOp
pue peys Buipnoid WU S SIBINS IO §
1242 20 WBM 0) IB00YD M

adoad jo abue) Ppw v

$5010 0]
UNDYJIP SIDANS HEW e Dyen Areay
10 Bussow 158) pum ssueq eosAyd
k- e 500 0]

a.aa?lau.acu!o:uué.ota By A »u
A0Ad SIUUNMLLIDD J2SUL0D OF PUs sbebius pue vy awn puads wem 0] sanEnbau ey
Bungem 30w abeinoous 0] JuELIOd auod a3 10j saoud Bunuod@am igauﬂﬁa_gigb_
51 55012 0] 1598 s19ans Bupepy 2 PINOYS 513315 SUOPUOT suPRURq Awenb se Buy 1

SHOLVOIANI S13341S AHLTVIH N3L 3HL ‘€ 3¥NOI4

L€ pue g¢ sabed ABsjeng uodsuel] sJohep HOVOYHAdY S1IIYLS AHLTVIH IHL,

10z Aserugag ‘yrraob)) 'uopuo 10 podsurl] ‘veld uonoe Lodsur) - SIBUOPUOT JO Yleay ay) Buaosdw) §

Ul }JOM pue any 0}

ajdoad asow Joj 310 Jen3aq e Buneasd
jo une jjesano s ABajens syl |yiny 0y
Buidjay 'uopuon ut 6uiay jo asusuadxe
Aep-031-Aep oyl uuojsues) Ajjeaipel [jim
s}ea43s s,A110 8y} SS0IOR SI01eJIpUl BY)
Jie 1suiebe syuawaoidw) "awi} puads
pue aj9A2 'yjem o0} seoejd bueadde ase
$188J1S [ENPIAIPUI JBY] SUBaLU JOJEDIPUI
yoea jsuiebe eouewioyiad poos) 's1eas
ino uo Buiaq jo asusuadxa ay) ssasse
0} ‘g aunbi4 Ul UMOYS 'S10}EDIPUI paseq
-82UapIA8 ua) sasn 3| 'A310 ay) Buiuued
Jo peay ayi je asuauadxa pue yjjeay
uewny Bunind 10} yiomawely a
sapinoud yoeosddy sjeans Ayljeay ayy

'sanienbaul yjjeay sejun

Buronpau i [eJIA 8q |Im S8IIUNWILWOD
1098uu0281 pue Ajjenb sie aaosdun 1ebuep
peos aanpal 's|aAa| |aaes) aAljoe asealoul
0} sjeans Buinosdw pue “yuapuadap Jed
sS9| awo2aq 0} ajdoad jo abuel Jopm e
djay | ajdoad pajqesip pue 1apjo Joj
S801A19S JJodsuel) pajsisse pue podsuesy
oignd Buianoidw) ‘Ao Juepuadap-ied

e u1 Buiay jo syoedw aanebau auy 198y
Ajgjeuonsodoidsip oym 'Sawooul Jamo| uo
Buin asoyy pue sjdoad pajgesip ‘BunoA
Aiaa ay) ‘ejdoad sapjo 10j Juepodun
Apenoiued si sjeans s ,uopuo] uo buleq
J0 8ouauadxe ay| 9ALIY] UBD SBSSauISNg

8JOYM PUEB }22UU0D SAIJIUNWILWOD aJaym
‘Aejd uaipjiyo a1aym yiom pue doys ‘aay
ajdoad ajaym seoe|d ase Aay) "eoeds
angnd s,A310 8yl Jo Juad sad g dn axyew
Aay) - ajdoad Jayjo J@aw pue awny nayl
puads siauopuoT alaym aie sjaans ANo
118y} jo asuauadxe Japeoiq S1auopuo]
aaoidwi 0} Jiodsuel) 10 ABajens s j0hep
ay} asn 0} Ayunyioddo snowioua ue
sapiaoid osje 81 uopuoT Jo 1oadse Aiana
Ajleninia ul Aejd s)1@a11s ajos Japim 8y

"@pow Jaaajeym jo suondo

yodsuen oijqnd aanoesyie buipinoid 03
A@y 810j0104) S1 @ouauadxe Jaans poob
W 'suonels 03 ssaosoe Jaans poob uo Aja1
sAauwinol j1eJ pue agny ||e pue ';S}9ans
uo Aj@ua ale sdi S1auopuo] Jo Juad
1ad AyBi3 ‘Aeusnol sayy jo Ayenb ayy
auyep o} sdjay s1eaus s ,uopuo buisn
jo @asuauadxa ayj jo Apjenb ay) ‘asn
S18U0pu0T JJodSuel] JO BpPOL JBABIRYM

‘ino sheyd ayy Ajlep

ajaym s19ans ay) 03 uonuane senonsed
yum 'ajif jo Ayenb nayy sauyap jeym
pue A3 1194} yim J0eIa)jul S19U0puoT]
moy jo Buipuejsiapun ue sannbai

1| "|eARI} B|RUIRISNS PUB JUBIDNE
‘aanoe Buiseaioul pue Aouapuadep Jed
Butonpai jo Asoay) ayy aonoesd ojul Ind
03 pasinbai st Bupjuiyl jo 8dA) mau v

Page 106



The Croydon Local Implementation Plan

The LIP objectives include:

Vi.

Vii.

Viii.

Croydon will reduce reliance on the car for local in-borough car journeys
by creating streets and a transport network that prioritises walking, cycling
and public transport.

Croydon will reduce the number of local car trips and to ensure that by
2021/22 at least 50% of all journeys made residents are by walking,
cycling and public transport. By 2041, 63% of all journeys made by
residents are by walking, cycling and public transport.

Croydon will create healthy streets and neighbourhoods that encourage
walking and cycling, and where traffic volumes and speeds are low.
Croydon will improve accessibility for pedestrians and cyclists through
increased priority at key junctions and reduce severance caused by major
roads, railway lines and parks.

Croydon will implement and deliver the network of cycle routes and
proposals outlined in the Croydon Cycle Strategy.

Croydon will Croydon will support and deliver the principles of the Vision
Zero Action Plan and work towards ensuring we have the safest roads in
London with no deaths or serious injuries on our roads by 2041.

Croydon will reduce the volume of traffic on our roads and associated
congestion through better management of our roads and kerbside space,
and by offering pleasant, practical and safe alternatives to private cars
and vans

Croydon will tackle road based air pollution by reducing traffic volumes,
supporting the shift to zero emission vehicles and introducing new green
infrastructure

Delivery of the LIP and London Mayor’s objectives is measured by a series of
indicators and targets. Those relating to LTNs/CHNs are listed in the table below.

Page 107



Borough = Target
Objective Metric S Additional commentary
50% 2021
Active, efficient and sustainable (walking, cycling and An increase of 1% sustainable mode
Londoners' trips to be on | public transport) mode share (by borough resident) share to 50% by 2021 is still very
foot, by cycle or by based on average daily trips. challenging as it is against a backdrop of
public transport falling mode share - in the 2012/13 to
Base period 2013/14 - 2015/16 for Croydon = 49% 2014/15 mode share was 52%
63% 2041

Healthy Streets and healthy people

Outcome 1: London's streets will be healthy and more Londoners will travel actively

Page 108

35% 2021
Londoners to do at least | Froportion of London residents doing at least 2x10 The interim target of 35% by 2021 is an
. 5 minutes of active travel a day (or a single block of 20 increase of 10% points from the
the 20 minutes of active o L S %
travel they fto stay minutes or more). baseline in only 3 years. This is a very
Felthiyeachid challenging. The long term target of 70%
PRI Croydon Baseline 2013/14-16/17= 26% by 2041 means an increase of 44%
70% 2041
Objective Metric - mn DLk TM‘WH Additional commentary
There are no strategic (Cycle
Superhighway or Quietway) cycle routes
% 2021 in the Borough therefore 0% residents
Londoners have access | Proportion of Londoners living within 400m of the badmigbher fjmame ks gie
i ¥ cycle route. With the level of Cycle
to a safe and pleasant London-wide strategic cycle network. Croydon 5 : 3
cycle network Baseline 2016 = 0% Hatask Rancting haing providad the
51% 2041 Growth Zone & the LIP the interim figure
will be achievable. However that will be
determined by TfL categorising our
routes as Strategic Cycle Routes.
Outcome 2: London's streets will be safe and secure
Deaths and serious injuries (KSls) from road collisions,
base year 2005-09 (for 2022 target) - Casualties Killed
or Seriously Injured (KSls) according to STATS19 data 2022 88 The t of 88 KSls in 2022 represent
Deaths and serious Observed with back casting applied 2005-09 baseline ::52'% ’egf”;"g;“ 20000
injuries from all road =252 L 4
collisions to be
eliminated from our Observed 2017 = 126
streets
- 5 2030 51 ;
Deaths and serious injuries (KSls) from road collisions The target of 51 KSlIs in 2030 represents
base year 2010-14 (for 2030 target). 2041 0 a T0% reduction in KSls on the 2010-14

baseline. Whilst Croydon supports the




Objective Metric yoar Additional commentary
Observed with back casting applied 2010-14 baseline Vision Zero principles the 2041 targels
=170 will be extremely challenging.

The Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) introduced a TfL commissioned the Transport
new collision reporting system in November 2016 - the Research Laboratory (TRL) to undertake
Case Overview and Preparation Application (COPA). a back-casting exercise to enable pre
The City of London Police also moved to the Collision November 2016 data to be compared
Reporting And SHaring (CRASH) system in October with post November 2016 data. These
2015. This has had a number of impacts on the data initial back cast estimates include the
that is available to Transport for London (TfL), and the number of people killed or seriously
London Boroughs in the ACCSTATS database for injured (KSl) for each borough between
collision investigation. Under the new systems officers 2005 and 2017 and this data has been
use an ‘injury-based assessment’ in line with DT used to update borough targets to align
STATS 20 guidance and online self reporting is with those contained in the Mayor's
available. Both of these changes are expected to Transport Strategy, namely a 65 percent
provide a better assessment of injury occurrence and reduction in KSls by 2022 against the
severity but have made data collected from November 2005-09 baseline, a 70 percent
2016 onwards difficult to compare with earlier data. reduction in KSis by 2030 against the
2010-14 baseline and zero KSls by
2041. The targets contained in this final
version of our LIP have been set against
Outcome 2 for Vision Zero to reflect the
reporting changes. The level of ambition
remains unchanged, despite these
revised figures.’
Borough = Target
Objective Metric Sarat yoar Additional commentary
Outcome 3: London's streets will be used more efficiently and have less traffic on them
Vehicle kilometres in given year. Base year 2015. 1,162 anpy; | SR Sonpet trajechory of 4,162
Reduce overall traffic levels by 10% fopresants & 0% Change on the 2013
Reduce the volume of : base year.
traffic in London. . 3 ke .
sab::r;ezc: a:n:u:a;l;eh;cle kilometres (millions) in 2015 i e The 2041 target of 1,046 s
. . 10% decrease on the 2015 base year.
Reduce the number of 10 % reduction in number of freight vehicles crossing
freight trips in the central | into central London in the morning peak period N/A NIA N/A
London morning peak. (07:00am - 10:00am) by 2026.
Very challenging target in the context of
Total cars owned and car ownership per household, growth of at least 36,000 new dwellings
borough residents. Quarter of a million fewer cars between now and 2031,
owned in London. 141,200 2021
" The 2021 interim trajectory represents a
fm - PP | No. of cars owned (no. of vehicies registered to decrease of 2,510 vehicles from the
i Croydon addresses) Baseline average 2013-2016 = 2013-2016 baseline.
143,710 137,800 2041

Latest year 2016 = 148,256

Page 109

The 2041 target of 137,800 vehicles
represents a decrease of 5,910 vehicles
from the 2013-2016 baseline.




Borough Target

Objective Metric Additional commenta
foct target year A
Outcome 4: London's streets will be clean and green
COz emissions (in tonnes) from road transport within 211.300 2021 The 2021 interim trajectory represents a
the borough. ' decrease of 38,900 tonnes of CO2 from
Reduced CO:z emissions. Ext0AS hanespar:
The 2041 target represenls a decrease
56,700 2041
Base year 2013 = 250,200 of 193,500 tonnes of CO2 from the 2013
_base vear |
NOx emissions (in tonnes) from road transport within Interim 2021 target of 330 is a decrease
the borough. 330 2021 in 560 tonnes of NOx from 2013 base
year.

Reduced NOx emissions. Base year 2013 = 890

2041 target of 40 is a decrease in 850

40 2041 tonnes of NOx from 2013 base year.
PM,o emissions (in tonnes) from road transport within Interim 2021 target of 75 is a decrease
borough. 75 2021 | in 13 tonnes of PM;o from 2013 base
Reduced particulate year.
emissions. Base year 2013 = 88
2041 target of 41 is a decrease in 47
il 2041 tonnes of PM; from 2013 base year.
Borough Target
Objective Metric target yoar Additional commentary
PMzs emissions (in tonnes) from road transport within 36 2021 Interim 2021 target of 36 is a decrease
borough. in 13 tonnes of PMz s from 2013 base
Reduced particulate year.
emissions. Base year 2013 = 49
20 2041 2041 target of 20 is a decrease in 29

tonnes of PMz s from 2013 base year.

Road Classification

The system of roads classification is intended to direct motorists towards the most
suitable routes for reaching their destination. It does this by identifying roads that are
best suited for traffic. All UK roads (excluding motorways) fall into the following four
categories:

e A roads — major roads intended to provide large-scale transport links within
or between areas

B roads — roads intended to connect different areas, and to feed traffic
between A roads and smaller roads on the network

 classified unnumbered — smaller roads intended to connect together
unclassified roads with A and B roads, and often linking a housing estate or a
village to the rest of the network. Similar to ‘minor roads’ on an Ordnance
Survey map and sometimes known unofficially as C roads

 unclassified — local roads intended for local traffic. The vast majority (60%) of
roads in the UK fall within this category

Page 110



As originally conceived, these four classes form a hierarchy. Large volumes of traffic
and traffic travelling long distances should be using higher classes of road; smaller
amounts of traffic travelling at lower speeds over shorter distances should be using
lower classes of road?3. The streets in each of the recommended HNs are
unclassified local roads intended for local traffic. In reality a number of them are
acting as B roads if not A roads. The CHNs are recommended in part to ensure that
the roads within them operate as per their classification. If CHNs are not
permanently implemented, consideration should be given to reclassifying key streets
through them as B (possibly A) Roads, reflecting the nature of the traffic they carry in
the absence of LTN/CHN controls.

23 hitps://www.gov.uk/government/publications/quidance-on-road-classification-and-the-primary-route-
network/guidance-on-road-classification-and-the-primary-route-network

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 8a: Summary Findings from the ‘Listening’ at Each of the Temporary
LTN/Proposed Experimental CHN Areas

Albert Road Area Findings

A leaflet was delivered to each of the 1565 households within the area of the
Albert Road area Temporary LTN/proposed Experimental CHN. A total of 300
responses were received from within the area of the proposed CHN
approximating to a response rate of 19%. The total number of response
received from both within and beyond the area of the proposed Experimental
CHN is 521 of which 471 (90%) described themselves as living local to the area
of the LTN/CHN. Others described themselves as ‘Travelling through the area’
(36 (7%)) etc. Respondents were asked if they were responding as any of the
following, and were able to select more than one answer; ‘resident’, ‘business’,
‘school’, ‘visitor’ or ‘other’. All respondents replied to this question, with 482
selecting ‘resident’, 19 ‘business’, 4 ‘school’, 38 ‘visitor’ and 14 ‘other’. Some
respondents selected ‘resident’ and a second option. The following tables and
figures summarise some of the demographic factors comparing the self-
selected sample population with the wider general population, as well as views
regarding the Temporary LTN and proposed CHN expressed amongst the
sample population.

Gender balance of respondents (total sample population) who answered the

question
Overall Survey Borough-wide
Responses Population
Statistics

Gender Frequency | 9, %
(2011 Male 164 35% 48%
Census) Female 227 48% 52%

Other 12 3% n/a

Prefer not to say 70 15% n/a

473 101%

Gender balance of the respondents from within the area of the proposed
Experimental CHN compared to that locally

Survey Sample Local
(Respondents living in Population
the Scheme Boundary) Statistics
% Frequency | 9,
Gender (2011 Census) | Male 35% 97 47%
Female 51% 139 53%
Other n/a

Age profile of all respondents (who responded to this question) compared to
that Borough wide

Overall Survey Borough-wide
Responses Population
Statistics
Frequency | % %
Age (2011 Census) Under 30 | 39 8% 43%
31 -64 325 68% 45%
65 and 34 7% 12%
over

Page 113



Prefernot | 75 16%
to say
Total 473 99% 100%

Age profile of respondents from within the area of the proposed Experimental

CHN compared to that locally

Overall Survey Local
Responses Population
Statistics
Frequency | % %
Age (2011 Census) Under 30 | 24 9% 47%
31 -64 196 78% 46%
65 and 18 7% 9%
over
Total 238 94.% 102.%

Ethnicity: Proportion of all respondents describing

British compared to that Borough wide

themselves as White

Overall Survey
Responses

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

Frequency | %

%

Ethnic Origin White

(2011 Census) English /
Welsh /
Scottish /
Northern
Irish /
British

239

51%

47%

Ethnicity: Proportion of respondents from within the area of the proposed
CHN describing themselves as White British compared to that locally

Overall Survey
Responses

Local
Population
Statistics

Frequency | %

%

Ethnic Origin White

(2011 Census) English /
Welsh /
Scottish /
Northern
Irish /
British

131

48%

35%

Car Availability: Those
responding to the survey
were much more likely to
own a car or a van than the
general local population.
The 2011 census indicates
that 59.8% of households in
the Woodside ward had a
car or van available,
compared with 82% of
respondents reporting
owning a car, van or both.

Page 114

Ta%



Reported Views on the
Current Temporary LTN
and Proposed
Experimental CHN:
Whether living within or
outside the area of the
proposed Experimental
CHN, those responding to
the survey were
predominately opposed
to both the existing
Temporary LTN and
Proposed CHN.

Reported Reasons for not
Walking and Cycling More:
The number of respondents
opposed to the LTN and
CHN contrast with the
reasons given why the
respondents do not walk or
cycle more. Those reasons
include ‘concerns about road
safety/road danger’, ‘Traffic

speed’, ‘Traffic volume’,
‘Unpleasant street
environment’.

BON

T

0%

50%

40%

20%

Difference in opinion towards the temparary Streetspace/ CHN scheme in
the Albert Road area
{based on whether their address is within the scheme boundary)

7
. 9%
28% 7%
I l ki -
——

Metural

Support Do ot Support

mRespondents whose addresses are within the Albert Road StreetspaceS CHM scheme boundary
{sample size: 279)

H Respondents whose addresses are not within the Albort Road Streetspacef CHH schome
boundary {sample size: 201)

Difference in opinion towards the proposed CHN scheme in

the Albert Road area
{based an whether their address is within the scheme boundary)

TE% T
N

Netural

17% 16%

Agree Disagree

W Respondents whose addnesses soe within the Albert foad Streetspacey CHN wcheme boundary
(sample size: 277)

W Respondents whise dddnesses 30e nol within the Albert Raad Sweetspace/ CHN scheme boundany
(sample size: 199)

WHY RESPONDENTS DON'T WALK AND CYCLE FOR MORE
JOURNEYS

Concerns about road
safety/road danger,
32%

No reason, 17%

Other, 38%

Traffic speed, 25%

Unpleasant street
environment, 40%

Page 115



Holmesdale Road Area Findings

A Leaflet was delivered to each of the 989 households within the Holmesdale
Road Albert Road area Temporary LTN/proposed Experimental CHN. A total
of 224 responses were received from within the area of the proposed CHN
approximating to a response rate of 23%. A total of 683 responses received
from both within and beyond the area of the proposed Experimental CHN, of
which 87% described themselves as living local to the area of the LTN/CHN.
Others described themselves as ‘Travelling through the area’ (77 (11%)) etc.
The following tables and figures summarise some of the demographic factors
comparing the self-selected sample population with the wider local population,
and summarising the views regarding the Temporary LTN and proposed CHN
expressed amongst the sample population.

Gender balance of respondents (total sample population) of those responding
to this question

Overall Survey Borough-wide
Responses Population
Statistics

Gender Frequency | 9, %
(2011 Male 230 38% 48%
Census) Female 278 46% 52%

Other 17 3% n/a

Prefer not to say 81 13% n/a

606 100%

Gender balance of the respondents from within the area of the proposed
Experimental CHN compared to that locally
Survey Sample
(Respondents living in
the Scheme Boundary)

Local
Population
Statistics

%

Frequency

%

Gender (2011 Census)

Male

37%

75

48%

Female

52%

106

52%

Other

1%

3

n/a

10%

20

n/a

Age profile of all respondents compared to that Borough wide of those

responding to this question

Overall Survey

Borough-wide

Responses Population
Statistics
Frequency | % %
Age (2011 Census) Under 30 | 50 8% 43%
31 -64 405 67% 45%
65 and 68 11% 12%
over
Prefer not | 82 14%
to say
Total 605 100% 100%

Page 116




Age profile of respondents from within the area of the proposed Experimental

CHN compared to that locally

Overall Survey Local
Responses Population
Statistics
Frequency | % %

Age (2011 Under 30 23 11% 44%
Census) 31 -64 139 68% 47%

65 and over 20 10% 9%

Prefer not to say 21 10%

Total 203 99% 100%

Ethnicity: Proportion of all
British compared to that Borough wide

respondents describing themselves as White

Overall Survey Borough-wide
Responses Population
Statistics
Frequency | % %
Ethnic Origin White 244 40% 47%
(2011 Census) English /
Welsh /
Scottish /
Northern
Irish /
British

Ethnicity: Proportion of respondents from within the area of the proposed
CHN describing themselves as White British compared to that locally

Overall Survey Local
Responses Population
Statistics
Frequency | % %
Ethnic Origin White 81 40% 31%
(2011 Census) English /
Welsh /
Scottish /
Northern
Irish /
British

Car Availability: Those
responding to the survey
were much more likely to
own a car or a van than
the general local
population. The 2011
census indicates that
54.7 % of households in
the South Norwood ward
had a car or van
available compared with
82% of respondents
reporting owning a car,
van or both.

Vehicle Ownership

m Car
15%
A = Motorbike
2% Mg N
1%

Van or other commercial
vehicle for work

= A combination of these

77%
: None of these

Page 117



Reported views on

the current
Temporary LTN and ..
proposed o

Experimental CHN
Whether living within or =«
outside the area of the  **
proposed Experimental
CHN, those responding =
to the survey were
predominately

opposed to both the
existing Temporary
LTN and Proposed
CHN. The most
frequently given reason
was concerns about ™
traffic being displaced
onto surrounding and
main roads with
associated  pollution, .
noise etc / general. o%

Reported Reasons for not
Walking and Cycling More:
The number of respondents
opposed to the LTN and
CHN contrasts with the
reasons given why the
respondents do not walk or
cycle more. Those reasons
include ‘concerns about road
safety/road danger’, ‘Traffic
speed’, ‘Traffic volume’,
‘Unpleasant street
environment’, all of which
LTNs/CHNs aim to address.

Difference in opinion towards the temporary Streetspace/ CHN scheme in
the Holmesdale Road area
(based on whether their address is within the scheme boundary)

78%
71%
3%
20%
. . - %
L

Support Do not Support Netural

W Respondents whose addresses are within the Holmesdale Road Streetspace/ CHN scheme boundary
(sample size: 213)

W Respondents whose addresses are not within the Holmesdale Road Streetspace/ CHN scheme
boundary (sample size: 417)

Difference in opinion towards the proposed CHN scheme in
the Holmesdale Road area
(based on whether their address is within the scheme boundary)

19%
I ==

Agree Disagree Netural
m Respondents whose addresses are within the Holmesdale Road Streetspace/ CHN scheme boundary
(sample size: 208)
m Respondents whose addresses are not within the Holmesdale Road Streetspace/ CHN scheme
boundary (sample size: 404)

WHY RESPONDENTS DON'T WALK AND CYCLE FOR
MORE JOURNEYS

Concerns about
No reason, 14% road safety/road
danger, 33%

Other, 34%

Traffic speed, 27%

Topograph (hills),
17%

Unpleasant street
environment, 38%

Page 118



3.8

Parsons Mead Area Findings

Leaflet delivered to each of the 1138 properties within the Parsons Mead area
Temporary LTN/proposed Experimental CHN. A of total of 113 responses were
received from within the area of the proposed CHN approximating to a response
rate of 9.9%. The total number of completed responses received from both
within and beyond the area of the proposed Experimental CHN is 391. Out of
the total valid responses, 254(65%) described themselves as living local to the
area of the LTN/CHN. Others described themselves as ‘Travelling through the
area’ (105 (27%)). The following tables and figures summarise some of the
demographic factors comparing the self-selected sample population with the
general local population, and summarise views regarding the Temporary LTN
and proposed CHN expressed amongst the sample population.

Gender balance of respondents (total sample population) of those responding
to this question

Overall Survey Borough-wide
Responses Population
Statistics

Gender Frequency | 9, %
(2011 Male 117 38% 48%
Census) Female 139 45% 52%

Other 7 2% n/a

Prefer not to say 43 14% n/a

Gender balance of the respondents from within the area of the proposed
Experimental CHN compared to that locally

Survey Sample Local
(Respondents living in Population
the Scheme Boundary) Statistics
% Frequency | 9,
Gender (2011 Census) | Male 38% 42 49%
Female 48% 53 51%
Other 1% 1 n/a
14% 15 n/a

Age profile of all respondents compared to that Borough wide of those
responding to this question

Overall Survey Borough-wide
Responses Population
Statistics
Frequency | % %
Age (2011 Census) Under 31 | 26 8% 43%
31 -64 214 70% 45%
65 and 23 8% 12%
over
Prefer not | 43 14%
to say
Total 306 100% 100%

Page 119



Age profile of respondents from within the area of the proposed Experimental
CHN compared to that locally

Overall Survey Local
Responses Population
Statistics
Frequency | % %

Age (2011 Under 31 16 14% 50%
Census) 31 -64 76 68% 43%

65 and over 7 6% 7%

Prefer not to say 12 11%

Total 111 99% 100%

Ethnicity: Proportion of all respondents describing themselves as White
British compared to that Borough wide

Overall Survey Borough-wide
Responses Population
Statistics
Frequency | % %
Ethnic Origin White English /| 65 21% 47%
(2011 Census) | Welsh / Scottish /
Northern Irish /
British

Ethnicity: Proportion of respondents from within the area of the proposed
CHN describing themselves as White British compared to that locally

Overall Survey Local
Responses Population
Statistics
Frequency | % %
Ethnic Origin White English /| 25 23% 24%

(2011 Census) | Welsh / Scottish /
Northern Irish /
British

Car Availability: Those
responding to the survey
were much more likely to own
a car or a van than the
general local population. The
2011 census indicates that
52.9 % of households in the
Broad Green ward had a car
or van available compared
with 88% of respondents
reporting owning a car, van or
both.

Vehicle Ownership

Reported views on the current Table 4-2: Attitudes on the Temporary Scheme in its Current
Format

Temporary LTN and proposed i
Experimental CHN
Whether living within or outside the area of Ivo. % |
the proposed Experimental CHN, those | verynesative 54 45%
responding to the survey were - [Negatve e e 2 ks
predominately opposed to the existing """ = = 2 =
Temporary LTN Negative views regarding . ... = =1 =
the current scheme were more frequent 1o 121 100% 208 100%
amongst those living outside of the area of

the LTN. There was a similar pattern

regarding views on the two proposed CHN

options ie camera enforced ‘No Motor

Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary

174 B84%

Page 120



Vehicles’ restriction ‘closing’ Derby Road
(Option A) and One-way working in Derby
Road (Option B)

Table 5-1: Attitudes on Option A (Camera enforced restriction) Table 5-2: Attitudes on Option B {One-way working on Derby
Scheme Boundary | Scheme Boundary Live within the Live Outside of the

=0 =
Strongly Disagree 51 45% 159 81%

Disagree 13 12% 20 10% Strongly Disagree 34% 111 %

Neutral 12 11% 8 4% Disagree 14% 18 9%

Agree 11 10% 4 2% Neutral 12 11% 35 18%

Strongly Agree 26 23% 5 3% Agree 22 19% 23 12%

Total 113 100% 196 100% Strongly Agree 25 22% 9 5%

Total 113 100% 196 100%

The most frequently given reasons for opposing option A were concerns about
traffic being displaced on to surrounding main roads with associated pollution,
noise etc.

Reported Reasons for not
Walking and Cycling More: Jesson Ho-

The number of respondents i e ———— e o

opposed tO the LTN and CHN Jther {-E'.g.\\.mllé‘( Jbout personal satety, Yo
X K need to carry a heavy load, etc.)

contrast with the reasons given

Unpleasant street environment 155 41%

Why the respondents do not walk Concern about road safety/road danger 113 30%
or cycle more. Those reasons @icvolume o asie
include ‘concerns about road | rafficspeed 76 20%
safety/road  danger,  ‘Traffic A dsability > i
Speed’, ‘Traffic volume’, Topography (hills) 14 4%
‘Unpleasant street environment’, No Reason 11 3%
all of which LTNs/CHNs aim to

address. They also include

concerns about personal safety
which central government suggest
LTNs can address.

Sutherland Road Area

Leaflets were delivered to the 595 properties within the area of the LTN/ proposed
CHN. There was a total of 99 responses to the online questionnaire, of which 51 were
from within the area of the LTN, approximating to a response rate of 9%. 44% of
responses were from women, 42% from men. Amongst the respondents, the
proportion describing themselves as White English/British was higher than in the local
population. The proportion of respondents within the age range 31 to 64 was higher
than those in this age range in the local population and Borough wide population. Car
ownership was high amongst the respondents with 80% owning a car. The main
reasons given why the respondents do not walk or cycle more are ‘concerns about
road safety/road danger’, ‘Traffic speed’, ‘Traffic volume’, ‘Unpleasant street
environment’. Of those giving a home post code within the scheme boundary, 46%
Described the situation with the temporary LTN as being better than before perceive
that the impacts being better than before it, with 28% describing it as worse. 39 (83%)
of respondents from outside the scheme boundary considered the situation to be
worse with the Temporary LTN, whilst 4 (9%) of respondents considered the situation
better. 33 of the respondents from within the area of the Temporary LTN disagreed

Page 121



with the proposed Experimental CHN and 38 from outside disagreed. Amongst those
living in the area of the LTN and giving reasons for opposing the proposed
Experimental CHN, 11 prefer to keep the planters as they feel planters can prevent
drivers from being fined and / or look better. 11 mentioned the proposed scheme does
not put residents first and 5 mentioned concerns about visitor access. Of those
reporting living outside of the scheme boundary, and giving a reason for the proposed
Experimental CHN, 6 expressed concerns about visitors losing access to houses and
local businesses, 7 expressed a preference to keep the planters, and 3 raised
concerns about personal safety.

Elmers Road Area

Leaflets were delivered to the 239 properties within the area of the LTN / proposed
CHN. There was a total of 111 responses to the online questionnaire, of which 44
were from within the area of the LTN, approximating to a response rate of 18%. 51%
of respondents were female compared with 40% male. Amongst the respondents, the
proportion describing themselves as White English/British was higher than in the local
population and Borough wide population. The proportion of respondents within the
age range 31 to 64 was much higher than those in this age range in the local population
and Borough wide population. Car ownership was high amongst the respondents with
81% owning a car. The main reasons given why the respondents do not walk or cycle
more include ‘concerns about road safety/road danger’, ‘Traffic speed’, ‘Traffic
volume’, ‘Unpleasant street environment’. The ‘majority’ of respondents expressed a
positive view opinion of the temporary LTN scheme. 57% of those who live within the
scheme boundary expressed a positive opinion towards the temporary scheme but
amongst respondents living outside the scheme boundary, 51% expressed a negative
opinion. The most common theme from the respondents who live within the scheme
boundary disliking the current temporary scheme was ‘turning/reversing issues’, with
93% of those living within the scheme boundary expressing a negative opinion,
mentioning this reason. For respondents who live outside the scheme boundary and
displayed a expressed a negative opinion of the existing scheme, their most frequently
mentioned themes was ‘more congestion, with 41% giving this reason. A clear
‘majority’ amongst respondents were against the Experimental CHN proposals. The
main reason most frequently given for opposing the experimental proposal, was a
preference to keep the planters, as they do not result in fines. Other concerns were
about access to permits and reluctance to pay for permits. Amongst those who agreed
with replacing the planters with camera enforced ‘No Motor Vehicles’ restrictions, the
most common reason was providing better access for emergency vehicles and
residents.

Kemerton Road Area

Leaflets were delivered to the 205 properties within the area of the LTN/ proposed
CHN. There was a total of 42 responses to the online questionnaire, of which 32 were
from within the area of the LTN, approximating to a response rate of 16%.
Considerably more responses were received from women than men. Amongst the
respondents, the proportion describing themselves as White English/British was higher

Page 122



than in the local population and Borough wide population. The proportion of
respondents within the age range 31 to 64 was much higher than those in this age
range in the local population and Borough wide population. Car ownership was high
amongst the respondents with 79% owning a car. The main reasons given why the
respondents do not walk or cycle more include ‘concerns about road safety/road
danger’, ‘Traffic speed’, ‘Traffic volume’, ‘Unpleasant street environment’. The
‘majority’ of the respondents were positive about the existing temporary LTN but
strongly disagreed with the proposal to replace the current planters with bollards
including fold down bollard for emergency services’ vehicle access to implement the
experimental scheme.

Table 4-2: Attitudes on the Temporary Scheme in its Current Table 5-1: Opinions regarding Replacing Existing Planters with
Format Fold-down, Lockable Bollard
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary
o [ % | e | % | [ x| o [ %

Very Negative 7 23% 2 20% Strongly Disagree 21 70% 3 30%
Negative 1 3% 1 10% Disagree 3 10% 1 10%
Neutral 3 10% 2 20% Neutral 3 10% 3 30%
Positive 17 57% 4 40% Agree 1 3% 3 30%

Very Positive 2 7% 1 10% Strongly Agree 2 7% 0 0%

Total 30 100% 10 100% Total 30 100% 10 100%

Dalmally Road Area

Leaflets were delivered to the 1074 properties within the area of the LTN/ proposed
CHN. A total of 177 responses were received to the online questionnaire, of which
122 were from respondents giving their home post codes as within the area of the LTN,
approximating to a response rate of 11%. More responses were received from women
than men. Amongst the respondents, the proportion describing themselves as White
English/British was higher than in the local population. The proportion of respondents
within the age range 31 to 64 was higher than those in this age range in the local
population and Borough wide population. Car ownership was high amongst the
respondents with 79% owning a car.

The main reasons given Why the Why respondents don't walk and cycle for
respondents do not walk or cycle more s s

Other, 1%

include ‘concerns about road safety/road
danger’, ‘Traffic speed’, ‘Traffic volume’,
‘Unpleasant street environment’. Of the
respondents living in the scheme are (the
large majority of respondents), 54%
indicated their support for the Temporary
LTN scheme. Overall, 52% of the
respondents  disagreed  with  the
proposals for the Experimental CHN,
while 38% agreed and 10% were neutral.
Amongst those opposed to the proposal
the most commonly cited reason was
concerns over confusion and unfair fines
/ the need for clear signage, etc.

Page 123



Page 124



G¢T obed

7

PJA

London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis

October 2021

Project Code: 05754

PJA

G.03

Wenlock Studios
50 - 52 Wharf Road
London

N1 7EU

pja.co.uk



Page 126



Questionnaire Response Analysis

Version l Date ‘ Main Contributor ‘ Issued by ‘Approved by
A 14 August 2021 HH Y IMQ
B 07 October 2021 MW Y IMQ

Prepared for

London Borough of Croydon

/2T abed

London Borough of Croydon Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Consultation Response Analysis



8¢T obed

Section

1.2

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5

4.1
4.2

6
6.2
6.3

Page
oY o eYa [1Tof i o s PRt 6
Background 6
The SUIVEY ..o 7
Survey Format 7
Demographics of Respondents 10
Demographic Representation 12
Limitations 17
Coding of Responses 18
Travel patterns around Addiscombe ........cc.....eeee.. 19
Changing travel patterns during the pandemic 19
Feedback on the temporary scheme........................ 21
Views about the Temporary Scheme 21
Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme 24

Views about the Proposed Improvements under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO).....

SUMMANY .o
Survey Results
What Does it Mean?

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



6¢T abed

Appendix A Postcode Location of Respondents’
Address 32

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhoods: Dalmally Road

Questionnaire Response Analysis



0¢T obed

111

1.1.2

1.2

121

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
guestionnaire for  Croydon’s  Healthy

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

responses

This report will analyse the responses to the existing and
proposed changes to the Addiscombe CHN measure on
Dalmally Road.

Background

The CHN programme follows on from the temporary Low
Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN) schemes introduced in May
2020, which was part of Transport for London's Streetspace
programme. The temporary schemes were created in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic, with the aim to create
more space for people to safely walk or cycle. It additionally

aims to:

e Make streets safer, cleaner and quieter;

e Support more sustainable travel methods, like walking or
cycling whilst also enabling and encouraging increased
physical activity; and

e Address concerns over air pollution and the current

climate crisis.

1.2.2

1.2.3

124

Replacing the temporary scheme created in May 2020, the
proposed changes to the measure on Dalmally Road aims to
retain the overall objectives of LTNs but allow better access
for residents too, primarily by replacing planters with
Automatic Number Plate Recognition Camera (ANPR)
enforced restriction.

Croydon residents were invited to submit their views about
the new scheme via the map-based survey on Croydon’s
‘Get Involved’ website.

This report begins with outlining the survey format and
providing a general overview on the demographics of
respondents, then analyses the responses in detail. The
report examines travel patterns around Addiscombe,
respondents’ views and perceived impacts of the existing
temporary scheme, and views about the proposed
improvements under the Experimental Traffic Regulation
Order (ETRO) to replace the existing planters with ANPR

camera enforced restriction.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



TET abed

2.1

211

2.1.2

2.13

2.14

Survey Format

The survey asked respondents for their views on the
temporary modal filter on Dalmally Road. Respondents could
complete an online survey sharing their views on the existing
scheme and proposals to upgrade the filter to camera

enforced restrictions.

A ‘Likert’ scale type question was used to gauge views on the
different schemes. Likert scales enable respondents to state
the extent to which they agree with a statement or have a
preference, as opposed to a binary yes/no choice.

To help people clarify their responses to the questions
related to the schemes, respondents were able to provide

additional comments to clarify and expand on their views.

The survey aimed to gain an understanding of the extent to
which local people feel the scheme has made their street
healthier, and how it might be improved to better achieve

these aims.

Figure 2-1: Excerpt from The Survey
What (if anything) stops you from walking and cycling for more journeys in and around
?

* This question must be answered
Please tick all that apply.

Concern about road safetyfroad danger 0
Traffic speed O
Traffic volume ]
Unpleasant street environment O
Topography (hills) O
Disability O
Other O

Please Specify

Please select vehicles (if any) you own from the following List:

* This question must be answered

Own a car e)
Own a motorbike O
Own a van or other commercial vehicle for work purposes
Own a combination of these @]

Do not own any of these O

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



Z<T obed

Please select the extent of the impact on road safety in your street since the temporary

scheme was put in? E.g. easier to cross, less collisions etc.
If you selected owning any of the vehicles at question 9, do you also walk, cycle or use

public transport for some of your journeys? * This question must be red
* This question must be answered Much better O
Please select the extent as to how much walking, cycling and scooting you are doing now, Slightly better O

than before the Covid-19 pandemic:
About the same @]

* This question must be answered
Slightly worse O
Much more O Much worse e
Slightly more @] Please select the extent of the impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was
About the same o put in. E.g. Air pollution, noise congestion etc.
Slightly less o) This question must be ansiered
Much less @] Much better O
. i Slightly better @]
Are there children and/or young people in your household? gy
About the same O
* This question must be answered . -
Slightly worse @)
Much worse O

If ‘Yes’ please select the extent as to how much they are walking, cycling, scooting and
skating now, than before the Covid-19 pandemic: Please select the extent of the conditions for walking, cycling, and scooting now compared

to before the temporary scheme was in place?

* This question must be answered
* This question must be answered
Much more o)
Slightly more o Much better o)
About the same o Slightly better o)
Slightly less o About the same o)
Much less o Slightly worse o
Much worse o)
Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road) 8 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



ceT abed

Please rate how strongly you support or do not support the
existing_scheme? The question relating to the proposed scheme appears
separately further in the questionnaire.

* This question must be answered

Strongly support
Slightly support
Neutral

Slightly do not support

Do not support at all

Please explain your answer to question 14:

How do you feel about the temporary scheme in its current format?

* This question must be answered

Very positive
Positive
Neutral
Negative
Very negative

Please explain your answer to question 16, including any positive or negative impacts you

feel the temporary scheme has had on you:

@]
o

O

O

Please rate the extent as to how much you agree or disagree with replacing the existing
scheme with that as proposed and explained in the consultation leaflet and outlined on our
healthy neighbourhood website.

* This question must be answered

Strongly agree
Agree

Neutral
Disagree

Strongly disagree

Please explain your answer to question 18, including any positive or negative impacts you
feel this option, if implemented, will have on you.

If you also have any other suggestions for how we could make the area safer, quieter and
less polluted, can you please tell us?

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



yeT obed

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

2.2.4

2.2.5

Demographics of Respondents

A total of 177 responses were received through the online

survey for comments based on measures at Dalmally Road.

Respondents were asked if they were responding as any of
the following, and were able to select more than one

answer; ‘resident’, ‘business’, ‘school’, ‘visitor’ or ‘other’.

177 respondents stated they were a resident, 3 selected
‘business’, 8 selected ‘visitor’ and 3 selected ‘other’. Some

respondents selected more than one category.

When asked if they lived locally to the scheme or travel
through the area, 168 respondents answered with 90%
stating that they live locally to the scheme, 5% stating that
they only travel through the area and 5% answering ‘other’
only as shown in Table 2-1 below.

Some respondents selected ‘living locally’ and then
additional categories. For the analysis, they have been
assigned to the ‘living locally’ category, with only those not
living locally being assigned to their other categories. This is
so that the feelings of local residents can be understood

separately from those passing through or visiting.

2.2.6

2.2.7

Table 2-1: Online Engagement Responses Local or Travel Through

Live local to the temporary

neighbourhood 152 90%
Travel through the area 8 5%
Other 8 5%
Total 168 100%

The respondents’ postcodes were plotted against the
Addiscombe (Damally Road area) CHN boundary to assess
how many respondents live within the scheme boundary.
The results are shown in Table 2-2 below, and a plan showing
the postcode location of respondents’ addresses with the
Damally Road scheme boundary is attached in Appendix A.

Table 2-2: Online Engagement Responses Live Within or Outside
of the Scheme Boundary

Live within the scheme

122 7
boundary o
Live outside of the scheme 55 31%
boundary
Total 177 100%

Amongst the 152 respondents who identified themselves as
living locally in Table 2-1, 118 (78%) live within the scheme

boundary.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

10

London Borough of Croydon



GeT obed

2.2.8

2.2.9

Table 2-2 demonstrates that most respondents (28%) fell
into the 31-40 age category, with 23% in the 51-60 age
category. Table 2-3 shows that slightly more females
completed the survey than other genders, at 48%.

Table 2-2-3: Online Engagement by Age

Under 18 2 1%
18-30 13 9%
31-40 43 28%
41-50 18 12%
51-60 34 23%
61-64 7 5%
65 and over 18 12%
Prefer not to say 16 11%
Total 151 100%

Table 2-4: Engagement by Gender

Gender | __No.__| %

Male 64 42%
Female 72 48%
Other 5 3%
Prefer not to say 10 7%
Total 151 100%

Table 2-5 demonstrates that most respondents (79%)
identified as Heterosexual/Straight. 151

answered this question. Table 2-6 shows that the majority of

respondents

2.2.10

respondents (45%) had no religion, with 38% identifying as

Christian.

Table 2-5: Online Engagement by Sexual Orientation

| N %

Heterosexual/Straight 120 79%
Gay/Lesbian 3 2%
Bi-Sexual 5 3%
Prefer to self describe 3 2%
Prefer not to say 20 13%
Total 151 100%

Table 2-6: Online Engagement by Religion

I N

None 68 45%
Christian 58 38%
Hindu 4 3%
Sikh 0 0%
Muslim 0 0%
Jewish 0 0%
Buddhist 1 1%
Any other religion 1 1%
Prefer not to say 19 13%
Total 151 100%

Respondents were asked to describe their ethnic origin.
Most respondents (57%) described themselves as White
English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British. 13% of

London Borough of Croydon

11

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



o¢T obed

respondents preferred not to say. 151 respondents
answered the question and Table 2-7 shows all the

responses.

Table 2-7: Online Engagement by Ethnic Origin

| No | %

White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish /
British
White Irish

(o]
[e)]

57%

5%
0%
6%
4%
0%
1%
1%
3%
0%
0%
0%
2%
1%
4%
1%
0%
3%
Prefer not to say 13%
Total 151 100%

White Gypsy or Irish Traveller
Any other White background
White and Black Caribbean
White and Black African
White and Asian

Any other Mixed / multiple ethnic background
Indian

Pakistani

Bangladeshi

Chinese

Any other Asian background
Black African

Black Caribbean

Any other Black background
Arab

Other

~AlO P ON WO O O &N P O O O O N

N
o

2.2.11

2.2.12

23

231

Respondents were asked to disclose their annual household
income. Most respondents (40%) preferred not to disclose
this information, 33% of respondents have an annual
household income of £50,000 and above. 151 respondents
answered this question.

Table 2-8: Online Engagement by Annual Household Income

N %

£0 - £10,000 0 0%
£10,000 - £20,000 5 3%
£20,000 - £30,000 9 6%
£30,000 - £40,000 7 5%
£40,000 - £50,000 20 13%
£50,000 and above 50 33%
Prefer not to say 60 40%
Total 151 100%

Respondents were asked to state whether they had any form
of disability. All respondents either stated that they did not

have a disability or preferred not to say.

Demographic Representation

The demographics from the respondents of the survey have
been compared to the demographics of the existing
population. This is to exhibit the level of representation of

the survey respondents to the existing population.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

12

London Borough of Croydon



2.3.2
2.3.3
o
jab)
«Q
D
=
w
\]
234
2.3.5

It is examined in a two-tier approach:

(1) The demographics of respondents living within
scheme boundary is compared with the demographics

of the population local to the scheme; and

(2) The demographics of all respondents is compared
with the demographics of the Croydon borough.

Demographic Comparison: Respondents living within

scheme boundary and the local population

2011 Census data has been extracted with the lower super
output areas (LSOA’s) that cover the Damlally Road scheme
(Croydon 022C, 017B and 017D) selected. For income
statistics, ‘Income estimates for small areas, England and
Wales (2018 edition)’ published by Office for National

Statistics has been used.

An average of these areas has been taken to compare the
demographics of the scheme area to the demographics of
survey respondents who live within the scheme boundary
(referred as 'survey sample’ below). The results are shown
in Table 2-10 below.

It is worth noting that the data for the existing population is
from 2011 so may be slightly out of date but it is the only

data available to provide a comparison to the demographics

of the survey responses.

Table 2-9: The Demographics of Survey Respondents Living
Within the Scheme Boundary, in comparison to Damally Road
Area Existing Demographics

Survey Sample Local
(Respondents living in | Population
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics

[ | % Jrewen| % |
49

Male 42% 50%
Gender Female 51% 59 50%
(2011 .

Census) Other 3% 3 n/a
Prefer not to say 4% 5 n/a

Under 18 1% 1 21%

18-30 8% 9 19%

Age 31-40 29% 34 19%
(2011 41-50 13% 15 16%
Census) 51-60 22% 25 10%
61-64 6% 7 3%

65 and over 12% 14 11%

Prefer not to say 9% 11 n/a

None 47% 55 9%
Christian 41% a7 54%

Religion Hindu 3% 3 5%
(2011 Sikh 0% 0 0%
Census) Muslim 0% 0 7%
Jewish 0% 0 0%

Buddhist 1% 1 1%

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



g¢T obed

Survey Sample

(Respondents living in
the Scheme Boundary)

A
ny other 0%
religion

Prefer not to say 9%

White English /
Welsh / Scottish /

0,
Northern Irish / 60%
British
White Irish 4%
White Gypsy or o
Irish Traveller 0%
Any other White 0
background %
White and Black o
Caribbean 4%
White and Black
Ethnic African 0%
Origin
(2011 White and Asian 1%
Census) Any other Mixed
/ multiple ethnic 2%
background
Indian 3%
Pakistani 0%
Bangladeshi 0%
Chinese 0%
Any other Asian 0
background 3%
Black African 2%

Black Caribbean 3%

10

70

o O O w

Local
Population
Statistics

=

1%

9%

49%

2%

0%

8%

3%

1%

2%

2%

6%
2%
1%
1%

4%

6%
8%

2.3.6

2.3.7

Survey Sample Local

(Respondents living in | Population
the Scheme Boundary)

Statistics

e

Any other Black
background

Arab
Other

Prefer not to say

£0-£10,000
£10,000 -
£20,000
£20,000 -
Annual £30,000
:'l'::‘;ﬁ:”d £30,000 -
£4
(2018 ONS 0,000
statistics) £40,000 -
£50,000
£50,000 and
above

Prefer not to say

1%

0%

3%

9%

3%

7%

3%

13%

38%

36%

3%

0 0%
1%
10 n/a

£53,550
15

44

42

Table 2-10 shows that the survey sample has a lower

proportion of responses from males in comparison to the

local population statistics.

It should also be noted that

Census 2011 data did not include ‘other’ gender categories.

The survey sample has more responses from those aged

between 31-60, when the younger demographics make up a

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

14

London Borough of Croydon



2.3.8
2.3.9

o

jab)

«Q

D

=

w

O
2.3.10

higher percentage of the existing population in the scheme

area.

A much higher proportion of people with no religion were
captured in the survey sample than the proportion within
the existing population in the scheme area. Additionally, the
survey sample received a lower proportion of Christians,

Muslims and Hindus completing the survey.

It was also shown that the survey sample has a much higher
proportion of responses from those who are White English /
Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British than recorded in
the existing population. The survey sample also only
received 3% of responses from those who are Black
Carribbean, despite this community making up 8% of the
Similar under-representation is also

local population.

evident for those with an Indian and Black African

background.

For the existing population, only the average annual
household income data was available from the Office of
National Statistics (ONS). For the MSOA’s covering the
scheme (Croydon 017 and 022), the average total income in
2018 was £53,550. The survey sample has a higher
proportion of responses from those with a household

income of £50,000 and above compared to other categories

23.11

2.3.12

at 38%. Please note that 36% of the sample responded
‘Prefer not to say’ for this question, hence this comparison

might not be fully accurate.

Demographic Comparison: All respondents and the
population of the Croydon borough

2011 Census data was examined again with the whole
Croydon borough selected. For income statistics, ‘Income
estimates for small areas, England and Wales (2018 edition)’
published by Office for National Statistics has been used.

The comparison between the borough-wide population

demographics and the overall survey respondents’

demographics are displayed in Table 2-11 below.

Table 2-10: Survey Respondents’ Demographics Compared to
Borough-Wide Population

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

%

Overall Survey
Responses

Male 42% 64 48%
Gender Female 48% 72 52%

(2011 5
Census) Other 3% 5 n/a
Prefer not to say | 7% 10 n/a
Under 18 1% 2 25%

Age

18-30 9% 13 18%

London Borough of Croydon

15

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



ot T obed

Borough-wide Borough-wide
Overall Survey & . Overall Survey B .
Population Population
Responses . . Responses . ..
Statistics Statistics

I 8 7 B e

(2011 31-40 28% 15% White and Black
0% 1%
Census) 41-50 12% 18 15% African
51-60 23% 34 11% White and Asian 1% 1 1%
61-64 5% 7 4% Any other Mixed
/ multiple ethnic | 1% 2 2%
65 and over 12% 18 12% background
Prefer nottosay @ 11% 16 n/a Indian 39 4 79%
None 45% 68 20% Pakistani 0% 0 3%
Christian 38% 58 56% Bangladeshi 0% 0 1%
Hindu 3% 4 6% Chinese 0% 0 1%
Religion . = - — Any other Asian |, 3 5%
(ZOgll Muslim 0% 0 8% background ° ’
Census) Jewish 0% 0 0% Black African 1% 2 8%
Buddhist 1% 1 1% Black Caribbean 4% 6 9%
Any other 1% 1 1% Any other Black 1% 1 4%
religion background
Prefer not to say | 13% 19 n/a Arab 0% 0 0%
White English / Other 3% 4 1%
V\lileolithh{e rsrfcl)::slzh// 57% 26 47% Prefer not to say = 13% 20 n/a
British £0 - £10,000 0% 0
Ethnic White Irish 5% 7 1% £10,000 - 3%
Origin White Gypsy or Annual £20,000 ’ >
g . ypsy 0% 0 0% Household
(2011 Irish Traveller | £20.000 -
Census) | Any other White Do £30,000 6% 9
g k d 6% 9 6% (2018 ONS ’
ackgroun icti
g statistics) £30,000 - .
White and Black o o £40.000 5% 7 £53,477
Caribbean 4% 6 3% !
Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road) 16 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



T T abed

2.3.13

2.3.14

2.3.15

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

% | Frequenc %
|| % |Frequency| % |

£40,000 -

Overall Survey
Responses

0,
£50,000 13% 20
£
50,000 and 339% 50
above
Prefer not to say = 40% 60

Table 2-11 demonstrates that the survey received a lower
proportion of male responses than the Croydon population,
despite both male and female are slightly under-represented
compared to the borough-wide statistics. This might be due
to the number of respondents selecting ‘Prefer not to say’
for this question.

In addition, those under 30 is one of the largest proportions
of the existing population for Croydon, making up 43% of the
population, yet this age category only accounts for 10% of

the survey respondents.

For ethnic origin, White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern
Irish / British has the highest proportion of respondents for
both the survey respondents and the existing population.
The survey received a lower proportion of responses from

‘any other Asian background’, Indian, Black Carribbean and

2.3.16

24

241

2.4.2

2.4.3

Black African than the proportion within the borough-wide

population.

The average annual household income in 2018 was £53,477
in the Croydon borough. The survey overall received a higher
proportion of responses from those with an annual
household income of £50,000 and above at 33%. Please note
that approximately 40% of survey respondents responded
‘Prefer not to say’ for this question, hence this comparison

might not be accurate.
Limitations

As shown in Section 2.3, there is an under-representation of
Under-

representation amongst income groups cannot be clearly

response from certain demographic groups.

determined.

In addition, the use of online survey methods for this
qguestionnaire may have excluded the participation of the

offline population.

Therefore, care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community.

London Borough of Croydon

17

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2T obed

2.5

251

2.5.2

2.5.3

254

Coding of Responses

To analyse the free text comments a coding frame has been
produced. The frame has been developed using a sample of
responses that have been analysed in detail to identify

commonly mentioned locations, issues and subjects.

These codes have been used to initially interrogate the free-
text responses. Following an initial analysis, codes were
reviewed by the project team. This process included a review
of all categories, including a focus on those that cannot be
categorised into a specific category and coded as ‘other’.

Where relevant, additional codes and categories were then
generated. The complete set of codes can be seen in the data

analysis.

Each response was fully analysed using the codes. Each
section or subject of each response was coded and included

in the complete analysis.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

18

London Borough of Croydon



3.1
3.11
3.1.2
o
jab)
«Q
D
=
D
w
3.1.3

Changing travel patterns during the pandemic

Respondents were asked to what extent they and any young
people in their household were now walking, cycling or
scooting compared to before the Covid-19 pandemic, as

shown in Table 3-1.

164 respondents answered this question about themselves,
45% stating that overall they were walking, cycling or
scooting more after the pandemic, 14% stating that they
were travelling this way less overall, and 40% stating ‘about

the same’.

Table 3-1: Extent of Walking, Cycling and Scooting amongst
Respondents following the Covid-19 Pandemic

N %

Much more 39 24%
Slightly more 35 21%
About the same 66 40%
Slightly less 12 7%
Much less 12 7%
Total 164 100%

Respondents were then asked: ‘Are there children and/or
young people in your household?’, 63 respondents (36%)
answered yes. This 36% were then asked the extent to which

3.14

they are currently walking, cycling or scooting compared to
before the pandemic. 47% of them stated that they were
walking, cycling or scooting more, 10% stated less, and 44%
stated ‘about the same’. 62 respondents answered this

question.

Table 3-2: Extent of More Walking, Cycling and Scooting Among
Young People in Respondents’ Households Following the Covid-
19 Pandemic

N %

Much more 13 21%
Slightly more 16 26%
About the same 27 44%
Slightly less 3 5%
Much less 3 5%
Total 62 100%

Respondents were also asked about vehicle ownership, the
results for which are set out in Figure 3-1. 165 responded to
this question, with 82% stating that they own one of the
vehicles listed, compared to 18% stating that they don’t. In
comparison to the 2011 Census (Output area level), about
58% of households within the Dalmally Road scheme
boundary have access to a car or van, as opposed to about
42% that did not.

London Borough of Croydon

19

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



v T obed

Figure 3-1: Vehicle Ownership Among Respondents

Vehicle Ownership

= Car

= Motorbike

3% = Van or other commercial
2%

~ \ vehicle for work
= A combination of these
1% §

= None of these

3.15 Respondents who stated that they owned a car and/or
motorbike were asked if they walk, cycle or take public
transport for some of their journeys. 136 people responded.
95% stated they do and 5% stated they don’t.

3.1.6 Respondents were asked what stops them from walking and
cycling for more journeys around Addiscombe. There were
172 responses to the question and the results are set out in
Figure 3-2. The most frequently selected reason was
‘concern about road safety/road danger’, followed by ‘traffic

speed’.

Figure 3-2: Why respondents don’t walk and cycle for more journeys

Why respondents don't walk and cycle for
more journeys

Unpleasant

street
environment,
12%

Traffic volum
22%

Other, 1%

Traffic speed,
26%

Concern about
road

safety/road

danger, 39%

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road) 20

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

G T abed

Views about the Temporary Scheme

Respondents were asked to rate how strongly they do or

don’t support the temporary modal filter on Dalmally Road.

There were 154 responses to this question. Of those who live
within the scheme boundary, 54% showed support for the
scheme, while 35% of those who live outside the scheme
boundary showed support for the scheme. 36% of those who
live within the scheme boundary did not support the
scheme, compared to 64% of those who live outside the
scheme boundary. The results are set out in Table 4-1.

Table 4-1: Extent of Support for the Existing Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| Mo | % | No | %

Do not support at all 42 36% 22 59%
Slightly do not 0 0% 2 5%
support

Neutral 6 5% 0 0%
Slightly support 15 13% 2 5%
Strongly support 48 41% 11 30%
Total 117 100% 37 100%

4.1.3

414

4.1.5

Respondents were also asked specifically how they felt
about the scheme in its current format. Their responses are
set out in Table 4-2.

49% of respondents who live within the scheme boundary
stated that they felt positive or very positive about the
scheme in its current form, while 33% of those who live
outside the scheme boundary stated the same. The majority
(62%) of those who live outside the scheme boundary felt
negative or very negative towards the scheme in its current
form, compared to 41% of those living within the scheme

boundary.

Table 4-2: Perceptions of the Scheme in its Current Form

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. | % | No. | % |
31

Very negative 26% 17 46%
Negative 18 15% 6 16%
Neutral 11 9% 2 5%
Positive 21 18% 1 3%
Very positive 36 31% 11 30%
Total 117 100% 37 100%

The most frequently mentioned themes for supporting the

scheme were:

— The scheme results in less traffic (38)

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



/7

°

4.1.6

o T abed

— The scheme results in less noise (33)

The scheme creates less rat running (23)

— The scheme slows traffic (21)

The scheme is safer (20)

63 respondents who live within the scheme boundary and
hold positive stance about the scheme (see Table 4-2).
Figure 4-1 shows the most frequently mentioned themes for
those who live within the scheme boundary and have a
positive attitude towards the scheme. The most frequently
mentioned themes are that the scheme results in less traffic
(35), makes less noise (29) and that it results in less rat

running (23).

Figure 4-1: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Within the
Scheme Boundary to Feel Positive about the Scheme

4.1.7

Most popular themes for those who live within

the scheme boundary to feel positive towards the

scheme
35
29
23 19
16 15
I I I ’
O 2 & O < =S <
S oo\% <\°\° «’s& %’g’& S N
o S < N ©
S Q & o o
\/Q' < O\V\ ‘_)r_,Q
& S ¥
N

The 13 respondents who hold positive views towards the
scheme and live outside of the scheme boundary (see Table
4-2), mentioned in their explanation that the scheme is good
for pedestrians (7), makes the area safer (4), creates less

noise (4) and is better for cycling (4), as shown in Figure 4-2.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



/T abed

Figure 4-2: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary to Feel Positive about the Scheme

Most popular themes for those who live outside
the scheme boundary to feel positive towards the

scheme

8 7

7

6

5 4 4 4
4

3

2

1

0

Good for Safer Less noise Better for cycling

peds/walking

4.1.8 The most popular themes for feeling negative towards the

scheme were:
— The scheme is an inconvenience and results in longer
journeys (48)
— The scheme creates more noise (34)
— The scheme results in more pollution (21)
4.1.9 42 of those who live within the scheme boundary and hold

negative views about the existing scheme (see Table 4-2),

the results for their most frequently mentioned themes for

Figure

feeling negative towards the scheme are shown in Figure 4-
3. The most frequently mentioned themes are that the
scheme causes inconvenience and creates longer journeys
(41), creates more traffic (21), creates more pollution (13)
and has a negative impact on emergency services (9).

4-3: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Inside the

Scheme Boundary to Feel Negative about the Scheme

45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

[€,]

4.1.10

Most popular themes for those who live within
the scheme boundary to feel negative towards
the scheme

41
21
13
. :
Inconvenience/ More traffic

longer journeys

More pollution  Negative impact

to emergency
services

The 24 respondents who hold negative views towards the
scheme and live outside of the scheme boundary (see Table
4-2), mentioned in their explanation that the scheme causes

more traffic or congestion (13), results in more pollution (8),

London Borough of Croydon 23

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



81T abed

causes an inconvenience due to longer journey times (7), and

that it is more dangerous (4), as shown in Figure 4-4.

Figure 4-4: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary to Feel Negative about the Scheme

14
12
10

o N B O

4.2

4.2.1

Most popular themes for those who live outside
of the scheme boundary to feel negative towards
the scheme

13
8
7
I I 4
More traffic Inconvenience/ More dangerous

longer journeys

More pollution

Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme

To assess the perceived impacts of the temporary scheme,
respondents were asked; ‘Please select the extent of the
impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was
put in? E.g. Air pollution, noise, congestion etc’. Of those
who live within the scheme boundary, 53% thought the

impacts are better, with 29% stating that the impacts are

4.2.1

about the same, as shown in Table 4-3. Of those who live
outside the scheme boundary, 33% perceive the impacts as

better, and 35% perceive them as worse.

Table 4-3: Extent of the Impact of the Scheme

Live Outside of the

Live within the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. | % | No. | % |
48

Much better 40% 9 23%
Slightly better 16 13% 4 10%
About the same 35 29% 13 33%
Slightly worse 6 5% 4 10%
Much worse 16 13% 10 25%
Total 121 100% 40 100%

When asked to select the extent of the impact on road safety
since the temporary scheme was put in e.g. easier to cross,
fewer collisions etc, 54% of those who live within the scheme
boundary said it is better than before, as opposed to 14%
thinking it is worse. For those who live outside the scheme
boundary, 33% stated that road safety is better than before
the scheme was put into place, while 35% thought it is the
same and another 33% thought it was worse than before, as

shown in Table 4-4 on the next page.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

24

London Borough of Croydon



61T abed

Table 4-5: Extent of the Conditions for Walking, Cycling and
Scooting now from the Scheme

Table 4-4: Extent of the Impact of Road Safety from the Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No | % | No | % |
48

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

o [ % |
40 3

Much better 40% 11 28% Much better 33% 12 0%
Slightly better 17 14% 2 5% Slightly better 16 13% 1 3%
About the same 39 32% 14 35% About the same 55 45% 16 40%
Slightly worse 5 4% 5 13% Slightly worse 0 0% 4 10%
Much worse 12 10% 8 20% Much worse 10 B% 7 18%
Total 121 100% 40 100% Total 121 100% 40 100%
4.2.2 Table 4-5 shows the responses to Question 13 of the survey:
‘Please select the extent of the conditions for walking,
cycling and scooting now compared to before the temporary
scheme was in place?’. For those who live within the scheme
boundary, 46% said that conditions were better than before,
and 45% reported that conditions were about the same. 40%
of respondents who live outside the scheme boundary
reported that the conditions for walking, cycling and
scooting have remained around the same since the scheme
came into place, 33% stated that it is better than before, and
28% stated that it is worse than before.
London Borough of Croydon 25 Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



511

5.1.2

0GT abed

In this section of the survey, respondents were asked about
their opinion with replacing the existing modal filter with
ANPR cameras which would permit vehicles for authorised

residents and emergency vehicles.

Question 18 of the survey asked whether the respondents
agree with this or not. 153 responded to this question, and
the results of this question are shown in Table 5-1. Overall,
52% disagreed with replacing the planter with camera-
enforced closure, while 38% agreed and 10% remained

neutral.

Table 5-1: Attitudes on Replacing Existing Scheme with
Proposed Improvements

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. | % | No. | % |
45

Strongly Disagree 39% 22 59%
Disagree 10 9% 3 8%
Neutral 13 11% 3 8%
Agree 25 22% 5 14%
Strongly Agree 23 20% 4 11%
Total 116 100% 37 100%

5.1.3

5.14

5.1.5

Amongst respondents who live inside the scheme boundary,
42% agreed with

enforcement overall, while 25% of those who live outside

replacing the planter with camera

the scheme boundary agreed. For those who live inside the
scheme boundary, 48% disagreed, which rose to 67% for
those who live outside the scheme boundary.

Figure 5-2 on the next page shows the most frequently
mentioned themes of the respondent’s explanations to the
question above. Amongst the 213 coded responses, 51 (24%)

stated concerns confusion and unfair fines.

Aside from the general reasons for opposing low traffic
schemes, 42 (20%) mentioned a preference to keep the
planters in place, claiming physical barriers are needed to
stop drivers. Some respondents also said they prefer physical
barriers rather than cameras, as they can avoid annoyance

or threat of being fined.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

26

London Borough of Croydon



TGT abed

Figure 5-1: Most Common Comments Regarding Proposals for an ANPR-

Enforced Closure

Concern re traffic displacement to
surroundings and main roads/ pollution

Prefer drop-able bollards for emergency
services

Concerned it continues the issues
identified for the planter

Will increase traffic and make walking and
cycling less safe

Prefer to keep planters in places

Concerns re personal safety due to lower
traffic flows/ being unable to access by car

Concerns over confusion and unfair fines,
need for clear signage, etc.

Requirement to apply for permits/cost of
permits

Concerns around visitors/ delivery being
able to access houses and local businesses

Concerns about resident access

Puts residents first / need to prioritise
residents

Will result in safer environment for walking
& cycling with less traffic

Will result in better access for emergency
services and/or residents

Get rid of all restrictions/keep roads open
for all

M Live outside scheme boundary

g

0

Il 3

0

i

0

I 5

-11

31

0

2

1
39

|

NI
o

13

e I
_bw

i

12

o

5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 4
H Live inside scheme boundary

5.1.6

5.1.7

Finally, respondents were asked how they might make the
area safer, quieter and less polluted. These responses were
coded so that the most popular themes could be identified.
Figure 5-2 on the next page shows the most popular
examples and how many respondents put these ideas

forward.

Other suggested ideas included:

Retain existing scheme

- Improve/reduce costs of public transport

- Maintain local park and/ or improve Dalmally passage
- Cleaning the streets, addressing litter and fly-tipping
- No restrictions to traffic on Dalmally

- Use collapsible bollards/automatic barriers/gates with

access instead
- Crossing improvements
- Other traffic management approaches

- More trees and greenery

London Borough of Croydon

27

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



Figure 5-2: Most Popular Suggestions for Making the Area Safer, Quieter
and Less Polluted

5
4 4 4
3
T
Q
Q
@
BN
(o)
N Better Speed Personal safety &  Parking permits Better Traffic ~ Change planters to,
Enforcement tackle anti-social Calming measures  orinclude, one-
behaviour/police ways
presence, including
against E-scooters
Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road) 28 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



6.1.1
6.2
6.2.1

o

jab)

«Q

D

=

o)

w
6.2.2

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
Croydon Healthy

questionnaire responses for

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).
Survey Results
Travel patterns around Broad Green

The survey has shown that travel patterns for walking,
cycling and scooting around Broad Green since the Covid-19
45% of
respondents stated they have been walking, cycling and

pandemic has remained around the same.
scooting more, with 40% stated same as before. When asked
why they would choose not to walk, cycle or scoot, the most
popular reasons were concerns about road safety (39%),
traffic speed (26%) and traffic volume (22%).

Views about the Temporary Scheme

When rating the scheme overall, 54% of those who live
within the scheme boundary were in support, 36% against
and 5% neutral. When asked specifically about the scheme
in its current format, of those who live within the scheme

boundary, 49% were positive overall, 41% negative and 3%

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

neutral. The majority of those who live outside the scheme
boundary did not support the scheme at 64%, with 62%
expressing negative views about the scheme in its current

format.

When asked to what extent the scheme had improved the
street with regards to air quality and noise congestion, 53%
of those who live within the scheme boundary suggested it
had improved, while 29% suggested it was about the same.
33% of those who live outside the scheme boundary stated

that it had improved, with 35% stating that it was worse.

Views about the Proposed Improvements under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)

In terms of changing the existing scheme to an ANPR camera,
48% of those who live within the scheme boundary
disagreed, compared to a majority of 68% of those who live
outside the scheme boundary disagreeing. 11% of those who
live inside, and 8% of those live outside the scheme

boundary, felt neutral to the scheme.

There were clear concerns expressed over potential unfair
charges and costs to residents for permits, as well as
concerns that visitors would be disadvantaged if the cameras

were not made clear. There was also a large number of

London Borough of Croydon

29

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



6.3
6.3.1
o
jabl
Q
D
H
(03]
NS
6.3.2

comments who stated that they preferred the existing
scheme. However, also frequent was the acknowledgement
that the ANPR proposals would benefit emergency services
and give better access to residents. A number of comments
were about concerns on traffic displacement in general and

asking all measures to be removed.
What Does it Mean?

A similar show of support or no support in questions
highlights the mixed impressions towards the scheme. This
extremity of views is further highlighted by respondents
being more likely to select ‘strongly support or don’t
support’ than just ‘support or don’t support’ on most
guestions. The question about support for an ANPR was the
only case where this did not happen, with more in

agreement than strong agreement.

The fact that around half of those who live within the scheme
boundary think that the scheme has made improvements
regarding air quality and noise, road safety and conditions
for walking, cycling and scooting suggests there is merit in
keeping the scheme. However, the almost 50/50 split in
support suggests there could be serious resistance to doing

so, with some very negative comments submitted.

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

Results suggest that, regardless of how respondents feel
about the existing scheme, the majority do not support the
planters being replaced with a camera-enforced closure,
mostly due to concerns over unfair charging and lack of
clarity of the restriction compared to a physical closure.
There are several comments to suggest that the cameras
would not be as effective, while a number acknowledge how
access would be improved for emergency vehicles and
residents. The number of queries regarding costs, the
exemption for the cameras and parking permits suggests
that the proposals have not been entirely understood, which

may have affected the final result.

The existing scheme has created split views for the area
around Dalmally Road, with views less split on changing the

scheme to an ANPR camera too, but still contentious.

Comments suggest there is a significant concern for how the
camera enforcement would work, whether drivers would be
unfairly caught out due to poor signage, and whether the
costs of the scheme and any permits would fall to residents.
But there is an appreciation that camera enforcement would
allow for emergency vehicle access, which causes concern
for respondents. This suggests that further clarity may need
to be provided to residents for a clearer preference to be
identified.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

30

London Borough of Croydon



6.3.6

6.3.7

6.3.8

GGT obed

In addition, there are also concerns over lack of parking
availability and dangerous reversing manoeuvres also
suggest that consideration of changes to the existing
scheme, such as resident parking permits and
reconsideration of the filter location, may help to ensure
greater buy-in and ensure that the scheme works to benefit
more local people.

If the local authority is determined to achieve buy-in for the
proposals, then substantial further clarification work must
be done with residents to help them feel comfortable and

informed about potential financial implications.

Due to under-representation of response from certain
demographic groups, as well as the use of online survey
methods for this questionnaire, views of the survey
population may not be fully representative of the wider
population. Care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community.

London Borough of Croydon

31

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




9GT abed

Appendix A Postcode Location of
Respondents’ Address

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Dalmally Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

32

London Borough of Croydon



Roa¢

Q)

- c@
\C

\ e

o

QD o pHILIP
GAME
(DRECREATION

CENTRE
(o)

nl

bp

1=

0.25

CHAFFINCH
BROOK
SCHOOL

DAVIDSON
PRIMARY
SCHOOL

0.5

1 km

o

WOODSIDE
CHILDREN
CENTRE AND
INFANTS
SCHOOL

Jesmond Road

Yement Squ,
e

V)
9

JOM|9D

4
2
s ®°

&
Lower P

HAM
ION

Thornton
Heath

Croydon

pn

South Croydon
Addiscombe

°
e

Beckenham

West Wic

A3@1:3,600

Postcode Location of
. Survey Respondents'
addresses (of whom
provided a valid postcode)
— Temporary Streetspace/
CHN Scheme Boundary
(Dalmally Road)

N.B. Numbers on each dot
represents the amount of

responses received from the same

postcode (if there are more than
one)

Contains public sector information licensed under the OGL v3.0.
Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, METI/NASA, USGS, Esri Community
Maps Contributors, Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P,
METI/NASA, USGS

PJIA”

London Borough of
Croydon

G.03 Wenlock
Studios
50-52 Wharf Road
London N1 7EU
T. 0207 566 3939

Croydon HN

Pre-consultation Engagement

POSTCODE LOCATION OF

RESPONDENTS' ADDRESS
(DALMALLY ROAD SCHEME)

Y MQ 06/10/2021

Cl 4 A



This page is intentionally left blank



6GT abed

7

PJA

London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis

October 2021

Project Code: 05764

PJA

G.03

Wenlock Studios
50 - 52 Wharf Road
London

N1 7EU

pja.co.uk



Page 160



Version l Date ‘ Main Contributor ‘ Issued by
A 13 August 2021 ED Y
B 5 October 2021 MW Y

Prepared for

London Borough of Croydon

T9T abed

Questionnaire Response Analysis

‘Approved by
IMQ
IMQ

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)



Page 162



€97 abed

Section Page
I oY o eYa [1Tof i o s PRt 5
1.2 Background 5
2 The SUIVEY ..o 6
2.1 Survey Format 6
2.2 Demographics of Respondents 9
2.3 Demographic Representation 12
2.4  Limitations 17
2.5 Coding of Responses 17
3 Travel Patterns around Addiscombe ....................... 19
4 Feedback on the Temporary Scheme...................... 21
4.1 Views about the Temporary Scheme 21
4.2  Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme 25
5 Views about the Proposed Improvements under

6.2
6.3

Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)..... 27

SUMMAIY .o 29
Survey Results 29
What Does it Mean? 30

Consultation Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)



9T abed

Appendix A Postcode Location of Respondents’
Address 32

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



GoT abed

111

1.1.2

1.2

121

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
qguestionnaire  responses  for  Croydon’s  Healthy

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

This report will analyse the responses to the existing and
proposed changes to the Addiscombe CHN measure on
Elmers Road.

Background

The CHN programme follows on from the temporary Low
Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN) schemes introduced in May
2020, which was part of Transport for London's Streetspace
programme. The temporary schemes were created in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic, with the aim to create
more space for people to safely walk or cycle. It additionally

aims to:

e Make streets safer, cleaner and quieter

e Support more sustainable travel methods, like walking or
cycling whilst also enabling and encouraging increased
physical activity

e Address concerns over air pollution and the current

climate crisis

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

Replacing the temporary scheme created in May 2020, the
proposed changes to the measure on Elmers Road aims to
retain the overall benefits of LTNs but allow better access for
residents too, primarily by replacing planters with Automatic
Number Plate Recognition Camera (ANPR) enforced

restriction.

Croydon residents were invited to submit their views about
the new scheme via the survey on Croydon’s ‘Get Involved’

website.

This report begins with outlining the survey format and
providing a general overview of the demographics of
respondents, then analyses the responses in detail. The
report examines travel patterns around Addiscombe,
respondents views and perceived impacts on the existing
temporary scheme, and views about the proposed
improvements under the Experimental Traffic Regulation
Order (ETRO) to replace the existing planters with ANPR

camera enforced restrictions.

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




99T abed

2.1

211

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

Survey Format

The survey asked respondents about their views on the
temporary scheme on Elmers Road. Respondents could
complete an online survey sharing their views on the existing
scheme and proposals to upgrade the filter to camera

enforced restrictions.

A ‘Likert’ scale type question was used to gauge views on the
existing scheme and the potential to upgrade to ANPR
cameras. Likert scales enable respondents to state the
extent to which they agree with a statement or have a
preference, as opposed to a binary yes/no choice.

To help people clarify their responses to the questions
related to the scheme, respondents were able to provide

additional comments to clarify and expand on their views.

The survey aimed to gain an understanding of the extent to
which local people feel the scheme has made their street
healthier, and how it might be improved to better achieve

these aims.

Figure 2-1: Excerpts from The Survey

What (if anything) stops you from walking and cycling for more journeys in and around

?
* This question must be answered
Please tick all that apply.
Concern about road safety/road danger
Traffic speed
Traffic volume
Unpleasant street environment
Topography (hills}
Disability
Other

Please Specify

Please select vehicles (if any) you own from the following list:

* This question must be answered

Own a car

Own a motorbike

Own a van or other commercial vehicle for work purposes
Own a combination of these

Do not own any of these

O O 0o o0 0O

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



/9T abed

Please select the extent of the impact on road safety in your street since the temporary

If you selected owning any of the vehicles at question 9, do you also walk, cycle or use " . o
scheme was put in? E.g. easier to cross, less collisions etc.

public transport for some of your journeys?

) . * This question must be answered
* This question must be answered
Please select the extent as to how much walking, cycling and scooting you are doing now, Much better O
than before the Covid-19 pandemic:
Slightly better O
* This question must be answered
About the same ]
Much more O Slightly worse O
Slightly more @] Much worse O
About the same @) Please select the extent of the impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was
. - put in. E.g. Air pollution, noise congestion etc.
Slightly less O
* This question must be answered
Much less O
Much better o]
Are there children andfor you eople in your household?
Jor young peop ¥o Slightly better O
* mll'e
This question must be red About the same O
Slightly worse O
If 'Yes’ please select the extent as to how much they are walking, cycling, scooting and Much worse o)

skating now, than before the Covid-19 pandemic:

* This question must be answered Please select the extent of the conditions for walking, cycling, and scooting now compared
to before the temporary scheme was in place?

Much more O * This question must be answered
Slightly more @]
Much better O
About the same O
i Slightly better 0
Slightly less O
About the same O
Much less O
Slightly worse O
Much worse O
London Borough of Croydon 7 Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



89T abed

Please rate how strongly you support or do not support the
existing_scheme? The question relating to the proposed scheme appears
separately further in the questionnaire.

* This question must be answered
Strongly support O
Slightly support @]
Neutral O

Slightly do not support

Do not support at all

Please explain your answer to question 14:

How do you feel about the temporary scheme in its current format?

* This question must be answered
Very positive O
Positive O
Neutral O
Negative O
Very negative O

Please explain your answer to question 16, including any positive or negative impacts you
feel the temporary scheme has had on you:

Please rate the extent as to how much you agree or disagree with replacing the existing
scheme with that as proposed and explained in the consultation leaflet and outlined on our
healthy neighbourhood website.

* This question must be answered

Strongly agree
Agree

Neutral O
Disagree
Strongly disagree O

Please explain your answer to question 18, including any positive or negative impacts you
feel this option, if implemented, will have on you.

If you also have any other suggestions for how we could make the area safer, quieter and
less polluted, can you please tell us?

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



69T abed

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

2.2.4

2.2.5

Demographics of Respondents

A total of 111 responses were received through the online

survey for comments based on measures on Elmers Road.

Respondents were asked about their affiliation with the
neighbourhood and were able to select more than one

answer: ‘resident’, ‘business’, ‘school’, ‘visitor’ or ‘other’.

75 respondents stated they were a resident, 3 selected
‘business’, 7 selected ‘visitor’, and 3 selected ‘other’. Some

respondents selected more than one category.

When asked if they lived locally to the temporary
neighbourhood or travel through the area, 91% of the
respondents stated that they live locally, with 9% travelling
through, as shown in Table 2-1 below.

Some respondents selected ‘living locally to the temporary
neighbourhood’ and then additional categories. For the
analysis, they have been assigned to the ‘living locally to the
temporary neighbourhood’ category (referred to as ‘Live
Local’ in the rest of this report). Only those not living locally
being assigned to their other categories. This is so that the
feelings of local residents can be understood separately from

those passing through or visiting.

2.2.6

Table 2-1: Online Engagement Responses Local, Travel Through
or Other

N %

Live locally to the 78 91%
temporary neighbourhood

Travel through the area 8 9%
Study in the area 0 0%
Work in the area 0 0%
Other 0 0%
Total 86 100%

The respondents’ postcodes were plotted against the
Addiscombe (Elmers Road area) CHN boundary to assess
how many respondents live within the scheme boundary.
The results are shown in Table 2-2 below, and a plan
showing the postcode location of respondents’ addresses
with the Elmers Road scheme boundary is attached in
Appendix A.

Table 2-2: Online Engagement Responses Live Within or Outside
of the Scheme Boundary

Live within the scheme

0,
boundary “ o
Live outside of the scheme 67 60%
boundary
Total 111 100%

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2.2.7

2.2.8

0.T abed

Of the 78 respondents that identified themselves as living
locally in Table 2-1, 42 (54%) live within the scheme

boundary.

Table 2-3 demonstrates that slightly more females
completed the survey, at 51%. Table 2-4 shows that the 51-
60 age category is the most represented within the survey

with 29% of responses being within this category.

Table 2-3: Online Engagement by Gender

Gender | No.__| %

Male 28 40%
Female 36 51%
Prefer not to say 6 9%

Total 70 100%

Table 2-4: Online Engagement by Age

18-30 3 4%
31-40 15 21%
41-50 11 16%
51-60 20 29%
61-64 3 4%
65+ 12 17%
Prefer not to say 6 9%
Total 70 100%

2.2.9

2-5 demonstrates that most respondents (77%)
Heterosexual/Straight. 70

Table
identified as respondents
answered this question. Table 2-6 shows that the majority of
respondents (43%) had no religion, with 40% identifying as

Christian.

Table 2-5: Online Engagement by Sexual Orientation

I N

Heterosexual/Straight 54 77%
Gay/Lesbian 2 3%
Bi-Sexual 0 0%
Prefer to self-describe 1 1%
Prefer not to say 13 19%
Total 70 100%

Table 2-6: Online Engagement by Religion

None 30 43%
Christian 28 40%
Hindu 0 0%
Sikh 0 0%
Muslim 2 3%
Jewish 0 0%
Buddhist 1 1%
Any other religion 1 1%
Prefer not to say 8 11%
Total 70 100%

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

10

London Borough of Croydon



T, abed

2.2.10

Respondents were asked to describe their ethnic origin.
Most respondents (69%) described themselves as White
English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British. 13% of
respondents preferred not to say and 6% described
themselves as Black Caribbean. 70 respondents answered
the question and Table 2-7 shows all the responses.

Table 2-7: Online Engagement by Ethnic Origin

I I

White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish /
British

White Irish

I
[ole]

69%

3%
0%
4%
1%
0%
0%
1%
3%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
6%
0%
0%
0%

White Gypsy or Irish Traveller
Any other White background
White and Black Caribbean
White and Black African
White and Asian

Any other Mixed / multiple ethnic background
Indian

Pakistani

Bangladeshi

Chinese

Any other Asian background
Black African

Black Caribbean

Any other Black background
Arab

Other

O o O OO O OO N P OO L, WON

2.2.11

Prefer not to say 9 13%
Total 70 100%

Respondents were asked to state whether they had any form
of disability. Out of the total responses to the survey, 13%
identified themselves as having a disability. The results in
Table 2-6 shows the different types of disabilities.

Table 2-8: Online Engagement by Disability Reported
Visually Impaired 0%
3%
3%
0%
0%

Hearing Impaired
Mobility Disability
Learning Disability

o O N N O

Communication
Difficulty

Hidden Disability; Autism 1 1%
(ASD)

Hidden Disability; ADHD 0 0%

Hidden Disability; 2 3%
Asthma

Hidden Disability; 1 1%
Epilepsy
Hidden Disability; 1 1%
Diabetes

Hidden Disability; Sickle 0 0%
Cell

Other 4 5%

London Borough of Croydon

11

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2/ T obed

2.2.12

23

231

2.3.2

Respondents were asked to disclose their annual household
income. Most respondents (50%) preferred not to disclose
this information, 21% of respondents earn £50,000 and
above annually. 604 respondents answered this question.

Table 2-9: Online Engagement by Annual Household Income

£0 - £10,000
£10,000 - £20,000
£20,000 - £30,000
£30,000 - £40,000
£40,000 - £50,000
£50,000 and above
Prefer not to say 37 53%
Total 70

Demographic Representation

The demographics from the respondents of the survey have
been compared to the demographics of the existing
population. This is to exhibit the level of representation of

the survey respondents to the existing population.
It is examined in a two-tier approach:

(1) The demographics of respondents living within
scheme boundary is compared with the demographics

of the population local to the scheme; and

2.3.3

234

2.35

(2) The demographics of all respondents is compared

with the demographics of the Croydon borough.

Demographic Comparison: Respondents living within

scheme boundary and the local population

2011 Census data has been extracted with the lower super
output area (LSOA) that covers the Elmers Road scheme
(Croydon 014B) selected. For income statistics, ‘Income
estimates for small areas, England and Wales (2018 edition)’
published by Office for National Statistics has been used.

Data from this LSOA has been taken to compare the
demographics of the scheme area to the demographics of
survey respondents who live within the scheme boundary
(referred as ’'survey sample’ below). The results are shown
in Table 2-10 below.

It is worth noting that the data for the existing population is
from 2011 so may be slightly out of date but it is the only
data available to provide a comparison to the demographics

of the survey responses.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

12

London Borough of Croydon



¢/ T abed

Table 2-10: The Demographics of Survey Respondents Living Survey Sample Local
Within the Scheme Boundary, in comparison to ElImers Road (Respondents living in | Population
Area Existing Demographics the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics

(Respondents living in | Population White English /

the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics i
Welsh / chttlsh / 1% 30 49%
British

Male 36% 49% " "
White Iris 2% 1 3%
Z‘Z’;‘;er Female 55% 23 51% 5 ’ ’
White Gypsy or 0% 0 o
Census) Other 0% 0 n/a Irish Traveller 0%
Prefer not to say 10% 4 n/a Any other White » 5 o
Under 18 0% 0 24% background ’ ?
18-30 2% 1 21% White and Black 0% 0 4%
N (]
Age 31-40 26% 11 17% Caribbean
African
Census) |51.60 26% 11 11%
6164 0% 0 3% Ethnic White and Asian 0 2%
- o ¢} . e
g o o Origin Any other Mixed 2% 1
65 and over 19% 8 9% (2011 / multiple ethnic 2%
Prefer not to say 12% 5 n/a Census) background
None 43% 18 24% Indian 2% 1 2%
Christian 48% 20 60% Pakistani 0% 0 1%
Hindu 0% 0 3% Bangladeshi 0% 0 1%
Sikh 0% 0 3% Chinese 0% 0 1%
Religion .
(201g1 Muslim 2% 1 5% Any other Asian 0% 0 4%
(]
Census) | Jewish 0% 0 0% background
; 0 0 Black African 0% 0 7%
Buddhist 0% 0 1%
Any other 0% 0 0% Black Caribbean 5% 2 10%
religion Any other Black 0% 0
5%
Prefer not to say 7% 3 6% background
Arab 0% 0 2%
London Borough of Croydon 13 Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



v/ T obed

2.3.6

2.3.7

Local

Survey Sample
(Respondents living in | Population
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics

I S [
1%

Other 0%
Prefer not to say 10% 4 0%
£0 - £10,000 5% 2
£10,000 - .
£20,000 2% 1
£20,000 - o
Annual £30,000 5% 2
Household £30,000 -
Income £40.000 14% 6
(2018 ONS ’ £50,500
statistics) | £40,000 - o
£50,000 >% 2
£50,000 and 12% 5
above
Prefer not to say 57% 24

Table 2-10 shows that the survey sample has a higher
proportion of responses from females. However, the survey
sample received a larger difference of percentage of females
and males than the existing population. It should also be
noted that Census 2011 data did not include ‘other’ gender

categories.

The survey sample has more responses from those aged

between 31-60, when the younger demographics make up a

2.3.8

2.3.9

2.3.10

higher percentage of the existing population in the scheme

area.

A much higher proportion of people with no religion were
captured in the survey sample than the proportion within
the existing population in the scheme area. Additionally, the
survey sample received a lower proportion of Christians

completing the survey.

It was also shown that the survey sample has a much higher
proportion of responses from those who are White English /
Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British than recorded in
the existing population. The survey sample also only
received 5% of responses from those who are Black
Caribbean, and 0% from those who are Black African, despite
these communities making up 10% and 7% of the existing
population, respectively. Similar under-representation is
also evident for groups like 'Any other Black background',
‘Any other White background’ and 'Any other Asian
background'.

For the existing population, only the average annual
household income data was available from the Office of
National Statistics (ONS). For the MSOA covering the scheme
(Croydon 014), the average total income in 2018 was

£50,500. The survey sample has a higher proportion (14%) of

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

14

London Borough of Croydon



G/ T obed

23.11

2.3.12

responses from people who’s household income is £30,000 -
£40,000, with households earning over £50,000 making up
12% of responses. Please note that about half (53%) of the
survey sample responded ‘Prefer not to say’ for this
question, hence this comparison might not be fully accurate.

Demographic Comparison: All respondents and the
population of the Croydon borough

2011 Census data was examined again with the whole
Croydon borough selected. For income statistics, ‘Income
estimates for small areas, England and Wales (2018 edition)’
published by Office for National Statistics has been used.

The comparison between the borough-wide population
demographics and the overall survey respondents’

demographics are displayed in Table 2-11 below.

Table 2-11: Survey Respondents’ Demographics compared to
Borough-Wide Population

Borough-wide
Overall Survey B .
Responses Population
P Statistics

I 3 B

Male 40% 48%
Gender porale 51% 36 52%
(2011 5
Census) Other 0% 0 n/a
Prefer not to say 9% 6 n/a

Borough-wide
Overall Survey B .
Population
Responses . ..
Statistics

S 78 T

Under 18 0% 25%
18-30 4% 3 18%

Age 31-40 21% 15 15%

(2011 41-50 16% 11 15%

Census)  51.60 29% 20 11%
61-64 4% 3 4%
65 and over 17% 12 12%
Prefer not to say 9% 6 n/a
None 43% 30 20%
Christian 40% 28 56%
Hindu 0% 0 6%

» Sikh 0% 0 0%

?zec;'lgl'm Muslim 3% 2 8%

Census) Jewish 0% 0 0%
Buddhist 1% 1 1%
Any other 1% 1 1%
religion
Prefer nottosay = 11% 8 n/a
White English / 47%
Welsh / Sco_ttish / 69% 48

Ethnic Northern Irish /

Origin British

(2011 White Irish 3% 2 1%

Census) White Gypsy or 0% 0 0%

Irish Traveller

London Borough of Croydon

15

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



9/ T abed

Any other White
background

White and Black
Caribbean

White and Black
African

White and Asian

Any other Mixed
/ multiple ethnic
background

Indian
Pakistani
Bangladeshi
Chinese

Any other Asian
background

Black African
Black Caribbean

Any other Black
background

Arab
Other
Prefer not to say

£0-£10,000

£10,000 -
£20,000

Overall Survey
Responses

4%

1% 1
0% 0
0% 0
1% 1
3% 2
0% 0
0% 0
0% 0
0% 0
0% 0
6% 4
0% 0
0% 0
0% 0
13% 9
4% 3
3% 2

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

=

6%

3%

1%

1%
2%

7%
3%
1%
1%
5%

8%
9%
4%

0%
1%
n/a

2.3.13

2.3.14

2.3.15

Borough-wide
Overall Survey B .
Population
Responses . ..
Statistics

I 7

Annual £20,000 - 0
Household | £30,000 10%
Income 20,000
(2018 ONS £40'000 i 13% 9
statistics) ¢ £53,477
£40,000 - .
£50,000 6% 4
£50,000 and 11% 3
above
Prefer nottosay | 53% 37

Table 2-11 demonstrates that the survey received a lower
proportion of male responses than the Croydon population.
This might be due to the large number of respondents

selecting ‘Prefer not to say’ for this question.

In addition, the 18-30 age category is one of the highest for
the existing population for Croydon, making up 18% of the
population, yet this age category only accounts for 4% of the

survey respondents.

A much larger proportion of respondents stated that they
had no religion compared to the borough statistics, while a

lower number of responses were received by those who

Questionnaire Response Analysis

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

16

London Borough of Croydon



/1T abed

2.3.16

2.3.17

24

241

identify as Christian. Fewer people who are Muslim engaged

with the survey compared to the borough statistics.

For ethnic origin, White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern
Irish / British has the highest proportion of people for both
the survey respondents and the existing population. The
survey received a lower proportion of responses from Black
Caribbean, Indian and Black African backgrounds than the

proportion within the borough-wide population.

The average total income in 2018 was £53,477 in the
Croydon borough. The survey sample has a higher
proportion (13%) of responses from people who’s household
income is £30,000 - £40,000, with households earning over
£50,000 making up 11% of responses. Please note that about
half of the survey respondents responded ‘Prefer not to say’
for this question, hence this comparison might not be

accurate.
Limitations

As shown in Section 2.3, there is an under-representation of
response from certain demographic groups. Under-
representation amongst income groups cannot be clearly

determined.

2.4.2

2.4.3

2.5

251

2.5.2

2.5.3

In addition, the use of online survey methods for this
qguestionnaire may have excluded the participation of the

offline population.

Therefore, care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being
treated as the general views of the community

Coding of Responses

To analyse the free text comments a coding frame has been
produced. The frame has been developed using a sample of
responses that have been analysed in detail to identify

commonly mentioned locations, issues and subjects.

These codes have been used to initially interrogate the free-
text responses. Following an initial analysis, codes were
reviewed by the project team. This process included a review
of all categories, including a focus on those that cannot be

categorised into a specific category and coded as ‘other’.

Where relevant, additional codes and categories were then
generated. The complete set of codes can be seen in the data

analysis.

London Borough of Croydon

17

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




2.5.4 Each response was fully analysed using the codes. Each
section or subject of each response was coded and included

in the complete analysis.

8/ T obed

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road) 18 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



3.11

3.1.2

6.1 abed

3.13

The next section of the survey included questions about

respondent’s travel patterns around Addiscombe.

Respondents were asked how much walking, cycling or
scooting they are doing now, compared to before the Covid-
19 pandemic. Table 3-1 demonstrates that the majority of
respondents are doing about the same amount of walking,
cycling and scooting, but 38% are doing more and only 12%

are doing less.

Table 3-1: Extent of Walking, Cycling, Scooting

I I O

Much More 17 20%
Slightly More 15 18%
About the Same 42 50%
Slightly Less 6 7%
Much Less 4 5%
Total 84 100%

Respondents were then asked: ‘Are there children and/or
young people in your household?’, 84 respondents
answered and 30% (24) of those answered yes. This 30%
were then asked the extent to which they are currently
walking, cycling or scooting compared to before the
pandemic. Again, the majority of children and young

3.14

people’s extent of walking, cycling and scooting now
compared to before the pandemic has remained about the

same, at 58%, with 37% doing more than before and only 4%

doing less.

Table 3-2: Extent of Walking, Cycling, Scooting among Children
and Young Adults

L N %

Much More 7 29%
Slightly More 2 8%
About the Same 14 58%
Slightly Less 1 4%
Much Less 0 0%
Total 24 100%

Respondents of the survey were also asked what type of
vehicles (if any) they own. The results in Figure 3-1 below
show that the majority (81%) own a car. In comparison to the
2011 Census (Output area level), about 67% of households
within the Elmers Road scheme boundary have access to a

car or van, as opposed to about 33% that did not.

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



08T abed

Figure 3-1: Vehicle Ownership (By Type)

Vehicle ownership

= Own a car

2%

o%\
N\
1‘7;\\

= Own a van or other
commercial vehicle for

work purposes
= Own a motorbike

Own a combination of
all of these

= Do not own any of
these

3.15 Those who answered yes to owning a car and/or motorbike
(68) were also asked if they also walk, cycle or use public
transport for some of their journeys, where 94% (64)
answered that they did.

3.1.6 Further, respondents were asked; ‘What (if anything) stops
you from walking and cycling for more journeys in and
around Addiscombe?’. 84 out of the 111 respondents
answered this question, with 35% stating that the

unpleasant street environment stops them from walking and
cycling around Addiscombe, and a further 31% don’t due to
traffic speeds. Despite this, 32% of respondents stated that
there is nothing that stops them from walking and cycling
around Addiscombe.

Figure 3-2: Reasons for Not Walking And Cycling in and around
Addiscombe

Why respondents don't walk and cycle

for more journeys

Topography  Unpleasant
Other (e.gDisability, 6% (hills), 5% street

crime,
conditions of
roads), 10%

Concern about
road
safety/road
danger, 25%

Traffic
volume, 30%

Traffic speed,
31%

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (EImers Road) 20

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon

environment,
35%

No reason,
32%



4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

T8T abed

Views about the Temporary Scheme

As introduced previously, 44 of the responses received
through the online engagement were from people who live
within the scheme boundary, and 67 from people who live

outside the scheme boundary.

Table 4-1 below shows that when asked how strongly the
respondents support or do not support the Addiscombe CHN
Elmers Road temporary scheme, the majority held positive
views towards the scheme, with 57% of those who live
within the scheme boundary having a positive attitude and
36% displaying a negative stance. However, for those who
live outside the scheme boundary, the majority (51%) have a
negative stance on the existing temporary measures on
Elmers Road.

Table 4-1: Attitudes on the Existing Addiscombe — EImers Road
Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Do not support at all 13 31% 14 42%
Slightly do not 2 5% 3 9%
support

Neutral 3 7% 3 9%

4.1.3

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Slightly support 7 17% 0%
Strongly support 17 40% 13 39%
Total 42 100% 33 100%

When asked how the respondents feel about the temporary
scheme in its current format, 50% of those who live within
the scheme boundary felt positively towards the current
temporary scheme and 40% felt negative. For those who live
outside the scheme area, 48% felt negative about the
temporary scheme in its current format, while 42% felt

positive.

Table 4-2: Attitudes on the Temporary Scheme in its Current
Format

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Very Negative 14% 33%
Negative 11 26% 5 15%
Neutral 4 10% 3 9%

Positive 8 19% 5 15%
Very Positive 13 31% 9 27%
Total 42 100% 33 100%

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

7



4.1.4 The most frequently mentioned themes for supporting the

scheme were:

— The scheme results in less traffic (14)

— The scheme makes the area safer (11)

— The scheme is good for pedestrians (10)

— There is less rat-running (8)

— Good for the environment (5)

4.1.5 24 out of the 42 respondents who live within the scheme

boundary said they feel positive about the existing scheme
(see Table 4-1). Figure 4-1 shows the most frequently

mentioned themes for those who live within the scheme

boundary and have a positive attitude towards the scheme.

28T obed

The most frequently mentioned theme for those who live
within the scheme boundary is that the scheme results in
less traffic (9), followed by the scheme makes the area safer

(8) and that it is good for pedestrians (8).

Figure 4-1: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Within the
Scheme Boundary to Feel Positive about the Scheme

Number of Responses

4.1.6

=
o

O P N W b U1 O N 00 O

Most popular themes for those who live
within the scheme boundary to feel
positive towards the scheme

9
8 8
6
I |
Less traffic Safer Good for Less rat- Less noise
peds running

The 13 respondents who stated that they feel positive
towards the scheme and who live outside the scheme
boundary (see Table 4-1), mentioned in their explanation
that the scheme is results in less traffic (5), that it has made
the area safer (4), that it is good for the
environment/sustainability (3) and better for cycling (3). This

is shown in Figure 4-2 below.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road) 22

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



€gT abed

Figure 4-2: The Most Popular Reasons for Those Who Live Outside The
Scheme Boundary to Feel Positive about The Scheme

Most popular reasons for those who live
outside the scheme boundary to feel
positive towards the scheme

Number of responses
o - N w H (9]
_ -b
- .
w

& & & s®
> 2 N\
S s & o
R (&)
g N &
¥ X &
NS <
e x@
X X
& F
o&
o
&
4\
&
<
5\0
R
(90

4.1.7 The most popular themes for feeling negative towards the

scheme were:

— The scheme causes turning/reversing issues (16)

— It makes the area feel more dangerous (13)

4.1.8

— The scheme results in more congestion (11)

— It results in reduced access to home/amenities/school
(10)

— Itis an inconvenience as it results in longer journeys
(8)

15 of those who live within the scheme boundary and stated
that they feel negative about the existing scheme (see Table
4-1), the results of their most frequently mentioned reasons
for feeling negative towards the scheme are shown in Figure
4-3 below. This highlights that turning and reversing issues
(14) is the most popular reason amongst those who live
within the scheme boundary to feel negative towards the
scheme, closely followed by the scheme makes the area
more dangerous (8) and results in reduced access to
home/amenities/school (7).

London Borough of Croydon

23

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



8T abed

Figure 4-3: The Most Popular Reasons for Those Who Live Within the
Scheme Boundary to Feel Negative about the Scheme

Most popular reasons for those who live
within the scheme boundary to feel
negative towards the scheme

16
14

Number of Responses
= = =
o N H a (o] o N H
_ m
- T
- -b

) ) N Qo
¢ N .
< © <© &
N % & &
('_)\Q RS . Q/c,\ bo(\
& N & &
2 &
& N & N
& \?
N Q
S &
Q AN
5
&
S
&
>
&
b\)
<

4.1.9 For the 17 respondents who live outside the scheme

boundary and feel negative about the scheme (see Table 4-

1), Figure 4-4 shows that their most frequently mentioned
reasons for having a negative stance are that the scheme
creates more congestion (7), makes the area more
dangerous (6), causes an inconvenience/longer journey (6),

and adversely affects mobility issues (6).

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road) 24

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



GgT abed

Figure 4-4: The Most Popular Reasons for those Who Live Outside the
Scheme Boundary to Feel Negative about the Scheme

7.2

6.8

6.6

6.4

6.2

Number of Responses
[e)}

5.8
5.6

5.4

4.2

42.1

Most popular reasons for those who live
outside the scheme boundary to feel
negative towards the scheme

7
I 6 6 6
More congestion More dangerous Inconvenience/ Mobility issues

longer journeys adversely
affected

Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme

To assess the perceived impacts of the temporary scheme,
respondents were asked; ‘Please select the extent of the

impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was

4.2.2

put in? E.g. Air pollution, noise, congestion etc’. Of those
who live within the scheme boundary, 45% perceive that the
impacts of the scheme are better, with 32% thinking the
impacts are the same. 46% of those who live outside the
scheme boundary perceive the impacts as the same, with
29% perceiving them as better.

Table 4-3: Extent of the Impact of the Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. % No | %

Better 20 45% 10 29%
About The Same 14 32% 16 46%
Worse 10 23% 9 26%
Total 44 100% 35 100%

When asked to select the extent of the impact on road safety
since the temporary scheme was put in e.g. easier to cross,
fewer collisions etc, 45% of those who live within the scheme
boundary said it was better, with 27% stating it was the
same, and a further 27% stating it was worse than before.
Whereas 51% of those who live outside the scheme
boundary stated road safety was the same as before, with
26% stating it was better than before, and 23% stating it was

worse, as shown in Table 4-4 on the next page.

London Borough of Croydon

25

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




4.2.3

08T abed

Table 4-5: Extent of the Conditions for Walking, Cycling and
Table 4-4: Extent of the Impact of Road Safety from the Scheme Scooting now from the Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. % | N | %

| No. | % | No | %

Better 20 45% 9 26% Better 20 45% 13 37%
About The Same 12 27% 18 51% About The Same 20 45% 15 43%
Worse 12 27% 8 23% Worse 4 9% / 20%
Total 44 100% 35 100% Total 44 100% 35 100%

Table 4-5 below shows the responses to Question 13 of the
survey: ‘Please select the extent of the conditions for
walking, cycling and scooting now compared to before the
temporary scheme was in place?’. For those who live within
the scheme boundary, 45% rated the conditions as being the
same, with an additional 45% stating that the conditions are
better than before. Respondents who live outside the
scheme boundary, generally perceive that the conditions for
walking, cycling and scooting have remained around the
same (43%) since the scheme came into place, with 37%

stating it is better than before.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road) 26 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



511

/8T abed

In this section of the survey, Question 18, respondents were
asked whether they agree or disagree with replacing the
existing planter closure on Elmers Road with a camera
enforced restriction. The results of this question are shown
in Table 5-1 below and it is clear that the majority of both
those who live within the scheme boundary, and live outside
of the scheme boundary, do not agree with enforcing
camera restrictions on Elmers Road, with 58% and 63%,

respectively.

Table 5-1: Opinions regarding Replacing Existing Planters with
Camera Enforced Restrictions

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

[ Mo | % | No | %
20

Strongly Disagree 48% 18 60%
Disagree 4 10% 1 3%
Neutral 4 10% 7 23%
Agree 8 19% 2 7%
Strongly Agree 6 14% 2 7%
Total 42 100% 30 100%

5.1.2

513

Figure 5-1 below shows the most frequently mentioned
reasons for the respondent’s answers to the question above
for those who live within the scheme boundary and those
who live outside the scheme boundary. Amongst the 42
coded responses from those who within the scheme
boundary, 16 (38%) stated that they would prefer to keep
the planters over installing ANPR cameras, as the cameras
are expensive as are the fines. 12 (29%) showed concerns
about residential access. In particular, many of these
concerns are about permit parking and disapproval about
ANPR cameras if the residents had to pay for permits.
However, 7 (17%) of those who live within the scheme
boundary did claim that the ANPR cameras allow for better

access for emergency vehicles and residents.

For those who live outside the scheme boundary, 30
explanations were received and coded. Out of these, 10
(33%) were about preference to keep the planters and
another 10 (33%) also showed concerns over access,
especially the increase in journey times. One (3%)
respondent who lives outside the scheme boundary stated
that replacing the planters with ANPR cameras will result in

better access for emergency services and/or residents.

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



88T abed

Figure 5-1: Key Themes Drawn from Respondents’ Explanations to Their

Stance about Replacing the Existing Scheme with the Proposed
Improvements

Prefer to keep planters in places (e.g. m
Physical barriers are needed to stop... 16

Concerns around personal safety due

Concern around traffic being ‘3
displaced on to surrounding and... 4
0
to lower traffic flows / being unable... | ENEEEEEN

Concerns around visitors not being
able to access houses and local...

—
8

Concerns about resident access (e.g. -)
want permits extended to other... 12

Puts residents first / need to prioritise . 2
residents 4

0
I

Will result in safer environment for
walking & cycling with less traffic

Will result in better access for

1
emergency services and/or residents h 7

5 10 15

o

H Live outside scheme boundary H Live within scheme boundary

20

5.1.4 Respondents were then asked if they had any suggestions for

how the London Borough of Croydon could make the area
safer, quieter and less polluted. 54 suggestions were
received, of these the most frequently mentioned

suggestion was some other form of traffic management,

where 15 (28%) respondents suggested this. Following this,
8 respondents would be interested in seeing better speed
enforcement and 7 (13%) suggested both introducing a one-

way system and improving the streetscape/environment.

Table 5-2: Most Frequently Mentioned Suggestions to Make the
Area Safer, Quieter and Less Polluted

Coding Category “ %

Other traffic management 15 28%
Better speed enforcement 8 15%
Introducing one-way system 7 13%
Improve streetscape/environment 7 13%
Better traffic calming 5 9%
Remove everything 4 7%
Allow all residents access 3 6%
Personal safety & tackle anti-social 3 6%
behaviour

Cleaning the street 3 6%

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

28

London Borough of Croydon



6.1.1
6.2
6.2.1

o

jab)

«Q

D

=

(0]

O
6.2.2

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
Healthy

guestionnaire for  Croydon’s

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

responses

Survey Results
Travel patterns around Addiscombe

The survey has shown that travel patterns for walking,
cycling and scooting around Addiscombe since the Covid-19
pandemic has remained around the same, with 50% of
respondents stating that the extent of walking, cycling and
scooting they do now has remained about the same,
however, 38% did state that they are doing more. When
asked why they would choose not to walk, cycle or scoot,
38% said they would not because of the unpleasant street

environment, and 31% because of traffic speeds.
Views about the Temporary Scheme

When asked their views on the current temporary scheme,
57% of those who live within the scheme boundary support
it. Alternatively, 39% of those who live outside the scheme

boundary also support the scheme.

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

The most frequently mentioned theme for supporting the
existing scheme for those who live within the scheme
boundary is that it creates less traffic, with 38% of responses
from those who live within the scheme boundary mentioning
about reduction of traffic in their explanation. For those who
live outside the scheme boundary, 38% of the supportive
respondents mentioned that the scheme results in less
traffic.

Despite this, 36% of those who live within the scheme
boundary do not support the existing scheme, along with

51% of those who live outside the scheme boundary.

The most common theme for the respondents who live
within the scheme boundary disliking the current temporary
scheme was ‘turning/reversing issues’, with 93% of those
living within the scheme boundary and had a negative stance
mentioning this in their explanation. For respondents who
live outside the scheme boundary and displayed a negative
view on the existing scheme, their most frequently
mentioned themes were also ‘more congestion, with 41%

mentioning this reason.

The results from the perceived impacts of the scheme show
that those who live within the scheme boundary perceive

the scheme's impacts to be better (45%) or about the same

London Borough of Croydon

29

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



06T abed

6.2.7

111

(32%). Whereas those who live outside the scheme
boundary perceive the general impacts to be about the same
(46%), with 29% perceiving the general impacts to be better
and 26% perceiving them as worse.

Views about the Proposed Improvements under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)

For the question regarding changing the existing planter
closure to ANPR cameras, the majority disagree with this
change, as 58% of those who live within the scheme
boundary disagreeing and 63% of those who live outside the
scheme boundary also disagreeing.

When asked to explain why the respondents agree or
disagree with replacing the planters with ANPR cameras, the
main reason for disagreement was because of preference to
keep the planters, as they incur no fines in operation. Other
concerns were about access to permit parking and
reluctance to pay for permits. For those who agreed with
replacing the planters with cameras, the main explanation
was that the cameras would provide better access for

emergency vehicles and residents.

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

What Does it Mean?

The response to the engagement shows that those who live
within the scheme boundary tend to support the existing
temporary measures of the planters on Elmers Road,
however, those who live outside the scheme boundary on

the majority do not support it.

It is clear that the scheme resulting in less traffic is the
dominant reason for feeling positive about the scheme and
therefore people feel there is a need for measures to address
levels of motor traffic. The main reason for respondents
feeling negative about the current scheme is that it causes

turning and reversing issues.

The response to the question on whether the planters
should be upgraded to ANPR cameras suggests that doing
this would not be popular, as both those who live inside and
outside the scheme boundary disagreed with this idea,
mainly because both parties prefer the planters to ANPR
cameras as they don’t give out fines and are more cost-
effective, and because the respondents are concerned about
access for residents and permit parking if the cameras were

installed.

When the respondents were asked for their suggestions on

how to make Croydon a healthier, safer and quieter area, the

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

30

London Borough of Croydon



T6T abed

top suggestions were to implement some other form of
traffic management (28%) and better speed enforcement

(15%). These measures could also be considered.

1.1.2 Due to under-representation of response from certain
demographic groups, as well as the use of online survey
methods for this questionnaire, views of the survey
population may not be fully representative of the wider
population. Care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community.

London Borough of Croydon

31

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Elmers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



26T obed

Appendix A Postcode Location of
Respondents’ Address

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (EImers Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

32

London Borough of Croydon



(‘4@{

LO"‘d

WOODSIDE
CHILDREN
CENTRE AND
INFANTS
SCHOOL

THOMAS
BECKET
ROMAN

CATHOLIC

PRIMARY

SCHOOL

.3
e
)

%

S
A
2

] Km

itcham

Carshalton

Thornton @
Heath 2\0 )Y

Croydon »

South Croydon

Purley

Beckenham Bromley

Postcode Location of
. Survey Respondents'
addresses (of whom

provided a valid postcode)

— Temporary Streetspace/
CHN Scheme Boundary

(Elmers Road)

N.B. Numbers on each dot
represents the amount of
responses received from the same

postcode (if there are more than
one)

Contains public sector information licensed under the OGL v3.0.
Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, METI/NASA, USGS, Esri Community

Maps Contributors, Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P,
METI/NASA, USGS

L/

, G.03 Wenlock
Studios
50-52 Wharf Road
London N1 7EU

T. 0207 566 3939

London Borough of
Croydon

Croydon HN
Pre-consultation Engagement

POSTCODE LOCATION OF
RESPONDENTS' ADDRESS
(ELMERS ROAD SCHEME)

A3@1:2,000 JY MQ 06/10/2021

C1.3 A




This page is intentionally left blank



G6T obed

7

PJA

London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis

October 2021

Project Code: 05764

PJA

G.03

Wenlock Studios
50 - 52 Wharf Road
London

N1 7EU

pja.co.uk



Page 196



/6T abed

Questionnaire Response Analysis

Version l Date ‘ Main Contributor ‘ Issued by ‘Approved by
A 16 August 2021 JY/ HH Y IMQ
B 4 October 2021 Y Y IMQ
C 6 October 2021 JY Y IMQ

Prepared for

London Borough of Croydon

London Borough of Croydon Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



86T abed

Section Page
I INtrodUCTiON ..o 6
1.2 Background 6
2 The SUIVEY ..o 8
2.1 Survey Format 8
2.2 Demographics of Respondents 11
2.3 Demographic Representation 14
2.4  Limitations 19
2.5 Coding of Responses 19
3 Travel patterns around Broad Green ...................... 20
4 Feedback on the temporary scheme........................ 22
4.1 Views about the Temporary Scheme 22
4.2 Views about Signage 26
4.3  Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme 26
5 Preference about the Proposed Improvements under

Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)..... 29
5.2 Views about Option A (Camera enforced restriction) 29
5.3  Views about Option B (One-way working on Derby Road) 30
5.4  Preferred Option 32

5.5

6.2
6.3

Other suggestions 32
SUMMAIY .ttt 34
Survey Results 34
What Does it Mean? 35

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



66T abed

Appendix A Postcode Location of Respondents’
Address 37

London Borough of Croydon

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



00z abed

111

1.1.2

1.2

121

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
qguestionnaire  responses  for  Croydon’s  Healthy

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

This report will analyse the responses for the existing Broad
Green CHN (Parsons Mead area) scheme and proposed
changes to the measure on Derby Road.

Background

The CHN programme follows on from the temporary Low
Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN) schemes introduced in May
2020, which was part of Transport for London's Streetspace
programme. The temporary schemes were created in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic, with the aim to create
more space for people to safely walk or cycle. It additionally

aims to:

e Make streets safer, cleaner and quieter;

e Support more sustainable travel methods, like walking or
cycling whilst also enabling and encouraging increased
physical activity; and

e Address concerns over air pollution and the current

climate crisis.

1.2.2

1.2.3

124

1.2.5

Replacing the temporary scheme created in May 2020, the
improvement proposals to the Broad Green CHN (Parsons
Mead area) aims to retain the overall objectives of the LTNs
but allow better access for emergency services and
residents.

Two improvement options have been proposed to replace

the existing planter closure on Derby Road:

e Option A: replacing planters with Automatic Number
Plate Recognition Camera (ANPR) enforced restriction,
alongside signage and road marking upgrade and

installation of additional signs where applicable; and

e Option B: replacing planters with a one-way working
arrangement, where traffic will be able to exit left onto
London Road only from Derby Road (existing right turn

ban in place).

Croydon residents or anyone travelling through the area was

invited to submit their views via an online survey.

This report begins with outlining the survey format and
providing a general overview of the demographics of
respondents, then analyses the responses in detail. The
report examines travel patterns around Broad Green,

respondents’ views and perceived impacts of the entire

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



TOg abed

Broad Green CHN (Parsons Mead area) temporary scheme,
and their preference over the two proposed options for the
Derby Road measure under the Experimental Traffic
Regulation Order (ETRO).

London Borough of Croydon

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



20z abed

2.1

211

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

Survey Format

The survey asked respondents for their views on the entire
Broad Green CHN (Parsons Mead area) temporary scheme.
Respondents could complete an online survey sharing their
views on the existing scheme and their preference over the

two proposed options for the Derby Road measure.

A ‘Likert’ scale type question was used to gauge views on the
existing scheme and preference over the improvement
options. Likert scales enable respondents to state the extent
to which they agree with a statement or have a preference,
as opposed to a binary yes/no choice.

To help people clarify their responses to the questions
related to the schemes, respondents were able to provide

additional comments to clarify and expand on their views.

The survey aimed to gain an understanding of the extent to
which local people feel the scheme has made their street
healthier, and how it might be improved to better achieve

these aims.

Figure 2-1: Excerpts from The Survey

What (if anything) stops you from walking and cycling for more journeys in and around

?
* This question must be answered
Please tick all that apply.
Concern about road safety/road danger
Traffic speed
Traffic volume
Unpleasant street environment
Topography (hills}
Disability
Other

Please Specify

Please select vehicles (if any) you own from the following list:

* This question must be answered

Own a car

Own a motorbike

Own a van or other commercial vehicle for work purposes
Own a combination of these

Do not own any of these

o ©

e
L

o O

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



€0z abed

If you selected owning any of the vehicles at question 9, do you also walk, cycle or use

public transport for some of your journeys?

* This question must be answered

Please select the extent as to how much walking, cycling and scooting you are doing now,

than before the Covid-19 pandemic:
* This question must be answered

Much more
Slightly more
About the same
Slightly less

Much less

Are there children and/or young people in your household?
* This question must be answered

If ‘Yes’ please select the extent as to how much they are walking, cycling, scooting and

skating now, than before the Covid-19 pandemic:
* This question must be answered

Much more
Slightly more
About the same
Slightly less

Much less

Please select the extent of the impact on road safety in your street since the temporary
scheme was put in? E.g. easier to cross, less collisions etc.

* This question must be answered

Much better
Slightly better
About the same
Slightly worse

Much worse

Please select the extent of the impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was

put in. E.g. Air pollution, noise congestion etc.

* This question must be answered

Much better
Slightly better
About the same
Slightly worse

Much worse

Please select the extent of the conditions for walking, cycling, and scooting now compared

to before the temporary scheme was in place?

* This question must be answered

Much better
Slightly better
About the same
Slightly worse

Much worse

London Borough of Croydon

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



0z abed

Please rate how strongly you support or do not support the
existing_scheme? The question relating to the proposed scheme appears
separately further in the questionnaire.

* This question must be answered

Strongly support
Slightly support
Neutral

Slightly do not support

Do not support at all

Please explain your answer to question 14:

How do you feel about the temporary scheme in its current format?

* This question must be answered

Very positive
Positive
Neutral
Negative
Very negative

Please explain your answer to question 16, including any positive or negative impacts you

feel the temporary scheme has had on you:

O

Please rate the extent as to how much you agree or disagree with replacing the existing
scheme with that as proposed and explained in the consultation leaflet and outlined on our

healthy neighbourhood website.

* This question must be answered

Strongly agree
Agree

Neutral
Disagree

Strongly disagree

Please explain your answer to question 18, including any positive or negative impacts you

feel this option, if implemented, will have on you.

If you also have any other suggestions for how we could make the area safer, quieter and

less polluted, can you please tell us?

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

10

London Borough of Croydon



G0z abed

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

2.2.4

2.2.5

Demographics of Respondents

A total of 391 valid responses were received through the
online survey, with another 124 blank responses which were

excluded from the analysis.

Respondents were asked if they were responding as any of
the following, and were able to select more than one

answer; ‘resident’, ‘business’, ‘school’, ‘visitor’ or ‘other’.

All respondents responded to this question, with 277
selecting ‘resident’, 47 ‘business’, 12 ‘school’, 76 ‘visitor’ and
36 ‘other’. Some respondents selected ‘resident’ but also

selected a second option.

When asked if they lived locally to the temporary
neighbourhood, respondents answered with 65% (254)
stating that they live local, 27% stating that they only travel
through the area, 5% stating that they work in the area and
4% answering ‘other’ as shown in Table 2-1. This totals 35%

(137) respondents who don’t classify as ‘living locally’.

Some respondents selected ‘live locally to the temporary
neighbourhood’ and then additional categories. For the
analysis, they have been assigned to the ‘live locally to the
temporary neighbourhood’ category. Only those not living

locally being assigned to their other categories. This is so that

2.2.6

the feelings of local residents can be understood separately

from those passing through or visiting.

Table 2-1: Online engagement responses local or travel through

Live local to the temporary

neighbourhood 254 65%
Travel through in the area 105 27%
Work in the area 18 5%
Other 14 4%
Total 391 100%

The respondents’ postcodes were plotted against the Broad
Green (Parsons Mead) CHN boundary to assess how many
respondents live within the scheme boundary. The results
are shown in Table 2-2 below, and a plan showing the
postcode location of respondents’ addresses with the
Parsons Mead scheme boundary is attached in Appendix A.

Table 2-2: Online engagement responses live within or outside
of the scheme boundary

Live within the scheme

0,
boundary 18 o
Live outside of the scheme 253 65%
boundary
Total 391 100%

London Borough of Croydon

11

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2.2.7

90¢ abed

Table 2-3 shows that slightly more females completed the
survey than other genders, at 45%. 306 respondents
answered this question. Table 2-4 demonstrates that most
respondents (23%) fell into the 31-40 age category, with 22%
in the 41-50 age category. 306 respondents answered this

question.

Table 2-3: Online Engagement by Gender

| N %

Male 117 38%
Female 139 45%
Transgender female 2 7%
Gender variant/non-conforming 1 0%
Prefer to self-describe 4 1%
Prefer not to say 43 14%
Total 306 100%

Table 2-4: Online Engagement by Age

| N %

Under 18 0 0%
18-30 26 8%
31-40 69 23%
41-50 68 22%
51-60 65 21%
61-64 12 4%
65 and over 23 8%

2.2.8

] N %

Prefer not to say 43 14%
Total 306 100%

Table 2-5 demonstrates that most respondents (75%)

identified as Heterosexual/Straight. 306 respondents
answered this question. Table 2-6 shows that over one-third
of respondents (36%) identified themselves as Christian,

with 17% having no religion.

Table 2-5: Online Engagement by Sexual Orientation

| N %

Heterosexual/Straight 228 75%
Gay/Lesbian 5 2%
Bi-Sexual 5 2%
Prefer to self describe 10 3%
Prefer not to say 58 19%
Total 306 100%

Table 2-6: Online Engagement by Religion

N %

Christian 111 36%
None 51 17%
Muslim 42 14%
Hindu 27 9%
Sikh 2 1%
Jewish 1 0%
Any other religion 8 3%

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

12

London Borough of Croydon



2.2.9

/0¢ abed

| N | %

Prefer not to say 64 21%
Total 306 100%

Respondents were asked to describe their ethnic origin.
About a quarter of respondents (26%) described themselves
as White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British,
White Irish, White Gypsy or Irish Traveller or Any other
White background. 19% described themselves as Black
African, Black Caribbean or Any other Black background. 23%
of respondents preferred not to say. 306 respondents
answered the question and Table 2-7 shows all the

responses.

Table 2-7: Online Engagement by Ethnic Origin

| No | %

White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / 65 21%
British

White Irish 5 2%
White Gypsy or Irish Traveller 1 0%
Any other White background 8 3%
White and Black African 7 2%
White and Black Caribbean 4 1%
White and Asian 5 2%
Any other Mixed / multiple ethnic background 7 2%
Indian 30 10%
Pakistani 17 6%
Bangladeshi 1 0%

2.2.10

Chinese 1 0%
Any other Asian background 10 3%
Black African 30 10%
Black Caribbean 26 8%
Any other Black background 3 1%
Other 16 5%
Prefer not to say 70 23%
Total 306 100%
Respondents were asked whether they considered

themselves to have any form of disability. 306 answered the
question. 10% (31) said that they did, 72% (221) said that
they didn’t, and the remaining respondents preferred not to
say. The results in Table 2-8 shows the different types of

disabilities.

Table 2-8: Online Engagement by Disability Reported

Type of Disability _ %

Visually Impaired 1 0%
Hearing Impaired 1 0%
Mobility Disability 21 7%
Learning Disability 1 0%
Communication Difficulty 0 0%
Hidden Disability; Autism (ASD) 0 0%
Hidden Disability; ADHD 3 1%
Hidden Disability; Asthma 0 0%
Hidden Disability; Epilepsy 1 0%

London Borough of Croydon

13

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



Type of Disability _ %

2.3.2

2.3.3

234

2.3.5

It is examined in a two-tier approach:
(1) The demographics of respondents living within
scheme boundary is compared with the demographics

of the population local to the scheme; and

(2) The demographics of all respondents is compared
with the demographics of the Croydon borough.

Demographic Comparison: Respondents living within

scheme boundary and the local population

2011 Census data has been extracted with the lower super
output areas (LSOA’s) that cover the Parsons Mead area
scheme boundary (Croydon 019E, 020B and 024A) selected.
For income statistics, ‘Income estimates for small areas,
England and Wales (2018 edition)’ published by Office for

National Statistics has been used.

An average of these areas has been taken to compare the
demographics of the scheme area to the demographics of
survey respondents who live within the scheme boundary
(referred as ’‘survey sample’ below). The results are shown
in Table 2-10 below.

It is worth noting that the data for the existing population is
from 2011 so may be slightly out of date but it is the only

Hidden Disability; Sickle Cell 3 1%
Other (e.g. Cancer, Cognitive, Mental Health, ' 8 3%
etc.)
2.2.11  Respondents were asked to disclose their annual household
income, as shown in Table 2-9. Most respondents (50%)
preferred not to disclose this information, 15% of
respondents earn £50,000 and above annually. 303
respondents answered this question.
Table 2-9: Online Engagement by Annual Household Income
N [N |%
L% £0 - £10,000 16 5%
N £10,000 - £20,000 23 8%
8 £20,000 - £30,000 25 8%
£30,000 - £40,000 23 8%
£40,000 - £50,000 19 6%
£50,000 and above 45 15%
Prefer not to say 152 50%
Total 303 100%
2.3 Demographic Representation
2.3.1 The demographics from the respondents of the survey have
been compared to the demographics of the existing
population. This is to exhibit the level of representation of
the survey respondents to the existing population.
Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead) 14

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



60¢ abed

data available to provide a comparison to the demographics Survey Sample Local

of the survey responses. (Respondents living in | Population
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics

Table 2-10: The demographics of survey respondents living -_--

within the scheme boundary, in comparison to Parsons Mead Any other 2% 0%
area existing demographics religion ’ ?

0,
Survey Sample Local Prefer not to say 22% 24 n/a
(Respondents living in | Population White English /
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics Welsh / Sco_tt|sh/ 3% - 24%
Northern Irish /

-_-_ Bt

g Male 38% 49% White Irish 0% 0 1%
Gender
(2011 Female 48% 53 51% White Gypsy or 0% 0 0%
Census) Other 1% 1 n/a Irish Traveller ° o
) .
Prefer not to say 14% 15 n/a ﬁnykother \éVhlte 5% 6 8%
Under 18 0% 0 26% ackgroun
18-30 14% 16 24% Z‘gr‘l';i:g: Black | 5o 6 4%
Age 31-40 23% 26 18% Whit d Black
(2011 41-50 23% 26 14% Ethnic Afri'caenan o 1% 1 1%
Census, _ Origin
) |s1-60 18% 20 8% (2011 White and Asian | 1% 1 2%
61-64 4% 4 2% Census) Any other Mixed
65 and over 6% 7 7% / multiple ethnic 3% 3 2%
Prefer not to say 11% 12 n/a background
None 17% 19 16% Indian 3% 3 11%
Christian 41% 45 50% Pakistani 5% 5 5%
Religion Hindu 2% 2 11% Bangladeshi 0% 0 1%
; o 0 Chinese 0% 0 2%
(2011 Sikh 0% 0 0%
Census) Muslim 17% 19 15% Any other Asian 3% 3 9%
Jewish 0% 0 0% background
H () 0,
Buddhist 0% 0 1% Black African 14% 15 12%
Black Caribbean 5% 6 9%
London Borough of Croydon 15 Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



0T¢ oabed

2.3.6

Local
Population
Statistics

B — |

Any other Black

Survey Sample
(Respondents living in
the Scheme Boundary)

0 0
background 1% %
Arab 0% 0 1%
Other 6% 7 3%
Prefer not to say 26% 29 n/a
£0 - £10,000 5% 6
£10,000 - 0
£20,000 % 6
£20,000 -
7 70
Annual  £30,000 % s
Household
Income Ezg’ggg i 9% 10 £48,167
(2018 ONS !
statistics) | £40,000 - o
7
£50,000 6%
oo | |
Prefer not to say 53% 59

Table 2-10 shows that the survey sample has a higher
proportion of responses from females, but the scheme area
also has a higher proportion of females than males.
However, the survey sample received a larger difference of
percentage of females and males than the existing
population. It should also be noted that Census 2011 data

did not include ‘other’ gender categories.

2.3.7

2.3.8

2.3.9

2.3.10

The survey sample has more responses from those aged
between 31-50, when the younger demographics make up a
higher percentage of the existing population in the scheme

area.

In terms of religion, the survey sample shows a fairly
proportional representation to the local population, namely
for Christians, Muslims and people with no religion. An
exception applies for Hindus, the survey sample only capture

2% of Hindus, as compared to 11% in the local population.

For ethnic origins, the proportion of respondents with
White,
proportional to the local population, as compared to the

Black and Asian backgrounds are relatively
survey samples from other scheme areas. An exception
applies for Indians, the survey sample only received 3% of
responses from this ethnic group, when this community

makes up 11% of the local population.

For the existing population, only the average annual
household income data was available from the Office of
National Statistics (ONS). For the MSOA’s covering the
scheme (Croydon 019, 020 and 024), the average total
income in 2018 was £48,167. The survey sample has a higher
proportion of responses from people who earned £50,000

and above. Please note that about 53% of the survey sample

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

16

London Borough of Croydon



TT¢ abed

responded ‘Prefer not to say’ for this question, hence this

comparison might not be fully accurate.

Demographic Comparison: All respondents and the

population of the Croydon borough

2.3.11 2011 Census data was examined again with the whole
Croydon borough selected. For income statistics, ‘Income
estimates for small areas, England and Wales (2018 edition)’
published by Office for National Statistics has been used.

2.3.12 The comparison between the borough-wide population
demographics and the overall survey respondents’

demographics are displayed in Table 2-11 below.

Table 2-11: Survey respondents’ demographics compared to
borough-wide population

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

Overall Survey
Responses

Male 38% 117 48%
Gender | ponae 45% 139 52%
(2011 .
Census) Other 2% 7 n/a

Prefer nottosay | 14% 43 n/a
Age Under 18 0% 0 25%
(2011 18-30 8% 26 18%
Census) 13140 23% 69 15%

Overall Survey

Responses

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

I N L A
68

Religion
(2011
Census)

Ethnic
Origin
(2011
Census)

41-50 22% 15%
51-60 21% 65 11%
61-64 4% 12 4%
65 and over 8% 23 12%
Prefer not to say | 14% 43 n/a
None 17% 51 20%
Christian 36% 111 56%
Hindu 9% 27 6%
Sikh 1% 2 0%
Muslim 14% 42 8%
Jewish 0% 0%
Buddhist 0% 0 1%
e w | s |
Prefer not to say | 21% 64 n/a
White English /
ket R
British
White Irish 2% 5 1%
e o | 1|
Any other White 3% 3 6%
background

; 9
M “’

London Borough of Croydon

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



ZT¢ obed

=

White and Black 29%
(]

African
White and Asian 2% 5
Any other Mixed
/ multiple ethnic 2% 7
background
Indian 10% 30
Pakistani 6% 17
Bangladeshi 0% 1
Chinese 0% 1
Any other Asian o
background 3% 10
Black African 10% 30
Black Caribbean 8% 26
Any other Black 0
background 1% 3
Arab 0% 0
Other 5% 16
Prefer nottosay | 23% 70
£0-£10,000 5% 16
£10,000 -

Annual £20,000 8% 23

Household

Income £20,000 - 8% 25

(2018 ons | £30,000

statistics)
£30,000 - 8% 23
£40,000

Overall Survey
Responses

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

1%

1%
2%

7%
3%
1%
1%
5%

8%
9%
4%

0%
1%
n/a

£53,477

2.3.13

2.3.14

2.3.15

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

% | Frequenc %
|| % |Frequeney| % |

Overall Survey
Responses

£40,000 - .
£50,000 6% 19
£

50,000 and 15% 45
above
Prefer not tosay | 50% 152

Table 2-11 demonstrates that the survey received a lower
proportion of male responses than the Croydon population,
despite both male and female are under-represented
compared to the borough-wide statistics. This might be due
to the large number of respondents selecting ‘Prefer not to

say’ for this question.

In addition, the 18-30 age category is one of the highest for
the existing population for Croydon, making up 18% of the
population, yet this age category only accounts for 8% of the
survey respondents. Two-third of the respondents are part

of the 31-60 age categories.

The survey received a much lower proportion of responses
from the ‘White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish /
British” ethnic group than the proportion within the

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

18

London Borough of Croydon



€T¢ obed

2.3.16

24

241

2.4.2

2.4.3

borough-wide population. On a side note, 23% of

respondents selected ‘Prefer not to say’ for this question.

The average total income in 2018 was £53,477 in the
Croydon borough. The survey overall received a higher
proportion of responses from people who earned £50,000
and above. Please note that about half of the survey
respondents responded ‘Prefer not to say’ for this question,

hence this comparison might not be accurate.
Limitations

Though broadly representative, there is an under-
representation of response from certain demographic
groups, as shown in Section 2.3. Under-representation

amongst income groups cannot be clearly determined.

In addition, the use of online survey methods for this
guestionnaire may have excluded the participation of the

offline population.

Therefore, care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community.

2.5

2.5.1

2.5.2

2.5.3

254

Coding of Responses

To analyse the free text comments a coding frame has been
produced. The frame has been developed using a sample of
responses that have been analysed in detail to identify

commonly mentioned locations, issues and subjects.

These codes have been used to initially interrogate the free-
text responses. Following an initial analysis, codes were
reviewed by the project team. This process included a review
of all categories, including a focus on those that cannot be

categorised into a specific category and coded as ‘other’.

Where relevant, additional codes and categories were then
generated. The complete set of codes can be seen in the data

analysis.

Each response was fully analysed using the codes. Each
section or subject of each response was coded and included

in the complete analysis.

London Borough of Croydon

19

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




3.1.3

3.14

About the same 91 46%
Slightly more 32 16%
Much more 26 13%
Total 200 100%

210 respondents stated that there were children or young
people in their households. 200 of those respondents
answered this question about those young people. 29%
stated that overall they were walking, cycling or scooting
more. 26% said that overall they were travelling this way
less, and 46% stated ‘about the same’.

Respondents were also asked about vehicle ownership, the
results for which are set out in Figure 3-1. 1376 responded
to this question, with 93% stating that they own one of the
vehicles listed, compared to 7% stating that they don’t. In
comparison to the 2011 Census (Output area level), about
42% of households within the Parsons Mead scheme
boundary have access to a car or van, as opposed to about
58% that did not.

3.1.1 Respondents were asked to what extent they and any young
people in their household were now walking, cycling or
scooting compared to before the Covid-19 pandemic.

Table 3-1: Extent of more walking, cycling and scooting among
respondents following the Covid-19 pandemic
I %
Much less 65 18%
Slightly less 41 11%
=) About the same 154 42%
jabl Slightly more 52 14%
Q
() Much more 58 16%
N Total 370 100%
H
AN

3.1.2 370 respondents answered this question about themselves,
30% stating that overall they were walking, cycling or
scooting more after the pandemic, 29% stating that they
were travelling this way less overall, and 42% stating ‘about
the same’.

Table 3-2: Extent of more walking, cycling and scooting among
young people in respondents’ households following the Covid-
19 pandemic
| N | %
Much less 30 15%
Slightly less 21 11%
Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead) 20

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



GT¢ obed

Figure 3-1: A pie chart to show vehicle ownership amongst respondents

Vehicle Ownership

= Car

= Motorbike

= Van or other commercial
vehicle for work

A combination of these

= None of these

3.15 Respondents who stated that they owned a car and/or
motorbike (322; 86%) were then asked if they walk, cycle, or
take public transport for some of their journeys. 77% (248)
of them stated they do and 23% (74) stated they don’t.

3.1.6 Respondents were asked what stops them from walking and
cycling for more journeys around Broad Green. 375
respondents answered this question, and they could select
more than one answer. The results are set out in Table 3-3.
The most frequently selected reason was ‘unpleasant street

environment, followed by ‘concern about road safety/ road

danger’ and other reasons, such as worries about personal

safety and the need to carry a heavy load.

Table 3-3: Why respondents don’t walk and cycle for more
journeys

Unpleasant street environment 155 41%
Other (e.g. worried about personal safety, 112 30%
need to carry a heavy load, etc.)

Concern about road safety/road danger 113 30%
Traffic volume 90 24%
Traffic speed 76 20%
A disability 58 15%
Topography (hills) 14 4%
No Reason 11 3%

London Borough of Croydon

21

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

9T¢ obed

Views about the Temporary Scheme

As introduced previously, 138 of the total responses were
from respondents who live within the scheme boundary and

253 were from outside of the scheme boundary.

Table 4-1 below shows that when asked how strongly the
respondents support or do not support the existing Broad
Green CHN (Parsons Mead area) temporary scheme, the
majority (78%) of all respondents held negative views
towards the scheme, with only 37% of those who live within
the scheme boundary having a positive attitude. For those
who do not live within the scheme boundary, 91% expressed
a negative stance on the existing temporary scheme in

Parsons Mead.

Table 4-1: Attitudes on the Existing Broad Green — Parsons
Mead Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary |Scheme Boundary

No. 1% No._ %

Do not support at all | 58 48% 179 86%
Slightly do not 10 8% 1 5%
support

Neutral 9 7% 5 2%
Slightly support 8 7% 5 2%

4.1.3

4.1.4

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Strongly support 30% 4%
Total 121 100% 208 100%

When asked how the respondents feel about the temporary
scheme in its current format, 61% of those who live within
the scheme boundary felt negatively towards the current
temporary scheme and 32% felt positive. For those who do
not within the scheme boundary, an overwhelming majority
(94%) felt negative about the temporary scheme in its

current format, with only 2% felt positive.

Table 4-2: Attitudes on the Temporary Scheme in its Current
Format

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Very Negative 45% 174 84%
Negative 19 16% 20 10%
Neutral 10 8% 9 4%
Positive 18 15% 1 0%
Very Positive 20 17% 4 2%
Total 121 100% 208 100%

The most frequently mentioned themes for supporting the

scheme were:

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

22

London Borough of Croydon



— The scheme results in less traffic (39) Figure 4-1: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who

live within the scheme boundary to feel positive about the scheme
— The scheme makes the area safer (23)

Most popular themes for those who live within the

— The scheme results in less noise (18 .
(18) scheme boundary to feel positive towards the scheme

— The scheme makes it better for walking (15) 40

— The scheme results in less pollution (8) 35
30
4.1.5 44 out of the 121 respondents who live within the scheme 25

36
21
boundary hold positive attitude about the existing scheme 20 18
(see Table 4-1). Figure 4-1 shows the most frequently 15 13
mentioned themes for those who live within the scheme 10 8
boundary and have a positive attitude towards the scheme. 5 .
0

The most frequently mentioned themes for those who live , , ,
Less traffic Safer Less noise Better for  Less pollution
within the scheme boundary are that the scheme results in walking
less traffic (36), makes the area safer (21) and that it results
in less noise (18). 4.1.6 The 13 respondents who live outside of the boundary and

feel positive towards the scheme (see Table 4-1), mentioned

/T¢ abed

in their explanation that the scheme results in less traffic (4),
results in less noise (3), makes the area safer and better for
pedestrians and cyclists (2), as shown in Figure 4-2 on the

next page.

London Borough of Croydon 23 Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



8T¢ abed

Figure 4-2: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who
live outside the scheme boundary to feel positive about the scheme

Most popular themes for those who live outside the
scheme boundary to feel positive towards the scheme

4.1.7

4.1.8

The most popular themes for feeling negative towards the

scheme were:

— The scheme results in more congestion (145)

— Itis an inconvenience as it results in longer journeys
(89)

— The scheme results in more pollution (84)

— The scheme reduces access to homes, amenities, or
schools (67)

— It makes the area feel more dangerous (35)

68 of those who live within the scheme boundary and hold
negative views about the existing scheme (see Table 4-1).
Figure 4-3 on the next page shows their most frequently
mentioned themes for feeling negative towards the scheme.
The most frequently mentioned themes for those who live
within the scheme boundary are that the scheme results in
more congestion (32), reduces access to homes, amenities,
and schools (28), causes inconvenience due to longer
journeys (27), makes the area more dangerous (13), and
results in more stress and mental health issues (9) as well as

causing turning and reversing issues (9).

3.5
3
3
2.5
2 2 2
2
15
1
0.5
0
Less traffic Safer Better for walking Better for cycling
Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead) 24

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



6T¢ abed

Figure 4-3: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who
live within the scheme boundary to feel negative about the scheme

Most popular themes for those who live within the scheme
boundary to feel negative towards the scheme

35 32
30 28 27
25
20
15 13
9 9
10
5 I
0
S N o ) ) S
&9 & @Q’\\ Q}Oo & &
Q% Y ~d° S %0 Q;
('o’;\ ,Q/%\ N 2 X &
) & & & ¢ &
N QO N o N N
& e N9 Q <@ N
\S'b \'b@ ¢ \ & °<§
& N & \& &
NS <© AQ’(\\ & N
o <
5" & d§
9 Q N
69& A wgp
&
&
b\)

4.1.9 The 194 respondents who live outside the scheme boundary
and hold negative attitude towards the scheme (see Table 4-
1), mentioned in their explanation that the scheme causes

more congestion (113), more pollution (77) and

inconvenience due to longer journeys (62), as shown

Figure 4-4 below.

Figure 4-4: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for
those who live outside the scheme boundary to feel negative
about the scheme

in

Most popular themes for those who live outside the

scheme boundary to feel negative towards the
scheme

120 113

100
77
80
62
60
39

40
. I I

0

o o S )
‘(.\oo "&\O &N 00\ Nd
& > < & &
& © o \° &
O N ) A\
< @ < g &
A o & N N\
& < NS & @
& o \3 &
@ <~ e N
O & & r,\
A\ S O 2
&
& e )
&S 5 e
N & 2
A & O
& <
S
&
b\\
Q%

London Borough of Croydon 25

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



4.1.10 It is notable that 98 respondents, including those who feel 4.2.2
positive towards the scheme, have expressed their
grievances about the existing signages being unclear or
unnoticeable, resulting in the feeling of unfairness or even
deception. 62 of these respondents live within the scheme
boundary, while 36 of them do not.

4.2 Views about Signage

4.2.1 When asked ‘will improvements to signage around the
scheme make a difference in how you currently feel about
the scheme?’ Of those who live within the scheme boundary,
45% responded they won’t, versus 40% said they will.
Similarly, 75% of those who do not live within the scheme

boundary responded they won't, as opposed to 16% who

0¢z abed

responded they will.

Table 4-3: Opinion on whether improvements to signage will
influence how they feel about the scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary
No

Fm 43

Respondents who responded ‘yes’ (82; 25%) were then
asked if they could suggest any improvements to signage
that will make a difference in their opinion about the
scheme. 79 responses were received and coded, with the key
themes drawn and listed in Table 4-4. The most popular
theme of suggestions was about providing more advanced
warning (36), followed by making the signs larger or more
visible (35), and making the signs clearer, with clearer
wordings and/or with consequences listed (29).

Table 4-4: Key themes are drawn from the suggested
improvements to signage

I [

More advanced warning 36 46%
Larger/ More visible 35 44%
Clearer Signage (Consequence/ More

clearly worded) 29 37%
Clearer road layout at the filter location

(planters, road markings) 12 15%
No changes needed 9 11%
Clearer Signage (Alternative route) 5 6%

Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme

To assess the perceived impacts of the temporary scheme,
respondents were asked; ‘Please select the extent of the
impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was

put in? E.g. Air pollution, noise, congestion etc’. Of those

45% 155 75%
N ini 18 15% 19 9%
O opinion (] ¢} 431
Yes 48 40% 34 16%
Total 121 100% 208 100%
Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead) 26

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



Tce abed

4.3.2

who live within the scheme boundary, 32% perceive that the
impacts being worse than before, versus 42% thinking the
impacts are better. Conversely, 57% of those who do not live
within the scheme boundary perceive the impacts as worse,
as opposed to only 9% thinking the impacts are better.

Table 4-5: What respondents thought of the impacts of the new
scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary |Scheme Boundary

No. 1% No.__l%
33

Much Worse 26% 109 49%
Slightly Worse 8 6% 18 8%
About the Same 34 27% 77 34%
Slightly Better 16 13% 12 5%
Much Better 37 29% 8 4%
Total 128 100% 224 100%

When asked to select the extent of the impact on road safety
since the temporary scheme was put in e.g. easier to cross,
fewer collisions etc, 31% of those who live within the scheme
boundary said it is worse than before, as opposed to 43%
thinking it is better. Conversely, for those who do not live
within the schene boundary, 54% stated that road safety is
worse than before the scheme was put into place, while only
10% thought it became better, as shown in Table 4-6.

433

Table 4-6: The perceived impact on road safety

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

No. % No_ % |
28

Much Worse 22% 92 41%
Slightly Worse 11 9% 28 13%
About the Same 33 26% 82 37%
Slightly Better 21 16% 13 6%
Much Better 35 27% 9 4%
Total 128 100% 224 100%

Table 4-7 in the next page shows the responses to Question
13 of the survey: ‘Please select the extent of the conditions
for walking, cycling and scooting now compared to before
the temporary scheme was in place?’. For those who live
within the scheme boundary, 47% rated as being the same,
while 32% rated the conditions better than before. In
contrast, almost half of the respondents who do not live
within the scheme boundary perceive that the conditions for
walking, cycling and scooting have remained around the
same (47%), with 46% thought that it has been worse since

the scheme came into place.

London Borough of Croydon

27

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



zee abed

Table 4-7: The perceived impact on conditions for Walking,

Cycling and Scooting now from the Scheme

Live withi

Scheme Boundary

[No.
17

Much Worse

Slightly Worse 10
About the Same 60
Slightly Better 17
Much Better 24
Total 128

n the

13%
8%
47%
13%
19%
100%

Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary

6 o x|

80
22
105
10

224

36%
10%
47%
4%
3%
100%

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

28

London Borough of Croydon



5.11

o

jab)

«Q

D

N

N

w
5.2
5.21

In this section of the survey, respondents were asked several
questions about their preferences over the two proposed

options for the Derby Road measure:

e Option A: replacing planters with Automatic Number
Plate Recognition Camera (ANPR) enforced restriction,
alongside signage and road marking upgrade and

installation of additional signs where applicable; and

e Option B: replacing planters with a one-way working
arrangement, where traffic will be able to exit left onto
London Road only from Derby Road (existing right turn

ban in place).

Views about Option A (Camera enforced
restriction)

When asked how strongly the respondents agree or disagree
with Option A (replacing planters with ANPR camera
enforced restriction), the majority held negative views. 57%
of those who live within the scheme boundary disapprove of

this option while 33% display a positive stance. For those

5.2.2

who do not live within the scheme, most of them (91%) have

a negative stance on this option, with only 5% feel positive.

Table 5-1: Attitudes on Option A (Camera enforced restriction)

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

[No. 1% No._ %

Strongly Disagree 51 45% 159 81%
Disagree 13 12% 20 10%
Neutral 12 11% 8 4%
Agree 11 10% 4 2%
Strongly Agree 26 23% 5 3%
Total 113 100% 196 100%

Figure 5-1 on the next page shows the most frequently
mentioned themes of the respondent’s explanations to the
question above. Amongst 197 coded responses, 73 (37%)
stated concerns about displacement of traffic, pollution, and
noise. Another 27 (14%) showed concerns about resident
and visitor access. Aside from the general reasons for
(14%)

preference to keep planters in place, claiming physical

opposing low traffic schemes, 28 mentioned
barriers are needed to stop drivers, as well as being able to

avoid the dispute and annoyance of fines.

London Borough of Croydon

29

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



yze abed

Figure 5-1: Key themes drawn from respondents’ explanations to their
stance about Option A (Camera enforced restriction)

Concern around traffic being displaced
on to surrounding and main roads with
associated pollution, noise etc.

56
7

|

Prefer to keep planters (e.g. Physical
barriers needed to stop drivers, fines
will annoy people so prefer this, etc.)

18
1

Concerns around visitors not being able
to access houses and local businesses
anymore

Concerns about resident access (e.g.
want permits extended to other roads,
concerns around driving a longer route)

17

! .':I !
=
[e)]

1

Puts residents first / need to prioritise
residents

I

15

|
w

Will result in safer environment for
walking & cycling with less traffic

=
N

Will result in better access for
emergency services and/or residents

rw
~

Concerns around personal safety due
to lower traffic flows / being unable to
access by car

||
[

o

20 40 60

M Live outside scheme boundary M Live within scheme boundary

53

531

5.3.2

Views about Option B (One-way working on
Derby Road)

When asked how strongly the respondents agree or disagree
with Option B (One-way working on Derby Road), slightly
fewer respondents held negative views. 48% of those who
live within the scheme boundary disapprove of this option
while 41% display a positive stance. For those who do not
live within the scheme boundary, the majority (66%) have a
negative stance on this option, with only 17% feel positive. It
is evident that fewer people are opposed to this option, with
slightly more respondents indicating they are neutral than
for Option A.

Table 5-2: Attitudes on Option B (One-way working on Derby
Road)

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

S T [

Strongly Disagree 38 34% 111 57%
Disagree 16 14% 18 9%
Neutral 12 11% 35 18%
Agree 22 19% 23 12%
Strongly Agree 25 22% 9 5%
Total 113 100% 196 100%

Figure 5-2 on the next page shows the most frequently

mentioned themes of the respondent’s explanations to the

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead) 30

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



Gee abed

guestion above. Amongst 177 coded responses, 52 (26%)
welcomed this option as it will help ease traffic and/or make
local access easier. However, 39 (20%) still expressed
concerns about displacement of traffic, pollution, and noise,
and 24 (14%) showed concerns about visitor and/ or
emergency services access. Aside from the general reasons
for opposing low traffic schemes, 21 (11%) were concerned
that this option would reverse the benefits of the current
scheme, or would make the current situation worse. Some
of the comments that belong to this theme also question
whether it would actually be enforced.

Figure 5-2: Key themes drawn from respondents’ explanations to their
stance about Option B (One-way working on Derby Road)

Will help ease traffic / make local
access easier

N

w
N
O

Concern around traffic being displaced
on to surrounding and main roads with
associated pollution, noise etc.

=

~
w
N

Concerns around visitors and/or
emergency services not being able to
access houses and local businesses as

easily
Concerned will reverse benefits of
current scheme/ will make current
situation worse / doesn't go far enough
/ won't be enforced

! .
N
o
w

=
N

Concerns about resident access (e.g.
want permits extended to other roads,
concerns around driving a longer route)

mI
©

Puts residents first / need to prioritise
residents

I.b
~N

Prefer to keep planters (e.g. Physical
barriers needed to stop drivers, visually
more appealing)

b

Concerns around personal safety due
to lower traffic flows / being unable to
access by car

——
[

o

10 20 30 40
M Live outside scheme boundary M Live within scheme boundary

London Borough of Croydon

31 Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



5.4 Preferred Option suggestions (18; 19%) and other forms of traffic

management (14; 15%).
5.4.1 Respondents were then asked to give select their preference

over the two proposed options for the Derby Road measure. Table 5-4: Most frequently mentioned suggestions to make the

It is evident that Option B is more popular than Option A, area safer, quieter and less polluted

H (1)
preferred by 50% of those who live within the scheme EoalDRICtERONY “ b

. . Personal safety & tackle anti-social 21 23%
boundary, and 63% of those who live outside. behaviour ’
. . Other suggestions (cheaper local 18 19%

Table 5-3: Selection of the Preferred Option for Derby Road car parks, house the homeless

Live within the Live Outside of the supporting local businesses, etc.)
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary Other traffic management 14 15%

U area
Q) Option A (Camera 24% 3 2% . . .
«Q enforced restriction) Better traffic calming 10 11%
CISJ Option B (One-way Better speed enforcement 10 11%
1 0, o)
N working on Derby >7 >0% 124 63% Better public transport 10 11%
o)) Road)
No preference 29 26% 64 33% Cleaning the streets 8 9%
Total 113 100% 196 100% Cycle improvements (e.g. cycle 7 8%
lane, cycle parking, etc.)
5.5 Other suggestions Improve streetscape/ environment 7 8%
Walking improvements (e.g. 6 6%
55.1 When respondents were asked if they had any suggestions improve crossings and junctions,

widen pavements,

for how the London Borough of Croydon could make the pedestrianisation, etc.)

area safer, quieter and less polluted, 93 suggestions were

Change on parking permits/zone 4 4%
received and coded. The most frequently mentioned extents
suggestion was improving personal safety and tackling anti- Incentivise usage of electric 4 4%
. . hicl .g. ide chargi
social behaviour (21; 23%), followed by a range of other ;ii:css (e.g. provide charging
Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead) 32 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



/ze abed

Coding Category “

Time restriction (e,g. school 3
streets)
Limit major residential 3

developments
Better Parking Enforcement 2

Financial Incentives for 2
Walking/Cycling

3%

3%

2%
2%

London Borough of Croydon

33

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



8¢ abed

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
Healthy

qguestionnaire  responses  for  Croydon’s

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

This report analyses the responses for the existing Broad
Green CHN (Parsons Mead area) scheme and proposed
changes to the measure on Derby Road.

Survey Results
Travel patterns around Broad Green

The survey has shown that travel patterns for walking,
cycling and scooting around Broad Green since the Covid-19
pandemic have remained around the same. 42% of
respondents stating that the extent of walking, cycling and
scooting they do now has remained about the same, with
less than 30% each stating that they are doing either more
or less. When asked why they would choose not to walk,
cycle or scoot, 41% said they would not because of the

unpleasant street environment.

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

Views about the Temporary Scheme

When asked their views on the current temporary scheme,
the majority does not support the existing scheme, with 56%
of those who live within the scheme boundary against it and
91% of those who live outside the boundary.

The most common reason for the local respondents disliking
the current temporary scheme was ‘more traffic and/or
congestion’, with 47% of those who live within the scheme
boundary and hold negative stance mentioning this in their

explanation.

For respondents who live outside and displayed a negative
view of the existing scheme, the most common reason was

‘more congestion’ (58%).

Despite this, 37% of those who live within the scheme
boundary had a positive stance towards the existing scheme.
The most frequently mentioned theme for supporting the
existing scheme for those who live local is that it creates less
noise, with 82% of the supportive local respondents

mentioning that it ‘results in less traffic’ in their explanation.

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

34

London Borough of Croydon



6.2.6
6.2.7

o

jab)

«Q

D

N

N

O 6.2.8
6.2.9

64% of the respondents said signage improvement would
not make a difference in how they feel about the scheme.
For the 25% who said they will, 'more advanced warning' (36)
and 'making the signs larger or more visible' (35) were the

most common themes.

Those who live within the scheme boundary do perceive the
scheme's general impacts to be better. 41% of those who live
within thought their street feels better than before, as
opposed to 32% who felt worse. For those who live outside
the scheme boundary, the majority perceive the general

impacts to be worse (57%) or about the same (34%).

Views about the Proposed Improvement Options under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)

When the respondents were asked about their views about
Option A (camera enforced restriction), 79% felt negative
and 15% felt positive, with most citing concerns about

displacement of traffic, pollution, and noise.

For Option B (one-way working on Derby Road), fewer
respondents held negative views (59%). 26% display a
positive stance, claiming this option will help ease traffic

and/or make local access easier.

6.2.10

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

When

preference over the two proposed options for the Derby

respondents were then asked to select their

Road measure, Option B (one-way working on Derby Road)
has proven more popular than Option A (camera enforced
restriction), preferred by 50% of those who live inside and
66% of those who outside of the scheme boundary.

What Does it Mean?

The response to the engagement shows that the existing
Broad Green CHN (Parsons Mead area) scheme does not
have support from most respondents (78%), despite the
existing scheme receiving more support from respondents

who live inside the boundary than those who live outside.

It is clear that the scheme resulting in more traffic and/or
congestion to nearby areas is the dominant reason for those
who felt negative about the scheme.

However, if some form of low traffic scheme must stay on
Derby Road and respondents were to choose between the

two options, one-way working is the more preferred option.

It is essential to improve the existing signage, as about 25%
of all respondents stated that improvements to signage ‘will
make a difference’ on how they feel about the scheme.

Signage improvements should be about providing more

London Borough of Croydon

35

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



0gg abed

6.3.5

6.3.6

advanced warnings, making the signs larger and making the
signs clearer (with clearer wordings and/or with
consequences clearly listed), as drawn from the most

popular themes of suggestions.

When the respondents were asked for their suggestions on
how to make Croydon a healthier, safer and quieter area, the
top suggestions were to improve personal safety and tackle
anti-social behaviour (23%), followed by a range of other
suggestions (including cheaper local car parks, house the
homeless, supporting local businesses, etc; 19%) and
implementing other forms of traffic management (15%).

These suggestions should also be considered.

Due to under-representation of response from certain
demographic groups, as well as the use of online survey
methods for this questionnaire, views of the survey
population may not be fully representative of the wider
population. Care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community.

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

36

London Borough of Croydon



Appendix A Postcode Location of
Respondents’ Address

T¢e abed

London Borough of Croydon 37 Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhoods (Parsons Mead)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



3 = v ) 0 o)
-3 < R 2 > 4 CHESTNUT )
= o5 T ) < o < .2 s .2 PARK PRIMARY o Postcode Location of
o Z EY
i £ g . & p Q % & ., Survey Respondents'
Q [)
i e o *s Jad . addresses (of whom
i e o . .
3 £ IS T 5, . megga t s Moy provided a valid postcode)
5 3 ok o
2% ) =< Temporary Streetspace/
1 o« 5 % o oy = GHN Scheme Bou ndary
X S °, % \;?\o 4 \la?\
& N\ >, g 22 o WO > > (Parsons Mead)
o° s 5 < @ € S
3 .(\s"e‘ St \bq- St
N < 5 ¢ "oy & N.B. Numbers on each dot
> .
®° . VSR %y represents the amount of
oo responses received from the same
< Newgat® postcode (if there are more than
°‘9% . one)
@,:"o
>
y 3
> o
q.°'b % HARRIS
h & INVICTUS o5 r ST MARYS
3 ® ACADEMY 2 o ROMAN
The <O R o CATHOLIC
Ny 555 > HIGH SCHOOL
% © go
@ (o) %)
(“® (/)
%, 2
3
o\ 5
> 3—
<
9-? EJU ()
WEST are
Q CROYDON BUS a ®°
D STATION
N
w
N
;o Contains public sector information licensed under the OGL v3.0.
QS’ Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, METI/NASA, USGS, Esri Community
Maps Contributors, Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P,
Y ’&. \Na\\‘ \ METI/NASA, USGS
2
e $C’o A \o* S c\e‘\\\
P PV ° o® e N
dhe R Q@/ °
S, I//
) " G.03 Wenlock
o Studios
()
o 50-52 Wharf Road
London N1 7EU
acfo, % T. 0207 566 3939
o [e”e ;} "
London Borough of
°
0 Croydon
L[]
L]
g
S Croydon HN
[ ] L] = °
upon N H
Esp Mitchans sgaeqy & *\®BeckenhBromley Pre-consultation Engagement
T L)
3 ) szl 3 \
%Q ,"po d DN e o °
o % ool S POSTCODE LOCATION OF
Sutton S
v & Sou oydon s RESPONDENTS' ADDRESS
g & 4 ° ° L
%. Q_OQ (\b 'I.Bur|.c,’\/' o o S 15 PARSONS MEAD SCHEME
ob (o] < ((\o C [ X ) /6
;ﬁ B gob 0@‘(\ 2 R .0 NS S o |
2 %) . .
) 3 WANDLE PARK e/ » F N N .
\i¢ . b°¢ > S, 7
6@‘0 0.25 0.5 s}' 2 * A3@1:4,000 JY IMQ  05/10/2021
< J s
km g Cl)"’c/,s Caterham . A
(o] (/3




cee abed

7

PJA

London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis

October 2021

Project Code: 05764

PJA

G.03

Wenlock Studios
50 - 52 Wharf Road
London

N1 7EU

pja.co.uk



Page 234



Questionnaire Response Analysis

Version l Date ‘ Main Contributor ‘ Issued by ‘Approved by
A 13 August 2021 MW/JY Y IMQ
B 06 October 2021 MW Y IMQ

Prepared for

London Borough of Croydon

Gee abed

London Borough of Croydon Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)



Page 236



/¢ abed

Section Page
I oY o eYa [1Tof i o s PRt 5
1.2 Background 5
2 The SUIVEY ..o 6
2.1 Survey Format 6
2.2 Demographics of Respondents 9
2.3 Demographic Representation 12
2.4  Limitations 17
2.5 Coding of Responses 17
3 Travel Patterns around Broad Green ..................... 18
4 Feedback on the Temporary Scheme...................... 20
4.1 Views about the Temporary Scheme 20
4.2  Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme 23
5 Views about the Proposed Improvements under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)..... 25
5.2 Other Suggestions 26
6 SUMMANY .o 27
6.2  Survey Results 27
6.3  What Does it Mean? 28

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)



ggg abed

Appendix A Postcode Location of Respondents’
Address 29



6£¢ abed

111

1.1.2

1.2

121

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
qguestionnaire  responses  for  Croydon’s  Healthy

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

This report will analyse the responses to the existing and
proposed changes to the Broad Green CHN measure on
Sutherland Road.

Background

The CHN programme follows on from the temporary Low
Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN) schemes introduced in May
2020, which was part of Transport for London's Streetspace
programme. The temporary schemes were created in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic, with the aim to create
more space for people to safely walk or cycle. It additionally

aims to:

e Make streets safer, cleaner and quieter

e Support more sustainable travel methods, like walking or
cycling whilst also enabling and encouraging increased
physical activity

e Address concerns over air pollution and the current

climate crisis.

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

Replacing the temporary scheme created in May 2020, the
proposed changes to the measure on Sutherland Road aims
to retain the overall benefits of LTNs but allow better access
for residents too, primarily by replacing planters with
Automatic Number Plate Recognition Camera (ANPR)

enforced restriction.

Croydon residents were invited to submit their views about
the new scheme via the map-based survey on Croydon’s

‘Get Involved’ website.

This report begins with outlining the survey format and
providing a general overview on the demographics of
respondents, then analyses the responses in detail. The
report examines travel patterns around Broad Green,
respondents’ views and perceived impacts on the existing
temporary scheme, and views about the proposed
improvements under the Experimental Traffic Regulation
Order (ETRO) to replace the existing planters with ANPR

camera enforced restriction.

London Borough of Croydon

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




Otr¢ abed

2.1

211

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

Survey Format

The survey asked respondents about their views on the
temporary scheme on Sutherland Road. Respondents could
complete an online survey sharing their views on the existing
scheme and proposals to upgrade the filter to camera

enforced restrictions.

A ‘Likert’ scale type question was used to gauge views on the
scheme as they enable respondents to state the extent to
which they agree with a statement or have a preference, as
opposed to a binary yes/no choice.

To help clarify their responses, respondents were able to
provide additional comments to clarify and expand on their

views.

The survey aimed to gain an understanding of the extent to
which local people feel the scheme has made their street
healthier, and how it might be improved to better achieve

these aims.

Figure 2-1: Survey Format

What (if anything) stops you from walking and cycling for more journeys in and around

?
* This question must be answered
Please tick all that apply.
Concern about road safety/road danger
Traffic speed
Traffic volume
Unpleasant street environment
Topography (hills}
Disability
Other

Please Specify

Please select vehicles (if any) you own from the following list:

* This question must be answered

Own a car

Own a motorbike

Own a van or other commercial vehicle for work purposes
Own a combination of these

Do not own any of these

O O 0o o0 0O

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



Tt abed

If you selected owning any of the vehicles at question 9, do you also walk, cycle or use

public transport for some of your journeys?

* This question must be answered

Please select the extent as to how much walking, cycling and scooting you are doing now,

than before the Covid-19 pandemic:
* This question must be answered

Much more
Slightly more
About the same
Slightly less

Much less

Are there children and/or young people in your household?
* This question must be answered

If ‘*Yes’ please select the extent as to how much they are walking, cycling, scooting and

skating now, than before the Covid-19 pandemic:
* This question must be answered

Much more
Slightly more
About the same
Slightly less

Much less

Please select the extent of the impact on road safety in your street since the temporary
scheme was put in? E.g. easier to cross, less collisions etc.

* This question must be answered

Much better
Slightly better
About the same
Slightly worse

Much worse

O

Please select the extent of the impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was

put in. E.g. Air pollution, noise congestion etc.

* This question must be answered

Much better
Slightly better
About the same
Slightly worse

Much worse

Please select the extent of the conditions for walking, cycling, and scooting now compared

to before the temporary scheme was in place?

* This question must be answered

Much better
Slightly better
About the same
Slightly worse

Much worse

London Borough of Croydon

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2 abed

Please rate how strongly you support or do not support the
existing_scheme? The question relating to the proposed scheme appears
separately further in the questionnaire.

* This question must be answered

Strongly support
Slightly support
Neutral

Slightly do not support

Do not support at all

Please explain your answer to question 14:

How do you feel about the temporary scheme in its current format?

* This question must be answered

Very positive
Positive
Neutral
Negative
Very negative

Please rate the extent as to how much you agree or disagree with replacing the existing
scheme with that as proposed and explained in the consultation leaflet and outlined on our

healthy neighbourhood website.

* This question must be answered
o Strongly agree
O Agree
@} Neutral
O Disagree
@) Strongly disagree

Please explain your answer to question 18, including any positive or negative impacts you

feel this option, if implemented, will have on you.

If you also have any other suggestions for how we could make the area safer, quieter and

less polluted, can you please tell us?

Please explain your answer to question 16, including any positive or negative impacts you

feel the temporary scheme has had on you:

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



ci¢ abed

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

2.2.4

2.2.5

Demographics of Respondents

A total of 99 responses were received through the online
survey for comments based on measures at Sutherland
Road.

Respondents were asked about their affiliation with the
neighbourhood and were able to select more than one

answer: ‘resident’, ‘business’, ‘school’, ‘visitor’ or ‘other’.

91 respondents stated they were a resident, 6 selected
‘business’, 2 selected ‘school’, 6 selected ‘visitor’ and 3
selected ‘other’. Some respondents selected more than one

category.

When asked if they live locally to the temporary
neighbourhood or travel through the area, all respondents
answered, with 88% stating that they live locally to the
temporary neighbourhood, 5% stating that they only travel
through the area and another 5% answering that they work

in the area, as shown in Table 2-1 below.

Some respondents selected ‘living locally to the temporary
neighbourhood’ and then additional categories. For the
analysis, they have been assigned to the ‘living locally to the
temporary neighbourhood’ category, with only those not

living locally being assigned to their other categories. This is

2.2.6

so that the feelings of local residents to the temporary
neighbourhood can be understood separately from those

passing through or visiting.

Table 2-1: Online Engagement Responses Local, Travel Through
or Other

T e [percentage

Live locally to the temporary

neighbourhood 87 88%
Travel through the area 5 5%
Study in the area 0 0%
Work in the area 5 5%
Other 2 2%
Total 99 100%

The respondents’ postcodes were plotted against the Broad
Green (Sutherland Road area) CHN boundary to assess how
many respondents live within the scheme boundary. The
results are shown in Table 2-2 below, and a plan showing the
postcode location of respondents’ addresses with the
Sutherland Road scheme boundary is attached in
Appendix A.

Table 2-2: Online Engagement Responses Live Within or Outside
the Scheme Boundary

Live within the scheme

0,
boundary °1 52%

London Borough of Croydon

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2.2.7

v1¢ abed

Live outside of the scheme 48 48%
boundary

Total 99 100%

Table 2-3 demonstrates that most respondents, amongst
those who have answered this question, were mainly from
those in the middle-aged brackets. Table 2-4 shows that
slightly more males completed the survey than other
genders, at 44%.

Table 2-3: Online Engagement by Age

S e percomage

Under 18 0 0%
18-30 7 8%
31-40 19 19%
41-50 19 19%
51-60 23 26%
61-64 7 8%
65 and over 5 6%
Prefer not to say 9 10%
Total 89 100%

Table 2-4: Online Engagement by Gender

S e Jeercomage

Male 39 44%
Female 37 42%
Other 5 6%

2.2.8

T e eorcomage

Prefer not to say 8 9%
Total 89 100%

Table 2-5 demonstrates that most respondents (82%)
identified as Heterosexual/Straight. 89
answered this question. Table 2-6 shows that the majority of
respondents (45%) identified as Christian, while 13% had no
religion and 13% identified as muslim.

respondents

Table 2-5: Online Engagement by Sexual Orientation

| N %

Heterosexual/Straight 73 82%
Gay/Lesbian 1 1%
Bi-Sexual 2 2%
Prefer to self-describe 2 2%
Prefer not to say 11 12%
Total 89 100%

Table 2-6: Online Engagement by Religion

| N %

None 12 13%
Christian 40 45%
Hindu 10 11%
Sikh 0 0%
Muslim 12 13%
Jewish 0 0%
Buddhist 0 0%

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

10

London Borough of Croydon



- N %

Any other religion 3 3%
Prefer not to say 12 13%
Total 89 100%

2.2.9 Respondents were asked to describe their ethnic origin.
Most respondents (35%) described themselves as White
English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British. 16%
identified themselves as Indian, whie 13% preferred not to
say, and 8% idenfitied as Black Caribbean. 89 respondents
answered the question and Table 2-7 shows all the

responses.

;JU Table 2-7: Online Engagement by Ethnic Origin

D | N | %
N White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / 31 359
D British

o1 White Irish 0%

0

White Gypsy or Irish Traveller 0 0%

Any other White background 6 7%

White and Black Caribbean 0 0%

White and Black African 1 1%

White and Asian 1 1%
3

Any other Mixed / multiple ethnic background 3%

Indian 14 16%
Pakistani 6 7%
Bangladeshi 0 0%
Chinese 0 0%

2.2.10

| No |

Any other Asian background 3 3%
Black African 2 2%
Black Caribbean 7 8%
Any other Black background 0 0%
Arab 2 2%
Other 1 1%
Prefer not to say 12 13%
Total 0 0%

Respondents were asked to state whether they had any form
of disability. Out of the total responses to this question, 6%
identified themselves as having a disability. The results in

Table 2-8 shows the different types of disabilities.

Table 2-8: Online Engagement by Disability Reported

T e Trercentae |

Visually Impaired 1%
0%
2%
0%
0%
0%
0%
1%
0%
0%
0%
2%

Hearing Impaired

Mobility Disability

Learning Disability
Communication Difficulty
Hidden Disability; Autism (ASD)
Hidden Disability; ADHD
Hidden Disability; Asthma
Hidden Disability; Epilepsy
Hidden Disability; Diabetes
Hidden Disability; Sickle Cell
Other

N OO Ok OO OO0 N|O -

London Borough of Croydon

11

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



9t/¢ abed

2.2.11 Respondents were asked to disclose their annual household (1) The demographics of respondents living within
income. Most respondents (50%) preferred not to disclose scheme boundary is compared with the demographics
this information, the majority of responses which did of the population local to the scheme; and
disclose indicated an annual household income between
£20,000-£30,000 (13%) and £30,000-£40,000 (13%). 88
respondents answered this question.

(2) The demographics of all respondents is compared
with the demographics of the Croydon borough.

Table 2-9: Online Engagement by Annual Household Income Demographic Comparison: Respondents living within

__ % scheme boundary and the local population

£0 - £10,000 5 6% .
2.3.3 2011 Census data has been extracted with the lower super
£10,000 - £20,000 5 6%
£20.000 - £30.000 11 13% output areas (LSOA’s) that cover the Sutherland Road
£30,000 - £40,000 11 13% scheme (Croydeon 019A and Croydon 019C) selected. For
£40,000 - £50,000 3 3% income statistics, ‘Income estimates for small areas, England
£50,000 and above 9 10% and Wales (2018 edition)’ published by Office for National
Prefer not to say a4 >0% Statistics has been used.
Total 88 100%
. . 234 An average of these areas has been taken to compare the
2.3 Demographic Representation ) )
demographics of the scheme area to the demographics of
2.3.1  The demographics from the respondents of the survey have survey respondents who live within the scheme boundary
been compared to the demographics of the existing (referred as "survey sample’ below). The results are shown
population. This is to exhibit the level of representation of in Table 2-10 below.

the survey respondents to the existing population. _ . o o
2.3.5 It is worth noting that the data for the existing population is

2.3.2 It is examined in a two-tier approach: from 2011 so may be slightly out of date but it is the only
data available to provide a comparison to the demographics

of the survey responses.

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road) 12 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



/¢ abed

Table 2-10: The Demographics of Survey Respondents Living Survey Sample Local
Within the Scheme Boundary, in comparison to Sutherland Road (Respondents living in | Population
Area Existing Demographics the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics

(Respondents living in | Population White English /
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics i
Welsh / Scot.tlsh/ 359 16 16%
British

Male 48% 50% : -
Gender Female 39% 18 50% White Irish 0% 0 1%
(2011 White Gypsy or
0, 0, 0,
Census) Other 4% 2 n/a Irish Traveller 0% 0 0%
Prefer not to say 9% 4 n/a Any other White » . »
Under 18 n/a n/a 31% background ’ °
18-30 13% 6 19% White and Black 0% 0 29%
Age 31-40 15% 7 19% Caribbean i i
(2011 41-50 24% 11 15% White and Black | o 0 1%
Afri
Census) 51-60 28% 13 7% rican
i White and Asian 2% 1 1%
61-64 2% 1 2% Ethnic
- (o] (o] . .
65 and over 7% 3 7% Ortgin Any other Mixed
° ° (2011 / multiple ethnic 0% 0 1%
Prefer not to say 11% 5 n/a Census) background
None 15% 7 9% Indian 15% 7 22%
Christian 41% 19 49% Pakistani 11% 5 6%
Hindu 13% 6 21% Bangladeshi 0% 0 1%
Sikh 0% 0 0% Chinese 0% 0 1%
Religion .
(25’11 Muslim 20% 9 15% Any other Asian 7% 3 16%
0 0
Census) Jewish 0% 0 0% background
Buddhist 0% 0 1% Black African 4% 2 12%
Any other 0% 0 0% Black Caribbean 7% 3 10%
religion ’ ’
g Any other Black 0% 0 4%
Prefer not to say 11% 5 5% background
Arab 0% 0 0%
London Borough of Croydon 13 Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



8¢ abed

2.3.6

2.3.7

Survey Sample Local
(Respondents living in | Population
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics

I S [
2%

Other 0%
Prefer not to say 17% 8 n/a
£0 - £10,000 9% 4
£10,000 - .
£20,000 4% 2
£20,000 - 0
Annual £30,000 13% 6
Household £30,000 -
Income £40.000 7% 3
(2018 ONS ’
statistics) £40,000 - o
£50,000 4% 2 £45,800
£50,000 and 11% 5
above
Prefer not to say 51% 23

Table 2-10 shows that the survey sample has a lower
proportion of responses from males, when compared to the
gender split in the local population. It should also be noted
that Census 2011 data did not include ‘other’ gender

categories.

The survey sample has more responses from those aged

between 31-60, when the younger demographics make up a

2.3.8

2.3.9

2.3.10

higher percentage of the existing population in the scheme

area.

A higher proportion of people with no religion and Muslims
were captured in the survey sample than the proportion
within the scheme area population. In contrast, the survey
sample has a lower proportion of Christians and Hindus

completing the survey.

It was also shown that the survey sample has a much higher
proportion of responses from those who are White English /
Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British than recorded in
the existing population. The survey sample also only
received 4% of responses from those who are Black African,
when this community makes up 12% of the local population.
Similar under-representation is also evident for groups like
Black Caribbean, Indian, 'Any other Black background' and
'Any other Asian background'.

For the existing population, only the average annual
household income data was available from the Office of
National Statistics (ONS). For the MSOA covering the scheme
(Croydon 019), the average total income in 2018 was
£45,800. The survey sample has a higher proportion of
responses from people who’s annual household income is
£20,000-£30,000 (13%), with 11% of respndants having an

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



61¢ abed

23.11

2.3.12

annual household income of £50,000 and abvove. Please
note that about half of the survey sample responded ‘Prefer
not to say’ for this question, hence this comparison might

not be fully accurate.

Demographic Comparison: All respondents and the
population of the Croydon borough

2011 Census data was examined again with the whole
Croydon borough selected. For income statistics, ‘Income
estimates for small areas, England and Wales (2018 edition)’
published by Office for National Statistics has been used.

The comparison between the borough-wide population
demographics and the overall survey respondents’

demographics are displayed in Table 2-11 below.

Table 2-11: Survey Respondents’ Demographics compared to
Borough-Wide Population

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

Overall Survey
Responses

Male 44% 39 48%

Gender Female 42% 37 52%
(2011 .

Census) Other 6% 5 n/a

Prefer nottosay | 9% 8 n/a

Age Under 18 0% 0 25%

Borough-wide
Overall Survey B .
Population
Responses . ..
Statistics

I R L
7

(2011 18-30 8% 18%
Census) 31-40 19% 19 15%
41-50 19% 19 15%
51-60 26% 23 11%
61-64 8% 7 4%
65 and over 6% 5 12%
Prefer not to say = 10% 9 n/a
None 13% 12 20%
Christian 45% 40 56%
Hindu 11% 10 6%
Sikh 0% 0 0%
sz';)gl"l’" Muslim 13% 12 8%
Census) Jewish 0% 0 0%
Buddhist 0% 0 1%
Any other 3% 3 1%
religion
Prefer not to say = 13% 12 n/a

White English /
Welsh / Scottish /

0, 1 0,
Northern Irish / 35% 3 4r%
Ethnic British
Origin White Irish 0% 0 1%
(2011 White Gypsy or
0, 0,
Census) Irish Traveller 0% 0 0%
Any other White 7% 6 6%
background

London Borough of Croydon

15

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



0G¢ abed

Overall Survey
Responses

White and Black 0%
(]

Caribbean
White and Black 1% 1
African
White and Asian 1% 1
Any other Mixed
/ multiple ethnic | 3% 3
background
Indian 16% 14
Pakistani 7% 6
Bangladeshi 0%
Chinese 0% 0
Any other Asian 0
background 3% 3
Black African 2% 2
Black Caribbean 8% 7
Any other Black o
background 0% 0
Arab 2% 2
Other 1% 1
Prefer not to say | 13% 12
£0 - £10,000 6% 5
Annual
£10,000 - .
Household £20,000 6% 5
Income
(2018 ONS £20,000 - o
statistics) £30,000 13% 1

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

=

3%

1%

1%

2%

7%
3%
1%
1%
5%
8%
9%
4%
0%
1%
n/a

£53,477

2.3.13

2.3.14

2.3.15

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

% | Frequenc %
|| % |Frequency| % |

Overall Survey
Responses

£30,000 - .
£40,000 13% 1
£40,000 - 0
£50,000 3% 3
£50,000 and 10% 9
above
Prefer not to say = 50% 44

Table 2-11 demonstrates that the survey received a lower
proportion of male and female responses than the Croydon
population. This might be due to the large number of
respondents selecting ‘other’ or ‘Prefer not to say’ for this

question.

In addition, 64% of the responses were from those aged
between 31-60, while this age group only accounts for 41%
in the borough population. People under the age of 30 only
made up 8% of the respondents, despite this age group

accounts for 43% of the population in Croydon.

For ethnic origin, White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern
Irish / British has the highest proportion of respondents for
both the survey respondents and the existing population.

However, this ethnic origin represents a lower proportion

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

16

London Borough of Croydon



TG¢ abed

2.3.16

2.4

24.1

2.4.2

amongst the survey responses than the Croydon borough
statistics. The survey received a higher proportion of
reponses from those with an Indian or Pakistani background,
while there were fewer responses from those with a Black
African background, compared to the Croydon borough
statistics.

The average total income in 2018 was £53,477 in the
Croydon borough. The survey overall received a higher
proportion of responses from repondants who had an
annual household income between £20,000-£30,000 (13%)
and £30,000-£40,000 (13%). Please note that about half of
the survey respondents responded ‘Prefer not to say’ for this

guestion, hence this comparison might not be accurate.
Limitations

As shown in Section 2.3, there is an under-representation of
response from certain demographic groups. Under-
representation amongst income groups cannot be clearly

determined.

In addition, the use of online survey methods for this
guestionnaire may have excluded the participation of the

offline population.

243

2.5

251

2.5.2

2.5.3

254

Therefore, care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community

Coding of Responses

To analyse the free text comments a coding frame has been
produced. The frame has been developed using a sample of
responses that have been analysed in detail to identify

commonly mentioned locations, issues and subjects.

These codes have been used to initially interrogate the free-
text responses. Following an initial analysis, codes were
reviewed by the project team. This process included a review
of all categories, including a focus on those that cannot be

categorised into a specific category and coded as ‘other’.

Where relevant, additional codes and categories were then
generated. The complete set of codes can be seen in the data

analysis.

Each response was fully analysed using the codes. Each
section or subject of each response was coded and included

in the complete analysis.

London Borough of Croydon

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




3.11
3.1.2
o
jabl
Q
D
N
(o)
N
3.1.3

The next section of the survey included questions about

respondent’s travel patterns around Broad Green.

Respondents were asked how much walking, cycling or
scooting they are doing now, compared to before the Covid-
19 pandemic. that
respondents (45%) are doing about the same amount of

Table 3-1 demonstrates most

walking, cycling and scooting, but 34% are doing more and
20% are doing less.

Table 3-1: Extent of Walking, Cycling, Scooting

T e ercentags

Much more 19 20%
Slightly more 14 14%
About the same 44 45%
Slightly Less 9 9%
Much less 11 11%
Total 97 100%

Respondents were then asked: ‘Are there children and/or
young people household?’, 97
answered and 52% (10) of those answered yes. This 52%

in your respondents
were then asked the extent to which they are currently
walking, cycling or scooting compared to before the

pandemic. Again, the majority of children and young

3.14

people’s extent of walking, cycling and scooting now
compared to before the pandemic has remained about the
same, at 54%, with 32% doing more than before and only

14% doing less.

Table 3-2: Extent of Walking, Cycling, Scooting among Children
and Young Adults

I R

Much more 7 14%
Slightly more 9 18%
About the same 27 54%
Slightly Less 2 4%
Much less 5 10%
Total 50 100%

Respondents of the survey were also asked what type of
vehicles (if any) they own. The results in Figure 3-1 below
show that the majority (86%) own a car. In comparison to the
2011 Census (Output area level), about 57% of households
within the Sutherland Road scheme boundary have access to

a car or van, as opposed to about 43% that did not.

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

18

London Borough of Croydon



£G¢ abed

Figure 3-1: Vehicle Ownership by Type

3.15

3.1.6

Vehicle Ownership

= Car
= Motorbike

= Van or commercial
vehicle for work

= Combination

= None

Those who answered yes to owning a car and/or motorbike
(84) were also asked if they also walk, cycle or use public
transport for some of their journeys, where 87% (73)

answered that they did.

Further, respondents were asked; ‘What (if anything) stops
you from walking and cycling for more journeys in and
around Broad Green?’. 97 out of the 99 respondents
answered this question, with 43% stating that the

unpleasant street environment stops them from walking and

cycling around Broad Green, and a further 36% don’t due to

concern about road safety.

Figure 3-2: Reasons for Not Walking and Cycling in and around Broad
Green

Why respondents don't walk and cycle
for more journeys

Other (need
to carry heavy
load, fear of
crime, lack of

time), 22%

Nothing, 7% Concern
about road
safety, 36%

Disability, 7%

London Borough of Croydon

Topography,
3%
Traffic speed,
Unpleasant 28%
street
environment,
43%
Traffic
volume, 39%
19 Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

yGe abed

Views about the Temporary Scheme

As introduced previously, 51 of the responses received
through the online engagement were from people who live
within the scheme boundary, and 48 people who live outside

the scheme boundary.

Table 4-1 below shows that when asked how strongly the
respondents support or do not support the Broad Green CHN
Sutherland Road temporary scheme. The majority held
negative views towards the scheme, with 54% of those living
within the scheme boundary having a negative attitude and
43% displaying a positive stance. A significant share of those
who live outside the scheme boundary felt negatively
towards the scheme at 91% of responses.

Table 4-1: Attitudes on the Existing Broad Green — Sutherland
Road Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. | % | No | %

Do not support at all 23 50% 41 91%
Slightly do not ) 4% 0 0%
support

Neutral 1 2% 0 0%
Slightly support 8 17% 0 0%

4.1.3

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Strongly support 26% 9%
Total 46 100% 45 100%

When asked how the respondents feel about the temporary
scheme in its current format, 50% of those who live within
the scheme boundary felt negatively towards the current
temporary scheme and 40% felt positive. For those who live
outside the scheme boundary, 89% felt negative about the
temporary scheme in its current format, while 9% felt

positive.

Table 4-2: Attitudes on the Temporary Scheme in its Current
Format

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Very Negative 46% 36 80%
Negative 2 4% 4 9%
Neutral 5 11% 1 2%
Positive 9 20% 0 0%
Very Positive 9 20% 4 9%
Total 46 100% 45 100%

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

20

London Borough of Croydon



4.1.4

4.1.5

GGe abed

The most frequently mentioned themes for supporting the

scheme were:

— The scheme makes the area safer (18)
— The scheme results in less traffic (7)
— The scheme results in less noise (5)
— The scheme is good for pedestrians (4)

— The scheme results in mental health improvements (4)

18 out of the 46 respondents who live within the scheme
boundary said they feel positive about the existing scheme
(see Table 4-1). Figure 4-1 shows the most frequently
mentioned themes for those who live within the scheme
boundary and have a positive attitude towards the scheme.
The most frequently mentioned themes for those that live
inside the scheme boundary are that the scheme creates less

traffic (7), is safer (6) and creates less noise (5).

Figure 4-1: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Within the
Scheme Boundary to Feel Positive about the Scheme

O R, N W b U1 OO N

4.1.6

4.1.7

Less traffic

Most popular themes for those who live within

the scheme boundary to feel positive towards the

scheme

7
6
5
I I 4 4
Good for peds Mental heath
improvements

Safer Less noise

Amongst the four respondents who stated that they feel
positive towards the scheme and who live outside the
scheme boundary (see Table 4-1), the only reason
mentioned in their explanation was about the scheme

making the area safer (2).

The most popular themes for feeling negative towards the

scheme were:

— Itis an inconvenience as it results in longer journeys
(25)

London Borough of Croydon

21

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



— The scheme results in more congestion (20)

It makes the area feel more dangerous (14)

It causes mobility issues being adversely affected (13)

— The scheme results in more pollution (11)

4.1.8 22 of those who live within the scheme boundary stated that
they feel negative about the existing scheme (see Table 4-1).
The results of their most frequently mentioned themes for
feeling negative towards the scheme are shown in Figure 4-
2 below. This shows that inconvenience due to longer
journeys (12) is the most popular reason, closely followed by
the scheme being more dangerous (6) and causing more

pollution (5).

9G¢ abed

Figure 4-2: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Within the
Scheme Boundary to Feel Negative about the Scheme

Most popular themes for those who live within
the scheme boundary to feel negative towards

the scheme
14 3
12
10
8 e .
6 4 4 4
4
0
& & S oS & QQ}*'
& & S S &
o) & 9 (\QO KQ’ &
N ke Q/Q & @0 >
QQ% & S 2 NZ
N &
(o4 \a\gﬁ
& o
2 O
& Q]
<
9
&
4.1.9 For the 40 respondents who live outside the scheme

boundary and feel negative about the scheme (see Table 4-
1), Figure 4-4 shows that their most frequently mentioned
theme for having a negative stance is also inconvenience due
to longer journeys (3), followed by the scheme resulting in

more pollution (20).

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

22

London Borough of Croydon



/Ge¢ abed

Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme

To assess the perceived impacts of the temporary scheme,
respondents were asked; ‘Please select the extent of the
impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was
put in? E.g. Air pollution, noise, congestion etc’. Of those
who live within the scheme boundary, 46% perceive that the
impacts being better than before, versus 28% thinking the
impacts are worse. The majority (83%) of those who do not
live within the scheme boundary perceive the impacts as
worse, 9% of respondents view the impacts as better.

Table 4-3: What Respondents Thought of the Impacts of the

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

New Scheme

No. % No. %
Much Worse 13 26% 36 77%
Slightly Worse 1 2% 3 6%
About the Same 13 26% 4 9%
Slightly Better 8 16% 0 0%
Much Better 15 30% 4 9%
Total 50 100% 47 100%

When asked to select the extent of the impact on road safety
since the temporary scheme was put in e.g. easier to cross,
fewer collisions etc, 26% of those who live within the scheme

boundary said it is worse than before, as opposed to 46%

Figure 4-3: The Most Popular Reasons for Those Who Live Outside the 4.2
Scheme Boundary to Feel Negative about the Scheme
4.2.1
Most popular themes for those who live outside
the scheme boundary to feel negative towards
the scheme
18
16
16
14
12 13
10
8
6
1
2
0
;000 (\Qﬁ" &@b kO\)(o "QOQ o\")e
Q?f? ok Q\Q/ Qg’ \\\) Q,Q
3 ® ° & < &
& & N N @ B
OJ\Q/ 0(\% Q}‘o o@' @0
A A S \} 42.2
. Q}\O \)Q/c)
é\\ &
N Q
& N
\Q(J @60
London Borough of Croydon 23

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



8G¢ abed

4.2.3

thinking it is better. However, for those who do not live
within the scheme boundary, 79% stated that road safety is
worse than before the scheme was put into place, while only
11% thought it became better, as shown in Table 4-4 below.

Table 4-4: The Perceived Impact on Road Safety

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Much Worse 24% 32 68%
Slightly Worse 1 2% 5 11%
About the Same 14 28% 5 11%
Slightly Better 8 16% 1 2%
Much Better 15 30% 4 9%
Total 50 100% 47 100%

Table 4-5 on the next page shows the responses to Question
13 of the survey: ‘Please select the extent of the conditions
for walking, cycling and scooting now compared to before
the temporary scheme was in place?’. For those who live
within the scheme boundary, 52% stated that conditions
were better, while 16% stated that they were worse.
Respondents who live outside the scheme boundary
perceive that the conditions for walking, cycling and scooting
have been worse since the scheme came into place (68%),

with 17% stating that they had remained the same.

Table 4-5: The Perceived Impact on Conditions for Walking,
Cycling and Scooting Now from the Scheme

Much Worse
Slightly Worse
About the Same
Slightly Better
Much Better
Total

Live within the

Scheme Boundary

[

14

15
44

14%
2%
32%
18%
34%
100%

Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary

22
10
8

a7

47%
21%
17%
6%
9%
100%

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road) 24

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



6G¢ abed

511

5.1.2

In this section of the survey, Question 18, respondents were
asked whether they agree or disagree with replacing the
existing planter closure on Sutherland Road with a camera
enforced restriction. The results of this question are shown
in Table 5-1 below and it is clear that the majority of both
those who live inside our outside the scheme boundary,
disagree with enforcing camera restrictions on Sutherland

Road, with 85% and 86% disagreeing, respectively.

Table 5-1: Opinion regarding Replacing Existing Planters with
Camera Enforced Restrictions

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No | % | No | %

Strongly Disagree 28 72% 33 75%
Disagree 5 13% 5 11%
Neutral 2 5% 2 5%
Agree 0 0% 0 0%
Strongly Agree 4 10% 4 9%
Total 39 100% 44 100%

Figure 5-1 below shows the most frequently mentioned

reasons for the respondent’s answers to the question above

513

for those who live inside and outside the scheme boundary.
Amongst the 36 coded responses from those who live within
the scheme boundary, 11 (31%) prefer to keep the planters
over installing ANPR cameras as it can prevent drivers from
being fined and/ or it looks better. 11 (31%) mentioned the
new scheme does not put residents first and five (14%)

mentioned concerns about visitor access.

For those who do not live within the scheme boundary, 29
explanations were received and coded. Out of these, six
(21%) expressed concerns about visitors losing access to
houses and local businesses, and seven (24%) were about
preference to keep the planters. Three (10%) raised

concerns about personal safety.

London Borough of Croydon

25

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



09¢ abed

., ;‘_.y

Figure 5-1: Key Themes Drawn from Respondents’ Explanations to Their
Stance about Replacing the Existing Scheme with the Proposed
Improvements

Concern around traffic being displaced on
to surrounding and main roads with
associated pollution, noise etc.

Concerns around personal safety due to
lower traffic flows / being unable to
access by car

-l
=
w
6}

Concerns around visitors not being able to
access houses and local businesses
anymore

u-|I
[e)]

Concerns about resident access (e.g. want
permits extended to other roads,
concerns around driving a longer route

]

Puts residents first / need to prioritise

I‘

residents 11
Will result in safer environment for 1
walking & cycling with less traffic 2
Will result in better access for emergency 1
services and/or residents 3
0 5 10 15

M Live outside scheme boundary M Live within scheme boundary

5.2

521

Other Suggestions

Respondents were then asked if they had any suggestions for

how the London Borough of Croydon could make the area

safer, quieter and less polluted. 60 suggestions were

received and coded, of these the most frequently mentioned

suggestion was introducing a one-way system (19; 32%),

followed by some other form of traffic management (9; 15%)

and improvements to the streetscape/environment.

Table 5-2: Most Frequently Mentioned Suggestions to Make the

Area Safer, Quieter and Less Polluted

Coding Category “ %

Introducing one-way system
Other traffic management
Improve streetscape/environment
Cleaning the streets

Change on parking permits/zone
extents

Other suggestions

Better traffic calming

Personal safety & tackle anti-social
behaviour

Better public transport

Better speed enforcement

19 32%
9 15%
9 15%
6 10%
4 7%
4 7%
3 5%
3 5%
3 5%
2 3%

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road) 26

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



T9¢ abed

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
Healthy

guestionnaire for  Croydon’s

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

responses

This report analyses the responses to the existing and
proposed changes to the Broad Green CHN measure on
Sutherland Road.

Survey Results
Travel patterns around Broad Green

The survey has shown that travel patterns for walking,
cycling and scooting around Broad Green since the Covid-19
pandemic has remained around the same. 45% of
respondents stating that the extent of walking, cycling and
scooting they do now has remained about the same, with
34% stating that they are doing more. When asked why they
would choose not to walk, cycle or scoot, the most popular
reasons were about unpleasant street environment (43%),

traffic volume (39%) and concern about road safety (36%).

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

Views about the Temporary Scheme

The survey results indicate most people feel negatively
towards the temporary scheme, with 54% of those who live
within the scheme boundary not supporting, as well as 91%

of those who live outside the scheme boundary.

In particular, 50% of those who live inside the scheme
boundary are negative about the temporary scheme in its
current form, while 89% of those who live outside the
scheme boundary also expressed negative views. A majority
of the coded answers from this group relating to the

inconvenience and extra journey time.

However, some positives did emerge in the form of less
traffic and both groups said they felt safer. Regardless, the
impact to walking, cycling and scootering were negligible,
due to residents and non-residents not picking up on it
substantially, whilst quotes were mixed — including “rarely
see cyclists use this scheme” as well as “road has been made

safer”.

Respondents have also argued that the pandemic has
skewed the results, as roads would otherwise be clear and

after lockdown easing “traffic will return”.

London Borough of Croydon

27

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



29¢ abed

6.2.6

6.2.7

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

Views about the Proposed Improvements under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)

For the question about with replacing the existing planter
closure on Sutherland Road with a camera enforced
restriction, the majority disagree with this change. It is
opposed by 85% of those who live inside, and 86% of those

who live outside the scheme boundary.

When asked to explain why the respondents agree or
disagree with replacing the existing planter closure with a
camera enforced restriction, the main reasons for those who
disagreed was due to concerns about visitors losing access to
houses and local businesses, as well as their preference to
keep the planter closure, as it can prevent drivers from being
fined and/ or it looks better. Some also expressed concerns

about personal safety.
What Does it Mean?

The response to the engagement shows that the majority of
respondents do not support the scheme on Sutherland Road,

no matter living inside or outside of the scheme boundary.

The responses suggest that replacing the temporary
measures on Sutherland Road with ANPR cameras would not

be very popular — predominantly amongst those who live

6.3.3

6.3.4

there. Traffic concerns were a factor throughout, but many
thought that the scheme merely displaces traffic rather than
reduce it, or causes unnecessary trips down Sutherland Road

if drivers are unaware it is closed at one end.

When the respondents were asked for their suggestions on
how to make Croydon a healthier, safer and quieter area, the
top suggestions were to introduce a one-way system (32%),
to implement some other form of traffic management (15%),

and to improve streetscape and/ or the environment (15%).

Due to under-representation of response from certain
demographic groups, as well as the use of online survey
methods for this questionnaire, views of the survey
population may not be fully representative of the wider
population. Care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being
treated as the general views of the community.

Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



Appendix A Postcode Location of
Respondents’ Address

£9¢ abed

London Borough of Croydon 29 Broad Green Healthy Neighbourhood (Sutherland Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



D= 37 T
R S N
N 060/ QK'O 0@
B «\e‘°“
Ca
3 )
Q0° < s
(\\eﬂ 3 L
x? % ©
> as
2 W7 c
3 < 2
co®
@)
o)
]
o °
(o (]
= £
A >
o Y d
g stanley RO? °
s ELMWOOD
INFANTS
SCHOOL/ELMW(
JUNIOR
SCHOOL
Canterbury Road
(2
o
o
~
£
<
& 0
[ o
Q W°
o
QD
Q %,
3 3 %
0 2
I\) 5 o 5 z%
o)) * > o ) 2
& o &K 2,
D_ ”,
Y
Y %
4 »
28 )
/P% o s\s?‘oa
e
(4 )a‘“
z s
By 3
&
o
C)/Db 1
& =
> )
> [
< &
Q’b.\‘ ,‘\(\3
Mitchdm BeckenhamBrom|ey
P
e’.f,,) Thernton
S0/ Heath
4’0%, F
[ ]
[ ]
Crosdon -
Carshalton
Sutton
South Croydon
Purlgy
z
O €,
30 6%
: 7
o KINGSLEY 24
PRIMARY W, o
0 ST 5 025 0.5
— ~ 1 km
A % -

ne

Postcode Location of
Survey Respondents'
addresses (of whom
provided a valid postcode)

— Temporary Streetspace/
CHN Scheme Boundary

(Sutherland Road)

N.B. Numbers on each dot
represents the amount of
responses received from the same
postcode (if there are more than
one)

Contains public sector information licensed under the OGL v3.0.
Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, METI/NASA, USGS, Esri Community
Maps Contributors, Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P,

METI/NASA, USGS

[ ]
///
°, G.03 Wenlock
Studios
50-52 Wharf Road
London N1 7EU
T. 0207 566 3939

London Borough of
Croydon

Croydon HN
Pre-consultation Engagement

POSTCODE LOCATION OF
RESPONDENTS' ADDRESS
(SUTHERLAND ROAD SCHEME)

A3@1:2,700 JY MQ 06/10/2021

c1.7 A




Gog abed

7

PJA

London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis

October 2021

Project Code: 05764

PJA

G.03

Wenlock Studios
50 - 52 Wharf Road
London

N1 7EU

pja.co.uk



Page 266



/9¢ abed

Questionnaire Response Analysis

Version l Date ‘ Main Contributor ‘ Issued by ‘Approved by
A 24 September 2021 ED Jy IMQ
B 27 September 2021 ED Y IMQ
C 30 September 2021 ED/JY Y IMQ
D 6 October 2021 ED/JY Y IMQ

Prepared for

London Borough of Croydon

London Borough of Croydon South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)



Page 268



69¢ abed

Section Page

1.2

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5

4.1
4.2

5.2
53

6

Fe R oo Ya [V Tox o oY s DR |

Background 1
The SUIVEY ..o 3
Survey Format 3
Demographics of Respondents 6
Demographic Representation 9
Limitations 14
Coding of Responses 14
Travel patterns around South Norwood................. 16
Feedback on the Temporary Scheme...................... 18
Views about the Temporary Scheme 18
Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme 21

Preference about the Proposed Improvements under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)..... 24

Views about Proposed Improvements 24
Other Suggestions 26
SUMMATY ..o 27

6.2
6.3

Survey Results
What Does it Mean?

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale
Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

27
28

7



0/¢ abed

Appendix A Postcode Location of Respondents’
Address 29

Questionnaire Response Analysis

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of CroydonLondon Borough of Croydon



T/ ¢ abed

111

1.1.2

1.2

121

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
Croydon’s  Healthy

questionnaire responses  for

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

This report will analyse the responses for the existing South
Norwood CHN (Holmesdale Road area) scheme and
proposed changes to the measure.

Background

The CHN programme follows on from the temporary Low
Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN) schemes introduced in May
2020, which was part of Transport for London's Streetspace
programme. The temporary schemes were created in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic, with the aim to create
more space for people to safely walk or cycle. It additionally

aims to:

e Make streets safer, cleaner and quieter;

e Support more sustainable travel methods, like walking or
cycling whilst also enabling and encouraging increased

physical activity; and

1.2.2

1.2.3

Introduction

e Address concerns over air pollution and the current

climate crisis.

Replacing the temporary scheme created in May 2020, the
proposals for an Experimental South Norwood CHN
(Holmesdale Road area) aims to retain the overall objectives
of the LTNs but allow more direct access for emergency

services and residents.

The proposal to replace the existing planter closures are

outlined below:

e The planters/physical islands on Holmesdale Road at two
locations will be removed and replaced with a camera-

enforced restriction with permit exemptions.

e The planters/physical islands at the third location
(outside Selhurst Park) will remain largely unchanged but
there will be an addition of foldable lockable bollard to

cater for emergency service vehicle access.

e A new restriction will be introduced on Elm Park Road at
its junction with South Norwood Hill. This (as with the
other restrictions described above) will also be enforced
through the use of a camera with an exemption for those

with permits or exemptions.

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




2/ ¢ abed

Introduction

1.24 Croydon residents or anyone travelling through the area
were invited to submit their views via an online survey or

through a physical survey.

1.2.5 This report begins with outlining the survey format and
providing a general overview of the demographics of
respondents, then analyses the responses in detail. The
report examines travel patterns around South Norwood,
respondents’ views and perceived impacts of the entire
South Norwood CHN (Holmesdale Road area) temporary
scheme, and their preference over keeping the existing
temporary scheme or installing the proposed improvements.

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



¢/ ¢ abed

2.1

211

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

Survey Format

The survey asked respondents for their views on the entire
South Norwood CHN (Holmesdale Road area) temporary
scheme. Respondents could complete an online survey
sharing their views on the existing scheme and how they feel
about replacing the existing scheme with the proposed

improvements.

A ‘Likert’ scale type question was used to gauge views on the
existing scheme and preference over the improvement
options. Likert scales enable respondents to state the extent
to which they agree with a statement or have a preference,
as opposed to a binary yes/no choice.

To help people clarify their responses to the questions
related to the schemes, respondents were able to provide

additional comments to clarify and expand on their views.

The survey aimed to gain an understanding of the extent to
which local people feel the scheme has made their street
healthier, and how it might be improved to better achieve

these aims.

Figure 2-1: Excerpts from The Survey

The Survey

What (if anything) stops you from walking and cycling for more journeys in and around

?
* This question must be answered
Please tick all that apply.
Concern about road safety/road danger
Traffic speed
Traffic volume
Unpleasant street environment
Topography (hills)
Disability
Other

Please Specify

Please select vehicles (if any) you own from the following list:
* This question must be answered

Own a car

Own a motorbike

Own a van or other commercial vehicle for work purposes
Own a combination of these

Do not own any of these

O 0O o O 0O

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



/¢ abed

The Survey
If you selected owning any of the vehicles at question 9, do you also walk, cycle or use Please select the extent of the impact on road safety in your street since the temporary
public transport for some of your journeys? scheme was put in? E.g. easier to cross, less collisions etc.
* This question must be answered * This question must be answered
Please select the extent as to how much walking, cycling and scooting you are doing now, Much better o
than before the Covid-19 pandemic: g
* This question must be red Slightly better O
About the same O
Much more o Slightly worse @]
Slightly more @] Much worse e}
About the same @] Please select the extent of the impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was
Slightly less O put in. E.g. Air pollution, noise congestion etc.
Much less o * This question must be answered
. . Much better O
Are there children and/or young people in your household?
Slightly better )
* This question must be answered
About the same O
Slightly worse O
If ‘Yes’ please select the extent as to how much they are walking, cycling, scooting and Much -
skating now, than before the Covid-19 pandemic: uch worse ©
* This question must be answered Please select the extent of the conditions for walking, cycling, and scooting now compared
to before the temporary scheme was in place?
Much more O * This question must be answered
Slightly more @]
About the same O Much better ©
Slightly less o Slightly better o
Much less o About the same @]
Slightly worse O
Much worse @]
South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road) 4 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



G/ ¢ abed

The Survey
Please rate how strongly you support or do not support the Please rate the extent as to how much you agree or disagree with replacing the existing
existing_scheme? The question relating to the proposed scheme appears scheme with that as proposed and explained in the consultation leaflet and outlined on our
separately further in the questionnaire. healthy neighbourhood website.
* This question must be answered
* This question must be answered
Strongly support O
Strongly agree @)
Slightly support @] .
Agree O
Neutral O
Neutral o]
Slightly do not support O
gty upp Disagree o
9]
Do not support at all O Strongly disagree o

Please explain your answer to question 18, including any positive or negative impacts you

Please explain your answer to question 14: _ R A
feel this option, if implemented, will have on you.

If you also have any other suggestions for how we could make the area safer, quieter and
How do you feel about the temporary scheme in its current format? less polluted, can you please tell us?

* This question must be answered

Very positive O
Positive O
Neutral
Negative
Very negative O

Please explain your answer to question 16, including any positive or negative impacts you
feel the temporary scheme has had on you:

London Borough of Croydon 5 South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



The Survey

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

9/ ¢ abed

2.2.4

Demographics of Respondents

A total of 681 responses were received through the online
survey and two responses were received through a physical
copy of the survey. Respondents were asked if they were
responding as any of the following, and were able to select
more than one answer; ‘resident’, ‘business’, ‘school’,

‘visitor’ or ‘other’.

All respondents responded to this question, with 595
selecting ‘resident’, 32 ‘business’, 8 ‘school’, 80 ‘visitor’ and
22 ‘Other’. Some respondents selected ‘resident’ but also

selected a second option.

When asked if they lived locally to the temporary
neighbourhood, respondents answered with 87% (591)
stating that they live local, 11% stating that they only travel
through the area and 1% answering ‘other’ as shown in Table
2-1. This totals 13% (92) respondents who don’t classify as

‘living locally’.

Some respondents selected ‘live locally to the temporary
neighbourhood’ and then additional categories. For the
analysis, they have been assigned to the ‘live locally to the
temporary neighbourhood’ category. Only those not living

locally being assigned to their other categories. This is so that

2.2.5

the feelings of local residents can be understood separately

from those passing through or visiting.

Table 2-1: Online engagement responses local or travel through

Live local to the temporary 591 87%
neighbourhood

Travel through in the area 77 11%
Study in the area 2 0%
Work in the area 3 0%
Other 10 1%
Total 683 100%

The respondents’ postcodes were plotted against the South
Norwood (Holmesdale Road area) CHN boundary to assess
how many respondents live within the scheme boundary.
The results are shown in Table 2-2 below, and a plan showing
the postcode location of respondents’ addresses with the
Holmesdale Road scheme boundary is attached in
Appendix A.

Table 2-2: Online engagement responses live within or outside
of the scheme boundary

Live within the scheme

0,
boundary 2 3
Live outside of the scheme 459 67%
boundary
Total 683 100%

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



2.2.6

2.2.7

/¢ abed

Amongst the 591 respondents who identified themselves as
living locally in Table 2-1, 224 (38%) live within the scheme

boundary.

Table 2-3 shows that slightly more females completed the
survey than other genders, at 46%. 606 respondents
answered this question. Table 2-4 demonstrates that most
respondents (21%) fell into the 41-50 age category, with 20%
in the 31-40 and 51-60 age categories. 605 respondents

answered this question.

Table 2-3: Online Engagement by Gender

| N %

Male 230 38%
Female 278 46%
Gender variant/non-conforming 2 0%
Transgender male 4 1%
Transgender female 3 0%
Prefer to self-describe 8 1%
Prefer not to say 81 13%
Total 606 100%

Table 2-4: Online Engagement by Age

| N %

Under 18 2 0%
18-30 48 8%
31-40 119 20%

2.2.8

The Survey

| N %

41-50 128 21%
51-60 124 20%
61-64 34 6%

65 and over 68 11%
Prefer not to say 82 14%
Total 605 100%

Table 2-5 demonstrates that most respondents (71%)
Heterosexual/Straight. 606

answered this question. Table 2-6 shows that over one-third

identified as respondents

of respondents (35%) had no religion, with 34% identifying
as Christian.

Table 2-5: Online Engagement by Sexual Orientation

I N

Heterosexual/Straight 433 71%
Gay/Lesbian 13 2%
Bi-Sexual 7 1%
Prefer to self describe 16 3%
Prefer not to say 137 23%
Total 606 100%

Table 2-6: Online Engagement by Religion

I N

None 211 35%
Christian 204 34%

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



7

The Survey

2.2.9

8/ ¢ abed

- N | %

Hindu 5 1%
Sikh 1 0%
Muslim 15 2%
Jewish 2 0%
Buddhist 0 0%
Any other religion 24 4%
Prefer not to say 141 23%
Total 603 100%

Respondents were asked to describe their ethnic origin.
Most respondents (40%) described themselves as White
English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British. 22% of
respondents preferred not to say and 10% described
themselves as Black Caribbean. 605 respondents answered

the question and Table 2-7 shows all the responses.

Table 2-7: Online Engagement by Ethnic Origin

| N %

White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / 244 40%
British

White Irish 16 3%
White Gypsy or Irish Traveller 1 0%
Any other White background 39 6%
White and Black Caribbean 11 2%
White and Black African 4 1%
White and Asian 9 1%
Any other Mixed / multiple ethnic background 17 3%

2.2.10

| No | %

Indian 10 2%
Pakistani 9 1%
Bangladeshi 0 0%
Chinese 2 0%
Any other Asian background 3 0%
Black African 16 3%
Black Caribbean 59 10%
Any other Black background 9 1%
Arab 0 0%
Other 24 4%
Prefer not to say 132 22%
Total 605 100%

Respondents were asked whether they considered
themselves to have any form of disability. 606 respondents
answered the question. 16% (96) said that they did, 67%
(407) said that they didn’t, and the remaining respondents
preferred not to say. The results in Table 2-8 shows the

different types of disabilities.

Table 2-8: Online Engagement by Disability Reported

Type of Disability _ %

Visually Impaired 5 1%
Hearing Impaired 7 1%
Mobility Disability 62 10%
Learning Disability 0 0%
Communication Difficulty 4 1%

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



6/¢ abed

2.2.11

T S R

Hidden Disability; Autism (ASD) 1%
Hidden Disability; ADHD 1 0%
Hidden Disability; Asthma 13 2%
Hidden Disability; Epilepsy 2 0%
Hidden Disability; Diabetes 11 2%
Hidden Disability; Sickle Cell 2 0%
Other (e.g. Crohn’s, Mental Health, Cancer, 21 3%

Arthritis etc.)

Respondents were asked to disclose their annual household
income, as shown in Table 2-9. Most respondents (50%)
preferred not to disclose this information, 21% of
respondents earn £50,000 and above annually. 604

respondents answered this question.

Table 2-9: Online Engagement by Annual Household Income

N %

£0 - £10,000 20 3%
£10,000 - £20,000 39 6%
£20,000 - £30,000 36 6%
£30,000 - £40,000 45 7%
£40,000 - £50,000 35 6%
£50,000 and above 128 21%
Prefer not to say 301 50%
Total 604 100%

23

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.3.3

The Survey

Demographic Representation

The demographics from the respondents of the survey have
been compared to the demographics of the existing
population. This is to exhibit the level of representation of

the survey respondents to the existing population.

It is examined in a two-tier approach:

(1) The demographics of respondents living within
scheme boundary is compared with the demographics
of the population local to the scheme; and

(2) The demographics of all respondents is compared

with the demographics of the Croydon borough.

Demographic Comparison: Respondents living within
scheme boundary and the local population

2011 Census data has been extracted with the lower super
output areas (LSOA’s) that cover the Holmesdale Road
scheme (Croydon 007A, 007B, 007E, 010D, 013C) selected.
For income statistics, ‘Income estimates for small areas,
England and Wales (2018 edition)’ published by Office for

National Statistics has been used.

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



08¢ abed

%
/4 The Survey

2.3.4 An average of these areas has been taken to compare the Survey Sample Local
demographics of the scheme area to the demographics of (:espﬁndentslivizgin Population
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics
survey respondents who live within the scheme boundary -_-_

(referred as ‘survey sample’ below). The results are shown

65 and over 10% 9%
in Table 2-10 below. Prefer not to say 10% 21 n/a
535 | h h he d : h | None 34% 68 19%
3. t is worth noting that the data for the existing population is
g g Pop Christian 42% 84 61%
from 2011 so may be slightly out of date but it is the only Hindu 1% 3 2%
data available to provide a comparison to the demographics Sikh 0% 0 0%
Religion .
of the survey responses. (201gl Muslim 3% 6 8%
Census) Jewish 0% 0 0%
Table 2-10: The demographics of survey respondents living Buddhist 0% 0 1%
within the scl"lefne boundary, |rl comparison to Holmesdale Any other 4% 3 1%
Road area existing demographics religion
Survey Sample Local Prefer not to say 16% 32 n/a
(Respondents living in | Population White English / 40% 31 31%
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics Welsh / Scottish /
% Northern Irish /
British
Male 37% 75 48% N N o ”
White Iris 09 1 29
Gender | poale 52% 106 52% ’ ’
(2011 N White Gypsy or 0% 0 0%
Census) Other 1% 3 n/a Ethnic Irish Traveller
Prefernottosay | 10% 20 n/a Zgi'ln Any other White | 7% 14 7%
Under 18 1% 2 25% background
Census)
18-30 10% 21 19% White and Black 1% 2 5%
Age 31-40 25% 50 17% Caribbean
(2011 41-50 19% 39 17% White and Black 1% 2 1%
Census) African
51-60 20% 41 10%
White and Asian 1% 3 1%
61-64 4% 9 3%
South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road) 10 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



T8¢ abed

Annual
Household
Income
(2018 ONS
statistics)

Any other Mixed 3%
/ multiple ethnic
background

Indian 4%
Pakistani 1%
Bangladeshi 0%
Chinese 0%
Any other Asian 0%
background

Black African 4%
Black Caribbean 13%
Any other Black 2%
background

Arab 0%
Other 4%

Prefer not to say 17%

£0-£10,000 5%
£10,000 - 7%
£20,000
£20,000 - 5%
£30,000
£30,000 - 6%
£40,000
£40,000 - 5%
£50,000

Survey Sample

(Respondents living in
the Scheme Boundary)

R |= O N o

26

34
10

14

11

13

11

Local

Population
Statistics

T
2%

3%
2%
0%
1%
4%

2.3.6

14%
17%
7%

1%
1%
n/a

2.3.7

2.3.8

Average
Annual

Income:
£48,150

The Survey

Survey Sample Local
(Respondents living in | Population
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics

£

£50,000 and 22%
above
Prefer not to say 49% 100

Table 2-10 shows that the survey sample has a higher
proportion of responses from females, but the scheme area
also has a higher proportion of females than males.
However, the survey sample received a larger difference of
percentage of females and males than the existing
population. It should also be noted that Census 2011 data
did not include ‘other’ gender categories.

The survey sample has more responses from those aged
between 31-60, when the younger demographics make up a
higher percentage of the existing population in the scheme

area.

A much higher proportion of people with no religion were
captured in the survey sample than the proportion within
the existing population in the scheme area. Additionally, the
survey sample received a lower proportion of Christians and

Muslims completing the survey.

London Borough of Croydon

11

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



Z

Kz

28z abed

The Survey

2.3.9

2.3.10

It was also shown that the survey sample has a much higher
proportion of responses from those who are White English /
Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British than recorded in
the existing population. The survey sample also only
received 4% of responses from those who are Black African,
when this community makes up 14% of the local population,
along with the Black Caribbean community making up 17%
of the existing population but only 13% of the survey sample.
Similar under-representation is also evident for groups like
and

'Any other Black background' 'Any other Asian

background'.

For the existing population, only the average annual
household income data was available from the Office of
National Statistics (ONS). For the MSOA’s covering the
scheme (Croydon 007 and 010), the average total income in
2018 was £48,150. The survey sample has a higher
proportion of responses from people who earned £50,000
and above and £30,000 - £40,000. Please note that about
half of the survey sample responded ‘Prefer not to say’ for
this question, hence this comparison might not be fully

accurate.

Demographic Comparison: All respondents and the
population of the Croydon borough

2.3.11

2.3.12

2011 Census data was examined again with the whole
Croydon borough selected. For income statistics, ‘Income
estimates for small areas, England and Wales (2018 edition)’
published by Office for National Statistics has been used.

The comparison between the borough-wide population

demographics and the overall survey respondents’

demographics are displayed in Table 2-11 below.

Table 2-11: Survey respondents’ demographics compared to
borough-wide population
Population

% el %
30

Borough-wide

Overall Survey

Responses

Male 38% 2 48%
Gender  ronale 46% 278 52%
(2011 5
Census) Other 3% 17 n/a
Prefer nottosay = 13% 81 n/a
Under 18 0% 2 25%
18-30 8% 48 18%
Age 31-40 20% 119 15%
(2011 41-50 21% 128 15%
Census) 5160 20% 124 11%
61-64 6% 34 4%
65 and over 11% 68 12%
Prefer not to say | 14% 82 n/a
None 35% 211 20%
Christian 34% 204 56%

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

12

London Borough of Croydon



€8¢ abed

Religion
(2011
Census)

Ethnic
Origin
(2011
Census)

Hindu

Sikh

Muslim

Jewish

Buddhist

Any other
religion

Prefer not to say

White English /
Welsh / Scottish /
Northern Irish /
British

White Irish

White Gypsy or
Irish Traveller
Any other White
background

White and Black
Caribbean

White and Black
African

White and Asian

Any other Mixed
/ multiple ethnic
background

Indian

Overall Survey

Responses

1%
0%
2%
0%
0%
4%

23%
40%

3%
0%

6%

2%

1%

1%

3%

2%

15

24

141
244

16

39

11

17

10

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

I 3 T B

6%
0%
8%
0%
1%
1%

n/a
47%

1%
0%

6%

3%

1%

1%

2%

7%

Overall Survey

Responses

The Survey

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

I 3 7 B

Annual
Household
Income
(2018 ONS
statistics)

Pakistani
Bangladeshi
Chinese

Any other Asian
background

Black African
Black Caribbean

Any other Black
background

Arab
Other
Prefer not to say

£0-£10,000

£10,000 -
£20,000

£20,000 -
£30,000

£30,000 -
£40,000

£40,000 -
£50,000

£50,000 and
above

Prefer not to say

1%
0%
0%
0%
3%
10%
1%
0%
4%
22%
3%
6%

6%

7%

6%

21%

50%

w N O

24
132
20

39

36

45

35

128

301

3%
1%
1%
5%

8%
9%
4%

0%
1%
n/a

£53,477

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



8¢ abed

The Survey

2.3.13

2.3.14

2.3.15

2.3.16

Table 2-11 demonstrates that the survey received a lower
proportion of male responses than the Croydon population,
despite both male and female are under-represented
compared to the borough-wide statistics. This might be due
to the large number of respondents selecting ‘Prefer not to
say’ for this question.

In addition, the 18-30 age category is one of the highest for
the existing population for Croydon, making up 18% of the
population, yet this age category only accounts for 8% of the
survey respondents.

For ethnic origin, White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern
Irish / British has the highest proportion of respondents for
both the survey respondents and the existing population.
The survey received a lower proportion of responses from
‘any other Asian background’ and Black African than the
proportion within the borough-wide population.

The average total income in 2018 was £53,477 in the
Croydon borough. The survey overall received a higher
proportion of responses from people who earned £50,000
and above. Please note that about half of the survey
respondents responded ‘Prefer not to say’ for this question,

hence this comparison might not be accurate.

24

241

2.4.2

243

2.5

2.5.1

2.5.2

Limitations

As shown in Section 2.3, there is an under-representation of
Under-

representation amongst income groups cannot be clearly

response from certain demographic groups.

determined.

In addition, the use of online survey methods for this
questionnaire may have excluded the participation of the
offline population.

Therefore, care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community.

Coding of Responses

To analyse the free text comments a coding frame has been
produced. The frame has been developed using a sample of
responses that have been analysed in detail to identify

commonly mentioned locations, issues and subjects.

These codes have been used to initially interrogate the free-
text responses. Following an initial analysis, codes were
reviewed by the project team. This process included a review
of all categories, including a focus on those that cannot be

categorised into a specific category and coded as ‘other’.

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

14

London Borough of Croydon



Gg8¢ abed

2.5.3 Where relevant, additional codes and categories were then
generated. The complete set of codes can be seen in the data

analysis.

2.5.4 Each response was fully analysed using the codes. Each
section or subject of each response was coded and included

in the complete analysis.

The Survey

London Borough of Croydon

15

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



Z

/,

98¢ abed

Travel patterns around South Norwood

3.11

3.1.2

Respondents were asked to what extent they and any young
people in their household were now walking, cycling or

scooting compared to before the Covid-19 pandemic.

Table 3-1: Extent of more walking, cycling and scooting among
respondents following the Covid-19 pandemic

N %

Much less 80 12%
Slightly less 58 9%

About the same 345 51%
Slightly more 107 16%
Much more 88 13%
Total 678 100%

678 respondents answered this question about themselves,
29% stating that overall they were walking, cycling or
scooting more after the pandemic, 20% stating that they
were travelling this way less overall, and 51% stating ‘about

the same’.

3.13

3.14

Table 3-2: Extent of more walking, cycling and scooting among
young people in respondents’ households following the Covid-
19 pandemic

N %

Much less 18 6%
Slightly less 25 9%
About the same 170 61%
Slightly more 42 15%
Much more 23 8%
Total 278 100%

282 respondents stated that there were children or young
people in their households. 278 of those respondents
answered this question about those young people. 23%
stated that overall they were walking, cycling or scooting
more. 15% said that overall they were travelling this way
less, and 61% stated ‘about the same’.

Respondents were also asked about vehicle ownership, the
results for which are shown in Figure 3-1. 682 responded to
this question, with 85% stating that they own one of the
vehicles listed, compared to 15% stating that they do not. In
comparison to the 2011 Census (Output area level), about
51% of households within the Holmesdale Road scheme
boundary have access to a car or van, as opposed to about
49% that did not.

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

16

London Borough of Croydon



Figure 3-1: A Pie Chart to show Vehicle Ownership amongst respondents street environment’, followed by other reasons such as
Vehicle O hi concerns around personal safety, the need to carry heavy
ehicie Ywnership items, having to travel long distances, conditions of the road

and pavements. This is then followed by ‘Concerns about

= Car
road safety/road danger’.
= Motorbike Figure 3-2: A Pie Chart to show why respondents don’t walk and cycle for
2% ~ more journeys
1% \\ = Van or other

commercial vehicle for Why respondents don't walk and cycle for

work .
= A combination of these more journeys

No reason,

= None of these 14%

o
) Concerns
Q about road
® safety/road
% Other, 34% danger, 33%
| 3.15 Respondents who stated that they owned a car and/or
motorbike (531; 78%) were then asked if they walk, cycle, or Traff';;(feed'
(o]
take public transport for some of their journeys. 83% (479) S
] Disability, 13%
of them stated that they do, whilst 17% (99) stated that they Traffic
do not. Unpleasant volume, 26%,
street
. Topograph environment,
3.1.6 Respondents were asked what stops them from walking and (hills), 17% 38%

cycling for more journeys in and around South Norwood. 680
respondents answered this question, and they could select
more than one answer. The results are displayed in Figure 3-

2. The most frequently selected reason was ‘Unpleasant

London Borough of Croydon 17 South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

88z abed

Views about the Temporary Scheme

As introduced previously, 224 of the total responses were
from people who live within the scheme boundary and 459

who live outside of the scheme boundary.

Table 4-1 below shows that when asked how strongly
respondents support or do not support the South Norwood
(Holmesdale Road area) existing scheme, the majority of
those who live within the scheme boundary (71%) held
negative views towards the scheme, with only 23% having a
positive attitude. Like those who live outside of the scheme
boundary, 78% expressed a negative stance on the existing

temporary scheme.

Table 4-1: Attitudes on the Existing South Norwood -
Holmesdale Road Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. | % | No | %

Do not support at all 141 66% 315 76%
Slightly do not 11 5% 11 3%
support

Neutral 11 5% 8 2%
Slightly support 10 5% 12 3%
Strongly support 40 19% 71 17%

4.1.3

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Total 100% 417 100%

When asked how the respondents feel about the temporary
scheme in its current format, 70% of those who live within
the scheme boundary felt negatively towards the current
temporary scheme, with 22% feeling positive. For those who
do not live within the scheme boundary, the majority (78%)
felt negative about the temporary scheme in its current
format, with only 18% feeling positive.

Table 4-2: Attitudes on the Temporary Scheme in its Current
Format

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Very Negative 116 54% 270 65%
Negative 34 16% 56 13%
Neutral 16 8% 15 4%
Positive 19 9% 24 6%
Very Positive 28 13% 52 12%
Total 213 100% 417 100%

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



4.1.4

4.1.5

68¢ abed

The most frequently mentioned themes for supporting the

scheme were:

— The scheme makes the area safer (73)

— The scheme results in less traffic (69)

— The scheme makes the area better for cyclists (55)
— The scheme is good for pedestrians (50)

— The scheme results in less noise (33)

47 out of the 213 respondents who live within the scheme
boundary said they feel positive about the scheme (see
Table 4-2). Figure 4-1 shows the most frequently mentioned
themes for those who live within the scheme boundary and
have a positive attitude towards the scheme. The most
frequently mentioned themes for those who live within the
scheme boundary are that the scheme results in less traffic
(39), makes the area safer (26) and that it results in less noise
(20).

Figure 4-1: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who
live within the scheme boundary to feel positive about the scheme

40
35
30
25
20
15
10

4.1.6

Most popular themes for those who live within the
scheme boundary to feel positive towards the

scheme
39
26
20
I : )
Less Traffic Safer Less noise Good for Less rat-
pedestrians running

The 76 respondents who stated that they feel positive
towards the scheme and who live outside of the scheme
boundary (see Table 4-2), mentioned in their explanation
that the scheme makes the area safer (47), that it makes the
area better for cycling (46) and that it is good for pedestrians
(34), as shown in Figure 4-2.

London Borough of Croydon

19

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



06¢ abed

Figure 4-2: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who
live outside of the scheme boundary to feel positive about the scheme

Most popular themes for those who live outside
the scheme boundary to feel positive towards the

scheme

50 47 46
45
40 34
35 30
30
25
20 16 16
15
10

5

0

Safer Better for Good for  Less traffic  Less rat- Less
cycling pedestrians running pollution

4.1.7 The most popular themes for feeling negative towards the

scheme were:

— The scheme results in more traffic / congestion on the
main road / wider road network (382)

— The scheme results in more pollution (233)

— The scheme is an inconvenience and results in longer

journeys (199)

— The scheme makes the area more dangerous (173)

4.1.8

— The scheme results in reduced access to home /
amenities / school (89)

150 of those who live within the scheme boundary stated
that they feel negative about the existing scheme (see Table
4-2), the results for their most frequently mentioned themes
for feeling negative towards the scheme are shown in Figure
4-3. The most frequently mentioned themes for those who
live within the scheme boundary are that the scheme results
in more traffic / congestion on the main road / wider road
network (131), it also results in more pollution (73) and that

is makes the area more dangerous (72).

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road) 20

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



T6¢ abed

Figure 4-3: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who
live within the scheme boundary to feel negative about the scheme

Most popular themes for those who live within
the scheme boundary to feel negative towards the

scheme
140 131
120
100
80 73 72
57
60
0
More traffic More pollution More Longer Reduced
dangerous journeys access

4.1.9 The 326 respondents who stated that they feel negative
towards the scheme who live outside of the scheme
boundary (see Table 4-2), mentioned in their explanation
that the scheme causes more traffic / congestion on the
main roads / wider road network (251), that it results in
more pollution (160) and causes an inconvenience due to

longer journey times (142), as shown in Figure 4-4.

Figure 4-4: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who
live outside of the scheme boundary to feel negative about the scheme

Most popular themes for those who live outside of
the scheme boundary to feel negative towards the

scheme
300
251
250
200
160
142
150
101
100
57
. &
0
More traffic More pollution Longer More Reduced
journeys dangerous access
4.2 Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme

421 To assess the perceived impacts of the temporary scheme,
respondents were asked; ‘Please select the extent of the
impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was
put in? E.g. Air pollution, noise, congestion etc’. Of those
who live within the scheme boundary, 58% perceive that the
impacts are worse than before, versus 25% thinking the
impacts are better. Similarly, 61% of those who live outside

of the scheme boundary perceive the impacts as worse, as

London Borough of Croydon 21

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



26¢ abed

4.2.2

opposed to 14% thinking the impacts are better. The results

are shown on Table 4-3 below.

Table 4-3: What respondents thought of the impacts of the new
scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Much Worse 51% 214 49%
Slightly Worse 15 7% 53 12%
About the Same 39 18% 110 25%
Slightly Better 13 6% 10 2%

Much Better 41 19% 54 12%
Total 221 100% 441 100%

When asked to select the extent of the impact on road safety
since the temporary scheme was put in e.g. easier to cross,
fewer collisions etc, 56% of those who live within the scheme
said it is worse than before, as opposed to 27% thinking it is
better, as shown in Table 4-4. Similarly, for those who do not
live within the scheme, 51% also stated that road safety is
worse than before the scheme was put into place, with 34%
thinking as about the same and only 15% thinking it

improved.

4.2.3

Table 4-4: The perceived impact on road safety

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Much Worse 43% 158 36%
Slightly Worse 28 13% 65 15%
About the Same 38 17% 149 34%
Slightly Better 18 8% 14 3%

Much Better 42 19% 55 12%
Total 221 100% 441 100%

Table 4-5 on the next page shows the responses to Question
13 of the survey: ‘Please select the extent of the conditions
for walking, cycling and scooting now compared to before
the temporary scheme was in place?’. For those who live
within the scheme boundary, 38% rated as worse than
before, 33% rated being about the same, while 28% rated
the conditions as better than before. For respondents who
live outside of the scheme, it is an equal split amongst those
who rated as worse than before (40%) and being about the
same (40%), with only 20% rating the conditions as better

than before.

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

22

London Borough of Croydon



c6¢ abed

Table 4-5: The perceived impact on conditions for Walking,
Cycling and Scooting now from the Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary
e [ x| e | %

Much Worse 71 32% 123 28%
Slightly Worse 14 6% 55 12%
About the Same 73 33% 177 40%
Slightly Better 20 9% 25 6%

Much Better 43 19% 61 14%
Total 221 100% 441 100%

London Borough of Croydon 23 South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



5.11
5.1.2

o

jabl

Q

D

N

(o]

S
5.1.3
5.2
521

In this section of the survey, respondents were asked about
their preference with replacing the existing scheme with the

proposed improvements.

The proposed improvements involve installing three camera
enforced restrictions, two of which will be on Holmesdale
Road and the third on Elm Park Road at its junction with
South Norwood Hill. The two sets of existing planters near
the control points on Holmesdale Road will be removed.
Permits will be issued to local residents to allow access. Any
vehicles without a valid permit or those that aren’t exempt
will be detected by the camera and Penalty Charge Notice
(PCN) issued.

The existing road closure set up on Holmesdale Road outside
the Stadium will remain as a physical closure but modified,

with provision for access by emergency service vehicles.
Views about Proposed Improvements

When asked how strongly the respondents agree or disagree

with replacing the existing scheme with the proposed

5.2.2

improvements outlined above, the majority held negative
views. 72% who live within the scheme boundary disagree
with replacing the existing scheme with the proposed
improvements, while 19% agree. Similar to those who live
outside of the scheme boundary, the majority (84%) disagree
with replacing the planters with camera enforced
restrictions, with only 10% agreeing.

Table 5-1: Attitudes on replacing existing scheme with
proposed improvements

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. % No | %

Strongly Disagree 132 63% 307 76%
Disagree 18 9% 34 8%
Neutral 19 9% 24 6%
Agree 21 10% 23 6%
Strongly Agree 18 9% 16 4%
Total 208 100% 404 100%

Figure 5-1 on the next page shows the most frequently
mentioned themes of the respondent’s explanations to the
question above. Amongst the 612 coded responses, 363
(59%) stated concerns about displacement of traffic onto
surrounding and main roads with associated pollution, noise

and showed general disagreements to both the camera

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



G6¢ obed

enforced restrictions and the existing planters. Another 105
(17%) showed concerns about visitors not being able to
access houses and reduced access to local businesses, along
with 103 (17%) expressing concerns surrounding residents
access regarding permits and driving a longer route.

5.2.3 Aside from the general reasons for opposing low traffic
schemes, 88 (14%) mentioned a preference to keep the
planters in place, claiming physical barriers are needed to
stop drivers. Some respondents also said they prefer physical
barriers rather than cameras, as they can avoid annoyance

or threat of being fined.

Figure 5-1: Key themes drawn from respondents’ explanations to their
stance about replacing the existing scheme with the proposed
improvements

Prefer to keep planters in places (e.g.
Physical barriers are needed to stop
drivers, signage/threat of cameras is not...

57
31

Concern around traffic being displaced on
to surrounding and main roads with
associated pollution, noise etc / general...

257
106

lower traffic flows / being unable to

Concerns around personal safety due to I
access by car

Concerns around visitors not being able to
access houses and local businesses
anymore

Concerns about resident access (e.g. want
permits extended to other roads,
concerns around driving a longer route)

Puts residents first / need to prioritise 9
residents 1

walking & cycling with less traffic

Will result in better access for emergency

Will result in safer environment for I 20
services and/or residents I

o

50 100 150 200 250 300

M Live outside scheme boundary H Live within scheme boundary

London Borough of Croydon

25

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



5.3 Other Suggestions

5.3.1 When respondents were asked if they had any suggestions
for how the London Borough of Croydon could make the
area safer, quieter and less polluted, 409 suggestions were
received and coded. The most frequently mentioned
suggestion was to remove everything and open the roads
back up (127; 31%), followed by better speed enforcement
such as speed cameras (69; 17%) and better traffic calming
such as better speed bumps (58; 14%).

ne Table 5-2: Most frequently mentioned suggestions to make the
8 area safer, quieter and less polluted
D Coding Category “ %
B Remove everything 127 31%
()] Better Speed Enforcement 69 17%
Better Traffic Calming 58 14%
Personal Safety & Tackle anti- 58 14%
social behaviour
Other 54 13%
Improve streetscape/environment 44 11%
Change on Parking Permits/Zone 41 10%
Extentions
Incentivise usage of electric 35 9%
vehicles (e.g. provide charging
points)
Cycle Improvements (e.g. cycle 35 9%

lane, cycle parking, etc.)

Coding Category “ %

Cleaning the streets

Walking improvements (e.g.
improve crossings and junctions,
widen pavements,
pedestrianisation, etc.)

Change to One ways
Other Traffic Management
Better Public Transport

Financial Incentives for
Walking/Cycling/Public Transport

More LTN's / Healthy
Neighbourhoods

Retain asitis

Timed Restriction (e.g. school
streets)

Restrict heavy vehicles from using
residential roads

Limit major residential
developments

Use Bollards instead

33 8%
30 7%
28 7%
25 6%
25 6%
22 5%
18 4%
15 4%
9 2%
5 1%
4 1%
3 1%

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

26

London Borough of Croydon



/6¢ abed

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
Healthy

qguestionnaire  responses  for  Croydon’s

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

This report analyses the responses for the existing South
Norwood CHN (Holmesdale Road area) scheme and

proposed improvements.
Survey Results
Travel patterns around South Norwood

The survey has shown that travel patterns for walking,
cycling and scooting around South Norwood since the Covid-
51% of

respondents stated that the extent of walking, cycling and

19 pandemic have remained around the same.

scooting they do now has remained about the same, with
29% saying they do more and 20% doing less. When asked
why they would choose not to walk, cycle or scoot, 38% said
they would not because of the unpleasant street

environment.

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

Views about the Temporary Scheme

When asked their views on the current temporary scheme,
the majority of respondents do not support the existing
scheme, with 71% of those who live within the scheme
boundary against it and 78% of those who live outside of the
scheme boundary.

The most common reasons for respondents who live within
the scheme boundary disliking the current temporary
scheme was ‘more traffic / congestion on the main road /
wider network’, with 87% of respondents who live within the
scheme boundary who had a negative stance mentioning

this in their explanation.

For respondents who live outside of the scheme boundary
and displayed a negative view of the existing scheme, the
most common reasons was ‘more traffic / congestion on the

main road / wider network’ (77%).

Despite this, 22% who live within the scheme boundary had
a positive stance towards the existing scheme. The most
frequently mentioned theme for supporting the exiting
scheme for those who live within the scheme boundary is
that it results in ‘less traffic’, with 83% of the supportive
respondents who live within the scheme mentioning this in

their explanation.

London Borough of Croydon

27

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



6.2.6
o
jabl
Q
D
N 6.2.7
(o]
(00]
6.3
6.3.1

Views about the Proposed Improvements under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)

When asked how strongly the respondents agree or disagree
with replacing the existing scheme with the proposed
improvements, the majority held negative views. 72% who
live within the scheme boundary disagree with replacing the
existing scheme with the proposed improvements, while
19% agree. Similar to those who live outside of the scheme
boundary, the majority (84%) disagree with replacing the
planters with camera enforced restrictions, with only 10%
agreeing.

59% of respondents stated concerns about displacement of
traffic onto surrounding and main roads with associated
pollution, noise and showed general disagreements to both

the camera enforced restrictions and the existing planters
What Does it Mean?

The response to the engagement shows the existing South
Norwood CHN (Holmesdale Road area) scheme does not
have support from most respondents, including those who
live within or outside the scheme boundary. It is clear that

the scheme resulting in more traffic and/or congestion to

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

nearby areas is the dominant reason for those who felt

negative about the scheme.

Most respondents disagree with replacing the existing
scheme with the proposed improvements. However, if some
form of low traffic scheme must stay in the Holmesdale Road
area and respondents were to choose between the existing
measures and proposed improvements, the existing planters
is the preferred option over introducing camera enforced
restrictions, with 80% of respondents disagreeing with the

proposed improvements.

When the respondents were asked for their suggestions of
how to make Croydon a healthier, safer and quieter area, the
top suggestions were to remove everything and open the
roads back up (31%), followed by better speed enforcement
such as speed cameras (17%) and better traffic calming such
as better speed bumps (14%).

Due to under-representation of response from certain
demographic groups, as well as the use of online survey
methods for this questionnaire, views of the survey
population may not be fully representative of the wider
population. Care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community.

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

28

London Borough of Croydon



Appendix A Postcode Location of
Respondents’ Address

66¢ abed

London Borough of Croydon 29 South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Holmesdale Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



A\ SPURGEON'S
N COLLEGE
°
° 3
@0 % o Y
3 > ®
2 7 i/
Q0 > X
% 2
<& o0 < 4
2 ~ (3
e‘c}\ N»p 3 N °
)
N Y e
<° 2
°
ab L 2
Q° %
<o
o
<<"\\& L4 °
\2\0
) (s
> < 3
> 7 R
2 Q 5, °
® Q° A o
’\Q oxv GRANGEWOOD %
4
VO g PARK 4 %
> > ks J S,
N> 2 o
<° N °
\.e'( Cg/ g
< IS 9
N o °* q 3 p
0 np
*m R [ ]
[ ] oed
° ¢ °
o
o’b
> <
? D
<° O3
& < HARRIS
> J ACADEMY
o
< ) L]
O’z>b
& 4 o
& o o
<° & <&
0k o M
LJ P WHITEHORSE %\ @,ao
MEADOW J
°
8 y South Norwood
S 2
L ST MARK'S
CHURCH OF
ENGLAND
PRIMARY
SCHOOL
19h st
wo'®
.‘-e
N
°
°
°
kel
5 S
~,
N % 6 ¢
& VA ° BECKMEAD
& < o) COLLEGE Eondl
< MS S 3 2 A 2 S ondon
) o ° ®
by 5 WHITEHORSE 3 o
N MANOR o S H
INFANT AND o 3 ® D
JUNIOR & o o
SCHOOLS/THE & 2 2
PEGASUS o S 5 °
b ACADEMY § 2 2> ° 2 O a 3
k TRUST S Qo °
T @ e
o & \
a O °
0g @ < ) A
o 9 LR ¢
o
g XY 4 > [ ] 4 % ° e
N > 8 oo o @ Epsom ®
B <& 2 o %
=X [ ] (\0 2
§ \‘O L4 o)
4 ) N2 §‘o«
o o ST CHAD'S s
s ROMAN eve
‘91,9 o CATHOLIC
0 % 0.47 PRIMARY 0.95AVERS FARM
7 [) SCHOOQI kPRIMARY PURREY Reiéate
1 KM-pooL

Postcode Location of
Survey Respondents'
addresses (of whom
provided a valid postcode)

— Temporary Streetspace/
CHN Scheme Boundary

(Holmesdale Road)

N.B. Numbers on each dot
represents the amount of
responses received from the same
postcode (if there are more than

one)

Contains public sector information licensed under the OGL v3.0.
Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, FAO, METI/NASA, USGS, Esri
Community Maps Contributors, Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin,
INCREMENT P, METI/NASA, USGS

L/

PJA

London Borough of
Croydon

G.03 Wenlock
Studios
50-52 Wharf Road
London N1 7EU
T. 0207 566 3939

Croydon HN
Pre-consultation Engagement

POSTCODE LOCATION OF
RESPONDENTS' ADDRESS
(HOLMESDALE ROAD
SCHEME)

A3@1:5,000 Y MQ 06/10/2021

c1.1 A




TOg abed

7

PJA

London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis

October 2021

Project Code: 05764

PJA

G.03

Wenlock Studios
50 - 52 Wharf Road
London

N1 7EU

pja.co.uk



Page 302



€0¢ abed

Questionnaire Response Analysis

Version l Date ‘ Main Contributor ‘ Issued by ‘Approved by
A 24 September 2021 ED Jy IMQ

B 27 September 2021 ED Y IMQ

C 30 September 2021 ED/JY Y IMQ

D 6 October 2021 ED/JY Y JY

Prepared for

London Borough of Croydon

London Borough of Croydon South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)



Page 304



Gog abed

Section Page
I oY o eYa [1Tof i o s PRt 5
1.2 Background 5
2 The SUIVEY ..o 7
2.1 Survey Format 7
2.2 Demographics of Respondents 10
2.3 Demographic Representation 13
2.4  Limitations 18
2.5 Coding of Responses 18
3 Travel patterns around South Norwood................. 19
4 Feedback on the Temporary Scheme...................... 23
4.1 Views about the Temporary Scheme 23
4.2  Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme 26
5 Preference about the Proposed Improvements under

5.2
5.3

6

the Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)
29

Views about the Proposed Improvements 29
Other Suggestions 31
SUMMATY .ttt 32

6.2
6.3

Survey Results
What Does it Mean?

Questionnaire Response Analysis

32
33

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

7



Questionnaire Response Analysis

Appendix A Postcode Location of Respondents’
Address 35

90¢€ abed

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road) London Borough of Croydon



/0g abed

111

1.1.2

1.2

121

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
Healthy

qguestionnaire  responses  for  Croydon’s

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

This report will analyse the responses for the existing South
Norwood CHN (Albert Road area) scheme and proposed
changes to the measure.

Background

The CHN programme follows on from the temporary Low
Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN) schemes introduced in May
2020, which was part of Transport for London's Streetspace
programme. The temporary schemes were created in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic, with the aim to create
more space for people to safely walk or cycle. It additionally

aims to:

e Make streets safer, cleaner and quieter;

e Support more sustainable travel methods, like walking or
cycling whilst also enabling and encouraging increased
physical activity; and

e Address concerns over air pollution and the current

climate crisis.

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

1.2.5

Replacing the temporary scheme created in May 2020, the
proposals for an Experimental South Norwood CHN (Albert
Road area) aims to retain the overall objectives of the LTNs
but allow more direct access for emergency services and

residents.

The proposal to replace the existing planter closures are

outlined below:

e The planters/physical islands at Eldon Park junction with
Albert Road and Harrington Road junction with Albert
Road will be removed and replaced with a camera-

enforced restriction with permit exemptions.

e The planters on Apsley and Belfast Roads will be replaced
with bollards. The middle bollard will be a lockable

foldable type to allow emergency vehicle access.

Croydon residents or anyone travelling through the area
were invited to submit their views via an online survey or

through a physical survey.

This report begins with outlining the survey format and
providing a general overview of the demographics of
respondents, then analyses the responses in detail. The
report examines travel patterns around South Norwood,
respondents’ views and perceived impacts of the entire

South Norwood CHN (Albert Road area) temporary scheme,

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




80¢ abed

and their preference over keeping the existing temporary

scheme or installing the proposed improvements.

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



2.1
2.11
2.1.2

o

jab)

«Q

D

W

o

O
2.1.3
2.14

Survey Format

The survey asked respondents for their views on the entire
South Norwood CHN (Albert Road area) temporary scheme.
Respondents could complete an online survey sharing their
views on the existing scheme and how they feel about
replacing the existing scheme with the proposed

improvements.

A ‘Likert’ scale type question was used to gauge views on the
existing scheme and preference over the improvement
options. Likert scales enable respondents to state the extent
to which they agree with a statement or have a preference,
as opposed to a binary yes/no choice.

To help people clarify their responses to the questions
related to the schemes, respondents were able to provide

additional comments to clarify and expand on their views.

The survey aimed to gain an understanding of the extent to
which local people feel the scheme has made their street
healthier, and how it might be improved to better achieve

these aims.

Figure 2-1: Excerpts from The Survey

What (if anything) stops you from walking and cycling for more journeys in and around
?

* This question must be answered
Please tick all that apply.

Concern about road safety/road danger O
Traffic speed ]
Traffic volume O
Unpleasant street environment O
Topography (hills) O
Disability |
Other 0

Please Specify

Please select vehicles (if any) you own from the following list:
* This question must be answered

O

Own a car

O

Own a motorbike

I
Y

Own a van or other commercial vehicle for work purposes

Own a combination of these

O O

Do not own any of these

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



0TE obed

If you selected owning any of the vehicles at question 9, do you also walk, cycle or use Please select the extent of the impact on road safety in your street since the temporary
public transport for some of your journeys? scheme was put in? E.g. easier to cross, less collisions etc.
* This question must be answered * This question must be answered
Please select the extent as to how much walking, cycling and scooting you are doing now, Much better o
than before the Covid-19 pandemic: g
* This question must be red Slightly better O
About the same O
Much more o Slightly worse @]
Slightly more @] Much worse e}
About the same @] Please select the extent of the impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was
Slightly less O put in. E.g. Air pollution, noise congestion etc.
Much less o) * This question must be answered
. . Much better O
Are there children and/or young people in your household?
Slightly better )
* This question must be answered
About the same O
Slightly worse O
If ‘Yes’ please select the extent as to how much they are walking, cycling, scooting and Much -
skating now, than before the Covid-19 pandemic: uch worse ©
* This question must be answered Please select the extent of the conditions for walking, cycling, and scooting now compared
to before the temporary scheme was in place?
Much more O * This question must be answered
Slightly more @]
About the same O Much better ©
Slightly less e} Slightly better e}
Much less O About the same O
Slightly worse O
Much worse @]
South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road) 8 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



TTE abed

Please rate the extent as to how much you agree or disagree with replacing the existing
scheme with that as proposed and explained in the consultation leaflet and outlined on our
healthy neighbourhood website.

Please rate how strongly you support or do not support the
existing_scheme? The question relating to the proposed scheme appears
separately further in the questionnaire.

* This question must be answered
* This question must be answered
Strongly support O _
Strongly agree @]
Slightly support @] )
Agree O
Neutral @]
Neutral o]
Slightly do not support O
ightly upp Disagree o}
9]
Do not support at all O Strongly disagree )
Please explain your answer to question 14: Please explain your answer to question 18, including any positive or negative impacts you
feel this option, if implemented, will have on you.

If you also have any other suggestions for how we could make the area safer, quieter and

How do you feel about the temporary scheme in its current format? less polluted, can you please tell us?

* This question must be answered
Very positive O
Positive O
Neutral O
Negative O
Very negative O

Please explain your answer to question 16, including any positive or negative impacts you
feel the temporary scheme has had on you:

London Borough of Croydon 9 South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2T¢ obed

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

224

Demographics of Respondents

A total of 521 responses were received through the online
survey. Respondents were asked if they were responding as
any of the following, and were able to select more than one

answer; ‘resident’, ‘business’, ‘school’, ‘visitor’ or ‘other’.

All respondents responded to this question, with 482
selecting ‘resident’, 19 ‘business’, 4 ‘school’, 38 ‘visitor’ and
14 ‘other’. Some respondents selected ‘resident’ but also
selected a second option.

When asked if they lived

neighbourhood, respondents answered with 90% (471)

locally to the temporary

stated that they live local, 7% stating that they only travel
through the area, 1% work in the area and 2% stating other,
as shown in Table 2-1. This totals 10% (50) respondents who
don’t classify as ‘living locally’.

Some respondents selected ‘live locally to the temporary
neighbourhood’ and then additional categories. For the
analysis, they have been assigned to the ‘live locally to the
temporary neighbourhood’ category. Only those not living
locally being assigned to their other categories. This is so that
the feelings of local residents can be understood separately

from those passing through or visiting.

2.2.5

Table 2-1: Online engagement responses local or travel through

Live local to the temporary 471 90%
neighbourhood

Travel through in the area 36 7%
Study in the area 0 0%
Work in the area 3 1%
Other 11 2%
Total 521 100%

The respondents’ postcodes have been plotted against the
South Norwood (Albert Road area) CHN boundary to
determine how many respondents live within the scheme
boundary. The results are shown in Table 2-2 below, and a
plan showing the postcode location of respondents’
addresses with the Albert Road scheme boundary is

attached in Appendix A.

Table 2-2: Online engagement responses live within or outside
of the scheme boundary

I A

Live within the Scheme 300 58%
Boundary
Live Outside of the Scheme 221 42%
Boundary
Total 521 100%

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

10

London Borough of Croydon



2.2.6

2.2.7

cT¢ obed

Amongst the 471 respondents who identified themselves as
living locally in Table 2-1, 300 (64%) live within the scheme

boundary.

Table 2-3 shows that more females completed the survey
than other genders, at 48%. Table 2-4 demonstrates that
most respondents (26%) fell into the 31-40 age category,
with 21% in the 41-50 age category. 473 respondents
answered both of these questions.

Table 2-3: Online Engagement by Gender

| N %

Male 164 35%
Female 227 48%
Gender variant/non-conforming 3 1%
Transgender male 0 0%
Transgender female 1 0%
Prefer to self-describe 8 2%
Prefer not to say 70 15%
Total 473 100%

Table 2-4: Online Engagement by Age

| N %

Under 18 1 0%
18-30 38 8%
31-40 125 26%
41-50 101 21%
51-60 76 16%

2.2.8

61-64 23 5%
65 and over 34 7%
Prefer not to say 75 16%
Total 473 100%

Table 2-5 demonstrates that most respondents (71%)
identify as Heterosexual / Straight. Table 2-6 shows that the
majority of respondents (42%) had no religion, with 29%
having a Christian belief. 473 respondents answered both of

these questions.

Table 2-5: Online Engagement by Sexual Orientation

| N %

Heterosexual/Straight 336 71%
Gay/Lesbian 8 2%
Bi-Sexual 9 2%
Prefer to self describe 14 3%
Prefer not to say 106 22%
Total 473 100%

Table 2-6: Online Engagement by Religion

| N %

None 201 42%
Christian 136 29%
Hindu 1 0%
Sikh 1 0%
Muslim 5 1%

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2.2.9

v TE abed

| N | %

Jewish 2 0%
Buddhist 4 1%
Any other religion 15 3%
Prefer not to say 108 23%
Total 473 100%

Respondents were asked to describe their ethnic origin.
Most respondents (51%) described themselves as White
English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British. 20% of
respondents preferred not to say and 7% described
White background’. 473

respondents answered the question and Table 2-7 below

themselves as ‘any other

shows all the responses.

Table 2-7: Online Engagement by Ethnic Origin

| No | %

White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / 239 51%
British

White Irish 8 2%
White Gypsy or Irish Traveller 0 0%
Any other White background 34 7%
White and Black Caribbean 14 3%
White and Black African 1 0%
White and Asian 9 2%
Any other Mixed / multiple ethnic background 6 1%
Indian 4 1%
Pakistani 2 0%

2.2.10

| N

Bangladeshi 0 0%
Chinese 4 1%
Any other Asian background 3 1%
Black African 9 2%
Black Caribbean 25 5%
Any other Black background 3 1%
Arab 0 0%
Other 17 4%
Prefer not to say 95 20%
Total 473 100%

Respondents were asked whether they considered
themselves to have any form of disability. 473 respondents
answered this question. 13% (62) said they did, 70% (333)
said they didn’t, and the remaining respondents preferred
not to say. The results in Table 2-8 shows he different types

of disabilities.

Table 2-8: Online Engagement by Disability Reported

Type of Disability _ %

Visually Impaired 5 1%
Hearing Impaired 3 1%
Mobility Disability 31 7%
Learning Disability 2 0%
Communication Difficulty 5 1%
Hidden Disability; Autism (ASD) 4 1%
Hidden Disability; ADHD 1 0%

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

12

London Borough of Croydon



GTE obed

2.2.11

T [ L

Hidden Disability; Asthma 3%
Hidden Disability; Epilepsy 3 1%
Hidden Disability; Diabetes 14 3%
Hidden Disability; Sickle Cell 1 0%
Other (e.g. Crohn’s, Mental Health, Cancer, 15 3%

Arthritis etc.)

Respondents were asked to provide their annual household
income. Most respondents (49%) preferred not to disclose
this information, 23% of respondents earn £50,000 and
above annually in their household. 472 respondents

answered this question.

Table 2-9: Online Engagement by Annual Household Income

N %

£0 - £10,000 10 2%
£10,000 - £20,000 33 7%
£20,000 - £30,000 25 5%
£30,000 - £40,000 36 8%
£40,000 - £50,000 30 6%
£50,000 and above 109 23%
Prefer not to say 229 49%
Total 472 100%

23

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.3.3

234

Demographic Representation

The demographics from the respondents of the survey have
been compared to the demographics of the existing
population. This is to exhibit the level of representation of

the survey respondents to the existing population.

It is examined in a two-tier approach:

(1) The demographics of respondents living within
scheme boundary is compared with the demographics
of the population local to the scheme; and

(2) The demographics of all respondents is compared

with the demographics of the Croydon borough.

Demographic Comparison: Respondents living within
scheme boundary and the local population

2011 Census data has been extracted with the lower super
output areas (LSOA’s) that cover the Albert Road scheme
selected (Croydon 008B, 008C, 008E, 045C, 045D). For
income statistics, ‘Income estimates for small areas, England
and Wales (2018 edition)’ published by Office for National
Statistics (ONS) has been used.

An average of these areas has been taken to compare the

demographics of the scheme area to the demographics of

London Borough of Croydon

13

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



survey respondents who live within the scheme boundary
(referred as 'survey sample’ below), the results are shown in
Table 2-10 below.

2.3.5 It is worth noting that the data for the existing population is
from 2011 so may be slightly out of date but it is the only
data available to provide a comparison to the demographics

of the survey responses.

Table 2-10: The demographics of survey respondents living
within the scheme boundary, in comparison to Albert Road area
existing demographics

o
D Survey Sample Local
«Q (Respondents living in | Population
D the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics
« %
o Male 35% 97 47%
Gender  ongie 51% 139 53%
(2011 .
Census) Other 2% 6 n/a
Prefer not to say 12% 33 n/a
Under 18 0% 0 28%
18-30 9% 24 19%
Age 31-40 28% 77 17%
(2011 41-50 23% 62 16%
Census) 5160 15% 42 10%
61-64 5% 15 3%
65 and over 7% 18 9%
Prefer not to say 13% 37 n/a
None 40% 111 20%

Survey Sample

(Respondents living in
the Scheme Boundary)

Local
Population
Statistics

I S 1

Religion
(2011
Census)

Ethnic
Origin
(2011
Census)

Christian
Hindu
Sikh
Muslim
Jewish
Buddhist

Any other
religion

Prefer not to say
White English /
Welsh / Scottish /
Northern Irish /
British

White Irish
White Gypsy or
Irish Traveller
Any other White
background
White and Black
Caribbean
White and Black
African

White and Asian

Any other Mixed
/ multiple ethnic
background

Indian

34%
0% 1
0% 0
1% 2
1% 2
0% 0
2% 5

21% 58
48% 131
1% 3
0% 0
9% 24
4% 11
0% 0
3% 7
2%

1% 3

62%
1%
0%
6%
0%
1%
1%

n/a
35%

1%
0%

6%
5%
1%
1%

2%

2%

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

14

London Borough of Croydon



/T€ abed

2.3.6

Survey Sample Local
(Respondents living in | Population
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics

I N [
1%

Pakistani 0%
Bangladeshi 0% 0 1%
Chinese 1% 3 1%
Any other Asian 1% 2 3%
background
Black African 3% 7 14%
Black Caribbean 7% 18 18%
Any other Black 1% 2 7%
background
Arab 0% 0 0%
Other 3% 8 1%
Prefer not to say 18% 50 n/a
£0 - £10,000 2% 6
£10,000 - 9% 24
£20,000
Annual £20,000 - 6% 16
Household | £30,000
Income £30,000 - 7% 20 £46,650
(2018 ONS £40,000
statistics) £40,000 - 7% 20
£50,000
£50,000 and 23% 64
above
Prefer not to say 45% 125

Table 2-10 shows that both the survey and the existing

population in the scheme area have a higher proportion of

2.3.7

2.3.8

2.3.9

females, however the survey sample has a lower proportion
of responses from males than within the local population. It
should be noted that Census 2011 data did not include any
other gender categories.

The existing population in the Albert Road area has a much
higher proportion of younger demographics in the
population than the survey receives. The survey sample

mainly gained responses from those aged between 31-50.

A significantly higher proportion of people with no religion
were captured in the survey sample than the proportion
within the existing population in the scheme area.
Additionally, the survey received much lower proportions of
Muslim’s and Christian’s completing the survey compared to
the existing population.

It was also shown that the survey sample has a much higher
proportion of responses from those who are White English /
Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British than recorded in
the existing population. The survey sample also only contains
3% of responses from those who are Black African, when this
community makes up 14% of the population, along with the
Black Caribbean community making up 18% of the existing

population but only 7% of the survey sample.

London Borough of Croydon

15

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



8T¢ abed

2.3.10

2.3.11

2.3.12

For the existing population, only the average annual
household income data was available from the Office of
National Statistics (ONS). For the MSOA’s covering the
scheme (Croydon 008 and 045), the average total income in
2018 was £46,650. The survey sample has a higher
proportion of responses from people who earned £50,000
and above. Please note that about 45% of the survey sample
responded ‘Prefer not to say’ for this question, hence this

comparison might not be fully accurate.

Demographic Comparison: All respondents and the

population of the Croydon borough

2011 Census data has been extracted with the Croydon
borough selected. For income statistics, ‘Income estimates
for small areas, England and Wales (2018 edition)’ published
by Office for National Statistics has been used.

The between the

demographics

comparison existing population

and the overall survey respondents’

demographics are displayed in Table 2-11 below.

Table 2-11: Survey respondents’ demographics compared to
borough-wide population

Overall Survey

Responses

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

I N N T

Gender
(2011
Census)

Age
(2011
Census)

Religion
(2011
Census)

Male

Female

Other

Prefer not to say
Under 18

18-30

31-40

41-50

51-60

61-64

65 and over
Prefer not to say
None

Christian

Hindu

Sikh

Muslim

Jewish

Buddhist

Any other
religion

Prefer not to say

ency
35% 164
48% 227
3% 12
15% 70
0% 1
8% 38
26% 125
21% 101
16% 76
5% 23i
7% 34
16% 75
42% 201
29% 136
0% 1
0% 1
1% 5
0% 2
1% 4
3% 15
23% 108

48%
52%
n/a
n/a
25%
18%
15%
15%
11%
4%
12%
n/a
20%
56%
6%
0%
8%
0%
1%
1%

n/a

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

16

London Borough of Croydon



6TE abed

| % [rewea] % |

Ethnic
Origin
(2011
Census)

White English /
Welsh / Scottish /
Northern Irish /
British

White Irish

White Gypsy or
Irish Traveller

Any other White
background

White and Black
Caribbean

White and Black
African

White and Asian

Any other Mixed
/ multiple ethnic
background

Indian
Pakistani
Bangladeshi
Chinese

Any other Asian
background

Black African
Black Caribbean

Any other Black
background

Arab

Overall Survey
Responses

51%

2%
0%

7%

3%

0%

2%

1%

1%
0%
0%
1%
1%
2%
5%

1%

0%

239

34

14

w O N D

25

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

47%

1%
0%

6%
3%
1%
1%

2%

7%
3%
1%
1%
5%
8%
9%

4%

0%

2.3.13

2.3.14

Borough-wide
Population
Statistics

I S 3 7 B

Overall Survey
Responses

Other 4% 1%
Prefer not to say = 20% 95 n/a
£0-£10,000 2% 10
£10,000 - 7% 33
£20,000
£20,000 - 5% 25
Annual £30,000
£53,477
:“Z‘;Sr::md £30,000 - 8% 36
f4
(2018 ONS 0,000
statistics) | £40,000 - 6% 30
£50,000
£50,000 and 23% 109
above
Prefer not tosay | 49% 229

Table 2-11 demonstrates that the survey received a lower
proportion of male responses than within the Croydon
population. In addition, the 18-30 age category is one of the
highest for the existing population for Croydon, making up
18% of the population, yet this age category only accounts

for 8% of the survey respondents.

For ethnic origin, White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern
Irish / British has the highest proportion of respondents for

London Borough of Croydon

17

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



0zg abed

2.3.15

2.4

24.1

2.4.2

both the survey respondents and the existing population,
but the survey receives a significantly higher proportion of
responses from this ethnic group. The survey received a
lower proportion of responses from ‘any other Asian
background’, Indian and Black African communities than the
proportion within the existing population.

The average total income in 2018 was £53,477 in the
Croydon borough. The survey overall received a higher
proportion of responses from people who earned £50,000
and above. Please note that about half of the survey
respondents responded ‘Prefer not to say’ for this question,

hence this comparison might not be accurate.
Limitations

As shown in Section 2.3, there is an under-representation of
response from certain demographic groups. Under-
representation amongst income groups cannot be clearly

determined.

In addition, the use of online survey methods for this
guestionnaire may have excluded the participation of the

offline population.

243

2.5

251

2.5.2

2.5.3

254

Therefore, care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community.

Coding of Responses

To analyse the free text comments a coding frame has been
produced. The frame has been developed using a sample of
responses that have been analysed in detail to identify

commonly mentioned locations, issues and subjects.

These codes have been used to initially interrogate the free-
text responses. Following an initial analysis, codes were
reviewed by the project team. This process included a review
of all categories, including a focus on those that cannot be

categorised into a specific category and coded as ‘other’.

Where relevant, additional codes and categories were then
generated. The complete set of codes can be seen in the data

analysis.

Each response was fully analysed using the codes. Each
section or subject of each response was coded and included

in the complete analysis.

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



Tcg abed

3.11

3.1.2

Respondents were asked to what extent they and any young
people in their household were now walking, cycling or

scooting compared to before the Covid-19 pandemic.

Table 3-1: Extent of more walking, cycling and scooting among
respondents following the Covid-19 pandemic

N %

Much less 68 13%
Slightly less 45 9%

About the same 252 49%
Slightly more 70 14%
Much more 81 16%
Total 516 100%

516 respondents answered this question about themselves,
29% stating that overall they were walking, cycling or
scooting more after the pandemic, 22% stating that they
were travelling this way less overall, and 49% stating ‘about

the same’.

3.13

3.14

Table 3-2: Extent of more walking, cycling and scooting among
young people in respondents’ households following the Covid-
19 pandemic

N %

Much less 15 7%
Slightly less 16 8%
About the same 115 56%
Slightly more 30 15%
Much more 28 14%
Total 204 100%

210 respondents stated that there were children or young
people in their households. 204 of those respondents
answered this question about those young people. 28%
stated that overall they were walking, cycling or scooting
more. 15% said that overall they were travelling this way

less, and 56% stated ‘about the same’.

Respondents were also asked about vehicle ownership, the
results for which are shown in Figure 3-1. 517 responded to
the question, with 82% stating that they own at least one of
the vehicles listed, compared to 18% stating that they do
not. In comparison to the 2011 Census (output area level),
about 57% of households within the Albert Road scheme
boundary have access to a car or van, as opposed to about
43% that did not.

London Borough of Croydon

19

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



Figure 3-1: A pie chart to show vehicle ownership amongst
respondents

Vehicle Ownership

= Car
= Motorbike
= Van or other commercial vehicle for

work

= A combination of these

2es abed

= None of these

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road) 20

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



3.15

3.1.6

gzg abed

Respondents who stated that they owned a car and/or a
motorbike (385; 82%) were then asked if they walk, cycle, or
take public transport for some of their journeys. 88% (373)
of them stated that they do, whilst 12% (50) stated that they

do not.

Respondents were asked what stops them from walking and
cycling for more journeys in and around South Norwood. 518
respondents answered this question, and they could select
more than one answer. The results are displayed in Figure 3-
2. The most frequently selected reason was ‘Unpleasant
street environment’, followed by other reasons such as
worries about crime, the need to carry heavy items, long
commutes to work. This is followed by concerns about road

safety / road danger.

London Borough of Croydon

21

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




yzs abed

Figure 3-2: A pie chart to show why respondents don’t walk and
cycle for more journeys

WHY RESPONDENTS DON'T WALK AND CYCLE FOR MORE
JOURNEYS

Concerns about road
No reason, 17% safety/road danger,
32%

Other, 38%

Traffic speed, 25%

Disability, 10%

T h (hills), 4%
opograph (hills), 4% Traffic volume, 23%

Unpleasant street
environment, 40%

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road) 22

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



4.1 Views about the Temporary Scheme

4.1.1 As introduced previously, 300 of the total responses were
from respondents who live within the scheme boundary and

221 were from outside of the scheme boundary.

4.1.2 Table 4-1 below shows that when asked how strongly
respondents support or do not support the South Norwood
(Albert Road area) existing scheme, the majority of those
who live within the scheme boundary (72%) held negative
views towards the scheme, with 28% supporting the scheme.
Similar to those who live outside of the scheme boundary,
69% expressed a negative stance on the existing temporary

scheme.

Geg obed

Table 4-1: Attitudes on the Existing South Norwood — Albert
Road Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No | % | No | %

Do not support at all 185 66% 133 66%
Slightly do not 17 6% 6 3%
support

Neutral 1 0% 7 3%
Slightly support 13 5% 2 1%
Strongly support 64 23% 53 26%

4.1.3

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Total 100% 201 100%

When asked how the respondents feel about the temporary
scheme in its current format, 71% of those who live within
the scheme boundary felt negatively towards the scheme in
its current format, with 24% feeling positive. For those who
do not live within the scheme boundary, the majority (70%)
felt negative about the temporary scheme in its current

format, with 26% feeling positive.

Table 4-2: Attitudes on the Temporary Scheme in its Current
Format

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Very Negative 161 58% 123 61%
Negative 39 14% 17 8%
Neutral 12 4% 8 4%
Positive 21 8% 11 5%
Very Positive 47 17% 42 21%
Total 280 100% 201 100%

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

7



4.1.4

4.15

9zg abed

The most frequently mentioned themes for supporting the

scheme were:

— The scheme makes the area safer (85)

— The scheme results in less traffic (76)

— The scheme is good for walking / pedestrians (57)
— The scheme makes the area more pleasant (47)

— The scheme makes the area better for cyclists (38)

68 out of the 280 respondents who live within the scheme
boundary said they feel positive about the scheme (see
Table 4-2). Figure 4-1 shows the most frequently mentioned
themes for those who live within the scheme boundary and
have a positive attitude towards the scheme. The most
frequently mentioned themes for those who live within the
scheme boundary are that the scheme makes the area feel
safer (51), the scheme results in less traffic (42) and that it is

good for walking and pedestrians.

Figure 4-1: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who
live within the scheme boundary to feel positive about the scheme

60

50

40

30

2

o

1

o

4.1.6

Most popular themes for those who live within the
scheme boundary to feel positive towards the scheme

51
42
35
26
I :
Safer Less traffic
The 53 respondents who stated that they feel positive about
the scheme who live outside of the scheme boundary (see
Table 4-2), mentioned in their explanation that the scheme
results in less traffic (34), makes the area safer (34) and

improves the area for walking and pedestrians (22), as

shown in Figure 4-2.

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

24

London Borough of Croydon

Good for walking More pleasant Better for cycling



Figure 4-2: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who
live outside of the scheme boundary to feel positive about the scheme

Most popular themes for those who live outside of
the scheme boundary to feel positive towards the

scheme

40
35 34 34
30
25 22 21
20 18
15
10

5

0

Less traffic Safer Good for  More pleasant  Better for
walking cycling

4.1.7 The most popular themes for feeling negative towards the

/¢g abed

scheme were:

— The scheme results in more traffic / congestion on the

main road / displaced somewhere else (234)
— The scheme creates more pollution (119)

— The scheme causes inconvenience / longer journey
times (115)

— The scheme makes the area feel more dangerous
(105)

4.1.8

— The scheme results in reduced access to home /
amenities / schools (64)

200 of those who live within the scheme boundary stated
that they feel negative about the existing scheme (see Table
4-2), the results for their frequently mentioned themes for
feeling negative towards the scheme are shown in Figure 4-
3. The most frequently mentioned themes for those who live
within the scheme boundary are that the scheme results in
more traffic / congestion on the main road e.g. Portland
Road or is displaced somewhere else (135), it causes an
inconvenience due to longer journey times (76) and makes
the area more dangerous due to speeding and/or for
personal safety (72).

London Borough of Croydon 25

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



gzg abed

/7

°

Figure 4-3: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who
live within the scheme boundary to feel negative about the scheme

Most popular themes for those who live within the
scheme boundary to feel negative towards the

Figure 4-4: A bar chart to show the most popular themes for those who
live outside of the scheme boundary to feel negative about the scheme

Most popular themes for those who live outside of
the scheme boundary to feel negative towards the

scheme scheme
160 135 120
99
140 100
120
100 26 80
80 72 66 60 53
60 39 40 > 33 7
40
g a p l i =
0 0
S Y ¥ & B & & O ® &
ng{;&\ 0’5@ y ngo 0\\&\0 b'b(’& ng;&\o O\\&\o OKQQ/ p Qg:p b'bée
O(\ \.\‘ b’b Q & oQ Q N b’b Q
NN & 4 N » <\ < 3 e o
< %\K\O \9(\ @O& Vvo Q¥ . %{\\(’ @0 \/OQQO @O‘ Qg’b
N e
Q° Q°
4.1.9 140 out of the 201 respondents who live outside of the 4.2 Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme
scheme boundary, stated that they feel negative towards the
existing scheme (see Table 4-2). Within their explanations, 421 To assess the perceived impacts of the temporary scheme,
the most frequently mentioned themes were that the respondents were asked; ‘Please select the extent of the
scheme causes more traffic / congestion on the main roads impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was
/ displaced somewhere else (99), that it creates more put in? E.g. Air pollution, noise, congestion etc’. Of those
. _ o .
pollution (53) and that it is an inconvenience due to longer who live within the scheme boundary, 51% perceive that the
journey times (39), as shown in Figure 4-4 impacts are worse than before, versus 23% thinking the
South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road) 26 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



6¢< abed

4.2.2

impacts are better. Similarly, 52% of those who live outside
of the scheme boundary perceive the impacts as worse, as

opposed to 24% thinking the impacts are better.

Table 4-3: What respondents thought of the impacts of the new
scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Much Worse 42% 91 43%
Slightly Worse 24 8% 19 9%
About the Same 76 26% 50 24%
Slightly Better 9 3% 11 5%
Much Better 58 20% 40 19%
Total 289 100% 211 100%

When asked to select the extent of the impact on road safety
since the temporary scheme was put in e.g. easier to cross,
fewer collisions etc, 47% of those who live within the scheme
said it is worse than before, as opposed to 23% thinking it is
better. Similarly, for those who do not live within the
scheme, 47% also stated that road safety is worse than
before the scheme was put into place, with again only 23%

thinking it improved, as shown in Table 4-4 below.

4.2.3

Table 4-4: The perceived impact on road safety

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Much Worse 32% 73 35%
Slightly Worse 43 15% 26 12%
About the Same 87 30% 63 30%
Slightly Better 11 4% 7 3%

Much Better 55 19% 42 20%
Total 289 100% 211 100%

Table 4-5 shows the responses to Question 13 of the survey:
‘Please select the extent of the conditions for walking,
cycling and scooting now compared to before the temporary
scheme was in place?’. For those who live within the scheme
boundary, 42% rated as being the same, while 33% rated the
conditions as worse than before. Respondents who live
outside of the scheme also perceive that the conditions for
walking, cycling and scooting have remained around the
same (36%), or have been worse since the scheme came into
place (36%).

London Borough of Croydon

27

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



0€€ abed

Table 4-5: The perceived impact on conditions for Walking,

Cycling and Scooting now from the Scheme

Scheme Boundary

| Mo | % | No | %

Much Worse
Slightly Worse
About the Same
Slightly Better
Much Better
Total

Live within the

64
30
120
22
53
289

22%
10%
42%
8%
18%
100%

Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary

58 27%
18 9%
77 36%
13 6%
45 21%
211 100%

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

28

London Borough of Croydon



5.11
5.1.2

o

jab)

«Q

D

w

w

=
5.2
521

In this section of the survey, respondents were asked about
their preference with replacing the existing scheme with the

proposed improvements.
The proposed improvements involve:

e The planters/physical islands at Eldon Park junction with
Albert Road and Harrington Road junction with Albert
Road will be removed and replaced with a camera-

enforced restriction with permit exemptions.

e The planters on Apsley and Belfast Roads will be replaced
with bollards. The middle bollard will be a lockable
foldable type to allow emergency vehicle access.

Views about the Proposed Improvements

When asked how strongly the respondents agree or disagree
with replacing the existing scheme with the proposed
improvements outlined above, the majority held negative
views. 78% who live within the scheme boundary disagree
with replacing the existing scheme with the proposed

improvements, while 17% agree. Similar to those who live

5.2.2

outside of the scheme boundary, the majority (79%) disagree

with replacing the planters with camera enforced

restrictions, with only 16% agreeing.

Table 5-1: Attitudes on replacing existing scheme with
proposed improvements

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. % No | %
172

Strongly Disagree 62% 132 66%
Disagree 45 16% 25 13%
Neutral 13 5% 10 5%
Agree 24 9% 16 8%
Strongly Agree 24 9% 16 8%
Total 278 100% 199 100%

Figure 5-1 on the next page shows the most frequently
mentioned themes of the respondent’s explanations to the
question above. Amongst the 398 coded responses, 203
(51%) stated general disagreements to both the existing
scheme and proposed improvements and showed concerns
about displacement of traffic onto surrounding and main
roads with associated pollution and noise. Another 95
respondents (24%) expressed concerns around visitors not
being able to access houses and reduced access to local

businesses.

London Borough of Croydon

29

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



5.2.3 Aside from the general reasons from opposing low traffic
schemes, 91 (23%) mentioned a preference to keep the
planters in place, claiming physical barriers are needed to
stop drivers. Some respondents also said they prefer physical
barriers rather than cameras, as they can avoid annoyance
or threat of being fined.

5.24 51 (13%) of respondents stated that the camera enforced
restrictions will result in better access for emergency

services and/or residents.

Zse abed

Prefer to keep planters in places (e.g.
Physical barriers are needed to stop

drivers, signage/threat of cameras is not...

General disagreements to both / concern
around traffic being displaced on to
surrounding and main roads with...

Concerns around personal safety due to
lower traffic flows / being unable to access
by car

Concerns around visitors not being able to
access houses and local businesses
anymore

Concerns about resident access (e.g. want
permits extended to other roads, concerns
around driving a longer route)

Puts residents first / need to prioritise
residents

Will result in safer environment for walking
& cycling with less traffic

Will result in better access for emergency
services and/or residents

H Live outside scheme boundary

o

.

20

40

60

Figure 5-1: Key themes drawn from respondents’ explanations to their
stance about replacing the existing scheme with the proposed
improvements

80

H Live within scheme boundary

100

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

30

London Borough of Croydon

111

120



5.3 Other Suggestions

5.3.1 When respondents were asked if they had any suggestions
for how the London Borough of Croydon could make the
area safer, quieter and less polluted, 330 suggestions were
received and coded. The most frequently mentioned
suggestion was to remove everything and open the roads
back up to free flowing traffic (96; 29%), followed by
improving personal safety and tackling anti-social behaviour
(59; 18%) and cleaning the streets (50; 15%).

Table 5-2: Most frequently mentioned suggestions to make the
area safer, quieter and less polluted

3 Codng Category | No. |

% Remove everything 96 29%

w Personal Safety & Tackle anti- 59 18%

w social behaviour

w Cleaning the streets 50 15%
Improve streetscape/environment 45 14%
Change on Parking Permits/Zone 34 10%
Extentions
Better Speed Enforcement 31 9%
Better Traffic Calming 29 9%
Cycle Improvements (e.g. cycle 24 7%

lane, cycle parking, etc.)
Retain as it is 18 5%

Walking improvements (e.g. 15 5%
improve crossings and junctions,

Coding Category “ %

widen pavements,
pedestrianisation, etc.)

Incentivise usage of electric
vehicles (e.g. provide charging
points)

More LTN's / Healthy
Neighbourhoods

Better Public Transport
Other Traffic Mangement
Change to One ways

Timed Restriction (e.g. school
streets)

Limit major residential
developments

Financial Incentives for
Walking/Cycling/Public Transport

Use Bollards instead

Restrict heavy vehicles from using
residential roads

15 5%
15 5%
14 4%
13 4%
13 4%
5 2%
5 2%
4 1%
3 1%
2 1%

London Borough of Croydon

31

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



yeg abed

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
Healthy

qguestionnaire  responses  for  Croydon’s

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

This report will analyse the responses for the existing South
Norwood CHN (Albert Road area) scheme and proposed
changes to the measure.

Survey Results
Travel patterns around South Norwood

The survey has shown that travel patterns for walking,
cycling and scooting around South Norwood since the Covid-
19 pandemic have remained around the same. 49% of
respondents stated that the extent of walking, cycling and
scooting they do now has remained about the same, with
29% saying they do more and 22% doing less. When asked
why they would choose not to walk, cycle or scoot, 40% said
they would not because of the unpleasant street

environment.

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

Views about the Temporary Scheme

When asked their views on the current temporary scheme,
the majority of respondents do not support the existing
scheme, with 72% of those who live within the scheme not
supporting it and 69% of those who do not live within the
scheme boundary.

The most common reason for both respondents who live
within and outside of the scheme boundary for feeling
negative about the current temporary scheme was ‘more
traffic / congestion on the main road / displaced somewhere
else’. 68% of those who live within the scheme boundary
who had a negative stance mentioned this in their
explanation, as did 71% who live outside of the scheme

boundary with a negative attitude.

Despite this, 24% who live within the scheme boundary had
a positive stance towards the existing scheme. The most
frequently mentioned theme for support the existing
scheme for those who live within the scheme boundary is
that it makes the area ‘safer’, with 75% of the supportive
respondents who live within the scheme mentioning this in

their explanation.

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

32

London Borough of Croydon



Ggee abed

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.3

6.3.1

Views about the Proposed Improvements under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)

When asked how strongly the respondents agree or disagree
with replacing the existing scheme with the proposed
improvements, the majority held negative views. 78% who
live within the scheme boundary disagree with replacing the
existing scheme with the proposed improvements, while
17% agree. Similar to those who live outside of the scheme
boundary, the majority (79%) disagree with replacing the
planters with camera enforced restrictions, with only 16%
agreeing.

51% of respondents stated general disagreements to both
the existing scheme and proposed improvements and
showed concerns about displacement of traffic onto
surrounding and main roads with associated pollution and

noise.
What Does it Mean?

The response to the engagement shows the existing South
Norwood CHN (Albert Road area) scheme does not have
support from most respondents, including those who live
within the scheme boundary and those who live outside of

the scheme boundary, travel through, work or have another

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

capacity in the area. The scheme resulting in more traffic
and/or congestion to nearby areas is the dominant reasons

for those who feel dislike the scheme.

Most respondents disagree with replacing the existing
scheme with the proposed improvements. However, if some
form of low traffic scheme must stay in the Albert Road area
and respondents were to choose between the existing
measures and proposed improvements, the existing planters
is the preferred option over introducing camera enforced
restrictions, with 78% of respondents disagreeing with the

proposed improvements.

When the respondents were asked for their suggestions of
how to make Croydon a healthier, safer and quieter area, the
top suggestions to remove everything and open the roads
back up to free flowing traffic (29%), followed by improving
personal safety and tackling anti-social behaviour (18%) and
cleaning the streets (15%).

Due to under-representation of response from certain
demographic groups, as well as the use of online survey
methods for this questionnaire, views of the survey
population may not be fully representative of the wider

population. Care should be taken when interpreting the

London Borough of Croydon

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



9gg abed

results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community.

South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

34

London Borough of Croydon



Appendix A Postcode Location of
Respondents’ Address

/€€ abed

London Borough of Croydon 35 South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhoods (Albert Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



i > K = e |
N K & ’)’6/& . & %, %, scHooL Postcode Location of
%% S %, 4@% %, "% . Survey Respondents'
%% & < o “s Y % addresses (of whom
L) (o] . .
3‘6 & ° o N\ provided a valid postcode)
0(
%o‘\“ .3 S, & — Temporary Streetspace/
< y i & . CHN Scheme Boundary
o ick Ro2
< o Clo%e Torg o — (Albert Road)
(] e
% O Carg
o \3 <® g N.B. Numbers on each dot
5 S represents the amount of
7‘8; O J responses received from the same
% o . postcode (if there are more than
0l one)
o K
HARRIS
ACADEMY O
& \
N 6 °
/l/of‘b éeé\ ’ob
0y > ¥ * ‘Qp
o o
Qf %, ®o“ .2
o\\l-
S

South Norwood

< ST MARK'S
Pod CHURCH OF @5
¢ ENGLAND °
= PRIMARY
‘?.\\
Sq Contains public sector information licensed under the OGL v3.0
NOR| Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, FAO, METI/NASA, USGS, Esri
COU community Maps Contributors, Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin,
P1 INCREMENT P, METI/NASA, USGS
kel
(3
O
@
E o/
N v o G.03 Wenlock
P) s , . e.n oc
o o Studios
v o 50-52 Wharf Road
“ London N1 7EU
o T. 0207 566 3939
3 ) R
&
. London Borough of
»_ Basildon CrOYdOn
NORWOOD P Southend
PRIMARY & S 3
SCHoOL S
> % & Lopdgh Croydon HN
o 42
@ ) .
5 -
E 5 b . N Pre-consultation Engagement
:5 060, 2 ..;?-!o, °
,§ % '.‘g!;"
Y 3 z e .
% o.® S X .' POSTCODE LOCATION OF
% 5 =
e %, o 2 % Mot RESPONDENTS' ADDRESS
% S S oo A\ .
) 3 5 AchDEMY > (ALBERT ROAD SCHEME)
) o o 5
Al =
o
M@lt “Roa % ®
© O 24 o o .7 Py Tunbridge
more B efkoa Crat| Wells
. o 0.4 En 0.8 e .2 raley A3@1:4,300  JY IMQ 06/10/2021
* ] km e ?\oaé
,5 8e° c1.2

A



6€€ abed

7

PJA

London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis

October 2021

Project Code: 05764

PJA

G.03

Wenlock Studios
50 - 52 Wharf Road
London

N1 7EU

pja.co.uk



Page 340



Tv¢ abed

Questionnaire Response Analysis

Version l Date ‘ Main Contributor ‘ Issued by ‘Approved by
A 13 August 2021 JY/MwW Y IMQ
B 04 October 2021 MW Y IMQ
C 07 October 2021 JY/MwW Y IMQ

Prepared for

London Borough of Croydon

London Borough of Croydon Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)



Page 342



e e abed

Section

1.2

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5

4.1
4.2

5.2

6
6.2
6.3

Page
oY o eYa [1Tof i o s PRt 5
Background 5
The SUIVEY ..o 6
Survey Format 6
Demographics of Respondents 9
Demographic Representation 12
Limitations 17
Coding of Responses 17
Travel Patterns around Addiscombe ...................... 18
Feedback on the Temporary Scheme...................... 20
Views about the Temporary Scheme 20
Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme 24

Views about the Proposed Improvements under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO).....
Other Suggestions

SUMMANY .o
Survey Results
What Does it Mean?

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)



vi¢ obed

Appendix A Postcode Location of Respondents’
Address 31



Gi¢ abed

111

1.1.2

1.2

121

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
qguestionnaire  responses  for  Croydon’s  Healthy

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

This report will analyse the responses to the existing and
proposed changes to the Addiscombe CHN measure on
Kemerton Road.

Background

The CHN programme follows on from the temporary Low
Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN) schemes introduced in May
2020, which was part of Transport for London's Streetspace
programme. The temporary schemes were created in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic, with the aim to create
more space for people to safely walk or cycle. It additionally

aims to:

e Make streets safer, cleaner and quieter

e Support more sustainable travel methods, like walking or
cycling whilst also enabling and encouraging increased
physical activity

e Address concerns over air pollution and the current

climate crisis.

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

Replacing the temporary scheme created in May 2020, the
proposed changes to the measure on Kemerton Road aims
to retain the overall objectives of the LTN but allow better
access for emergency services, primarily by replacing
planters with fold-down, lockable bollard.

Croydon residents were invited to submit their views about
the new scheme via the map-based survey on Croydon’s

‘Get Involved’ website.

This report begins with outlining the survey format and
providing a general overview on the demographics of
respondents, then analyses the responses in detail. The
report examines travel patterns around Addiscombe,
respondents’ views and perceived impacts on the existing
temporary scheme, and views about the proposed
improvements under the Experimental Traffic Regulation
Order (ETRO) to replace the existing planters with fold-

down, lockable bollard.

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




ot¢ abed

2.1

211

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

Survey Format

The survey asked respondents about their views on the
temporary planters on Kemerton Road. Respondents could
complete an online survey sharing their views on the existing
scheme and proposals to upgrade the filter to a fold-down,
lockable bollard.

A ‘Likert’ scale type question was used to gauge views on the
existing scheme and potential replacement with fold-down,
lockable bollard. Likert scales enable respondents to state
the extent to which they agree with a statement or have a
preference, as opposed to a binary yes/no choice.

To help people clarify their responses to the questions
related to the scheme, respondents were able to provide

additional comments to clarify and expand on their views.

The survey aimed to gain an understanding of the extent to
which local people feel the scheme has made their street
healthier, and how it might be improved to better achieve

these aims.

Figure 2-1: Excerpts from The Survey

What (if anything) stops you from walking and cycling for more journeys in and around

?
* This question must be answered
Please tick all that apply.
Concern about road safety/road danger
Traffic speed
Traffic volume
Unpleasant street environment
Topography (hills}
Disability
Other

Please Specify

Please select vehicles (if any) you own from the following list:

* This question must be answered

Own a car

Own a motorbike

Own a van or other commercial vehicle for work purposes
Own a combination of these

Do not own any of these

(ONNO]

I
Y

o 0O

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



/€ abed

If you selected owning any of the vehicles at question 9, do you also walk, cycle or use
public transport for some of your journeys?

* This question must be answered

Please select the extent as to how much walking, cycling and scooting you are doing now,
than before the Covid-19 pandemic:

* This question must be answered
Much more O
Slightly more @]
About the same O
Slightly less O
Much less O

Are there children and/or young people in your household?
* This question must be answered

If ‘*Yes’ please select the extent as to how much they are walking, cycling, scooting and
skating now, than before the Covid-19 pandemic:

* This question must be answered
Much more O
Slightly more ]
About the same O
Slightly less O
Much less O

Please select the extent of the impact on road safety in your street since the temporary
scheme was put in? E.g. easier to cross, less collisions etc.

* This question must be answered
Much better @]
Slightly better O

About the same O
Slightly worse O
Much worse O

Please select the extent of the impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was
put in. E.g. Air pollution, noise congestion etc.

* This question must be answered
Much better @]
Slightly better O
About the same O
Slightly worse O
Much worse O

Please select the extent of the conditions for walking, cycling, and scooting now compared
to before the temporary scheme was in place?

* This question must be answered
Much better O
Slightly better O
About the same O
Slightly worse O
Much worse O

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



81¢ abed

Please rate how strongly you support or do not support the
existing_scheme? The question relating to the proposed scheme appears
separately further in the questionnaire.

* This question must be answered

Strongly support
Slightly support
Neutral

Slightly do not support

Do not support at all

Please explain your answer to question 14:

How do you feel about the temporary scheme in its current format?

* This question must be answered

Very positive
Positive
Neutral
Negative
Very negative

Please explain your answer to question 16, including any positive or negative impacts you

feel the temporary scheme has had on you:

o O

e
.

O

Please rate the extent as to how much you agree or disagree with replacing the existing
scheme with that as proposed and explained in the consultation leaflet and outlined on our

healthy neighbourhood website.

* This question must be answered

Strongly agree
Agree

Neutral
Disagree

Strongly disagree

Please explain your answer to question 18, including any positive or negative impacts you

feel this option, if implemented, will have on you.

If you also have any other suggestions for how we could make the area safer, quieter and

less polluted, can you please tell us?

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



61¢ abed

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

2.2.4

2.2.5

Demographics of Respondents

A total of 42 responses were received through the online

survey for comments based on measures at Kemerton Road.

Respondents were asked about their affiliation with the
neighbourhood and were able to select more than one

answer: ‘resident’, ‘business’, ‘school’, ‘visitor’ or ‘other’.

40 respondents stated they were a resident, 1 selected
‘school’, and 1 selected ‘other’. Some respondents selected

more than one category.

When asked if they lived locally to the scheme or travel
through the area, all respondents answered, with 95%
stating that they live locally to the temporary
neighbourhood, with the remaining 5% stating that they only
travel through the area, as shown in Table 2-1 below.

Some respondents selected ‘living locally to the temporary
neighbourhood’ and then additional categories. For the
analysis, they have been assigned to the ‘living locally to the
temporary neighbourhood’ category (referred to as ‘Live
Local’ in the rest of this report). Only those not living locally
being assigned to their other categories. This is so that the
feelings of local residents can be understood separately from

those passing through or visiting.

2.2.6

Table 2-1: Online Engagement Responses Local, Travel through
or Other

| N %

Live locally to the temporary

neighbourhood 40 95%
Travel through the area 2 5%
Study in the area 0 0%
Work in the area 0 0%
Other 0 0%
Total 42 100%

The respondents’ postcodes were plotted against the
Addiscombe (Kemerton Road area) CHN boundary to assess
how many respondents live within the scheme boundary.
The results are shown in Table 2-2 below, and a plan
showing the postcode location of respondents; addresses
with the Kemerton Road scheme boundary is attached in

Appendix A.

Table 2-2: Online Engagement Responses Live Within or Outside
of the Scheme Boundary

N %

Live within the scheme boundary 32 76%
Live outside of the scheme boundary 10 24%
Total 42 100%

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2.2.7

2.2.8

0S¢ abed

Amongst the 40 respondents who identified themselves as
living locally in Table 2-1, 32 (80%) live within the scheme

boundary.

Table 2-3 demonstrates that slightly more females
completed the survey, at 55%. Table 2-4 shows that 41-50
was the most represented age category within the survey,
with 26% of respondents falling within this category.

Table 2-3: Online Engagement by Gender

| N %

Male 14 33%
Female 23 55%
Gender variant / non-conforming 0 0%
Transgender male 0 0%
Transgender female 0 0%
Prefer not to self-describe 0 0%
Prefer not to say/ No answer 5 12%
Total 42 100%

Table 2-4: Online Engagement by Age

| N %

18-30 5 12%
31-40 8 19%
41-50 11 26%
51-60 8 19%
61-64 1 2%
65+ 4 10%

2.2.9

| N %

Prefer not to say/ No answer 5 12%
Total 42 100%
Table 2-5 demonstrates that most respondents (68%)

identified as Heterosexual/Straight. 40 respondents
answered this question. Table 2-6 shows that the majority
of respondents (40%) had no religion, with 33% identifying

as Christian.

Table 2-5: Online Engagement by Sexual Orientation

I [

Heterosexual/Straight 27 68%
Gay/Lesbian 1 3%
Bi-Sexual 0 0%
Prefer not to self-describe 0 0%
Prefer not to say 12 30%
Total 40 100%

Table 2-6: Online Engagement by Religion
None 16 40%
Christian 13 33%
Hindu 0 0%
Sikh 0 0%
Muslim 0 0%
0 0%
0 0%

Jewish
Buddhist

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

10

London Borough of Croydon



TGg abed

N %

Any other religion 0 0%
Prefer not to say 11 28%
Total 30 100%

2.2.10 Respondents were asked to describe their ethnic origin.
Most respondents (63%) described themselves as White
English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British. 13% of
respondents preferred not to say and 8% described
themselves as Black Caribbean. 40 respondents answered

the question and Table 2-7 shows all the responses.

Table 2-7: Online Engagement by Ethnic Origin

N %

White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern
Irish / British 25 63%

White Irish 3%
0%
3%
5%
0%
0%

White Gypsy or Irish Traveller
Any other White background
White and Black Caribbean
White and Black African
White and Asian

O/ O N kP O Bk

Any other Mixed / multiple ethnic
background 3%
0%
0%
0%
0%
3%

Indian
Pakistani
Bangladeshi

Chinese

R O O O O Kk

Any other Asian background

2.2.11

Black African 0 0%
Black Caribbean 3 8%
Any other Black background 0 0%
Arab 0 0%
Other 1 3%

5 13%
Total 40 100%

Prefer not to say

Respondents were asked to state whether they had any form
of disability. Out of the total responses to the survey, only 2
respondents (5%) identified themselves as having a
disability. The results in Table 2-8 shows the different types

of disabilities.

Table 2-8: Online Engagement by Disability Reported

Type of Disability _ %

Visually Impaired 0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
2%
0%
0%
2%

Hearing Impaired

Mobility Disability

Learning Disability
Communication Difficulty
Hidden Disability; Autism (ASD)
Hidden Disability; ADHD
Hidden Disability; Asthma
Hidden Disability; Epilepsy
Hidden Disability; Sickle Cell
Other: Mental Health

R, O O Fr OO0 O O|0O O o

London Borough of Croydon

11

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2S¢ obed

2.2.12

23

231

2.3.2

Respondents were asked to disclose their annual household
income. Most respondents (48%) preferred not to disclose
this information, 20% of respondents have a household
income of £50,000 and above annually. 40 respondents

answered this question.

Table 2-9: Online Engagement by Annual Household Income

£0 - £10,000 0
£10,000 - £20,000 2
£20,000 - £30,000 5 13%
£30,000 - £40,000 3
£40,000 - £50,000 3
£50,000 and above 8
Prefer not to say 19 48%
Total 40

Demographic Representation

The demographics from the respondents of the survey have
been compared to the demographics of the existing
population. This is to exhibit the level of representation of

the survey respondents to the existing population.

It is examined in a two-tier approach:

2.3.3

234

2.3.5

1 The demographics of respondents living within scheme
boundary is compared with the demographics of the

population local to the scheme; and

2 The demographics of all respondents is compared with

the demographics of the Croydon borough.

Demographic Comparison: Respondents living within

scheme boundary and the local population

2011 Census data has been extracted with the lower super
output area (LSOA) that covers the Kemerton Road scheme
(Croydon 017C) selected. For income statistics, ‘Income
estimates for small areas, England and Wales (2018 edition)’

published by Office for National Statistics has been used.

This data has been extracted to compare the demographics
of the scheme area to the demographics of survey
respondents who live within the scheme boundary (referred
as 'survey sample’ below). The results are shown in Table 2-
10.

It is worth noting that the data for the existing population is
from 2011 so may be slightly out of date but it is the only
data available to provide a comparison to the demographics

of the survey responses.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

12

London Borough of Croydon



€Ge abed

Table 2-10: The Demographics of Survey Respondents Living Survey Sample Local
Within the Scheme Boundary, in comparison to Kemerton Road (Respondents living in | Population
Area Existing Demographics the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics
(Respondents living in | Population White English / 63% 519%
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics Welsh / Scottish /
British

Male 30% 50% N N
White Iris 0% 0 2%
Gender | pogle 63% 19 50% ’ ’
(2011 White Gypsy or 0% 0 0%
Census) Other 0 0 n/a Irish Traveller
Prefer not to say 7% 2 n/a Any other White 0% 0 8%
Under 18 0% 0 24% background
18-30 13% 4 19% White and Black 0% 0 2%
Age 31-40 17% 5 21% Caribbean
(2011 41-50 30% 9 14% White and Black 0% 0 1%
African
Census) | 5160 17% 5 10%
6164 3% 1 % Ethnic White and Asian 0% 0 1%
- (o] (o] Py
s ) Origin Any other Mixed 3% 1 2%
65 and over 13% 4 8% (2011 / multiple ethnic
Prefer not to say 7% 2 n/a Census) background
None 40% 12 24% Indian 0% 0 5%
Christian 33% 10 57% Pakistani 0% 0 1%
Hindu 0% 0 4% Bangladeshi 0% 0 1%
Sikh 0% 0 0% Chinese 0% 0 1%
Religion .
2 0'1g1' Muslim 0% 0 6% Any other Asian 3% 1 5%
Census) | Jewish 0% 0 0% background
; o 9 Black African 0% 0 7%
Buddhist 0% 0 1%
Any other 0% 0 1% Black Caribbean 10% 3 9%
religion Any other Black 3%
Prefer not to say 27% 8 8% background
Arab 0% 0 0%
London Borough of Croydon 13 Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



yGg abed

2.3.6

2.3.7

Survey Sample Local
(Respondents living in | Population
the Scheme Boundary) | Statistics

I S S [
1%

Other 3%
Prefer not to say 13% 4 n/a
£0 - £10,000 0% 0
£10,000 - .
£20,000 % 2
£20,000 -
! 139 4
Annual £30,000 3% £56,400
Household £30,000 -
Income £40.000 7% 2
(2018 ONS ’
statistics)  £40,000 - 0
£50,000 % 2
£50,000 and 20% 6
above
Prefer not to say 47% 14

Table 2-10 demonstrates that the survey received a lower
proportion of responses from males compared to the total

for the scheme area.

The survey sample has 60% responses from those aged over
40, while the age group only makes up 36% of the local
population. It shows an under-representation from younger

demographics in the scheme area.

2.3.8

2.3.9

2.3.10

In terms of religion, a much higher proportion of people with
no religion were captured in the survey sample than the
proportion within the existing population in the scheme
area. Additionally, the survey sample received a lower
proportion of Christians, Hindus and Muslims completing the

survey.

The survey sample has also been shown to have a higher
proportion of responses from those who are White English /
Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British than recorded in
the existing population. The survey did not receive any
responses from those who are Black African, despite this
group making up 7% of the local population statistics. This is

similar for the Any other White background group.

For the existing population, only the average annual
household income data was available from the Office of
National Statistics (ONS). For the MSOA covering the scheme
(Croydon 017). The average total annual income for this area
in 2018 was £56,400. Other than nearly half of those who
responded ‘Prefer not to say’, the highest proportion of
survey respondents had a total household income of
£50,000 and above, and therefore the comparison may not

be fully accurate.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



GGe abed

Demographic Comparison: All respondents and the Borough-wide
Overall Survey Pobulation
population of the Croydon borough Responses StZtistics

2.3.11 2011 Census data was examined again with the whole -_-_

. . . 65 and over 10% 12%
Croydon borough selected. For income statistics, ‘Income

) . , Prefer not to say = 8% 3 n/a
estimates for small areas, England and Wales (2018 edition) None 20% 16 20%
published by Office for National Statistics has been used. Christian 33% 13 56%
_ _ _ Hindu 0% 0 6%
2.3.12 The comparison between the borough-wide population sikh 0% 0 0%
demographics and the overall survey respondents’ sz"ogl'fl’“ Muslim 0% 0 8%
demographics are displayed in Table 2-11. Census) Jewish 0% 0 0%
Buddhist 0% 0 1%

Table 2-11: Survey Respondents’ Demographics compared to An
y other o o
Borough-wide Population religion 0% 0 1%

Borough-wide Prefer not to say | 28% 11 n/a
Overall Survey Population : .
Responses StZtistics leh :e Esng“s.hr{
elsh /Scottish /1 ¢4, 25 47%

-_-_ e

Male 35% 48% White Irish 3% 1 1%
ite Iris
G{‘;g‘l"le’ Female 58% 23 52% White @ - -
) ite Gypsy or 0 o
Census) Other 0% 0 n/a Ethnic Irish Traveller 0% 0 0%
P tt 8% 3 Origin A
refer not to say 4 n/a 12011 Any other White - ) oo
Under 18 0% 0 25% background
Census)
18-30 13% 5 18% White and Black 59% 5 3%
Age 31-40 20% 3 15% Caribbean
(2011 41-50 28% 11 15% White and Black 0% 0 1%
Census) African ’ ’
51-60 20% 8 11%
White and Asian | 0% 0 1%
61-64 3% 1 4%
London Borough of Croydon 15 Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



9G¢ abed

Borough-wide Borough-wide
Overall Survey & . Overall Survey & .
Population Population
Responses . Responses . .
Statistics Statistics

| % Freaueny| % | % Freaveny] % |

Any other Mixed £50,000 and o
/ multiple ethnic | 3% 1 2% above 20% 8
background
i Prefer not to say | 48% 19
Indian 0% 0 7%
Pakistani 0% 0 3% .
2.3.13 Table 2-11 demonstrates that the survey received a lower
Bangladeshi 0% 0 1% ) )
Chinese 0% 0 1% proportion of male responses than the Croydon population,
Any other Asian | _,, . o and a higher proportion of female responses than the
background Croydon population.
Black African 0% 0 8%
Black Caribbean | 8% 3 9% 2.3.14 The survey overall has more responses from those aged
AVL\;SIEE:’-;UB;ZCK 0% 0 4% between 31-60, when the younger demographics make up a
Arab 0% 0 0% higher percentage of the existing population in the borough.
Oth 3% 1 1% L . . .
er 2.3.15  For ethnic origin, White English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern
Prefer not to say | 13% 5 n/a ) o ) )
Irish / British has the highest proportion of respondents for
£0 - £10,000 0% 0
both the survey respondents and the existing population.
£10,000 -
£20,000 5% 2 The survey received a lower proportion of responses from
Annual £20,000 - ‘any other Asian background’, Indian, Black Caribbean and
Household 13% 5 . . L
Income £30,000 £53 477 Black African backgrounds than the proportion within the
(2018 ONS £30,000 - 8% 3 borough-wide population.
statistics) £40,000
£40,000 - 8% 3 2.3.16 The average total income in 2018 was £53,477 in the
£50,000 . .
Croydon borough. The survey overall received a higher
Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road) 16 London Borough of Croydon

Questionnaire Response Analysis



/G¢ abed

24

241

2.4.2

2.4.3

25

251

proportion of responses from people who earned £50,000
and above. Please note that about half of the survey
respondents responded ‘Prefer not to say’ for this question,

hence this comparison might not be accurate.
Limitations

As shown in Section 2.3, there is an under-representation of
response from certain demographic groups. Under-
representation amongst income groups cannot be clearly

determined.

The use of online survey methods for this questionnaire may
have excluded the participation of the offline population.
The questionnaire also only received 42 responses, which is

considered a low response rate compared to other schemes.

Therefore, care should be taken when interpreting the
results, particularly on the degree of the survey results being

treated as the general views of the community.
Coding of Responses

To analyse the free text comments a coding frame has been
produced. The frame has been developed using a sample of
responses which have been analysed in detail to identify

commonly mentioned locations, issues and subjects.

2.5.2

2.5.3

254

These codes have been used to initially interrogate the free
text responses. Following an initial analysis, codes were
reviewed by the project team. This process included a review
of all categories, including a focus on those cannot be
categorised into a specific category and coded as ‘other’.

Where relevant, additional codes and categories were then
generated. The complete set of codes can be seen in the data

analysis.

Each response was fully analysed using the codes. Each
section or subject of each response was coded and included
in the complete analysis.

London Borough of Croydon

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis




3.11
3.1.2
o
jabl
Q
D
W
1
(00]
3.13

The next section of the survey included questions about

respondent’s travel patterns around Addiscombe.

Respondents were asked how much walking, cycling or
scooting they are doing now, compared to before the Covid-
19 pandemic. Table 3-1 demonstrates that half of the
respondents are doing about the same amount of walking,
cycling and scooting (50%), but 31% are doing more and only

19% are doing less.

Table 3-1: Extent of Walking, Cycling, Scooting

N %

Much More 5 12%
Slightly More 8 19%
About the Same 21 50%
Slightly Less 7 17%
Much Less 1 2%

Total 42 100%

Respondents were then asked: ‘Are there children and/or
young people in your household?’, 24% (10) of those
answered yes, as shown in Table 3-2. This 24% were then
asked the extent to which they are currently walking, cycling
or scooting compared to before the pandemic. Again, the

majority of children and young people’s extent of walking,

3.14

cycling and scooting now compared to before the pandemic
has remained about the same, at 60%, with 20% walking,
cycling and scooting more, but 20% saying that they are

doing it less.

Table 3-2: Extent of Walking, Cycling, Scooting among Children
and Young Adults

| N | %

Much More 2 20%
Slightly More 0 0%
About the Same 6 60%
1 10%
1 10%

100%

Slightly Less
Much Less
Total 10

Respondents of the survey were also asked what type of
vehicles (if any) they own. The results in Figure 3-1 below
show that the majority (74%) own a car. In comparison to the
2011 Census (Output area level), about 61% of households
within the Kemerton Road scheme boundary have access to

a car or van, as opposed to about 39% that did not.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

18

London Borough of Croydon



Figure 3-1: Vehicle Ownership amongst Respondents

Vehicle ownership

= Own a car

= Own a van or other
commercial vehicle for
0% work purposes

0% - = Own a motorbike

= Own a combination of all of
these

= Do not own any of these

6S¢ abed

3.15 Those who answered yes to owning a car and/or motorbike
(31) were also asked if they also walk, cycle or use public
transport for some of their journeys, where 94% (29)
answered that they did.

3.1.6 Further, respondents were asked; ‘What (if anything) stops
you from walking and cycling for more journeys in and
around Addiscombe?’. The most common reason for not
walking and cycling in and around Addiscombe is the
‘unpleasant street environment’, whereby 19% of

respondents selected this category. This is followed closely
by ‘concern about road safety/road danger’, with 18%

selecting this category, and 18% also selected ‘traffic speed’.

Figure 3-2: Why Respondents Don’t Walk and Cycle for More
Journeys

Why respondents don't walk and cycle for
more journeys

Topography
(hills), 1% Disability, 1% Unpleasant
street
environment,

19%

No reason, 13%

Other (e.g.
crime,
conditions of
roads), 13%
Concern about
road
safety/road
danger, 18%

Traffic volume,
17%

Traffic speed,
18%

London Borough of Croydon 19

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

09¢ abed

Views about the Temporary Scheme

As introduced previously, 32 of the responses received
through the online engagement were from people who live
within the scheme

boundary to the temporary

neighbourhood, and 10 live outside the scheme boundary.

Table 4-1 below shows that when asked how strongly the
respondents support or do not support the existing
Addiscombe CHN (Kemerton Road) temporary scheme, the
majority of those who live within the scheme boundary
(80%) held negative views towards the scheme, with only
20% having a positive attitude. For those who live outside of
the scheme boundary, 30% expressed a negative stance on
the existing temporary scheme, while 50% expressed a

positive stance.

Table 4-1: Attitudes of the Existing Addiscombe — Kemerton
Road Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Do not support at all 22 73% 20%
Slightly do not 2 7% 1 10%
support

Neutral 0 0% 2 20%

4.1.3

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Slightly support 10% 20%
Strongly support 3 10% 3 30%
Total 30 100% 10 100%

When asked how the respondents feel about the temporary
scheme in its current format, 26% of those who live within
the scheme boundary felt negatively towards the current
temporary scheme, with 64% feeling positive. For those who
do not live within the scheme boundary, the majority (50%)
felt positive about the temporary scheme in its current

format, with 30% feeling negative.

Table 4-2: Attitudes on the Temporary Scheme in its Current
Format

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

Very Negative 23% 2 20%
Negative 1 3% 1 10%
Neutral 3 10% 2 20%
Positive 17 57% 4 40%
Very Positive 2 7% 1 10%
Total 30 100% 10 100%

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

20

London Borough of Croydon



4.1.4

4.15

T9g abed

The most frequently mentioned themes for supporting the

scheme were:

— The scheme results in less noise (5)

The scheme makes the area safer (3)

There is less rat-running (3)

— The scheme is better for cycling (3)

Six out of the 30 respondents who live within the scheme
boundary said they feel positive about the scheme (see
Table 4-1). Figure 4-1 shows the most frequently mentioned
themes for those who live within the scheme boundary and
have a positive attitude towards the scheme. The most
frequently mentioned themes for those who live within the
scheme boundary are that the scheme results in less rat
running (3) and that it makes less noise (3).

Figure 4-1: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Within The
Scheme Boundary to Feel Positive about the Scheme

N

[EnN

4.1.6

Less rat-running

Most popular themes for those who live within
the scheme boundary to feel positive about the
scheme

3 3
Slower traffic

Less noise Better for cycling

The 5 respondents who stated that they feel positive
towards the scheme and who live outside of the scheme
boundary (see Table 4-2), mentioned in their explanation
that the scheme makes the area safer (2), that it makes the
area have less traffic (2) and less noise (2) as shown in Figure
4-2,

London Borough of Croydon

21

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



29¢ abed

/7

°

Figure 4-2: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Outside of The
Scheme Boundary to Feel Positive about the Scheme

Most popular themes for those who live outside
the scheme boundary to feel positive about the

scheme
4
3
2
2 2 2
1
0
Less traffic Safer Less noise Better for Good for

cycling peds/walking

4.1.7 The most popular themes for feeling negative towards the
scheme were:
— The scheme results in more congestion (19)
— The scheme results in parking issues (16)
— The scheme results in turning/ reversing issues (13)
— It makes the area feel more dangerous (11)

— The scheme causes a negative impact on emergency

services (6)

4.1.8

24 of those who live within the scheme boundary stated that
they feel negative about the existing scheme (see Table 4-2),
the results for their most frequently mentioned themes for
feeling negative towards the scheme are shown in Figure 4-
3. The most frequently mentioned themes for those who live
within the scheme boundary are that it would cause more
traffic (18), that it would cause parking issues (15) and that

it would cause turning / reversing issues (13).

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road) 22

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



€9¢ abed

Figure 4-3: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Within The
Scheme Boundary to Feel Negative about the Scheme

Most popular themes for those who live within
scheme boundary feel negative towards the

scheme
20

18
16

18
14 15
12 13
1
10

4.1.9 The three respondents who stated that they feel negative

o

o N b O

towards the scheme who live outside of the scheme
boundary (see Table 4-2), mentioned in their explanation
that the scheme causes more traffic / congestion on the

main roads / wider road network (1), that is more dangerous

Figure

(1), would be an inconvenience causing long journeys (1),
that it would have a negative impact on emergency services
(1) and that it would cause parking issues (1), as shown in
Figure 4-4.

4-4: The Most Popular Themes for Those Who Live Outside of the

Scheme Boundary to Feel Negative about the Scheme

Most popular themes for those who live outside
scheme boundary feel negative towards the

scheme

2

1
1

0
N N - G ¢
X O g (o) N
=) & & x§ &5

le (\OO .. o\) (}' Qo\
I3 @ S 0 &
\C o & (OQ NS
o) e 5 S 2
S{\\ 0‘ O(\ () Q
@ N \ &
& e‘\& &
S \\Qg\\
c,oo

London Borough of Croydon 23

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



4.2
421

o

jabl

Q

D

w

(@)

SN
4.2.2

Perceived Impacts of the Temporary Scheme

To assess the perceived impacts of the temporary scheme,
respondents were asked; ‘Please select the extent of the
impact of the temporary scheme on your street since it was
put in? E.g. Air pollution, noise, congestion etc’. Of those
who live within the scheme boundary, 72% thought the
impacts are worse, with 13% think the impacts are better.
Whereas, the majority of those (605) who live outside the
scheme boundary perceive the impacts as the same as
before.

Table 4-3: Extent of the Impact of the Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. | % | No. | % |
4

Better 13% 2 20%
About The Same 5 16% 6 60%
Worse 23 72% 2 20%
Total 32 100% 10 100%

When asked to select the extent of the impact on road safety
since the temporary scheme was put in e.g. easier to cross,
fewer collisions etc, 72% of those who live within the scheme
boundary said it is worse than before, as opposed to 16%
thinking it is better. However, for those who live outside the

scheme boundary, 40% stated that road safety is better than

4.2.3

before the scheme was put into place, while another thought

it is the same, as shown in Table 4-4 below.
Table 4-4: Extent of the Impact of Road Safety from the Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. % N | %
5

Better 16% 4 40%
About The Same 4 13% 4 40%
Worse 23 72% 2 20%
Total 32 100% 10 100%

Table 4-5 on the next page shows the responses to Question
13 of the survey: ‘Please select the extent of the conditions
for walking, cycling and scooting now compared to before
the temporary scheme was in place?’. For those who live
within the scheme boundary, most of them rated the
conditions as being the same (44%), or worse than before
(44%). 70% of respondents who live outside the scheme
boundary reported that the conditions for walking, cycling
and scooting have remained around the same since the
scheme came into place, the remaining 30% stated it was

better than before.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

24

London Borough of Croydon



Table 4-5: Extent of the Conditions for Walking, Cycling and
Scooting now from the Scheme

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary
e [ v | e | %
Better 4 13% 3 30%
The Same 14 44% 7 70%
Worse 14 44% 0 0%
Total 32 100% 10 100%

Gog abed

London Borough of Croydon

25

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



511

5.1.2

99¢ abed

In this section of the survey, Question 18, respondents were
asked whether they agree or disagree with replacing the
existing planter closure on Kemerton Road with a lockable

bollard for emergency service access.

The result of this question is shown in Table 5-1 below and it
is clear that the majority of both those who live within the
scheme boundary disagree with replacing the planters with
a lockable bollard on Kemerton Road, with 80% disagreeing.
30% of those who live outside the scheme boundary also

disagree.

Table 5-1: Opinions regarding Replacing Existing Planters with
Fold-down, Lockable Bollard

Live within the Live Outside of the
Scheme Boundary Scheme Boundary

| No. | % | No | %

Strongly Disagree 21 70% 3 30%
Disagree 3 10% 1 10%
Neutral 3 10% 3 30%
Agree 1 3% 3 30%
Strongly Agree 2 7% 0 0%

Total 30 100% 10 100%

5.13

5.14

Figure 5-1 on the next page shows the most frequently
mentioned themes of the respondent’s explanations to the
qguestion above. Amongst the 31 coded responses, seven
(23%) stated concerns about traffic and parking being
displaced onto Bredon Road, six (19%) reported concerns
about road safety due to vehicles reversing.

Aside from the general reasons for opposing low traffic
schemes, four (13%) mentioned a preference to keep the
planters in place, claiming physical barriers are needed to

stop drivers from access.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

26

London Borough of Croydon



/9¢ abed

Figure 5-1: Key Themes Drawn from Respondents’ Explanations to Their
Stance about Replacing the Existing Scheme with the Proposed
Improvements

Prefer something better B

Will result in better access for 1
emergency services 1
Concern about abandoned vehicles

being left on this road; clogging up
2
parking spaces _

Still concerned about emergency . 1
services 2
Prefer to keep planters in places (e.g.

planters are more attractive, visually h 3

pleasing)

Concerns around personal safety due

to lower traffic flows / being unable to _ 3

access by car

Road safety concerns due to vehicles

reversing I
Concern around traffic and parking

issues being displaced onto Bredon — 6

Road, with associated parking issues...
Scheme at this location does not 1
render wider benefit 6

M Live Outside Scheme Boundary H Live Within Scheme Boundary

5.2

521

Other Suggestions

Respondents were then asked if they had any suggestions for
how the London Borough of Croydon could make the area
safer, quieter and less polluted. 25 suggestions were
received and coded, of these the most frequently mentioned
suggestion was cleaning the streets and/or tackling fly-
tipping and littering, 6 (24%) respondents suggested this.
Following this, 4 (16%) respondents would be interested in
seeing better speed enforcement, with another 4 (16%)

suggested more trees and greenery.

Table 5-2: Most Frequently Mentioned Suggestions to Make
The Area Safer, Quieter and Less Polluted

Coding Category “ %

Cleaning the streets/ tackling fly- 6 24%
tipping and littering

Better speed enforcement 4 16%
More trees and greenery 4 16%
Change on parking Permits/zone 3 12%
Extents

Introducing one way system 3 12%
Other traffic management 3 12%
Personal safety & tackle anti-social 3 12%
behaviour/police presence

Improve/ reduce costs of public 3 12%
transport

Other suggestions 3 12%

London Borough of Croydon 27

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



89¢ abed

Coding Category “

Add/change location of closure 2

Enforce traffic rules against cyclists 2
and/ or e-scooter users

8%
8%

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

28

London Borough of Croydon



69¢€ abed

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

PJA have been commissioned by the London Borough of
Croydon to analyse the pre-consultation engagement
guestionnaire  responses Healthy

Neighbourhoods (CHNs).

for  Croydon’s

This report analyses the responses for the existing and
proposed changes to the Addiscombe CHN measure on
Kemerton Road.

Survey Results
Travel patterns around Addiscombe

The survey has shown that travel patterns for walking,
cycling and scooting around Addiscombe since the Covid-19
pandemic has remained around the same. 60% of
respondents stating that the extent of walking, cycling and
scooting they do now has remained about the same, with
20% each stating that they are doing either more or less.
When asked why they would choose not to walk, cycle or
scoot, 18% said they would not because of concerns about

road safety/road danger and traffic speeds.

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

Views about the Temporary Scheme

When asked their views on the current temporary scheme,
the majority (67%) does not support the existing scheme,
with 80% of those who live within the scheme boundary

against it and 30% of those who live outside the boundary.

The most common reason for the local respondents disliking
the current temporary scheme was ‘more traffic and/or
congestion’ with 75% of those who live within the scheme
boundary and hold negative stance mentioning this in their

explanation.

For the three respondents who live outside the scheme
boundary and displayed negative views of the existing
scheme, their comments are about issues such as
‘inconvenience/ longer journeys’ and ‘negative impact to

emergency services’.

Despite this, 20% of those who live within the scheme
boundary had a positive stance towards the existing scheme.
The most frequently mentioned theme for supporting the
existing scheme for them is that it reduces rat-running and

creates less noise.

Majority of those who live within the scheme boundary

perceive the scheme's general impacts to be worse (72%).

London Borough of Croydon

29

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



6.2.7
=) 6.2.8
jabl
Q
D
w
\l
o
6.3
6.3.1

For those who live outside the scheme boundary, 60% rated

the impacts as the same as before.

Views about the Proposed Improvements under
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO)

For the question regarding changing the existing planter
closure to a lockable bollard, the majority disagree with this
change. It is opposed by 80% of those who live inside, and
40% of those who live outside the scheme boundary.

When asked to explain why the respondents agree or
disagree with replacing the planters with a lockable bollard,
the main reasons for those who disagreed was because they
do not think a scheme at this location could render any wider
benefits, or due to concerns about traffic and parking issues
being displaced onto Bredon Road. Some also mentioned
that they prefer to keep the planters as they are more
visually pleasing. For those who agreed with replacing the
planters with a fold-down, lockable bollard, the main
explanation was that they would provide better access for

emergency vehicles.
What Does it Mean?

The response to the engagement suggests that neither those

who live inside or outside the scheme boundary support the

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

existing temporary measures of the planters on Kemerton
Road.

From coding the respondents’ explanations, it is clear that
the scheme resulting in more traffic and/or congestion to
nearby areas is the dominant reason for feeling negative
about the scheme, and therefore people do not support
changing it to a lockable bollard either.

Many locals are concerned about traffic and parking issues
being displaced to Bredon Road. There are also concerns
about a lockable bollard being an unreliable method for

providing emergency access.

When the respondents were asked for their suggestions on
how to make Croydon a healthier, safer and quieter area, the
top suggestions were to clean the streets and/or tackle fly-
tipping and littering (24%), better speed enforcement (16%),

and to provide more trees and greenery (16%).

Due to under-representation of response from certain
demographic groups, the low response rate, as well as the
use of online survey methods for this questionnaire, views of
the survey population may not be fully representative of the
wider population. Care should be taken when interpreting
the results, particularly on the degree of the survey results

being treated as the general views of the community.

Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis

London Borough of Croydon



Appendix A Postcode Location of
Respondents’ Address

T.¢€ abed

London Borough of Croydon 31 Addiscombe Healthy Neighbourhood (Kemerton Road)

Questionnaire Response Analysis



2/ ¢ abed

%oob Postcode Location of
0 dents'
@ o Survey Respondents
O Py L]
Vv 8 addresses (of whom
C' . .
oo rovided a valid postcode
X
— Temporary Streetspace/
CHN Scheme Boundary
. (Kermerton Road)
>
©
o N.B. Numbers on each dot
DAVIDSON %005 represents the amount of
eHoOL o8 responses received from the same
»° postcode (if there are more than
one)
2z
2 E
5 5
A 3
- <
? z
o 3
d kel
Ro°? .
3o® 2
Bre %‘ ,
8 11 -
[ =
()
3
Rro?
%‘960“
oaé
«\e“o“ Contains public sector information licensed under the OGL v3.0.
Ke Esri Community Maps Contributors, Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin,
2 INCREMENT P, METI/NASA, USGS, Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin,
[} INCREMENT P, METI/NASA, USGS
° 15
()
///
" G.03 Wenlock
Studios
P A 50-52 Wharf Road
A London N1 7EU
% A Rro? J T. %;0?566 3939
2 %
k We
% B London Borough of
R Croydon
Croydon HN
. i Pre-consultation Engagement
' 4 .. : y o ® OASIS
ACADEMY
r SHIRLEY PARK
POSTCODE LOCATION OF
a RESPONDENTS' ADDRESS
2
8 ®° > (KERMERTON ROAD SCHEME)
‘3036
Addiscom‘oe TRINITY
Y, ° SCHOOL
e 0.2 D A3@1:1,400  JY JMQ  06/10/2021
] km A@_
SCHOOL o) Cl1_5 A




CROYDON HEALTHY NEIGHBOURHOODS

Paper by

Shape Better Streets
Croydon Cycling Campaign
Croydon Living Streets

Cypress School Cycling Club

October 2021

Page 373



Healthy neighbourhoods schemes work: indeed they are they only demonstrably practical and
successful way of promoting active travel

The evidence from elsewhere in London, and indeed internationally, is that using modal filters to
exclude through motor traffic from neighbourhoods is an extraordinarily powerful and cost-effective
intervention. That evidence also shows that, far from increasing traffic on other roads, schemes
tend, in fact, to reduce it across an area as a whole, with no increase in congestion on nearby main
roads, indeed often reductions. They also result in increased active travel in all forms, walking and
active mobility by disabled people, not just cycling. They have been transformative, in particular, for
home-school travel, making the roads safer for children and parents to walk and cycle, and
discouraging vehicle use. These benefits were seen in the Crystal Palace and South Norwood
scheme, with hundreds of responses to the consultation reporting more active travel, and resident
surveys suggesting a threefold increase in walking and cycling. Very recent analysis of collision data
suggests that the Crystal Palace and South Norwood scheme, in its short existence, resulted in
statistically significant reductions in injury collisions within the scheme area and on surrounding
main roads.

By contrast, in nearly 18 months of local debate, opponents of schemes have not been able to offer
any other practical and realistic means of achieving the same benefits. “Traffic calming” has been
suggested, but it is not clear what this means in practice. Many streets in the current healthy
neighbourhoods scheme areas have features including humps, cushions and speed displays, but
these have not been successful in reducing vehicle numbers, enforcing safe driving or creating the
feeling that active travel is safe and enjoyable. The other, likewise usually unspecific, category of
proposals has been for public transport improvements. In fact, public transport across most of
North Croydon is astonishingly good already, and TfL’s finances are extremely unlikely to allow for
significant improvements. We would strongly support options like tram extensions, but they are not
even on the drawing board, the costs would be huge, and they could not be completed for 10 years
or more. In any event, the reductions in private car use needed to get to net zero require both more
active travel as well as more use of public transport.

Decisions following consultation should not be a numbers game

It would be completely wrong to read the numbers of people apparently supporting or opposing
schemes in an online consultation as a reliable indication of local public opinion, for a number of
reasons:

e We have not seen the figures for the summer 2021 consultations, but if experience of the
2020 Crystal Palace/South Norwood consultation and participation in similar consultations
generally is anything to go by, responses are likely to be seriously unrepresentative of the
community as a whole — older, more affluent, more likely to own and use a motor vehicle,
less likely BAME. Consultations of this kind tend to exclude sections of the community,
including the oldest people and children, whose voices really should be heard on issues of
this kind.

e Aside from sending out consultation letters and material posted on its website, the council
has done nothing to explain and promote its proposals. Its materials have failed to address
clearly likely concerns and misconceptions.

e Open Our Roads, in its leaflets and on the doorstep, has lied about the proposals, in
particular claiming that cabs, delivery and visiting vehicles could not enter healthy
neighbourhoods, that residents would have to pay for permits, and the council’s real

Page 374



intention is to generate revenue from fines. The council did nothing to rebut these lies, and,
despite our efforts to counter them, they must have affected some residents’ response.

e We know from elsewhere, for example Hackney, Newcastle and Cambridge, that opponents
of active travel schemes game and manipulate online surveys. Councils have discovered
multiple responses, running into the thousands, from the same IP addresses,
overwhelmingly expressing opposition to schemes. Responses are submitted from far and
wide.

e Professionally conducted polling, in London and nationally, has been consistent in suggesting
that the majority of people support healthy streets and active travel schemes.

The Government has made clear in its guidance to councils that simple majorities of respondents in
consultation surveys opposing schemes are not by themselves good reason for ending them. The
council itself recognised this in its decision to proceed with a revised scheme in Crystal Palace and
South Norwood. Other councils, including Southwark and Hackney, have taken the results of local
consultations as only one element in their decision-making, alongside the quality of the arguments
of supporters and opponents, and objective evidence of the impacts of schemes.

There is no credible Plan B

If the council scraps the current schemes, what next? As we have argued above, there is no obvious
effective and workable means of achieving the same combination of environmental and public
health benefits. We strongly suspect that opponents of the current schemes, whatever they may
say from time to time, would not in fact engage in any serious debate about different ways of
achieving the council’s objectives. In fact they are likely, in concert with the current opposition, with
which they are closely aligned, to push back further on such issues as school streets and 20 mph
limits.

However, even if other options were found after some further process of community engagement,
the council would have no means to deliver them. It goes without saying that the council’s current
financial position means it is dependent on external funding for any projects in this territory. The
Government and TfL have made clear that they will not provide funding for councils which have
removed active travel schemes and may even demand repayment of funding already provided.
Ealing Council, for example, which removed schemes on the basis of crude numbers supporting and
opposing them in an online survey, has been excluded from any future funding. So the council’s
ability to make any practical progress is likely to be non-existent.

Funding aside, scrapping schemes on the basis of a very unreliable reading of local public opinion,
ignoring the substantive benefits, would fatally undermine the other necessary basis for making
progress, the confidence and support of local stakeholders, London and national government —
which is at a premium because of the council’s wider reputational standing. All would read a
decision of this kind as suggesting the council is not serious or lacking in the capability to make
progress, with repercussions for its credibility well beyond this specific issue.

A further phase of public engagement is the right approach

The correct lesson to draw from the process over the summer, and indeed the autumn 2020 process
in Crystal Palace and South Norwood, is that the council needs to raise its game significantly in the
way it explains and promotes its position, works with community stakeholders, and engages all parts
of the community. A citizen’s assembly or similar approaches could be a productive element in that
next stage.

Page 375



Unfortunately the approach so far has been characterised by poor communication, initially and in
response to misinformation and misperceptions, and a lack of practical engagement with local
organisations and campaigns, and outreach to sections of the community whose voice tends not to
be heard through formal consultation processes, especially children, less affluent older people,
BAME communities and marginalised groups. We ourselves put forward ideas about improvements
to the council’s consultation proposals to which we have received no response, and meetings we
have suggested about a range of issues, including data, have not taken place. It is deeply
disappointing that the council has not in recent months even been willing to meet with local
campaigners who have endured vandalism, abuse, hacking of email and even death threats while
trying to explain and promote schemes which the council itself has done so little to present
positively.

Despite our unhappiness about the way the process has been handled so far, we would be prepared
to work alongside the council, using channels we have, for example to community groups working
on mental health and active travel in BAME communities, to improve the extent and quality of
engagement around schemes. Taking the council’s evidence and data and ours together, we suggest
there is scope to significantly improve the presentation of the facts on the impact of schemes.

Page 376



Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

Consultation response

Holmesdale Road

Albert Road
HOLMESDALE
COMMUNITY ACTION m
GROUP |~ GROUP g0
Croydon
CROYDON SHAPE
\Q' CLIMATE BETTER
" ACTION STREETS

CROYDON ®
CYCLING ’.

Page 377



Who we are

Holmesdale Community Action Group is a community group bringing neighbours together
who are dedicated to making our local area a safer, cleaner, and better place to live.

Shape Better Streets is a resident campaign supporting the principle of a Low Traffic
Neighbourhood in Crystal Palace and South Norwood. Our website address is:
https://crystalpalaceltn.org/ and our email address is CrystalPalaceLTN@gmail.com.

Croydon Climate Action is a group of activists who work with our local Council, businesses,
schools, communities, and other green groups to help mitigate the impacts of climate
change on a local level through lobbying and raising awareness of issues.

Croydon Cycling Campaign is a group of Croydon locals who want to see Croydon
transformed into a city that is welcoming to cyclists of all ages and abilities. We work with
the council to encourage high quality provision for cycling, organise rides and socials and
campaign tirelessly for a real cycling revolution.

Croydon Living Streets is a group of volunteers working to make every day walking safer,
easier, and more enjoyable across our community.

Page 378


https://crystalpalaceltn.org/

Key points

The climate crisis, national and local policy all call for a local approach based on reducing
private vehicle use and the air quality, noise, and traffic danger it creates, to make
neighbourhoods safe and pleasant and encourage active travel. Recent government
guidance has reinforced the importance of tackling excessive motor vehicle use and
encouraging active travel.

The Council should continue to implement and refine Healthy Neighbourhoods unless
there is strong evidence that any harms significantly outweigh the benefits and cannot be
mitigated by changes to the scheme.

The two neighbourhoods featured in this response are both majority BAME, lower
income neighbourhoods, with almost half of households not owning a vehicle. There are
several schools in the Albert Road neighbourhood. There are therefore particularly
strong equalities arguments for tackling the pollution and road danger caused by rat-
running.

The temporary changes to Holmesdale Road implemented in 2020 were a necessary
response to the previous steady increase in its use as a rat-run. The volume and
frequent dangerous and illegal behaviour of drivers was both harming residents and
unacceptable for what is supposed to be a safe cycle route alternative to busy and
dangerous nearby main roads.

The geography of the Albert Road neighbourhood, and the longstanding modal filter in
Regina Road, stopped its streets being used by through traffic. Nevertheless, the
temporary measures introduced in 2020 were a justifiable response to frequent speeding
and other dangerous behaviours by drivers accessing the area. Such driver behaviour
was unacceptable both for residents and users of the cycle route running through the
neighbourhood from Sunny Bank to Spring Lane, and on to Addiscombe and East
Croydon.

Our headline response to the consultation is as follows:

The temporary measures have been highly effective in improving the tranquillity, air
quality and safety of the two neighbourhoods. However, the limited scope of the
Holmesdale Road measures has left residents, and users of the Holmesdale Road cycle
route, still exposed to high volumes of north-south rat-running.

The Council should continue and build on the current restrictions to motor traffic
movement in the two neighbourhoods. To abandon the schemes would once again
expose both residents and cycle route users to air and noise pollution and traffic danger.

However:

3.

There is no need to replace the planter filters on Albert Road with ANPR. The planters
are more effective in enforcing a quiet and safe neighbourhood. The minimal distances
involved in diverting around the planters mean that little would be gained from ANPR in
terms of emergency service or resident access.

The experimental scheme proposed for Holmesdale Road is insufficiently ambitious. The
Council should retain the current three planter locations for the time being and engage
with the community on a scheme which will protect all streets in the neighbourhood
from rat-running traffic. Such an ambitious scheme could well retain planter filters in
more locations than the west side of Park Road.

Page 379



5. Through the proposed experimental period and beyond, the council needs to develop
effective measures to address the safety of main roads on the edge of the two schemes,
for the benefit of residents and to provide continuity for cycling routes. In particular,
there is a need to improve cycle and pedestrian safety at Goat House Bridge, Spring
Lane and Park Road, and address speeding and other dangerous driver behaviour on the
latter. We also urge the council to work with community organisations in promoting
understanding of the opportunities for cycling and walking in Healthy Neighbourhoods.

e Clams in the leaflet distributed by Open Our Roads are unsupported by evidence and in
some cases completely false.

Page 380



Policy context

Our December 2020 submission on the Crystal Palace and South Norwood proposals
explored the global, national, and local policy context within which decisions on streets and
travel should be taken. The climate crisis, the need to combat unacceptable air quality, and
the safety and economic impact of traffic congestion all make it imperative that the council
takes bold and decisive action to reduce motor traffic and encourage active travel. The
council’s adopted plans and strategies on climate, air quality, public health and active travel
all reflect this imperative. For more detail, please see our submission
(https://shapebetterstreets.org/2020/12/13/ltn-proof-its-needed-proof-its-working/)

Since that submission, the policy case and evidence have continued to strengthen. On 30
July, the Department for Transport published further Network Management Duty Guidance,
making clear the Government’s expectation that highway authorities would continue to
prioritise improvements for active travel. The guidance, and the accompanying Ministerial
letter, made it clear that councils should keep schemes in place for long enough for their
success to be properly evaluated, and should use robust methods to test public opinion. It
made clear that funding for active travel, and funding for transport more generally, could be
withdrawn if councils abandon active travel schemes without robust evidence.

The evidence base continues to strengthen. London councils, including Lambeth.
Southwark, Hackney, Enfield, and Ealing, have all published analyses of traffic which suggest
healthy neighbourhood schemes do not significantly lead to worse traffic on nearby main
roads. Academic research has also been published debunking false claims often made about
schemes. For example, studies show that schemes of this kind tend to benefit lower income
and BAME people, they do not adversely affect emergency services response times, and they
are not associated with increases in street crime.'

The Government and others have published polling which suggests majority public support
for reducing traffic and improving conditions for active travel.”

Page 381


https://shapebetterstreets.org/2020/12/13/ltn-proof-its-needed-proof-its-working/

How the policy context should shape a decision

The weight of national, London and local policy points overwhelmingly to the need to
reduce motor vehicle use and encourage active travel. It also points to the importance of
creating low-traffic environments in which the air and noise pollution associated with
excessive traffic is removed, and in which active travel is encouraged.

That does not, of course, justify persisting with a particular scheme if it does not achieve
these objectives, or results in significant unintended adverse consequences. But it does
point strongly towards only abandoning a scheme if:

e there is clear evidence that the harm outweighs the benefits;

and

e any harm cannot be addressed by modifications to the scheme.

In our view, the two South Norwood schemes:

e Have resulted in very significant benefits.
e Have caused minimal disbenefits. Claims which have been made about adverse
consequences are, at best, exaggerated, and in some cases are not supported at all

by the evidence.

However, the Holmesdale Road scheme, limited to filters on just one street, has not had a
sufficient impact on traffic across the neighbourhood as a whole.

Page 382



About the neighbourhoods
Geography

The proposed Albert Road Healthy Neighbourhood is bounded by rail lines and the
Country Park to one side, and the A215 Portland Road on the other side. Vehicle
movement to the east is not possible, and a longstanding modal filter in Regina Road
prevents vehicle traffic from entering from or exiting to the A213 Penge Road. Before the
additional filters were installed in 2020, it did not therefore experience through traffic in the
fullest sense of the term. However, there was a tendency for traffic to use Albert Road, in
particular, for access, rather than entering or leaving the neighbourhood via the shortest
route from Portland Road. Residents experienced significant speeding and other anti-social
driving behaviours.

Action to reduce traffic on Albert Road, in particular, was justified because:

e ltis typically heavily parked up, and there is insufficient width for opposing vehicles
to pass.

e There are two primary schools and a secondary academy in the neighbourhood.
With the streets in the neighbourhood also providing access to the Croydon Arena
and the Country Park, they are heavily used by children and young people.

e The limited available road width is unpleasant and hazardous for cycling when there
are also high volumes of motor vehicles, some of them driven irresponsibly. Yet
Albert Road (with Estcourt Road, Eldon Park, Lincoln Road and Regina Road) is a
designated cycle route, which should be offering a safer and more pleasant
environment for cycling than Portland Road, which is dangerous and unpleasant.

The proposed Holmesdale Road Healthy Neighbourhood is bounded by the A215 South
Norwood Hill, the A213 South Norwood High Street/Selhurst Road, and the B classified
Whitehorse Lane. Park Road (a borough classified road) runs through it. Before filters
were installed on Holmesdale Road in 2020, streets in the neighbourhood were heavily used
by rat-running drivers. Action to reduce traffic was justified because:

e Almost all streets in the neighbourhood are heavily parked up with insufficient
remaining width for opposing motor vehicles to pass.

e Air and noise pollution, and traffic danger, adversely affected people living in the
neighbourhood.

e Holmesdale Road is a designated cycling route which should provide a pleasant and
safe alternative to Whitehorse Lane and the A213, neither of which are pleasant
roads for cycling. Yet it was made unpleasant and dangerous for cycling both by
traffic rat-running along it, and crossing traffic on the north-south roads.

Demography

Figure | shows key demographic information.’ Both neighbourhoods have 5-6,000
inhabitants. Both are majority-minority and generally lower income neighbourhoods, with
owner-occupation only at 50% or so, and within the 30% most deprived neighbourhoods in
England. 40-50% of residents do not have a car.

Page 383



Figure |: Key demographic information

Population % non- % car %Tenants | Deprivation’
white owning
Albert Road 5,900 56 57 46% 2-5
Holmesdale 5,100 6l 53 50% 2-5
Road

* 1= highest deprivation, |0=lowest deprivation

Neither neighbourhood is therefore at all a “small, wealthy, white, enclave”, as opponents of
LTNs often claim.

Page 384



Our views on the Council’s proposals
Albert Road

The measures taken in 2020 to reduce excessive and anti-social traffic and make Albert
Road and adjoining streets safer and more pleasant for active travel have been successful.
While we are not aware of any formal monitoring, members of our organisations who live
in and pass through the area report:

e A significant reduction in traffic, along Albert Road especially.

e A particularly significant and welcome reduction in speeding and other anti-social
driving behaviour. Breaking Albert Road into sections prevents it being used to build
up speed over a distance.

e More walking and cycling, supported by resident perceptions that the area is safer
and more pleasant. Older people, for example, report feeling safer when they are
out and about on foot, and they are therefore walking more.

We therefore support the Council’s proposals to implement an Experimental
Traffic Order, retaining modal filters at the current locations.

However, we urge the Council to consider further whether it is really necessary
or the best option to replace the current two sets of planters in Albert Road
with ANPR filters. The planters are an attractive feature in the streetscape. By
completely preventing motor vehicle movement, they are a better means of creating
complete safety from motor traffic than ANPR filters open to permit-holders, and not
offering any physical obstruction to drivers willing to pass through them illegally. It is
probable that drivers willing to pass through such filters by, for example, covering plates or
using false registrations, would also tend to drive dangerously. Retaining fixed filters would
make only a very marginal difference to emergency service access, and would not extend
journey times or distances materially for residents. An experimental scheme based wholly
on fixed filters would not involve the bureaucracy and potential confusion of a scheme
requiring electronic permits.

Holmesdale Road

The measures put in place in 2020 have been successful, insofar as they prevent drivers
from using Holmesdale Road as a through route between South Norwood Hill and Park
Road, and on towards Selhurst. This has liberated residents of the street from the previous
unacceptable levels of air and noise pollution, and traffic danger. It has greatly improved the
safety and attractiveness of Holmesdale Road as a cycling route.

However, the 2020 measures fell far short of a full Low Traffic or Healthy Neighbourhood.
They have not prevented north-south rat-running on Dixon Road, Oliver Grove,
Whitworth Road and Clifton Road, streets not at all suitable for high volumes of traffic.

The continued use of these streets by drivers passing through results in continued noise and
air pollution, damage to parked vehicles, and disturbance from drivers getting into
confrontations. It also makes the Holmesdale Road cycle route less safe than it should be,
because of crossing vehicle movements, too often at high speed and disregarding junction
priorities. The 2020 measures have done nothing to improve conditions on Park Road,

Page 385



which remains a hostile environment for walking and cycling, with no features enforcing
adherence to the posted, but almost wholly disregarded, 20 mph speed limit.

In response, the Council has proposed an additional filter, on Elm Park Road. While helpful,
by itself this would not stop north-south rat-running through the neighbourhood. We also
have concerns about the replacement of the current planter filters on the east side of the
Park Road junction, and at the Oliver Grove junction, with ANPR filters. Like the similar
proposals for Albert Road, we do not see that the benefits, in terms of emergency service
and resident access, would be more than marginal. Set against that, they would result in
more traffic using Holmesdale Road, including drivers illegally chancing passing through the
filters. A scheme without ANPR would both be safer and avoid the bureaucracy and
potential confusion of ANPR.

We do not believe the current proposals are ambitious enough. They do not
seem to us to go far enough towards creating a tranquil and safe environment
for residents and for people cycling and walking through the neighbourhood.
We therefore urge the council to leave in place, for the time being, the current
filters on Holmesdale Road, and instead to engage further with residents and
local organisations on a stronger design.

We suggest the following agenda items for this engagement:

e The positioning of additional filters to prevent north-south rat-running through the
neighbourhood.

e Case by case, whether fixed or ANPR filters are most appropriate for each location.

e How to improve safety on Park Road, especially at the junction with Holmesdale
Road, where pedestrians and cyclists need to cross.

e  Whether the scheme would be better conceived as two neighbourhoods, east and
west of Park Road. If the scheme does involve ANPR, an increase in resident traffic
on Holmesdale Road would be mitigated by allowing drivers only to use the sections
of Holmesdale Road to the east and west of Park Road respectively.

Page 386



10

Beyond the two neighbourhoods

In this section of our response, we encourage the Council to consider how the two
schemes fit into a wider strategy for active travel in Croydon and adjoining areas. The
council needs to consider the improvements needed on main roads and elsewhere to link
the two schemes with other schemes to provide useful corridors, and how to increase
awareness of how these and other schemes make it much safer and more attractive to walk
and cycle, and therefore to switch from driving for many journeys.

Despite the welcome active travel improvements implemented over the last 18 months,
Croydon generally remains a poor environment for active travel. It is 23™ out of 33 London
boroughs in the 2021 Healthy Streets Scorecard.* Before the pandemic, sustainable modes
accounted for just 51% of trips, compared with 65% in a comparable outer borough,
Waltham Forest. Just a third of adults walk five or more times a week, and, pitifully, just
two per cent of adults cycle five or more times a week.

To improve, Croydon needs not just to implement individual Healthy Neighbourhoods and
main road schemes, but consider how they fit together into a bigger picture.

So far as these two schemes are concerned, crucial issues to consider are:

e The main road crossings where these neighbourhoods join others — the crossing of
South Norwood Hill between Holmesdale Road and Southern Avenue, of Goat
House Bridge from Lancaster Road to Sunny Bank, and of Spring Lane from Estcourt
Road to Woodside Road. (We also note above the need to make the junction of
Holmesdale Road and Park Road safer.)

¢ Improving connections from the northeast part of the borough to the town centre.
Once the planned Crystal Palace and South Norwood Healthy Neighbourhood is
implemented, there will be good cycling routes away from main roads from Crystal
Palace and South Norwood towards the town centre, one via Albert Road and
Woodside towards Lower Addiscombe Road, and the other via Holmesdale Road.
However, there remain significant “missing links”: the route from Lower
Addiscombe Road to East Croydon is roundabout and not intuitive; worse, the
environment for cycling southwest from Selhurst station is extremely poor: Dagnall
Park, Northcote Road, Gloucester Road and Sydenham Road are all currently very
unpleasant and dangerous cycling environments.

e In co-operation with Bromley Council, how to improve links between South
Norwood, Elmers End, Penge and Beckenham. For different reasons, the footway
tunnel from Love Lane to Marlow Road, the route through Beckenham Cemetery,
and the Country Park paths are unsatisfactory, the latter if only because in parts they
are under water at times in winter!

¢ How to increase awareness of the improved environment for walking and cycling
created by the council’s recent improvements. The current programme of second-
hand bike events is welcome, but knowledge of good cycling and walking routes
remains very low. Our organisations would be happy to work alongside the council
on this.

Page 387



11

Local campaigning against active travel schemes

Local opponents of the two proposed schemes have distributed a thoroughly misleading
leaflet. It makes five claims, none of which are correct, as we set out below:

Claim

The Facts

“Worse air quality —
caused by traffic
gridlocking
surrounding roads”

The claim this has been the consequence of similar schemes in
Waltham Forest is completely false. The Waltham Forest
schemes have reduced air pollution on 90 % of the borough’s
streets without worsening it on the main roads.’

“Hours of
unremitting traffic on
surrounding roads”

There is no evidence the schemes currently in place in the two
neighbourhoods have led to worse traffic. Heavy traffic is caused
by the over-use of private cars for journeys which could be
undertaken by other means.

“Making the lives of
the elderly and less
able more difficult”

People who need to use vehicles for mobility and other reasons
still have access to all streets and addresses without having
to pass through a filter. Older and less able people are less likely
than the general population to have access to a vehicle. Their
lives are made more difficult by hostile street environments, for
example excessive volumes of traffic making it difficult to cross the
road.’

“Local lives being put
at risk”

The real safety issue is excessive traffic on minor roads
not designed to carry it: Injury risk for pedestrians and cyclists
is greater on minor roads than main roads.” Evidence from
Waltham Forest and elsewhere is of no impact on emergency
service response times and no increase in street crime.® The
notion that speeding traffic makes streets safer is ludicrous.

“Unfair fines”

There is nothing unfair about fines for contravening clear
traffic signs and road markings — especially as the council has
sent out warning letters ahead of formal enforcement.

In both neighbourhoods, there have been repeated acts of vandalism against the planters,
which have, in some cases, required the council, at additional cost, to reinforce the filters.
Posters put up by our supporters have been torn down. Scheme opponents have posted
dishonest claims on local social media, and abused and threatened people who challenge

them.’

Page 388




12

References

' Gear Change: One year on review, Department for Transport, 30 July 2021

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/gear-change-one-year-on-review

2 Public attitudes towards traffic, road use and low-traffic neighbourhoods, Department for Transport, 30 July 2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-attitudes-towards-traffic-and-road-use

3 Derived from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, Index of Multiple Deprivation, and

London Datastore, Super Output Area Population (LSOA, MSOA), London

#2021 Scorecard results overview: https://www.healthystreetsscorecard.london/results/

3 Air Quadlity: concentrations, exposure and attitudes in Waltham Forest, David Dajknak et al, King’s College London,

p7-9

¢ Active travel and mid-life: Understanding the barriers and enablers to active travel, Centre for Ageing Better,

August 2021, p15-17; Pave the Way, Transport for All, January 2021, p 47-52

7 Motor traffic on urban minor and major roads: impacts on pedestrian and cyclist injuries, Rachel Aldred, Municipal

Engineer, March 2019

& The Impact of Introducing a Low Traffic Neighbourhood on Fire Service Emergency Response Times, in Waltham

Forest, London, Anna Goodman, Anthony Laverty and Rachel Aldred, Ideas, 2020; The Impact of Introducing a Low

Traffic Neighbourhood on Street Crime, in Waltham Forest, London, Anna Goodman and Rachel Aldred, Findings,

February 2021

’ Residents concern as South Norwood’s ‘culture war’ turns toxic, Inside Croydon, 24 August 202l

https://insidecroydon.com/202 1/08/24/residents-concern-as-south-norwoods-culture-war-turns-toxic/

Page 389


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/gear-change-one-year-on-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-attitudes-towards-traffic-and-road-use
https://www.healthystreetsscorecard.london/results/
https://insidecroydon.com/2021/08/24/residents-concern-as-south-norwoods-culture-war-turns-toxic/

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 8c Additional Email Submissions

1. Covering Email to the ‘Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods Consultation
Response: Holmesdale Road, Albert Road’ in this appendix.

From:

Sent: 24 August 2021 16:52
To: Ali, Muhammad
Subject: CROYDON HEALTHY NEIGHBOURHOODS

Dear Muhammad

On behalf of Holmesdale Community Action Group, Croydon Living Streets, Croydon
Climate Action, Croydon Cycling Campaign and Shape Better Streets, | attach a
submission to the Council’s consultation on the Albert Road and Holmesdale Road
Healthy Neighbourhoods schemes.

The headlines are:

e We support healthy neighbourhoods in both these locations.

e We support the Council’s proposals for Albert Road, but would ask you to
consider retaining planters, rather than installing ANPR, at the filter locations
in Albert Road.

e The Council’s proposals for the Holmesdale Road neighbourhood are not
ambitious enough. They risk missing the opportunity to bring about a real
transformation in safety and quality of life. We would ask you to retain the
current scheme and work with local residents and organisations on improved
proposals for a new ETRO.

e There is a need to set the two schemes and the others in place and proposed
in the context of a clear borough-wide strategy for active travel and safer
streets, including better links across main roads between healthy
neighbourhoods, and more promotion of active travel routes. Our
organisations stand ready to work with the council on bring this about.

Would it be possible for representatives of our groups to meet you before you make
decisions on these schemes?

Kind regards

2. Email from the Homesdale Community Action Group

From:
Sent: 27 October 2021 21:37
To:

Subject: CROYDON HEALTHY NEIGHBOURHOODS - REQUEST FROM

RESIDENTS AND STAKEHOLDERS FOR A MEETING WITH COUNCIL
REPRESENTATIVES

Page 391



Dear Muhammad, Hamida, Clive, Patsy and Louis,

I'm contacting you further to the emails from Croydon Living Streets and
Martin Wheatley (both below) regarding the Holmesdale Road and Albert
Road LTNs. We are asking to meet with you as soon as possible to discuss
why we believe it is imperative for the Council to continue to promote healthy
neighbourhoods in South Norwood. We represent residents who support the
South Norwood LTNs, as well as those who have come to rely on Holmesdale
and Albert Roads as safe routes for active travel through our borough.

As is often the case when introducing change, it is negative voices that tend to
dominate the debate to the detriment of all others. We fear this is what has
happened in South Norwood. The many beneficial impact the LTNs have had
on our local community have been overshadowed. We want to share these
positive experiences with you before any final decisions are made on the
future of South Norwood's LTNSs.

| speak as a founder member of Holmesdale Community Action Group which
was set up as a direct consequence of the Holmesdale Road LTN. The idea
of a neighbourhood group dedicated to greening and cleaning our street prior
to the LTN was unthinkable. Our road was a rat run filled with speeding cars
avoiding traffic lights on Selhurt Road and Whitehorse Lane. It was the scene
of frequent road rage incidents and road traffic accidents at the junction with
Park Road. Neighbours rarely stood on the street talking. Now it is very
different. We have a growing collaborative community group and lots of ideas
for future projects.

I've attached a copy of a poster we created during the online survey
consultation to explain what the LTN means to us and publicise the survey to
the street. We pinned these posters to every telegraph poll and planter along
Holmesdale Road but within a matter of hours every single poster had been
ripped down.

This is just one example of how difficult it has been to foster honest and open
discussion about the LTNs in South Norwood. You may have seen the leaflet
delivered to thousands of households during the consultation period by Open
Our Roads which contained several untruths and misinformation. It is
worrying to think that these leaflets could have had a detrimental impact on
responses to the online survey.

We are convinced that Croydon Council has the ability to bring lasting change
to South Norwood by improving and expanding the current LTNs. As genuine
community-centred groups, we want to work with you to make
transformational change a reality. The evidence on the benefits of LTNs is
incontrovertible: RTAs reduced, pedestrian casualties reduced, air quality
improved, cycling and walking increased, traffic evaporation, and popular with
London voters. This is our lived experience of our LTNs.

Our lived experience is reflected in the most recent research and surveys.
Possible, the climate action group, found that 84.6% of households living on

Page 392



streets with filters wanted to keep them. They discovered this by knocking on
doors and talking to people on streets in LTNs. We fear online surveys may
not yield quite so accurate results which is why we, as representatives of our
community, are asking to talk to you directly.

Please can we arrange a date to meet and talk more about the positive
aspects of our LTNs at your earliest convenience?

We look forward to hearing from you.

With best wishes,

On behalf of Holmesdale Community Action Group, Croydon Living Streets, Croydon
Climate Action, Croydon Cycling Campaign and Shape Better Streets

3. Covering Email to the Submission ‘CROYDON HEALTHY
NEIGHBOURHOODS. Paper by: Shape Better Streets, Croydon Cycling
Campaign, Croydon Living Streets, Cypress School Cycling Club

From: Sent: 28 October 2021 15:17
To:
Cc:

Subject: CROYDON HEALTHY NEIGHBOURHOODS

Dear Hamida and Muhammad

This is a joint approach from the following local and community organisations
concerned with healthy streets in Croydon — Shape Better Streets, Croydon Living
Streets, Croydon Cycling Campaign and Cypress School Cycling Club (a local
children’s cycling group). We are also in close alignment with Holmesdale
Community Action Group, who wrote to you earlier today.

We strongly support the council’s ambitions on climate and healthy

neighbourhoods. We urge you to retain the schemes currently in place, proceed with
the revised scheme in Crystal Palace/South Norwood, and embark on a strong
programme of engagement to ensure there is an informed debate with the
participation of all elements in the community, which we suggest could usefully
involve a properly constituted citizen’s assembly or similar process. We would work
with the council in bringing this about in any way we can.

At this time when the council is looking to make decisions on healthy
neighbourhoods, COP26 is in progress and Sadiq Khan has just been elected Chair
of the C40 Cities, we are deeply disturbed to have picked up word that the
abandonment of all the current schemes is seriously being considered in the council.
We have to speak plainly and say this would be completely catastrophic for the
council’s climate emergency, local environment and public health objectives, both
practically and reputationally, and for Croydon Labour’s credibility on environmental
and active travel issues. Such a decision at this time would be a massive
reputational own goal for any council which has declared a climate emergency. For
Croydon, a council which is “in special measures” and which desperately needs to

Page 393



rebuild the confidence of the London Mayor, national government, and local
stakeholders, it should be unthinkable.

Some version of healthy neighbourhoods is the best, indeed we would suggest, in the
short term, the only game in town for tackling several environmental and social
challenges at the same time. Such schemes cut carbon, cut air pollution, cut noise
pollution, tackle childhood obesity, reduce traffic danger, and as a result improve
wellbeing, with the greatest impact on those on the lowest incomes and on children
and young people. There is literally no argument of substance against them. In most
of the scheme neighbourhoods, car owners are a minority. Opposition to them is
pure noise: Open Our Roads’ arguments are completely unsupported by the
evidence and they offer no credible alternative ways of reducing traffic and its
appalling adverse impacts on our communities, even if they had any genuine interest
in doing so.

The argument being put forward for abandoning the current schemes is, we
understand, that they were not supported by a majority of respondents to the
consultation surveys carried out over the summer. Yet earlier this year, the council
rightly decided that such a numbers game should not determine its approach to the
Crystal Palace and South Norwood scheme because the response did not reflect the
demographics of the local area, the environmental and public health case for it was
unanswerable, and the evidence showed that the scheme had been successful, even
after just a few months. The demographic which tends to dominate responses to such
surveys is not representative of the community as a whole, and there are numerous
examples now of opposition campaigners gaming and cheating them.

Government and TfL have made it clear that they will not fund councils which
abandon active travel schemes without good reason. Croydon evidently cannot itself
fund action in this territory. So abandoning these schemes now means no prospect
of any funding, and hence action, on healthy streets for the foreseeable future. This
means more traffic, more pollution, more children growing up obese, more injury and
pain from traffic collisions. No responsible council leadership could take this path.

We set out our views in more detail below in the attached paper. We urge you to
meet with us before you make any decision, and indeed would be extremely
disappointed if you were not to do so.

All best wishes

On behalf of:

Shape Better Streets
Croydon Cycling Campaign
Croydon Living Streets
Cypress Cycling Club

Page 394



G6g abed




96¢ abed

= -

‘Dﬁm" Cvowadvcn CWJ:LQ,

= awm tho%ﬂmpﬁw&r;m
|Allaart fond. T thinle thou aeole a wuich ey
| Norwood T _Rnowr that seme poople dew't Siks
e escavse. A wonk Ao b alble B drive
joeryrohore A theiv cars bul it is amuch

| henlthior ond hattenr Jan #ie oroirenimsnt to-
{encla wwﬂR)O,MWW&Q&n‘VMaJ:m

| Bmadl wrendeys. of B2 sooidd Haak o wouldntt
oz, olble. A6 590 Ain o cok

T parsainally soele ek war. ok Losst snes. o
\weolR, and it ia auite nica Pwewing. thok T am net
lak visle o qrblting asrun MxMAiﬁmﬁﬁyw,yﬁ%dgc\
pduted cutcthot X yeu hosd A= qet savairhoe
g, DOoTR ooy and A usdoll,  drve, sidedonly
Ahore one. HeEQ. plontevs, in sthe woul, So s
might azs. wel® just wollk insdeod of going s around,

| Boranse of g, plonters hopeduly most widl
oozt A ok ond Mok Wit reduss Aho amewk
o anx graiosions, On o Rowgar seals , it datan'
sowm fiden panck., bk imooins ik o ono Leso
bricle in a. leas &9k, Without-ak cna bieR
s sek weuldn't ho cemplote, O%_ £euYSQ e are
lodrauys. ansadad spave kicka, buk you'fl sswer R
Ay /re Spoye Wil pow e comploted Ahe seX. Ano
[Ahon wmbiLQ ye cerald aod Ahow on and <reike.
_wm:w%_ onen %re.ofkﬁ)’.

- [vED

{ D o= C:’d%ﬁl/? éa u.«;c«{ y

|

| o rndbiiie | o cyolie 42 . S
NELTE thnk 2 s e Eotie foms b e
| either srelle on _z::,;,c/fé > *:&"7' R trttrnf Lo :‘?’«t
14-%"!35""'44/“5 Vi3 .&{ = s et o0y A _‘xﬁ" 4‘&:"

T.Z:“«rzm{#/s b p«»(s/ Mf@” éﬂ” :aé}:, OIS a;rmrf./

| E‘l §¥1 2






86¢ abed




66< abed

LK (9

|
s m AN

oN mq

the g

T find Safl  prer

bg olks oM oy

el CVO

LaO\ET] S

-«-ﬁVQ <.
—Plaptdica

- FU ana Mﬁ@
RJ@H&K G\Jﬂggg}i
Sh oatadd S+a0Y rpae

J‘ ré)ﬁfi




00t abed

‘The plankrs help me bhow T g0 5
iy R S

i fus Cross 5

MUur r e,
</

+he

road Aot



Appendix 10 - Equality Analysis

Croydon Council
Equality Analysis Form
Healthy Neighbourhoods
Version 1 (September 2021)

| Stage 1 |

At this stage, you will review existing information such as national or local research, surveys, feedback from
customers, monitoring information and also use the local knowledge that you, your team and staff
delivering a service have to identify if the proposed change could affect service users from equality groups
that share a “protected characteristic” differently. You will also need to assess if the proposed change will
have a broader impact in relation to promoting social inclusion, community cohesion and integration and
opportunities to deliver “social value”.

Please note that the term ‘change’ is used here as shorthand for what requires an equality analysis. In
practice, the term “change” needs to be understood broadly to embrace the following:

Policies, strategies and plans

Projects and programmes

Commissioning (including re-commissioning and de-commissioning)

Service Review

Budgets

Staff structures (including outsourcing)

Business transformation programmes

Organisational change programmes

Processes (for example thresholds, eligibility, entittlements, and access criteria

You will also have to consider whether the proposed change will promote equality of opportunity; eliminate
discrimination or foster good relations between different groups or lead to inequality and disadvantage.
These are the requirements that are set out in the Equality Act 2010.

1.1 Analysing the proposed change

1.1.1 | What is the name of the change?

Recommended Experimental Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods

1.1.2 | Why are you carrying out this change?
Please describe the broad aims and objectives of the change. For example, why are you
considering a change to a policy or cutting a service etc.

Healthy Neighbourhoods (also known as Low Traffic Neighbourhoods) have been formed as part
of Transport for London's Streetspace programme and the call for swift action from the Secretary
of State for Transport. The programme was set by TfL and central government for local authorities
to introduce schemes on a temporary basis, which would allow for social distancing and for people
to safely walk, cycle and exercise outdoors especially during the pandemic.

The change is a response to:
e past decisions and current trends of increased traffic on residential roads
e the Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy (in particular the Healthy Streets objective) and
his / TfL’s Streetspace Plan for London.
¢ the continuing Covid19 Pandemic and to Secretary of State for Transport statements and
guidance relating to it including to retain schemes whilst fully evaluating their effects.

Page 401



https://tfl.gov.uk/travel-information/improvements-and-projects/streetspace-for-london

Past decisions were taken without any formal consideration of the equality implications. These
include parliament in the 1930’s allowing streets to be given over to motor vehicles, the
consequences of which began to be considered formally in the 1960’s. In 1961 Ernest Marples
MP chaired a Steering Group for a Ministry of Transport study looking at the ‘Long Term Problem
of Traffic in Towns’. The study considered the ‘Deterioration of Environment’ identifying the issues
relating to ‘drivers are seeking alternative routes, mainly through residential areas, in order to
avoid congested areas on main roads’. The study highlighted some of the effects this was having
relating to ‘age’, namely children. It reported ‘Journey to school. In 1962, 4,287 child pedestrians
between the ages of 5 and 9 years were Killed or seriously injured’. It proposed traffic levels that
were compatible with play in the street and with a reasonable quality of environment. It suggested
the creation of Environmental Areas (areas free of extraneous traffic) in between the Distributor
Roads which would largely need to be rebuilt as major urban highways in order to accommodate
the predicted levels of traffic.

This approach was clearly not fully taken forward in the UK. The response to the high road
casualty rate in children age 5 to 9, has largely been to deny them access to the street and to
curtail their independent mobility (unlike in the Netherlands where in response to the ‘Stop Child
Murder’ public campaign in the 60s and early 70s, Woonerf or Living Streets in which the car is the
visitor, were created).

Since 2009, vehicle miles on London’s streets has grown significantly. The growth has been
entirely on the minor unclassified roads / streets, such that the minor street network is now
carrying almost as much traffic as the A Road network. The above growth was not subject to any
formal equality assessment. The following equality analysis relates to proposed projects to
address some of the effects arising from above.

1.1.3 | What stage is your change at now?
See Appendix 1 for the main stages at which equality analyses needs to be started or updated.

Croydon’s Temporary Low Traffic Neighbourhoods were implemented in stages in a reactive
manner as a response to the Covid19 Pandemic. Options for the future of the temporary schemes
are being considered, including removal or keeping the schemes largely as they are. It is
proposed to move to trial/Experimental Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods with camera enforced
restrictions, rather than physical closures, with exemptions for vehicles belonging to residents
living within the trial CHNs.

1.2 Who could be affected by the change and how

1.2.1 | Who are your internal and external stakeholders?
For example, groups of council staff, members, groups of service users, service providers, trade
unions, community groups and the wider community.

The main internal stakeholders are the Council administered, Mobility Forum, the Cycle Forum,
the Public Transport Liaison Panel, the Councilors for the locally affected wards, school, the SEN
Transport Service, Public Health, the Active Lifestyles Service and Council contractors including
Veolia.

External stakeholders include:
e Residents living within the proposed trial CHN areas (including existing low traffic streets
within the LTN areas, those living on the main streets that form the edges of the trial CHNs,
and those living beyond the LTNs.

Page 402




e Businesses including those within the proposed trial CHN areas and on the main streets
that form the edges of the trial CHNs

Church and other faith groups

Primary and Secondary School

Doctors Surgeries

Transport for London

The emergency services

Adjoining Borough Councils (where appropriate)

1.2.2 | What will be the main outcomes or benefits from making this change for customers /
residents, staff, the wider community and other stakeholders?

The proposed trials are a continued response to the Secretary of States call for continuing action
to help people to walk and to cycle and use public transport rather than to drive. They are also
intended to deliver the Mayor of London’s Healthy Streets and Vision Zero objectives within the
trial CHN areas. They are intended to provide quieter streets facilitating healthy and active travel,
play and social interaction / community building. By facilitating active travel the proposal is a part
of enabling people to exercise as part of their daily travel routine, to help them be a healthy
weight, to stay heathy longer, to improve air quality and to help address the climate change
emergency.

1.2.3 | Does your proposed change relate to a service area where there are known or
potential equalities issues?

Please answer either "Yes", "Don't know" or "No" and give a brief reason for your response If you
don't know, you may be able to find more information on the Croydon Observatory
(http://www.croydonobservatory.org/)

Yes. It relates to:

Public Health and known health inequalities in Croydon, inequalities strongly associated with
deprivation
https://www.croydonobservatory.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/JSNA-Geographical-Health-
Inequalities-2009-10.pdf and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy aiming to tackle the inequalities
https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/documents/s13992/Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Strateqy %
20-%20Final.pdf the objectives of which include:

e Ensure children and young people have the best physical and emotional environments for
growing up.

e Reduce health inequalities by developing strong, inclusive and well-connected
communities.

o Make improving mental health and wellbeing everyone’s business.

e Get more people more active, more often. Reducing social isolation and driving
improvement in health through social, cultural and physical activities.

e Support people to remain healthy and independent for longer by preventing the conditions
that cause ill health.

Air Quality Management and the known (largely age related) inequalities relating to poor air
quality. The Mayor of London’s Environment Strategy tells us that:

Page 403



http://www.croydonobservatory.org/
https://www.croydonobservatory.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/JSNA-Geographical-Health-Inequalities-2009-10.pdf
https://www.croydonobservatory.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/JSNA-Geographical-Health-Inequalities-2009-10.pdf
https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/documents/s13992/Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Strategy%20-%20Final.pdf
https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/documents/s13992/Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Strategy%20-%20Final.pdf

e ‘Human health is affected by poor air quality. This is particularly true for disadvantaged
people like children, older people, and those with pre-existing health conditions.’

e ‘.... younger children are among the most vulnerable to its health impacts. Eight and nine
year-olds living in cities with high levels of fumes from diesel cars have up to ten per cent
less lung capacity than normal.’

e ‘... air pollution has a big impact on health at all life stages, from development in the womb
to the end of life. A baby born in 2010 and exposed to that same level of air quality for its
entire life would lose around two years of life expectancy. ....... There is also strong
evidence that poor air quality affects children’s lung development, and emerging evidence
that improving air quality can reverse those effects. There is also increasing evidence of the
link between exposure to pollution and dementia.’

Hence the relevance of the Council’s Air Quality Management Plan
https://www.croydon.gov.uk/environment/pollution/air-pollution/final-air-quality-action-plan-2017
and in particular the action:

e ‘Provision of infrastructure to support walking and cycling °

Climate Change and Croydon being Carbon Neutral by 2030:
https://www.croydonclimate.org.uk/about-croydon-climate-crisis-commission .

Unlike older people, those who are children and young people today will increasingly experience
the effects of Climate Change.

Transport Planning

Cycling is potentially available to nearly all. TfL has assessed Croydon having the greatest Cycling
Potential (largest number of journeys that could be cycled) of all London boroughs. However,
Croydon has the lowest cycle mode share of all the London Boroughs at 1%. Consequently a lot
of Croydon people from all groups are being denied the health, access an economic benefits of
cycling.

Figure 4.2: potentially cyclable trips by borough of residence

450,000
00,000
35,000
20,000
oh.000
0

1L is nuwi wian wisis ars lewer women cyclists although in Croydon more women take up Cycle
Training. Children, young people, older people and members of certain BAME groups are under
represented amongst cyclists.

Disability Pave The Way, Transport for All, January 2021
Transport for All published research into the experiences of people with disabilities regarding
LTNs. It reports the barriers to Active Travel for disabled people are Medical, Physical
(infrastructure), Financial, Attitudinal, and Societal. Of the Physical / Infrastructure barriers, there
are:

- Pavements cluttered by obstacles.

- Pavements that are steep, uneven, or bumpy

- The lack of dropped kerbs

- A'lack of alcoves or benches mean that people are unable to stop and rest.

- Hazards - such as cycle lanes that are integrated with the pavement, or a

widening gap between road and pavement

- A confusing streetscape layout, with one-way systems, poor signage, shared

space and excess bollards,

- Road crossings must have appropriate tactile paving and dropped kerbs, be

clear of obstruction from signs or clutter, and be at regular junctions to avoid

Page 404



https://www.croydon.gov.uk/environment/pollution/air-pollution/final-air-quality-action-plan-2017
https://www.croydonclimate.org.uk/about-croydon-climate-crisis-commission

overcrowding

The findings include
e 15% of participants raised concerns about the impact of LTNs on their ability to use taxis.
e Effect of increased journey time on visitors providing support or care 27% of participants
reported concerns about an increased journey time for visitors.

The Transport for All report includes:

LTNs, in their current format, are too much ‘stick’ and not enough ‘carrot’: they bring negative
impacts for those who continue to use cars, and too few incentives or changes that increase
disabled people’s opportunities to access Active Travel. The lack of consultation and meaningful
engagement with disabled residents has created a toxic and divided atmosphere where disabled
people feel ignored and demonized. However, some disabled people do benefit greatly from these
schemes, and the aims of reducing pollution, reducing traffic, and reducing road danger are
important to disabled people. We don’t believe ripping them out and returning to normal is the way
forward. Indeed, the ‘normal’ we had before was not accessible enough either. Instead, what we
need is a series of short-term measures to address and mitigate the negative impacts arising from
LTNs. This needs to happen alongside some wide-reaching long-term solutions - to address the
many barriers that disabled people face to Active Travel and to encourage take up of walking,
wheeling and cycling, and to create an accessible public transport system as a viable alternative
to car-use. Local authorities and transport bodies alike must demonstrate that co-production with
disabled people is at the heart of all consultations and policy-making.

Meaningful engagement with disabled people in the community,

Equalities analysis should be undertaken by a professional with expertise in disabled access, and
coproduced with disabled residents where possible. The EQIA should be specific to the scheme,
and detailed and thorough enough to identify the problematic areas and put forward solutions to
mitigate impact

Accessible implementation:

* We recommend that a full audit is undertaken for each scheme to ensure compliance with
accessibility standards, including preventing planters from blocking dropped kerbs, ensuring
planters/bollards are placed far enough apart to allow wheelchairs through, sufficient tactile
signage, etc.

» Softer approach: In some areas, it may be appropriate to trial timed closures, or alternatively a
gradual phase in of restrictions (rather than all at once). This could only be done so long as these
changes are communicated extremely efficiently to ensure residents are confident about what
changes are happening and when.

 Dispensation for disabled people: We suggest that ANPR cameras are used to filter traffic,
allowing access for specific vehicles. It is important to note that not all disabled people who require
accommodations have a Blue Badge. Of our participants, only 51% hold a Blue Badge. For that
reason, we recommend Local Authorities implement a scheme that grants dispensation for
disabled people requiring accommodation to access their home by any vehicle they choose,
including taxis. This should be independently arbitrated by an organisation or individual with
expertise in access and trained in Disability Equality.

https://www.transportforall.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Pave-The-Way-full-report.pdf

1.2.4 | Does your proposed change relate to a service area where there are already local or
national equality indicators?

You can find out from the Equality Strategy http://intranet.croydon.net/corpdept/equalities-
cohesion/equalities/docs/equalitiesstrateqy12-16.pdf ). Please answer either "Yes", "Don't know" or
"No" and give a brief reason for your response

Page 405



https://www.transportforall.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Pave-The-Way-full-report.pdf
http://intranet.croydon.net/corpdept/equalities-cohesion/equalities/docs/equalitiesstrategy12-16.pdf
http://intranet.croydon.net/corpdept/equalities-cohesion/equalities/docs/equalitiesstrategy12-16.pdf

Croydon Council ‘Opportunity and Fairness Plan’ 2016-2020
https://www.croydon.gov.uk/sites/default/files/articles/downloads/Opportunity and Fairness Plan.
pdf In particular addresses the inequality around:

SOCIAL ISOLATION: A CONNECTED BOROUGH WHERE NO ONE IS ISOLATED
COMMUNITY COHESION: VIBRANT, RESPONSIBLE AND CONNECTED COMMUNITIES

HEALTH: HELP PEOPLE FROM ALL COMMUNITIES LIVE LONGER, HEALTHIER LIVES (in
particular ‘Create and develop healthy and sustainable places and communities’)

https://Ibccloudadcroydongov.sharepoint.com/sites/col-

15/ic/Documents/WEB 200009 Equalities Annual Report%202019.pdf

The above three areas of inequality are interrelated. Research
https://journals.plos.org/plosmedicine/article%3Fid=10.1371/journal.pmed.1000316#pmed-
1000316-g006 indicates how that lack of social relationships is one of the biggest health risk
factors

Social Relationships and Mortality Risk: A Meta-analytic Review

Figure 6

oy the speed and volume of traffic in the
»ack as 1969, demonstrated that people
)ne-third as many social connections as
i o~ ——---— _____Juent studies investigated street design,
traffic, and nelghbourhood quallty of life; work that culminated with the publication of Livable
Streets (Appleyard, 1981). Livable Streets revealed the social impacts of motor traffic in fine detail
through interviews and street observations, demonstrating that casual conversations, children’s
play, and other street-based social life tend to be suppressed, particularly as vehicle volumes and
speeds increase. The 1969 study included the iconic diagram which visually represented the
erosion of social interaction as traffic volumes increase.

Page 406



https://www.croydon.gov.uk/sites/default/files/articles/downloads/Opportunity_and_Fairness_Plan.pdf
https://www.croydon.gov.uk/sites/default/files/articles/downloads/Opportunity_and_Fairness_Plan.pdf
https://lbccloudadcroydongov.sharepoint.com/sites/col-15/ic/Documents/WEB_200009_Equalities_Annual_Report%202019.pdf
https://lbccloudadcroydongov.sharepoint.com/sites/col-15/ic/Documents/WEB_200009_Equalities_Annual_Report%202019.pdf
https://journals.plos.org/plosmedicine/article%3Fid=10.1371/journal.pmed.1000316#pmed-1000316-g006
https://journals.plos.org/plosmedicine/article%3Fid=10.1371/journal.pmed.1000316#pmed-1000316-g006

LIGHT TRAFFIC
2goo

wahiclas par dam
G0 Tondies ber peak o

MODERATE TRAFFIC
BOOD wehicles pos o

logy in Bristol producing the report
of Life of Residents of Three Streets
owns is of increasing concern to the
2 is the high volume of motor vehicle

Frrey z . “-1sal health detriments. The results
CUHIITITIEU UldL AppIEYydIU S Huinys die appnsavie w uie un in the 21st century; specifically that
the number of friends and acquaintances reported by residents was significantly lower on streets
with higher volumes of motor traffic. The extent of people’s ‘home territories’ also diminished as
motor traffic increased. Other notable outcomes from the research include the finding that
individuals’ perceptions of road safety in their neighbourhood may be disproportionately influenced
by the traffic conditions on their street of residence, especially affecting the degree of
independence granted to children.

0.9 friends per person

Figure 3. Compenite Home Territory Dingrams for Interviewess from esch Street

Walking: Segmentation Study’ (2014)
king-2014-summary.pdf  reports on the key ‘drivers’ of
wanuny.  eue e o, uye wmedstage, car ownership, income and whether live in central,

inner or outer London, concluding:.

| Females travel more stages per day and walk more stages per day compared to
males, although females travel and walk a shorter distance per

stage compared to males

| People aged 20-44 walk more stages per day than older people

| Combining age and gender makes the differences greater (see Figure 2):

m Females aged 20-44 walk the most stages per day. There is a particular
difference in walking activity between females and males aged 35-44

| Lifestage appears to be a key differentiating factor:

Page 407



http://content.tfl.gov.uk/attitudes-to-walking-2014-summary.pdf

m Single adults, with or without children, walk more stages per day than
adults in couples

| Further differences are seen by gender

m Males in a couple with children walk the fewest stages per day, particularly
compared to single adult males

m Females with children, either in a couple or single, walk more than those
without children

TfL undertook an annual Attitudes Towards Cycling survey http://content.tfl.gov.uk/attitudes-to-
cycling-2016.pdf which contains a good many indicators relating to gender, age ethnicity

Profile of cyclists (Sept 20146)

B Mon cyclists I I I I I I
om

Occasicnal cyclists
W Regular cycists

Total (2315) Men [1044) en Workmg Disabled  Mon- White  BAME (53]
n2ry [1402) Norklng [455]  disabled 1722)
[713) (1770)

[ % nifichrity higher / lower vs. subgroup

Profile of cyclists (Sept 2018)

T - [+ ] I . o B
Toal (ENIE I—:llll-' Sl R0 akbd el BE-gs ) abs N S T (< Paly CF (% DI 24
G
Wi cpoich
e s
LRES B g el
WO b o g i e ol o e
{ ] e it F L ¥ 31 e o {3} K -
T 3

Page 408



http://content.tfl.gov.uk/attitudes-to-cycling-2016.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/attitudes-to-cycling-2016.pdf

Percentage able to ride a bike (Sept 2016)

msep-16

“ns from The Netherlands, Denmark and

g e (2008) looked at gender and age differences

n Cycung across countries. un e airrerence rates of cycling amongst men and women, the study

reported that not only do the Netherlands, Denmark and Germany have high and growing levels of

cycling, but their cyclists comprise virtually all segments of society. Women are just about as likely

to cycle as men, making 45% of all bike trips in Denmark, 49% in Germany and 55% in the
Netherlands.

Pt b g by e

countries, men dominate cycling in the UK and the
ike trips, respectively.

Figure &  Women's share of total bike trips in Autrala, the USA, the UK, C

another dimension of cycling’s universality in the
Netherlands, Denmark and Germany is the representation of all age groups. Children and
adolescents have the highest rates of cycling in almost every country. As shown in Figure 9,
however, cycling levels in the Netherlands, Denmark and Germany remain high even among the
elderly. In Germany, the bike share of trips rises steadily from 7% among 18- to 24-year olds to
12% for those 65 and older. The bike share of trips declines with age in Denmark, but even among
those aged 70-74 years old, cycling accounts for 12% of all trips, the same as among Germans
who are 65 and older. The Dutch elderly double that percentage, making 24% of all their trips by
bike. Cycling rates are low for all age groups in the USA, but they also decline with age: from 3.2%
among children 5-15 years old to only 0.4% of trips for those 40 and older. Similarly, the bike
share of trips falls from 2% among British children to 1% among older age groups. The bike share
nf trine far tha Nutch aldarhsie 94 timae hinhar thqn for British elderly. The bike share of trips for

= jher than for British elderly.

H
i

?thh

Figure 9.  Bucycling share of trips by sge group in the USA, the UK, Gormary, Dinamark snd the
Larcbe [ iy

Page 409



Age Differences in Independent Mobility

The Policy Studies Institutes study ‘Children’s Independent Mobility: A Comparative Study in
England and Germany 1970 — 2010°
http://www.psi.org.uk/images/uploads/CIM_Final report v9 3 FINAL.PDF

reported on the dramatic decline in children’s independent mobility in England relative to Germany
and the psychological and other consequences this was having for English children. The study
also looked at race and gender difference in children’s independent mobility.

The Policy Studies Institute (and others) has continued to research this topic including a study
https://www.nuffieldfoundation.org/project/independent-mobility-and-child-development-2 which
looked at the degree to which children of different ages have the freedom to travel to school,
friends, shops and other destinations unaccompanied by adults across ten countries in order to
identify factors affecting the independent mobility of children and the implications for child
development.

Summary of results

e Overall, Finland is the top-performing country across almost every independent mobility
indicator in this study, coming second only to Germany for children’s self-reported freedom
to travel on local buses alone.

e In 2013, Unicef published a comparative overview of child well-being across twenty-nine
OECD and EU countries (Unicef, 2013) using national data from 2009 and 2010, coinciding
with the start of data collection for this study of children’s independent mobility. The Policy
Sudies Institute report found that there is a positive correlation between Unicef well-being
scores and the rank scores measuring children’s degree of freedom to travel and play
without adult supervision in these countries. There is also a positive correlation between the
education attainment of children, based on national Programme for International Student
Assessment (PISA) rankings in 2009 and children’s degree of freedom to travel and play
without adult supervision in these countries.

» Of the three factors examined, traffic seems to be the strongest factor affecting the granting
of independent mobility, with ‘strangers’ showing a weak effect and community supervision
not being a factor. However, the correlation between traffic deaths and the ranking of
countries for independent mobility is weak. On the other hand, almost all of the countries
with the highest levels of children’s independent mobility have national policies to promote
walking or cycling, and the local authorities in these countries are permitted to set lower
speed limits than those defined at the national level.

Arising from the research findings and discussion, the report makes four observations and seven
recommendations.
Observations
1. Unsafe environments for children are widely tolerated
2. Withholding independent mobility may only defer risk to older children
3. Action is needed to address parental concerns, road user behaviour, the physical
environment, social and cultural factors
4. Change in transport policy and behaviour may be resisted but it actually happens all the
time
Recommendations
1. Implement and enforce stringent road safety measures
2. Reduce car dependency and the dominance of traffic in the public realm
3. Put the needs of children at the heart of urban development ‘ cities that work for children,
work for everyone
4. Explicitly incorporate children’s independent mobility into policy
5. Adopt Daylight Saving Time to allow children to better utilise daylight hours and reduce
road casualties
Invest in research to consolidate and develop knowledge on children’s independent mobility
Create a national challenge fund to catalyse and drive action to improving children’s

N

Page 410



http://www.psi.org.uk/images/uploads/CIM_Final_report_v9_3_FINAL.PDF
https://www.nuffieldfoundation.org/project/independent-mobility-and-child-development-2

independent mobility

Cycling by People with a Disability

The Wheels for Wellbeing annual survey ‘Assessing the needs and Experiences of Disabled
Cyclists’ (2018)  https://wheelsforwellbeing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Survey-report-
FINAL.pdf was based on responses from over 200 disabled cyclists across the UK. It reports that
72% of disabled cyclists use their bike as a mobility aid, and 75% found cycling easier than
walking. Survey results also show that 24% of disabled cyclists bike for work or to commute to
work and many found that cycling improves their mental and physical health. Inaccessible cycle
infrastructure was found to be the biggest barrier to cycling.

Age and Gender Difference in Travelling
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/
823068/national-travel-survey-2018.pdf

In England as a whole, the percentage of women having a driving licence has increased
considerably since the mid 1970’s but is still below the percentage of men. The trend is different
amongst the youngest drivers.

Chart 5: % of people owning a full driving licence: England 1975/76-
2018 [NTS0201]

1eys than older men. Women make more journeys escorting

Chart 22: Average trips per person per year, by purpose, age and
gender: England 2002/2018 average [based on NTS0611]
Trips per parson per year

1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000 Men
BOO
GO0
Holiday, day
400 trip, other
Visiting friends
200 ntertainment, sport
a
1 6 11 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76 81 86 9 .
Shopping
1,600 Escort education
1400 Business
1.200 Commuting
1,000
500 Women
600
400
200

o

1 6 11 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76 81 86 ™

Age

Page 411



https://wheelsforwellbeing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Survey-report-FINAL.pdf
https://wheelsforwellbeing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Survey-report-FINAL.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/823068/national-travel-survey-2018.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/823068/national-travel-survey-2018.pdf

‘Young People’s Travel

— What's Changed and Why? Review and Analysis’
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/young-peoples-travel-whats-changed-and-why

(2018)

Young adults (age 17 to 29) in Great Britain and other countries are driving less now than young
adults did in the early 1990s.

Travel in London: Understanding our diverse communities 2019
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/travel-in-london-understanding-our-diverse-communities-2019.pdf

This TfL document contains information on a series of equality indicators. Some example extracts

are shown below

Frequency of walking (2016/17) [11]

% All White | BAME | Black | Asian | Mixed | Other
Base (17,560) | (11,173) | (6,099) | (1,984) | (3,049) | (470) (596)
5 or more days a
week 84 82 86 86 86 87 82
3 or 4 days a week 5 6 5 4 5 4 6
2 days a week 4 4 3 4 3 2 2
1 day a week 2 3 2 2 2 2 3
At least once a
fortnight 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
At least once a month 9 1 0 ] 0 0 0
At least once a year 0 0 0 0 0 9 0
Not used in last year q 1 1 1 1 0 0
Never used 3 3 2 2 2 5 5
LTDS data in this report excludes children aged under five.
Proportion of Londoners (aged 17+) with a full car driving licence
(2016/17) [11]
% All White BAME Black Asian Mixed Other
Base (14,899) | (9,831) | (4,831) | (1,554) | (2,501) | (308) | (468)
Holds a full car
driving licence 65 " = 48 o 57 ez
Figures include all Londoners aged 17 and over.
Household access to a car (2016/17) [11]
% All White BAME Black Asian Mixed Other
Base (17,560) | (11,173) | (6,099) (1,984) (3,049) (470) (596)
0 cars 35 35 36 45 27 41 44
1 car 44 44 44 42 47 41 40
2+ cars 21 21 20 13 26 18 16
LTDS data in this report excludes children aged under five.
Proportion of Londoners who cycle (November 2017) [16]
Y All White BAME
Base (2,367) (1,597) (770)
Cyclist (used a bike to get around 17 18 17
London in the last 12 months)
Non-cyclist (not used a bike to get 83 82 83
around London in the last 12 months)

Page 412



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/young-peoples-travel-whats-changed-and-why
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/travel-in-london-understanding-our-diverse-communities-2019.pdf

Dial-a-Ride membership by ethnicity (2016) [2, 30]

% All disabled | Dial-a-Ride | 65-79 years- | 80-89 years- | 90+ years
Londoners members old old old

Base - (39,166) (9,404) (14,177) (8,573)

(excludes

unknown data)

White 66 68 56 72 88

BAME 34 32 44 28 12

Proportion of Londoners using types of transport at least once a week

(2016/17) [11]

% Disabled | Disabled | Disabled Non- Non-
16-64 65+ disabled | disabled
(Al) 65+
Base (1,729) (789) (863) (15,831) | (1,828)
Walking 81 88 70 96 a5
Bus 58 64 48 60 72
Car (as a passenger) 42 40 41 45 41
Car (as a driver) 24 26 25 39 52
Tube 21 30 13 43 a5
National Rail 9 12 5 17 15
Overground 7 10 3 12 8
PHV (minicab) 10 12 8 10 4
Taxi (black cab) 3 3 3 2 2
DLR 3 5 2 5 1
Tram 2 3 1 2 2
Motorbike 1 - 1 1
MNet: Any public transport (bus,
Tube, National Rail, DLR, 61 69 h2 74 78
London Overground, tram)

LTDS data in this report excludes children aged under five.

Regarding road danger and road casualties, it reports that BAME Londoners are more at risk of
being killed or seriously injured on London’s roads, with children in this group being on average

1.5 times more likely to be affected than non-BAME children.

BAME Londoners are less likely

than white Londoners to say that they feel safe from accidents when walking around London
during the day (22 per cent BAME feel ‘very safe’ compared with 30 per cent white).

1.2.6

Analyse and identify the likely advantage or disadvantage associated with the

change that will be delivered for stakeholders (customers, residents, staff etc.) from
different groups that share a “protected characteristic”

Please see Appendix 2 (section 1) for a full description of groups.

Likely Advantage

Likely Disadvantage ®

Disability

By generally moving away from the
planter based roads closures
implementing the Temporary LTNs
to camera enforced ‘No Motor
Vehicles’ restrictions and signs,
residents with the proposed CHNs
with disabilities who cannot walk or
cycle, would not be disadvantaged
by the Experimental CHNs. Under
the proposed trials, residents living
within the notional CHN areas,
having a car registered to their

The proposal is intended to help
people choose to travel actively to
help stay healthy longer. For those
that already are in very bad health
and needing care, the proposed
trial restrictions on motor vehicles
includes an exemption for district
nurses. However, possible not all
carers will be provided with an
exemption and for some accessing
particular premises by car will
require a longer route.

Page 413




home address and needing to use
a car, will be able to use their car
with the same ease they enjoyed
before the Temporary LTNs were
introduced. Blue Badge holders
will be able to nominate two
vehicles for exemption permits

Users of Dial-a-Ride and SEN
Transport buses, and people with a
disability using Community
Transport, should have a quicker
and more reliable journey via
LTNs.

Taxicard users will have an
improved journey via LTNs ifin a
Taxi during the Experimental
CHNs compared within the
Temporary LTNs However, if in a
Private Hire Vehicle, they will not
be able to pass through the control
points necessitating a different
route.

People with a disability living
beyond the trial CHN areas, reliant
on cars for travel, needing to
access premises within the trial
CHN areas, may have to take a
longer route compared to those
walking, cycling or using the bus.

People with a disability living
beyond the trial CHN areas, reliant
on cars for travel who previously
used LTN areas to avoid
congestion on the A and B Roads,
would not be able to. However in
this respect, they would not be
disadvantaged relative to non-
disabled people living beyond the
LTNs.

Users of Dial-a-Ride and SEN
Transport buses, and people with a
disability using Community
Transport, may have an increased
journey time, if the journey
previously involved going via
streets that will be subject to the
‘No Motor Vehicle’ restrictions.

SEN Transport drivers using cars,
and Private Hire cars hired for SEN
Transport will not be able to pass
through the No Motor Vehicle’
restrictions

Those using taxis and minicabs
may incur extra journey distance,
time and cost if taxis and minicabs
are unable to pass through all the
camera enforced restrictions.

Race/ Ethnicity

LTNs/CHNSs are intended to create
quieter, safer street space. Hence
they have the potential to lessen
the disadvantage experienced by
members of BAME groups
(particularly children) when it
comes to road casualty rates

(see also Community Cohesion)

None specific

Gender

TfL’s Attitudes to Walking study
indicates that women travel more
stages per day and walk more

None specific

Page 414




stages per day compared to men,
although women travel and walk a
shorter distance per stage
compared to men. Men and
women should both be helped by
the improved walking environment,
but helped differently. Women
helped to make the more frequent
but shorter trip stages they walk.

Both the TfL Attitudes to Cycling
research and Sustrans’ ‘What
Stops Women Getting on Their
Bikes’ study, report that fear of
road danger is the biggest thing
deterring women cycling.
Providing quieter and safer street
space is intended to address this.

Transgender

None specific

None specific

Age

The proposed trial is intended to
create a network of quieter and
safer streets to foster walking and
cycling. Children and young
people are amongst those likely to
be benefiting the most. Many will
be living in the households in the
area which do not have access to
a car or a van. Nationally, young
adults are significantly less likely to
hold a driving licence and driving
less than they did in the past.
Aiding walking and cycling
including to public transport will
benefit this group.

Children are the group whose
independent mobility has been
curtailed the most as streets have
been taken over by more and more
cars. Providing quieter and safer
streets provides space in which
children can more easily regain
their independent mobility, play
and socialise. The same quieter
streetspace can help them get a
little closer to the levels of cycling
seen amongst their north
European counterparts.

Quieter streets may well be a
factor in enabling older people to
keep cycling or to choose cycling

None specific. Disadvantage may
be Disability related. See ‘Disability
above’

Page 415




and could help the percentage of
cycle trips made by older people
get a little closer to some of those
in northern Europe, something
made feasible in hilly areas by
modern E-bikes (although at a
financial cost as with the private
motor car).

The degree to which children’s
access to active travel and to play
in the street puts them at risk of
being overweight and associated
medical conditions, both in
childhood and later in life.
Behaviours (including travel
behaviour) learnt in childhood are
often taken into later into life.
Facilitating active travel in early life
is part of ensuring good health as
an adult and older adult.

The Mayor’s Healthy Streets
objective is a key part of his
approach to tackling climate
change. Those that are young
today, are the ones that will be
experiencing the worst effects of
climate change when older adults.

As people get older, particularly
beyond the age of 70 when the
driving licence has to be renewed
every five years, fewer may have
driving licenses / be driving.

Religion /Belief

None specific

None specific

Sexual Orientation

None specific

None specific

Pregnancy and
Maternity

Information has not been found
specifically relating to Pregnancy
and Maternity. However TfL’s
Attitudes Towards Walking
research indicates that women with
children, either in a couple or
single, walk more than those
without children, and it is likely that
amongst these women, some will
be pregnant and / or in maternity

Some women in the latter stages of
pregnancy, may feel walking is
difficult, but If they have a car
available may still be able to drive.
Those living outside of the trial
CHN areas but needing to reach
premises within the LTN may have
an extended driving route / journey
time but will still have access.

Social inclusion issues

The work of Appleyard in the
1960s and replicated in Bristol a
decade ago shows how the
number of friends and
acquaintances a resident of a

Many living outside of the trial
CHNs may wish to drive to visit a
friend or relative living within the
CHN. If they chose to do so, they
will still be able to do so, but the

Page 416




street has declines, as the volume | journey time / distance might be
of traffic increases. Creating a increased.

quieter and calmer street
environment is a means of
increasing social inclusion and
reducing isolation.

See above. The street has See above
historically been where much of
the life of the town/city takes place.
It was community space which also
happened to have a movement
function. Lowering traffic levels
has the potential for the role of the
street as community space to
return to a degree depending on
the residual traffic level. This in
turn fosters community cohesion
and enables the fostering of good
relations between members of
groups with protected
characteristics and others
(something difficult to achieve if
everyone travels to and from their
own home, in their own car).

Community Cohesion
Issues

The trial project is intended to None
support delivery of the Mayors

Health Streets objective, in turn
delivering value and savings in
relation to mental and physical

health

Delivering Social
Value

1.2.7 | In addition to the above are there any other factors that might shape the equality
and inclusion outcomes that you need to consider?

For example, geographical / area based issues, strengths or weaknesses in partnership working,
programme planning or policy implementation

Where LTNs/CHNSs are in hilly areas there is likely to be need for additional action to help people
consider the use of E-Bikes. Also the need for seating/rest spaces.

1.2.8 | Would your proposed change affect any protected groups more significantly than
non-protected groups?

Please answer either "Yes", "Don't know" or "No" and give a brief reason for your response. For a
list of protected groups, see Appendix.....

Yes. The projects are intended have a significant positive effect on children and young people,
especially those from BAME groups.

1.2.9 | As set out in the Equality Act, is your proposed change likely to help or hinder the
Council in advancing equality of opportunity between people who belong to any
protected groups and those who do not?

Page 417




In practice, this means recognising that targeted work should be undertaken to address the needs
of those groups that may have faced historic disadvantage. This could include

a focus on addressing disproportionate experience of poor health, inadequate housing,
vulnerability to crime or poor educational outcomes efc.

Please answer either "Yes", "Don't know" or "No" and give a brief reason for your
response.

Yes. The projects are intended to increase the opportunity for children to travel independently and
to socialise and play.

1.2.10

As set out in the Equality Act, is the proposed change likely to help or hinder the
Council in eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation in
relation to any of the groups that share a protected characteristic?

In practice, this means that the Council should give advance consideration to issues of potential
discrimination before making any policy or funding decisions. This will require actively examining
current and proposed policies and practices and taking mitigating actions to ensure that they are
not discriminatory or otherwise unlawful under the Act

Please answer either "Yes", "Don't know" or "No" and give a brief reason for your
response.

Do Not Know. No means have been identified by which the trial scheme might help or hinder the
Council in eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation in relation to any of
the groups that share a protected characteristic.

1.2.11

As set out in the Equality Act, is your proposed change likely to help or hinder the
Council in fostering good relations between people who belong to any protected
groups and those who do not?

In practice, this means taking action to increase integration, reduce levels of admitted
discrimination such as bullying and harassment, hate crime, increase diversity in civic and political
participation etc.

Please answer either "Yes", "Don't know" or "No" and give a brief reason for your
response

Yes. The proposed change has the potential to very strongly help foster good relations between
people who belong to most of the protected groups and those who do not, by better enabling
friendships and acquaintances to develop in streets with less traffic, and enabling the street to
regain some of its historic community space function.

1.3 Decision on the equality analysis

If you answer "yes" or "don't know" to ANY of the questions in section 1.2, you should undertake a
full equality analysis. This is because either you already know that your change or review could
have a different / significant impact on groups that share a protected characteristic (compared to
non-protected groups) or because you don't know whether it will (and it might).

Page 418




Decision

Guidance

Response

No, further
equality
analysis is
not required

Please state why not and outline the information that you
used to make this decision. Statements such as ‘no
relevance to equality’ (without any supporting information)
or ‘no information is available’ could leave the council
vulnerable to legal challenge.

You must include this statement in any report used in
decision making, such as a Cabinet report

Ongoing identification
and monitoring of
equality impacts during
experimental schemes.

Yes, further
equality
analysis is
required

Please state why and outline the information that you used
to make this decision. Also indicate

¢ When you expect to start your full equality analysis
The deadline by which it needs to be completed (for
example, the date of submission to Cabinet)

o Where and when you expect to publish this analysis
(for example, on the council website).

You must include this statement in any report used in
decision making, such as a Cabinet report.

The Analysis should be
further informed by
research conducted
during the recommended
trials, research focused
on the experiences of
those of groups with
protected characteristics
predicted to be affected
by the trial.

The recent active
listening processes failed
to achieve representative
samples of the local
communities. The
experiments should be
undertaken along with
consultation to include
professional polling and
other techniques to
achieve representative
samples of the local
populations (including
the views of children nd
young people)

There should be a
dialogue with Dial-A-
Ride, Community
Transport and SEN
Transport operators and
with users to help refine
the operation of the trial
and this Analysis.

The Croydon Mobility
Forum has been unable
to meet during the
Pandemic. The Forum
should be engaged with
during the operation of
the trial, its views
informing the Analysis,

Page 419




Decision

Guidance

Response

the operation of the trial
and the design and
operation of any scheme
that might follow the trial

The Equality Analysis
should be concluded
before any decision is
made on the outcome of
and the future for the
trials and should be
published as part of the
documents used in
making the
recommendation.

Officers that | Name and position

must approve
this decision

Date

Report author | lan Plowright, Head of Transport

Director Steve lles, Director of Public Realm

1.4 Feedback on Equality Analysis (Stage 1)

Please seek feedback from the corporate equality and inclusion team and your
departmental lead for equality (the Strategy and Planning Manager / Officer)

Name of Officer

Yvonne Okiyo

Date received by Officer

Should a full equality
analysis be carried out?

Page 420




2 Use of evidence and consultation to identify and analyse the impact
of the change

Use of data, research and consultation to identify and analyse the probable
Impact of the proposed change

This stage focuses on the use of existing data, research, consultation, satisfaction surveys and monitoring
data to predict the likely impact of proposed change on customers from diverse communities or groups that
may share a protected characteristic.

Please see Appendix 2 (section 2) for further information.

21 Please list the documents that you have considered as a part of the equality
analysis review to enable a reasonable assessment of the impact to be made and
summarise the key findings.

This section should include consultation data and desk top research (both local and national
quantitative and qualitative data) and a summary of the key findings.

Documents are referenced in section 1 above. The results of the consultation, feedback prior to
the consultation and feedback at the Traffic Management Advisory Committee will also be used

In summary key findings so far include:

e Children and young people are the ones who's independent mobility has been curtailed the
most by changes in the way streets are managed and used, and consequently are amongst
those potentially benefitting the most from Low Traffic Neighbourhoods

e BAME children suffer higher rates of killed or seriously injured road casualties compared
with non BAME children and hence potentially will benefit more / most from Experimental
CHNs.

e Significant numbers of the population of proposed Experimental LTNs areas are under the
age of 18 and consequently do not drive

e Young adults are less likely than older adults to have a driving licence or own a car

e The process of active listening on the future for the LTNSs, failed to reach children and many
young people.

e High traffic streets / low people streets impact on Community cohesion and on mental
health

e In northern Europe more people cycle when they children and when they are late in life.

e The temporary LTNSs are likely to have led to increased journey distance and times for
disabled people using Minicabs, taxis, Dial-a-Ride, Community Transport and SEN
Transport. Itis also likely to be causing increased journey time and distance for those care
givers traveling to attend to the needs of sick and disabled residents within the Temporary
LTNs. Those who have a blue badge permit are also likely to have experienced increased
journey times when trying to travel into or out of the Temporary LTNs by car.

Page 421




2.2

Please complete the table below to describe what the analysis, consultation, data
collection and research that you have conducted indicates about the probable
impact on customers or staff from various groups that share a protected
characteristic.

Group’s with a
“Protected
characteristic”
and broader
community
issues

Description of potential
advantageous impact

Description of potential
disadvantageous impact

Evidence Source

Age

Children and young people are the
ones who'’s independent mobility
has been curtailed the most by
changes in the way streets are
managed and used, and
consequently are amongst those
potentially benefitting the most from
Low Traffic Neighbourhoods in
terms of independent mobility and
also enjoying the mental and
physical health benefits of active
travel, now and in later life when
they take learned travel habits into
the future.

A significant proportion within the
area of the proposed Experimental
CHNs are under the age of 18 and
consequently do not drive. Young
adults are less likely than older
adults to have a driving licence or
own a car. Hence these groups
are expected to benefit from
measures to assist travel by means
other than the car.

Walking is the most frequently used
mode of transport including
amongst those over 80. Frequency
of travel as a car passenger and as
a car driver is considerably lower
than the frequency of walking trips.
Frequency of travel as a car
passenger remains fairly constant
across the age ranges. Frequency
of travel as a car driver peaks at
the age 65-69 but declines rapidly
by the age 80+ reflecting the rapid
decline in driving licence holding
over the age of 80+. The age
range 65-69 is also when
frequency of walking trips peaks.

The active listening
exercise on the future for
the Temporary LTNs failed
to reach children and many
young people.

See left

See the various
sources in section
1.

Consultations

Travel in London:
Understanding our
diverse
communities 2019,
TfL

Disability

The most frequently used form
of transport used by disabled

The current Temporary
LTNs can result in longer

Travel in London:
Understanding our

Page 422




Group’s with a
“Protected
characteristic”
and broader

Description of potential
advantageous impact

Description of potential
disadvantageous impact

Evidence Source

community
issues
people is walking. The journeys for disabled diverse
frequency of cycling amongst people using taxis, communities 2019,
disabled and non-disabled minicabs, dial-a-ride, TfL
people are similar. Initiatives SEN Transport Service
such as the proposed vehicles and community TfL Attitudes
Experiment LTN intended to transport minibuses Towards Cycling
help people choose to walk and
cycle are likely to benefit both Concern has been Consultation
disabled and non-disabled expressed at the response and other
people increased journey time feedback
and distance incurred by
Helping people to choose to some care givers
travel actively is intended to attending residents with
help them stay healthy and to the Temporary LTNs
stay healthy for longer helping
to prevent the development of The current Temporary
disabilities including those that LTNs has made it more
potentially arise from diabetes. difficult for some people
reliant on the car to
access health facilities
Active travel helps to improve
mental wellbeing as does Drivers with Blue Badge
reducing traffic in streets, in turn permits living beyond the
allowing greater community boundary of the
cohesion. Both can help tackle Temporary LTNs and
mental health problems. needing to access
people and places within
Increased space for cycling f[he LTNs may havg
. increased journey time
infrastructure helps to support the :
and distance.
use of adapted and non-standard
bikes and trikes.
72% of disabled cyclists use their ‘Assessing the
bike as a mobility aid, and 75% needs and
found cycling easier than walking. Experiences of
Measures to assist cycling, if Disabled Cyclists’
implemented well will increase the Wheels for
independent mobility of disabled Wellbeing
people who cycle.
Gender Women travel more stages per day Walking is the most Travel in London:

and walk more stages per day
compared to

men, although women travel and
walk a shorter distance per

stage compared to men. Men in a
couple with children walk the
fewest stages per day, particularly
compared to single adult men.
Women with children, either in a
couple or single, walk more than
those

frequently used mode of
travel for both women
and men. Men drive
more frequently.
Women more frequently
travel as car passengers
than men. The use of
cars by both men and
women is likely to be
affected by the proposed
Experimental CHNSs.

Understanding our
diverse
communities 2019,
TfL

TfL’s ‘Attitudes
Towards Walking:
Segmentation
Study’

Page 423




Group’s with a
“Protected
characteristic”
and broader

Description of potential
advantageous impact

Description of potential
disadvantageous impact

Evidence Source

community
issues
without children However, the majority of
Women and men are expected to journeys made by car in
benefit from an improved walking London are short
environment but perhaps journeys. The proposed
somewhat differently. Experimental CHNs are
intended to help men
and women to choose to
travel actively rather
than use the car for short
trips, with the intention of
benefiting the heath of
both
More men currently cycle than do Fewer women cycle than TfL’s ‘Attitudes
women. Consequently more men do men. However, the Towards Cycling’
are likely to benefit from the most common reason reports
proposed Experimental CHNs given by women for not
cycling is fear of road
danger. Creating quieter
streets is intended to
help women choose to
cycle
Women are expected to be Women are more likely
amongst those benefiting from the to escort school children
improved walking and cycling as to their educational
they make more trips for escort establishments.
education Therefore it is women
who are more likely to
have to reconsider their
travel behaviours.
Race/ The frequency of walking trips is BAME Londoners are Travel in London:
Ethnicity consistently high across all ethnic less likely than white Understanding our

groups. However, walking at least
once a week to

e getto work /school /

college

o visit friends and relatives

e take a child to school
is considerably higher amongst
members of BAME groups than
amongst White Londoners

Londoners to say that
they feel

safe from accidents
when walking around
London during the day.
People from BAME
groups may not feel as
inclined to walk or cycle
within the proposed
Experimental CHNSs.
The effect on
perceptions of Road
Safety /Road danger
amongst members of
BAME groups should
form part of the
monitoring of the
Experimental CHNs

diverse
communities 2019,
TfL

Page 424




Group’s with a | Description of potential Description of potential Evidence Source
“Protected advantageous impact disadvantageous impact
characteristic”
and broader
community
issues
Pregnancy Pregnant women are not
and expected to benefit directly from
maternity the proposed Experimental
CHN other than having a quieter
street environment in which they
can choose to take exercise
close to home.
23 Are there any gaps in information or evidence missing in the consultation, data

collection or research that you currently have on the impact of the proposed change
on different groups or communities that share a protected characteristic? If so, how
will you address this?

Please read the corporate public consultation guidelines before you begin:
http://intranet.croydon.net/finance/customerservices/customerserviceprogramme/stepbystepguide.

asp.

Ongoing work to identify views of the wider community. The recent active listening process did
not illicit view from a representative sample of the populations local to the Temporary LTNs /
proposed Experimental CHNs. Consultation (including professional polling) to be undertaken as
part of the recommended trials/experiments, should be designed to achieve representative
samples of views representing those of the local community.

24

If you really cannot gather any useful information in time, then note its absence as a
potential disadvantageous impact and describe the action you will take to gather it.

Please complete the table below to set out how will you gather the missing evidence and make an
informed decision. Insert new rows as required.

Group’s with a “Protected
characteristic” and broader
community issues

Missing information and description of
potential disadvantageous impact

Proposed action to
gather information

A criticism levelled at the
Temporary LTN is that it has
caused a worsening of air
quality experienced
disproportionately by members
of the BAME groups

There is no hard/clear evidence with which to
support or counteract this criticism

The monitoring of the
Experimental CHNs
should be designed to
seek to try and answer
this question or at least
provide a deeper and
clearer insight

Transport for All has levelled a
general criticism at the LTNs
implemented across London
re engagement with disabled

Transport for All is suggesting that not enough
is known about the effects ad potential effects
on people with disabilities

Transport for All and
members of the Croydon
Mobility Forum to be
engaged with in the

Page 425



http://intranet.croydon.net/finance/customerservices/customerserviceprogramme/stepbystepguide.asp
http://intranet.croydon.net/finance/customerservices/customerserviceprogramme/stepbystepguide.asp

people

development of the
engagement and
monitoring strategies for
the Experimental CHNs.

The residents and business
consultations on the future for
the Temporary LTN failed to
reach children and many
young people.

Lack of knowledge regarding the experiences
of children and young people

The engagement
strategy and monitoring
strategy for the proposed
Experimental CHNs
should be designed to
reach and include
children and young
people.

Stage 3 Improvement plan

Actions to address any potential disadvantageous impact related to the

proposed change

This stage focuses on describing in more detail the likely disadvantageous impact of the proposed change
for specific groups that may share a protected characteristic and how you intend to address the probable
risks that you have identified stages 1 and 2.

3.1 | Please use the section below to define the steps you will take to minimise or mitigate

any likely adverse impact of the proposed change on specific groups that may share
a protected characteristic.

Equality Potential Action required to address | Action Date for

Group disadvantage or issue or minimise adverse | Owner completing

(Protected negative impact e | impact action

Characteristic)

Disability Inaccessible street | Transport for All lists the Head of When the
Environment factors hindering disabled Highways lessening of

Since this people engaging in active the

preparation of travel, the second of which and The Pandemic

this Equality is the condition of physical Council’s and related

Analysis in infrastructure, such as Access restrictions

December uneven footways. Whilst Officer allow

2020, the proposed experimental

Transport for CHNSs are not expected to

All has worsen the condition of

published its footways etc, CHNs are

report ‘Pave
the Way’ based
people with
disabilitys’
experiences of
LTNs. The
opportunity has
been taken to
update this
Analysis

perhaps opportune times
and locations to make
improvement to seek to
maximise the opportunity for
people with disabilities to
engage in active travel. A
street access audit should
be undertaken to identify
potential improvements such
as footway repairs, installing

Page 426




Participation in
consultation

Journey Times for
Taxis and Dial-a-
Ride

dropped kerbs and reducing
street clutter. The audit
should be undertaken with
members of the Mobility
Forum when/as the
lessening of the Pandemic
allows.

Transport for All has raised
concerns around the nature
of consultation that has been
undertaken in relation to
LTNs across London.
Further engagement and
focussed research would be
undertaken as part of /during
the proposed Experimental
CHNSs. The consultation /
engagement strategies and
monitoring strategies should
be developed with the
involvement of Transport for
All and members of the
Croydon Mobility Forum.

Transport for All report that
15% of those participating in
its research reported LTNs
impacting on their ability to
use taxis. Itis not clear from
the report whether ‘taxis’
includes Private Hire
Vehicles / minicabs. The
Taxicard scheme uses
minicabs as well as Taxis.
TfL’s research shows that
people with disabilities make
more journeys by minicab
than taxis. However
exempting buses and taxis
from the proposed camera
enforced ‘No Motor Vehicle’
would enable the same
exemption to be applied to
taxis and dial-a-ride vehicles
etc as proposed at the
control points

Transport for All report
concerns about the
increased journey time for
people giving care. This is
something also highlighted

Head of
Transport

Head of
Highways

Before the
final draft of
the
consultation
and
engagement
strategies

Before the
operation of
the
Experimental
LTN

Page 427




by the consultation into the
future for the Temporary
LTN and relayed at TMAC.
Exemptions to the
restrictions implementing the
proposed experimental LTN
should be provided for those
giving care to residents
within the LTN

There is not a ready solution
to the issue of potentially
longer journeys by disabled
people using minicabs. The
Transport for All proposed
scheme that would grant
dispensation for disabled
people requiring access to
their home by any vehicle
they choose, could be the
solution but it is suggested
that this needs to be
developed across London
with TfL perhaps facilitated
by London Council’s

Half the participants in the
Transport for All research
had a blue badge parking
permit. Access to the
proposed health facilities
could be further improved by
allowing blue badge permit
holders to apply for an
exemption permit similar to
the scheme where blue
badge holders are able to
apply for a 100% discount
for the Congestion Charge
for up to two vehicles they
register with TfL.

Head of
Transport

The
Council’s
Access
Officer,

TfL and
potentially
London
Council’s

Head of
Highways

As soon as
possible if
achievable.
Dialogue to
start with
TfL, London
Councils and
Transport for
All in March
2021.

Before the
operation of
the
Experimental
CHNs

Age

Gender

BME

3.2 | How will you ensure that the above actions are integrated into relevant annual
department or team service plans and the improvements are monitored?

| They will be reported on when reporting the results of and review of the Experimental LTNs

Page 428




3.3 | How will you share information on the findings of the equality analysis with
customers, staff and other stakeholders?

The results will be published as part of reporting to the Traffic Management Advisory Committee
(TMAC) including when reporting the results of and review of the Experimental LTN and making
any decision on the future of the Experimental LTNs.

| Section 4 Decision on the proposed change

4.1 | Based on the information in sections 1-3 of the equality analysis, what decision are
you going to take?

Decision Definition Yes / No
We will not make any Our assessment shows that there is no potential for
major amendments to discrimination, harassment or victimisation and that our
the proposed change proposed change already includes all appropriate actions to
because it already advance equality and foster good relations between groups. No
includes all appropriate
actions.
We will adjust the We have identified opportunities to lessen the impact of
proposed change. discrimination, harassment or victimisation and better advance
equality and foster good relations between groups through the Yes

proposed change. We are going to take action to make sure
these opportunities are realised.

We will continue with the |We have identified opportunities to lessen the impact of

proposed change as discrimination, harassment or victimisation and better advance
planned because it will equality and foster good relations between groups through the
be within the law. proposed change.
No

However, we are not planning to implement them as we are

satisfied that our project will not lead to unlawful discrimination

and there are justifiable reasons to continue as planned.
We will stop the The proposed change would have adverse effects on one or
proposed change. more protected groups that are not justified and cannot be No

lessened. It would lead to unlawful discrimination and must
not go ahead.

4.2 |[Does this equality analysis have to be considered at a scheduled meeting?
If so, please give the name and date of the meeting.

TMAC as / when LTNs TROs are sought.

4.3 [When and where will this equality analysis be published?

An equality analysis should be published alongside the policy or decision it is part of. As well as this,
the equality assessment could be made available externally at various points of delivering the
change. This will often mean publishing your equality analysis before the change is finalised, thereby

Page 429



enabling people to engage with you on your findings.

It will be published as an appendix to the report to TMAC.

4.4 | When will you update this equality analysis?

Please state at what stage of your proposed change you will do this and when you expect this
update to take place. If you are not planning to update this analysis, say why not

The Analysis will be updated in stages when the access audit has been undertaken, when
dialogue has happened with Transport for All and the Croydon Mobility Forum members, when the
research into and monitoring of effects of the Experimental LTN is concluding, when the
Consultation (including professional polling to achieve a representative sample of views from
across the local populations) is concluding and recommendations on the future for the
Experimental CHNs are being prepared.

4.5 | Please seek formal sign of the decision from Director for this equality analysis?
This confirms that the information in sections 1-4 of the equality analysis is accurate,
Comprehensive and up-o-date.

Officers that must Name and position Date

approve this decision

Head of Service / Lead on lan Plowright, Head of StrategicTransport 1 October

equality analysis 2021

Director Steve lles, Director of Public Realm 8 October
2021

Email this completed form to equalityandinclusion@croydon.gov.uk, together with an email trail
showing that the director is satisfied with it.

Page 430




	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Croydon Healthy Neighbourhoods
	1. Appendix 1 - Letter from Minister of Transport
	2. Appendix 2 - TfL’s Temporary Strategic Cycling Analysis and Strategic Neighbourhood Analysis
	3. Appendix 3 - Location and Date of Measures Creating the Temporary LTNs
	4. Appendix 4 - Scheme Drawings for Each Proposed Experimental CHN
	5. Appendix 5 - PDF Leaflets of Each Temporary LTN proposed Experimental CHN
	6. Appendix 6 - Appendix to the 26 July 2021 Cabinet Report
	7. Appendix 7 - Additional Duties and Considerations When Taking a Decision
	8a. Appendix 8a - Summary Findings from ‘Listening’
	8b.1 - Dalmally Road - Questionnaire Response Analysis
	8b.2 - Elmers Road - Questionnaire Response Analysis
	8b.3 - Parsons Mead - Questionnaire Response Analysis
	8b.4 - Sutherland Road - Questionnaire Response Analysis
	8b.5 - Holmesdale Road - Questionnaire Response Analysis
	8b.6 - Albert Road - Questionnaire Response Analysis
	8b.7 - Kemerton Road - Questionnaire Response Analysis
	8c.1 - CHN paper by SBS, CCC, CLS & CSCC
	8c.2 - Holmesdale Albert consultation submission
	8c.3 - Additional Email Submissions
	9. Appendix 9 - Children's Responses
	10. Appendix10 - CHN Equality Analysis
	Use of data, research and consultation to identify and analyse the probable
	Impact of the proposed change
	This stage focuses on describing in more detail the likely disadvantageous impact of the proposed change for specific groups that may share a protected characteristic and how you intend to address the probable risks that you have identified stages 1 a...





